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Explanatory Note

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is a combined report being filed by Leidos Holdings, Inc. (“Leidos”) and Leidos, Inc. Leidos is a
holding company and Leidos, Inc. is a direct, 100%-owned subsidiary of Leidos. Each of Leidos and Leidos, Inc. is filing on its own
behalf all of the information contained in this report that relates to such company. Where information or an explanation is provided
that is substantially the same for each company, such information or explanation has been combined in this report. Where
information or an explanation is not substantially the same for each company, separate information and explanation has been
provided. In addition, separate consolidated financial statements for each company, along with combined notes to the consolidated
financial statements, are included in this report. Unless indicated otherwise, references in this report to the “Company”, “we”, “us”
and “our” refer collectively to Leidos Holdings, Inc., Leidos, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Our Company

Leidos Holdings, Inc. ("Leidos") is a holding company. Its principal operating company, Leidos, Inc. was formed in 1969 by a small
group of scientists led by physicist Dr. Robert Beyster. Since our founding 46 years ago, we have applied our expertise in science,
research and engineering in rapidly evolving technologies and markets to solve complex problems of national concern.

Leidos is an applied technology company delivering solutions and services that leverage expertise in the national security, health
and engineering markets. We bring domain-specific capability to each of our markets, including imagery and signals intelligence,
advanced sensing phenomenology, intelligence collection methods, life sciences and power grid engineering. In addition to market-
specific capability, we have three core areas of technical expertise: data analytics, systems engineering and cybersecurity.
Customer needs in our markets span these three core areas of expertise, enabling cross-market innovations for our entire customer
set. We provide these solutions and services to government and commercial customers, both domestically and internationally.
Leidos' technically advanced solutions have enabled us to build strong ties with our key customers. These customers include
agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense ("DoD"), the intelligence community, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security
("DHS"), other U.S. Government civil agencies, state and local government agencies, and government agencies of U.S. allies
abroad. With a focus on delivering mission-critical solutions, Leidos generates over 79% of our total revenues from U.S.
Government contracts. A majority of that work supports the U.S. intelligence community.

Building on our foundation in offering innovative services and solutions to U.S. Government customers, Leidos is expanding into
international government and broader commercial markets. By leveraging expertise in multiple disciplines, tailoring our solutions to
the particular needs of our targeted markets, and using advanced analytics, we work to securely deliver solutions that not only meet
customers’ current goals, but also support their future endeavors.

On September 27, 2013 (the "Distribution Date"), Leidos completed the spin-off of our technical services and enterprise information
technology services business into an independent, publicly traded company named Science Applications International Corporation
("New SAIC"). The separation was effected through a tax-free distribution to Leidos' stockholders of 100% of the shares of New
SAIC's common stock. On the Distribution Date, New SAIC's common stock was distributed, on a pro rata basis, to Leidos'
stockholders of record as of the close of business on September 19, 2013, the record date. Each holder of Leidos common stock
received one share of New SAIC common stock for every seven shares of Leidos common stock held on the record date. Prior to
the Distribution Date, Leidos Holdings, Inc. was named SAIC, Inc. and Leidos, Inc. was named Science Applications International
Corporation.

As a result of the spin-off, the assets, liabilities, results of operations, and cash flows of New SAIC have been classified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. References to financial data are to our continuing operations, unless otherwise
noted.

Immediately following the spin-off, Leidos effectuated a one-for-four reverse stock split of its shares of common stock, so that every
four shares of Leidos common stock issued and outstanding were combined and converted into one share of Leidos common
stock. Each reference to the number of shares outstanding or per share amounts has been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock
split for all periods presented.

For additional discussion and analysis related to recent business developments, see “Business Environment and Trends” in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part Il of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

We use the terms “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” to refer collectively to Leidos Holdings, Inc., Leidos, Inc., and its consolidated
subsidiaries. Unless otherwise noted, references to fiscal years are to fiscal years ended the Friday closest to January 31. For
example, fiscal 2015 began on February 1, 2014 and ended on January 30, 2015.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 1




PART I

Our Business Segments

Our business is aligned into three reportable segments: National Security Solutions (NSS); Health and Engineering (HES); and
Corporate and Other. While each reportable segment is organized around the markets served and the nature of the products and
services provided to customers in those markets, we provide a wide array of scientific, engineering, and technical services and
solutions across these reportable segments.

National Security Solutions

National Security Solutions provides solutions and systems for air, land, sea, space and cyberspace for the U.S. intelligence
community, the DoD, the military services, the DHS and government agencies of U.S. allies abroad. Our solutions deliver
technology, large scale intelligence systems, command and control, data analytics, cybersecurity, logistics, and intelligence
analysis and operations support to critical missions around the world. Major customers of National Security Solutions include
national and military intelligence agencies, and other federal, civilian and commercial customers in the national security complex.
National Security Solutions represented 71% , 70% , and 72% of total revenues for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.

Our national security business is focused on rapidly providing cost effective solutions and services to the ever changing missions of
our customers in the areas of technology, intelligence and cybersecurity.

 Technology - We have a history of successfully delivering a wide range of technology capabilities rapidly. We provide
solutions for the arms control and the intelligence agencies and the DoD service arms, including the Defense Advanced
Research Projects Agency ("DARPA"). This group focuses largely on distributed autonomous capabilities and systems,
tying software and data capabilities together. We were an early developer of the first full spectrum Intelligence,
Surveillance, and Reconnaissance ("ISR") capability and placed it in theater during recent conflicts.

» Intelligence - We offer intelligence services and solutions and are deeply embedded in our customer's most important
missions. We provide systems development and operations support around the globe. We have over a decade of
experience dealing with large data ingest, structured and unstructured data, modern cloud processing tools and agile
development. We are supporting the army's migration of intelligence applications and infrastructure into the cloud and are
providing cloud computing architectures to the intelligence and the defense communities.

e Cybersecurity - We offer cybersecurity solutions that detect and manage the most sophisticated cyber threats. Our
solutions include key management systems to protect transmitted data, development tools to exploit cyber intelligence, and
programs to build comprehensive situational awareness on our nation's military and intelligence networks.

Health and Engineering

Our Health and Engineering businesses capitalize on our knowledge and experience in technology and innovation. Major
customers of Health and Engineering primarily include the U.S. federal government, state and local governmental agencies, foreign
governments, hospitals, and commercial enterprises in various industries. Health and Engineering represented 29% , 30% , and
28% of total revenues for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.

Our Health business provides services and solutions to commercial hospitals and the DoD as well as conducting research and
development for U.S. Government and Commercial enterprises in the life sciences field. Our healthcare business is focused on
improving the overall availability and quality of data and services that ultimately improves the quality of care while lowering cost for
our customers.

» Federal Health - We developed, fielded and currently maintain a full end-to-end EHR system and numerous behavior
health services - healthcare beyond the clinic - for the DoD. Within the DoD, we serve the Defense Health Agency, which
provides healthcare to active duty and retired military personnel and their
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dependents. We strive to improve the availability, quality, and cost effectiveness of healthcare for our military service
members and their families.

e Commercial Health - We implement and optimize Electronic Health Record ("EHR") systems at commercial hospitals. In
addition, we provide consulting services and operational support focused on high-level initiatives including health care
legislation for Meaningful Use and ICD-10 transition, IT strategy, revenue cycle management, accountable care
transformation, risk management, technology infrastructure, and project management. Our teams are staffed with clinical
subject matter experts who draw upon their deep experience and knowledge of healthcare and IT systems.

» Life Sciences - We provide Life Science research and development support to the National Institute of Health, Center for
Disease Control, Army Medical Research community, commercial biotech companies and the Frederick National
Laboratory for Cancer Research where we employ about 1,800 scientists, technicians, administrators, and support staff.
Our professionals operate a wide range of leading-edge research and development laboratories in the areas of genetics
and genomics, proteins and proteomics, advanced biomedical computing and information technology, biopharmaceutical
development and manufacturing, nanotechnology characterization, and clinical trials management.

Our Engineering business leverages technology and skills in process engineering, engineering design and systems integration to
create innovative and cost effective solutions for our customers. We carry out our engineering business in five key areas of
expertise:

* Process Industries Engineering -  We provide process industries engineering services and solutions to a large US market
for capital improvement programs for key clients across a number of industries, including mid-tier refineries and large
industrial companies. We exploit use of Building Information Modeling as a design tool and to manage the complexities of
the systems we design and build. Our leadership in the use of these tools allows us to manage and design complex
process systems as efficiently as possible.

» Security Products - We provide security products, services and solutions that leverage our design, integration and
process engineering technologies to build small footprint, minimally-intrusive secure commerce systems for our customers.
Our VACIS systems enable the rapid scanning of vehicles and cargo using patented technology that produces a high-
quality image using a low radiation dose while using less space and processing higher volumes of cars and trucks than
other scanning systems. Our Reveal line of explosive detection systems for checked airline baggage pioneered the
“reduced size” segment of this market, with small, flexible systems that can be installed at airport check-in counters. We
also have a line of radiation detection systems, which are used today at ports, border crossings, and industrial facilities
around the world - including most ports and border crossings in the United States.

» Power Grid Engineering - We provide power grid engineering services and solutions to a broad customer set and have
unique offerings including a Smart Grid as a Service ("SGS") solution. We are working with energy companies to develop
analytical products that fully exploit the data enabled by smart grid technology. We provide engineering and consulting to
electric utilities and transmission companies. Our focus is on engineering design of the grid from distribution through
transmission, and significant substation design and upgrade work. We provide physical and cybersecurity for our utility
customers as part of our substantive offerings. We also administer energy efficiency programs for states and utilities and
provide an array of consulting services for utilities.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 3




PART I

Federal Environmental and Engineering -  We provide consulting and engineering, primarily for the DoD. We support the
requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA") as well as other permitting activities. We also have
specialty consulting associated with specific environmental issues, such as underwater environmental issues, radiologic
clean up, risk assessment training ranges and other specific needs. We support site cleanup and remediation efforts. The
other portion of this business is engineering design and build, where we design high-content facilities such as unique
testing facilities and training centers.

Transaction and Valuation Consulting -  We provide transaction and asset valuation services for the power industry. Our
primary customers are the large lending institutions that require a comprehensive assessment of proposed projects for
financing. Our analysts study technologies, designs, operational plans, fuel needs and financial trends in power markets to
evaluate the viability of projects. We also provide oversight work at projects site on behalf of lenders or owners.

Corporate and Other

The Corporate and Other business segment includes the operations of various corporate activities, certain expense items that are
not reimbursed by our U.S. Government customers and certain other revenue and expense items excluded from a reportable
segment’s performance. Corporate and Other represented an immaterial percentage of revenue for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013.

For additional information regarding our reportable segments, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” in Part Il and Note 18 of the combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained within this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Acquisitions

During the last five fiscal years, we have completed 7 acquisitions. The most notable acquisitions were as follows:

In fiscal 2014, we gained 100% control of a special purpose limited liability company, Plainfield Renewable Energy LLC
("Plainfield"), formed to create a renewable energy project. The Plainfield Renewable Energy Project involves the design,
construction, and financing of a 37.5 megawatt biomass-fueled power plant in Plainfield, Connecticut. The acquisition was
effected by a consensual foreclosure agreement pursuant to which the project owners agreed to transfer to us all of their
equity interest in Plainfield in full satisfaction of certain secured obligations owed by the project owner to us. The
foreclosure agreement constituted a change in control and was accounted for as a business combination.

In fiscal 2013, we acquired maxIT Healthcare Holdings, Inc. ("maxIT"), a provider of clinical, business and information
technology services primarily to commercial hospital groups and other medical delivery organizations. This acquisition by
our Health and Engineering segment expanded our commercial consulting practice in Electronic Health Record ("EHR")
implementation and optimization and strengthened our capabilities to provide these services to our federal healthcare
customers as those customers migrate to commercial off-the-shelf EHR applications.

In fiscal 2012, we acquired Vitalize Consulting Solutions, Inc. ("Vitalize"), a provider of clinical, business and information
technology services for healthcare enterprises. This acquisition by our Health and Engineering segment expanded our
capabilities in both federal and commercial markets to help customers address EHR implementation and optimization
demand.
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» Infiscal 2011, we acquired Reveal Imaging Technologies, Inc. ("Reveal"), a provider of threat detection products and
services. This acquisition by our Health and Engineering segment enhanced our homeland security solutions portfolio by
adding U.S. Transportation Security Administration certified explosive detection systems for checked baggage screening to
our passenger and cargo inspections systems product offerings.

Dispositions

From time to time, we divest or management may commit to plans to divest of non-strategic components of our business. During
the last five fiscal years, our most notable dispositions included:

« Infiscal 2014, we committed to plans to dispose of Cloudshield, which was historically included in our National Security
Solutions segment, primarily focused on producing a suite of cybersecurity hardware and associated software and services.

The sale transaction was completed in February 2015.

» Infiscal 2013, we completed the sale of certain components of our business, which were historically included in our Health
and Engineering segment, primarily focused on providing operational test and evaluation services to U.S. Government

customers.

» Infiscal 2012, we completed the sale of certain components of our business which were historically included in our Health
and Engineering segment, primarily focused on providing information technology services to international oil and gas

companies.

Key Customers

Substantially all of our revenues are generated in the United States. Our total revenues are largely attributable to prime contracts or
to subcontracts with other contractors engaged in work for the U.S. Government, with remaining being customers across a variety
of commercial markets including healthcare, energy, manufacturing and transportation. Within the U.S. Government, our revenues
are diversified across many agencies, including various intelligence agencies, the U.S. Army, Navy and Air Force, research
agencies like DARPA, DHS, NASA and others.

The percentage of total revenues for the U.S. Government its agencies and other customers comprising more than 10% of total
revenues in any of the three years ended January 30, 2015, January 31, 2014, and January 31, 2013 were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
U.S. Government 79% 78% 81%
U.S. DoD 67% 68% 70%
U.S. Army 16% 19% 23%
Maryland Procurement Office 10% 8% 8%

These customers have a number of subsidiary agencies that have separate budgets and procurement functions. Our contracts may
be with the highest level of these agencies or with the subsidiary agencies of these customers.
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Employees

As of January 30, 2015, we employed approximately 19,000 full and part-time employees. The experience and expertise of our
employees makes Leidos capable of solving the most daunting problems facing our customers. Approximately 40% of our
employees have degrees in Science, Technology, Engineering, or Mathematics fields, close to 1,000 employees have doctoral
degrees, and nearly 50% of our employees possess security clearances.

The highly technical and complex services and products that we provide are dependent upon the availability of professional,
administrative and technical personnel having high levels of training and skills and, in many cases, security clearances. Due to the
increased competition for qualified personnel, we have experienced and may continue to face some difficulties in attracting and
retaining employees with certain specialized skillsets. We continue to devote significant resources to recruit, develop and retain
qualified employees.

Leidos has a framework of values, beliefs, and expectations that guide the company’s employees. The company has three tenants
that define the actions and behaviors of its employees:

» Employees are inspired to make a difference. We solve the world’s toughest problems; connect cross-enterprise knowledge
and technology; and unlock creativity and innovation by embracing differences.

« Employees are passionate about customer success. We make customer needs our own; create market-leading solutions;
and deliver superior results.

» Employees are united as a team. We behave with ethics and integrity; trust one another; collaborate and share ideas; and
create value for our employees, shareholders and communities.

Research and Development

We conduct research and development activities under customer-funded contracts and with company-funded internal research and
development ("IR&D") funds. IR&D efforts consist of projects involving basic research, applied research, development, and systems
and other concept formulation studies. IR&D expenses are included in selling, general and administrative expenses and are
generally allocated to U.S. Government contracts. In fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, our company-funded IR&D expense was $37
million , $45 million , and $47 million , respectively, which as a percentage of sales was 0.7% , 0.8% , and 0.7% , respectively. We
charge expenses for research and development activities performed under customer contracts directly to cost of revenues for those
contracts.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our technical services and products are not generally dependent upon patent protection, although we do selectively seek patent
protection. We claim a proprietary interest in certain of our products, software programs, methodologies and know-how. This
proprietary information is protected by copyrights, trade secrets, licenses, contracts and other means. We selectively pursue
opportunities to license or transfer our technologies to third parties.

In connection with the performance of services, the U.S. Government has certain rights to inventions, data, software codes and
related material that we develop under U.S. Government-funded contracts and subcontracts. Generally, the U.S. Government may
disclose or license such information to third parties, including, in some instances, our competitors. In the case of some subcontracts
that we perform, the prime contractor may also have certain rights to the programs and products that we develop under the
subcontract.
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Competition

Competition for contracts is intense, and we often compete against a large number of established multinational corporations that
may have greater name and brand recognition, financial resources, and larger technical staffs. We also compete against smaller,
more specialized companies that concentrate their resources on particular areas, as well as the U.S. Government’s own capabilities
and federal non-profit contract research centers. As a result of the diverse requirements of the U.S. Government and our
commercial customers, we frequently collaborate with other companies to compete for large contracts, and bid against these same
companies in other situations. We believe that our principal competitors currently include the following companies:

» the engineering and technical services divisions of large defense contractors that provide U.S. Government IT services in
addition to other hardware systems and products, including companies such as The Boeing Company, General Dynamics
Corporation, Lockheed Martin Corporation, Northrop Grumman Corporation, BAE Systems plc, L-3 Communications
Corporation and Raytheon Company;

» contractors focused principally on technical services, including U.S. Government IT services, such as Booz Allen Hamilton
Inc., Engility Holdings, Inc., CACI International Inc, ManTech International Corporation, Serco Group plc, SRA International,
Inc. and MITRE Corporation;

» diversified commercial and U.S. Government IT providers, such as Accenture plc, Computer Sciences Corporation ("CSC"),
HP Enterprise Services, International Business Machines Corporation ("IBM") and Unisys Corporation;

» contractors that provide engineering, consulting, design and construction services, such as Jacobs Engineering Group,
URS Corporation, KBR, Inc. and CH2M Hill Companies Ltd.;

» contractors focused on supplying homeland security product solutions, including American Science and Engineering, Inc.,
OSI Systems, Inc., L-3 Communications Corporation, General Electric Company and Smiths Group plc;

» contractors providing supply chain management and other logistics services, including Agility Logistics Corp.; and

« companies focused on providing health solutions and services to the U.S. Government and hospitals, including Accenture,
IBM, CSC, Cerner Corporation, Epic Systems and Allscripts.

We compete on various factors, including our technical expertise and qualified professional and/or security-cleared personnel; our
ability to deliver innovative cost-effective solutions in a timely manner; successful program execution; our reputation and standing
with customers, pricing, and the size and geographic presence of our company.

The U.S. Government has indicated that it intends to increase competition for future procurement of products and services, which
has led to fewer sole source awards and more emphasis on cost-competitiveness and affordability. In addition, procurement
initiatives to improve efficiency, refocus priorities, and enhance best practices could result in fewer new opportunities for our
industry as a whole, which would intensify competition within the industry as companies compete for a more limited set of new
programs.
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Contract Procurement

Our business is heavily regulated and we must comply with and are affected by laws and regulations relating to the formation,
administration and performance of U.S. Government and other contracts. The U.S. Government procurement environment has
evolved due to statutory and regulatory procurement reform initiatives. Today, U.S. Government customers employ several
contracting methods to purchase services and products. Budgetary pressures and reforms in the procurement process have
caused many U.S. Government customers to increasingly purchase services and products using contracting methods that give
them the ability to select multiple contract winners or pre-qualify certain contractors to provide services or products on established
general terms and conditions rather than through single award contracts. The predominant contracting methods through which U.S.
Government agencies procure services and products include the following:

» Single Award Contracts. U.S. Government agencies may procure services and products through single award contracts
which specify the scope of services or products purchased and identify the contractor that will provide the specified
services or products. When an agency has a requirement, the agency will issue a solicitation or request for proposal to
which interested contractors can submit a proposal. The process of issuing solicitations or request for proposals and
evaluating contractor bids requires the agency to maintain a large, professional procurement staff and the bidding and
selection process can take a year or more to complete. For the contractor, this method of contracting may provide greater
certainty of the timing and amounts to be received at the time of contract award because it generally results in the customer
contracting for a specific scope of services or products from the single successful awardee.

» Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity ("IDIQ") Contracts. The U.S. Government uses IDIQ contracts to obtain commitments
from contractors to provide certain services or products on pre-established terms and conditions. The U.S. Government
then issues task orders under the IDIQ contracts to purchase the specific services or products it needs. IDIQ contracts are
awarded to one or more contractors following a competitive procurement process. Under a single-award IDIQ contract, all
task orders under that contract are awarded to one pre-selected contractor. Under a multiple-award IDIQ contract, task
orders can be awarded to any of the pre-selected contractors, which can result in further limited competition for the award
of task orders. Multiple-award IDIQ contracts that are open for any government agency to use for procurement are
commonly referred to as “government-wide acquisition contracts”. IDIQ contracts often have multi-year terms and unfunded
ceiling amounts, therefore enabling, but not committing, the U.S. Government to purchase substantial amounts of services
or products from one or more contractors. At the time an IDIQ contract is awarded (prior to the award of any task orders), a
contractor may have limited or no visibility as to the ultimate amount of services or products that the U.S. Government will
purchase under the contract, and in the case of a multiple-award IDIQ, the contractor from which such purchases may be
made.

» U.S. General Services Administration ("GSA") Schedule Contracts. The GSA maintains listings of approved suppliers of
services and products with agreed-upon prices for use throughout the U.S. Government. In order for a company to provide
services under a GSA Schedule contract, a company must be pre-qualified and awarded a contract by the GSA. When an
agency uses a GSA Schedule contract to meet its requirements, the agency, or the GSA on behalf of the agency, conducts
the procurement. The user agency, or the GSA on its behalf, evaluates the user agency’s requirements and initiates a
competition limited to GSA Schedule qualified contractors. GSA Schedule contracts are designed to provide the user
agency with reduced procurement time and lower procurement costs. Similar to IDIQ contracts, at the time a GSA
Schedule contract is awarded, a contractor may have limited or no visibility as to the ultimate amount of services or
products that the U.S. Government will purchase under the contract.

We often team with other parties, including our competitors, to submit bids for large U.S. Government procurements or other
opportunities where we believe that the combination of services and products that we can provide as a team will help us win and
perform the contract. Our relationships with our teammates, including whether we serve as the prime contractor or as a
subcontractor, vary with each contract opportunity and typically depend on the
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program, contract or customer requirements, as well as the relative size, qualifications, capabilities, customer relationships and
experience of our company and our teammates.

Contracting with the U.S. Government also subjects us to substantial regulation and unique risks, including the U.S. Government’s
ability to cancel any contract at any time through a termination for the convenience of the U.S. Government. Most of our contracts
have cancellation terms that would permit us to recover all or a portion of our incurred costs and fees for work performed where the
U.S. Government issues a termination for convenience. These regulations and risks are described in more detail below under
“Business—Regulation” and “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Contract Types

Generally, the type of contract for our services and products is determined by or negotiated with the U.S. Government and may
depend on certain factors, including the type and complexity of the work to be performed, degree and timing of the responsibility to
be assumed by the contractor for the costs of performance, the extent of price competition and the amount and nature of the profit
incentive offered to the contractor for achieving or exceeding specified standards or goals. We generate revenues under several
types of contracts, including the following:

» Cost-reimbursement contracts provide for reimbursement of our direct contract costs and allocable indirect costs, plus a
fee. This type of contract is generally used when uncertainties involved in contract performance do not permit costs to be
estimated with sufficient accuracy to use a fixed-price contract. Cost-reimbursement contracts generally subject us to lower
risk, but generally require us to use our best efforts to accomplish the scope of the work within a specified time and amount
of costs.

« Time-and-materials ("T&M") contracts typically provide for negotiated fixed hourly rates for specified categories of direct
labor plus reimbursement of other direct costs. This type of contract is generally used when there is uncertainty of the
extent or duration of the work to be performed by the contractor at the time of contract award or it is not possible to
anticipate costs with any reasonable degree of confidence. On T&M contracts, we assume the risk of providing
appropriately qualified staff to perform these contracts at the hourly rates set forth in the contracts over the period of
performance of the contracts.

» Fixed-price-level-of-effort ("FP-LOE") contracts are substantially similar to T&M contracts except they require a specified
level of effort over a stated period of time on work that can be stated only in general terms. This type of contract is generally
used when the contractor is required to perform an investigation or study in a specific research and development area and
to provide a report showing the results achieved based on the level of effort. Payment is based on the effort expended
rather than the results achieved.

« Firm-fixed-price ("FFP") contracts provide for a fixed price for specified products, systems and/or services. This type of
contract is generally used when the government acquires products and services on the basis of reasonably definitive
specifications and which have a determinable fair and reasonable price. These contracts offer us potential increased profits
if we can complete the work at lower costs than planned. While FFP contracts allow us to benefit from cost savings, these
contracts also increase our exposure to the risk of cost overruns.

Our earnings and profitability may vary materially depending on changes in the proportionate amount of revenues derived from
each type of contract, the nature of services or products provided, as well as the achievement of performance objectives and the
stage of performance at which the right to receive fees, particularly under incentive and award fee contracts, is finally determined.
Cost reimbursement and T&M contracts generally have lower profitability than FFP contracts. For the proportionate amount of
revenues derived from each type of contract for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013 see “Key Performance Measures—Contract Types” in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part Il of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.
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Backlog

Backlog represents the estimated amount of future revenues to be recognized under negotiated contracts as work is performed.
Our backlog consists of funded backlog and negotiated unfunded backlog, each of which are described in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We expect
to recognize a substantial portion of our funded backlog from U.S. Government customers as revenues within the next 12 months.
However, the U.S. Government may cancel any contract at any time through a termination for the convenience of the U.S.
Government. In addition, certain contracts with commercial or non-U.S. Federal Government customers included in funded backlog
may include provisions that allow the customer to cancel at any time. Many of our contracts have cancellation terms that would
permit us to recover all or a portion of our incurred costs and fees for work performed. For additional discussion and analysis of
backlog, see “Key Performance Measures—Bookings and Backlog” in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Seasonality

The U.S. Government's fiscal year ends on September 30 of each year. It is not uncommon for U.S. Government agencies to
award extra tasks or complete other contract actions in the time frame leading up to the end of its fiscal year in order to avoid the
loss of unexpended funds, which may favorably impact our third fiscal quarter. In addition, as a result of the cyclical nature of the
U.S. Government budget process and a greater number of holidays in our fourth fiscal quarter as compared to our third fiscal
quarter, we typically experience sequentially higher revenues in our third fiscal quarter and lower revenues in our fourth fiscal
quarter. For selected quarterly financial data, see Note 21 of the combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Regulation

We are heavily regulated in most of the fields in which we operate. We provide services and products to numerous U.S.
Government agencies and entities, including to the DoD, the intelligence community and the DHS. When working with these and
other U.S. Government agencies and entities, we must comply with various laws and regulations relating to the formation,
administration and performance of contracts. U.S. Government contracts generally are subject to the Federal Acquisition
Regulation ("FAR"), which sets forth policies, procedures and requirements for the acquisition of goods and services by the U.S.
Government, agency-specific regulations that implement or supplement FAR, such as the DoD’s Defense Federal Acquisition
Regulation Supplement ("DFARS") and other applicable laws and regulations. These regulations impose a broad range of
requirements, many of which are unique to government contracting, including various procurement, import and export, security,
contract pricing and cost, contract termination and adjustment, and audit requirements. Among other things, these laws and
regulations:

* require certification and disclosure of all cost and pricing data in connection with certain contract negotiations;

» define allowable and unallowable costs and otherwise govern our right to reimbursement under various cost-based U.S.
Government contracts;

* require compliance with U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards ("CAS");

* require reviews by the Defense Contract Audit Agency ("DCAA"), Defense Contract Management Agency ("DCMA") and
other U.S. Government agencies of compliance with government standards for a contractor’s business systems;

» restrict the use and dissemination of information classified for national security purposes and the export of certain products
and technical data; and

* require us not to compete for work if an organizational conflict of interest, as defined by these laws and regulations, related
to such work exists and/or cannot be appropriately mitigated.
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The U.S. Government may revise its procurement practices or adopt new contract rules and regulations at any time. In order to help
ensure compliance with these complex laws and regulations, all of our employees are required to complete ethics training and other
compliance training relevant to their position.

Some of our operations and service offerings involve access to and use by us of personally identifiable information and/or protected
health information, which activities are regulated by extensive federal and state privacy and data security laws requiring
organizations to provide certain privacy protections and security safeguards for such information.

Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to various foreign, federal, state and local environmental protection and health and safety laws and
regulations. In addition, our operations may become subject to future laws and regulations, including those related to climate
change and environmental sustainability. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could result in civil, criminal, regulatory,
administrative or contractual sanctions, including fines, penalties or suspension or debarment from contracting with the U.S.
Government, or could cause us to incur costs to change, upgrade, remediate and/or close some of our operations or properties.
Some environmental laws hold current or previous owners or operators of businesses and real property liable for hazardous
substance releases, even if they did not know of and were not responsible for the releases. Our services and operations involve the
assessment or remediation of environmental hazards, as well as using, handling or disposing of hazardous substances.
Environmental laws may impose liability on any person who disposes, transports, or arranges for the disposal or transportation of
hazardous substances to any site. In addition, we may face liability for personal injury, property damage and natural resource
damages relating to hazardous substance releases for which we are otherwise liable or relating to exposure to or the mishandling
of hazardous substances in connection with our current and former operations or services, including our current and prior
ownership of properties. Although we do not currently anticipate that the costs of complying with, or the liabilities associated with,
environmental laws will materially and adversely affect us, we cannot ensure that we will not incur material costs or liabilities in the
future.

Company Website and Information

Our website can be accessed at www.leidos.com . The website contains information about our company and operations. Through a
link on the Investor Relations section of our website, copies of each of our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC") on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports, can be viewed and downloaded free of
charge as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports and amendments are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.
The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into and is not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

You may request a copy of the materials identified in the preceding paragraph, at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at our
corporate headquarters at the following:

Leidos Holdings, Inc.

11951 Freedom Drive

Reston, VA 20190

Attention: Corporate Secretary
Telephone: (571) 526-6000
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

In your evaluation of our company and business, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below,
together with information included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and other documents we file with the SEC. The
risks and uncertainties described below are those that we have identified as material, but are not the only risks and uncertainties
facing us. If any of these risks or uncertainties actually occurs, our business, financial condition or operating results could be
materially harmed and the price of our stock could decline. Our business is also subject to general risks and uncertainties that affect
many other companies, such as our ability to collect receivables, overall U.S. and global economic and industry conditions,
geopolitical events, changes in laws or accounting rules, fluctuations in interest and exchange rates, terrorism, international
conflicts, major health concerns, climate change or other disruptions of expected economic and business conditions. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial also may materially harm our business,
financial condition or operating results and result in a decline in the price of our stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business

We depend on government agencies as our primary cus  tomer and if our reputation or relationships with t hese agencies
were harmed, our future revenues and growth prospec  ts would be adversely affected.

We generated over 78% of our total revenues during each of the last three fiscal years from contracts with the U.S. Government
(including all branches of the U.S. military), either as a prime contractor or a subcontractor to other contractors engaged in work for
the U.S. Government. We generated more than 10% of our total revenues during each of the last three fiscal years from the U.S.
Army. We expect to continue to derive most of our revenues from work performed under U.S. Government contracts. Our reputation
and relationship with the U.S. Government, and in particular with the agencies of the DoD and the U.S. intelligence community, are
key factors in maintaining and growing our revenues. Negative press reports or publicity, which could pertain to employee or
subcontractor misconduct, conflicts of interest, poor contract performance, deficiencies in services, reports, products or other
deliverables, information security breaches or other aspects of our business, regardless of accuracy, could harm our reputation,
particularly with these agencies. If our reputation is negatively affected, or if we are suspended or debarred from contracting with
government agencies for any reason, the amount of business with government and other customers would decrease and our future
revenues and growth prospects would be adversely affected.

A decline in the U.S. Government budget, changes in spending or budgetary priorities or delays in cont ract awards may
significantly and adversely affect our future reven ues and limit our growth prospects.

Revenues under contracts with the DoD, either as a prime contractor or subcontractor to other contractors, represented
approximately 67% of our total revenues in fiscal 2015. Levels of DoD spending are difficult to predict and subject to significant risk.
Our operating results could be adversely affected by spending caps or changes in the budgetary priorities of the U.S. Government
or the DoD, as well as delays in program starts or the award of contracts or task orders under contracts. Current U.S. Government
spending levels for defense-related programs may not be sustained and future spending and program authorizations may not
increase or may decrease or shift to programs in areas in which we do not provide services or are less likely to be awarded
contracts. Such changes in spending authorizations and budgetary priorities may occur as a result of uncertainty surrounding the
federal budget, increasing political pressure and legislation, shifts in spending priorities from defense-related programs as a result
of competing demands for federal funds, the number and intensity of military conflicts, sequestration or other factors.

In particular, there remains much uncertainty about how exactly sequestration cuts will be implemented and the impact those cuts
will have on contractors supporting the government. In light of the current uncertainty, we are not able to predict the impact of
budget cuts, including sequestration, on our company or our financial results. However, we expect that budgetary constraints and
concerns related to the national debt will continue to place pressure on DoD spending levels and that implementation of the
automatic spending cuts without change will reduce, delay or cancel funding for certain of our contracts — particularly those with
unobligated balances — and programs and could adversely impact our operations, financial results and growth prospects.
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The U.S. Government also conducts periodic reviews of U.S. defense strategies and priorities, which may shift DoD budgetary
priorities, reduce overall U.S. Government spending or delay contract or task order awards for defense-related programs, including
programs from which we expect to derive a significant portion of our future revenues. In addition, changes to the DoD acquisition
system and contracting models could affect whether and how we pursue certain opportunities and the terms under which we are
able to do so. A significant decline in overall U.S. Government spending, including in the areas of national security, intelligence and
homeland security, a significant shift in its spending priorities, the substantial reduction or elimination of particular defense-related
programs or significant delays in contract or task order awards for large programs could adversely affect our future revenues and
limit our growth prospects.

Because we depend on U.S. Government contracts, ad  elay in the completion of the U.S. Government’s bud  get process
could delay procurement of the products, services a nd solutions we provide and have an adverse effect on our future
revenues.

The funding of U.S. Government programs is subject to an annual congressional budget authorization and appropriation process. In
years when the U.S. Government does not complete its budget process before the end of its fiscal year on September 30,
government operations are typically funded pursuant to a “continuing resolution,” which allows federal government agencies to
operate at spending levels approved in the previous budget cycle, but does not authorize new spending initiatives. When the U.S.
Government operates under a continuing resolution, delays can occur in the procurement of the products, services and solutions
that we provide and may result in new initiatives being canceled. We have from time to time experienced a decline in revenues in
our fourth quarter ending January 31 and beyond as a result of this annual budget cycle, and we could experience similar declines
in revenues from future delays in the budget process. In years when the U.S. Government fails to complete its budget process or to
provide for a continuing resolution, a federal government shutdown may result. A federal government shutdown could in turn result
in our incurrence of substantial labor or other costs without reimbursement under customer contracts, or the delay or cancellation of
key programs, which could have a negative effect on our cash flows and adversely affect our future results. In addition, when
supplemental appropriations are required to operate the U.S. Government or fund specific programs and passage of legislation
needed to approve any supplemental appropriation bill is delayed, the overall funding environment for our business could be
adversely affected.

Our failure to comply with a variety of complex pro curement rules and regulations could result in our being liable for
penalties, including termination of our U.S. Govern ment contracts, disqualification from bidding on fu ture U.S.
Government contracts and suspension or debarment fr om U.S. Government contracting.

We must comply with laws and regulations relating to the formation, administration and performance of U.S. Government contracts,
which affect how we do business with our customers and may impose added costs on our business. Some significant statutes and
regulations that affect us include:

« the FAR and supplements, which regulate the formation, administration and performance of U.S. Government contracts;

» the Truth in Negotiations Act, which requires certification and disclosure of cost and pricing data in connection with certain
contract negotiations;

« the Procurement Integrity Act, which regulates access to competitor bid and proposal information and government source
selection information and our ability to provide compensation to certain former government officials;

» the Civil False Claims Act, which provides for substantial civil penalties for violations, including for submission of a false or
fraudulent claim to the U.S. Government for payment or approval; and

» the U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards, which impose accounting requirements that govern our right to
reimbursement under certain cost-based U.S. Government contracts.
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The FAR and many of our U.S. Government contracts contain organizational conflict of interest clauses that may limit our ability to
compete for or perform certain other contracts or other types of services for particular customers. Organizational conflicts of interest
arise when we engage in activities that may make us unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the U.S. Government,
impair our objectivity in performing contract work, or provide us with an unfair competitive advantage. A conflict of interest issue that
precludes our competition for or performance on a significant program or contract could harm our prospects.

The U.S. Government may adopt new contract rules an  d regulations or revise its procurement practices i n a manner
adverse to us at any time.

Our industry has experienced, and we expect it will continue to experience, significant changes to business practices as a result of
an increased focus on affordability, efficiencies, and recovery of costs, among other items. U.S. Government agencies may face
restrictions or pressure regarding the type and amount of services that they may obtain from private contractors. Legislation,
regulations and initiatives dealing with procurement reform, mitigation of potential conflicts of interest and environmental
responsibility or sustainability, as well as any resulting shifts in the buying practices of U.S. Government agencies, such as
increased usage of fixed price contracts, multiple award contracts and small business set-aside contracts, could have adverse
effects on government contractors, including us. Any of these changes could impair our ability to obtain new contracts or renew our
existing contracts when those contracts are recompeted. Any new contracting requirements or procurement methods could be
costly or administratively difficult for us to implement and could adversely affect our future revenues, profitability and prospects.

Our business is subject to reviews, audits and cost adjustments by the U.S. Government, which, ifreso  Ived unfavorably
to us, could adversely affect our profitability, ca sh position or growth prospects.

U.S. Government agencies, including the DCAA, DCMA and others, routinely audit and review a contractor’s performance on
government contracts, indirect rates and pricing practices, and compliance with applicable contracting and procurement laws,
regulations and standards. They also review the adequacy of the contractor's compliance with government standards for its
business systems, including: a contractor’'s accounting system, earned value management system, estimating system, materials
management and accounting system, property management system and purchasing system.

Both contractors and the U.S. Government agencies conducting these audits and reviews have come under increased scrutiny. As
a result, the current audits and reviews have become more rigorous and the standards to which we are held are being more strictly
interpreted, increasing the likelihood of an audit or review resulting in an adverse outcome. During the course of its current audits,
the DCAA is closely examining and questioning several of our long established and disclosed practices that it had previously
audited and accepted, increasing the uncertainty as to the ultimate conclusion that will be reached.

A finding of significant control deficiencies in our system audits or other reviews can result in decremented billing rates to our U.S.
Government customers until the control deficiencies are corrected and our remediations are accepted by DCMA. Government
audits and reviews may conclude that our practices are not consistent with applicable laws and regulations and result in
adjustments to contract costs and mandatory customer refunds. Such adjustments can be applied retroactively, which could result
in significant customer refunds. Our receipt of adverse audit findings or the failure to obtain an “approved” determination of our
various business systems from the responsible U.S. Government agency could significantly and adversely affect our business,
including our ability to bid on new contracts and our competitive position in the bidding process. A determination of non-compliance
with applicable contracting and procurement laws, regulations and standards could also result in the U.S. Government imposing
penalties and sanctions against us, including withholding of payments, suspension of payments and increased government scrutiny
that could delay or adversely affect our ability to invoice and receive timely payment on contracts, perform contracts or compete for
contracts with the U.S. Government.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 14




PART I

Our indirect cost audits by the DCAA remain open for fiscal 2009 and subsequent fiscal years. Although we have recorded contract
revenues subsequent to and including fiscal 2009 based upon our estimate of costs that we believe will be approved upon final
audit or review, we do not know the outcome of any ongoing or future audits or reviews and adjustments and, if future adjustments
exceed our estimates, our profitability would be adversely affected.

Our business is subject to governmental review and investigation which could adversely affect our fina ncial position,
operating results and growth prospects.

We are routinely subject to governmental investigations relating to compliance with various laws and regulations with respect to our
role as a contractor to federal, state and local government customers and in connection with performing services in countries
outside the United States. If a review or investigation identifies improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil or criminal
penalties or administrative sanctions, including the termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, the triggering of price reduction
clauses, suspension of payments, fines and suspension or debarment from doing business with governmental agencies. We may
suffer harm to our reputation if allegations of impropriety are made against us, which would impair our ability to win new contract
awards or receive contract renewals. Penalties and sanctions are not uncommon in our industry. If we incur a material penalty or
administrative sanction or otherwise suffer harm to our reputation, our revenues, profitability, cash position and future prospects
could be adversely affected. More generally, increases in scrutiny and investigations from government organizations, legislative
bodies or agencies into business practices and into major programs supported by contractors may lead to increased legal costs
and may harm our reputation, revenues, profitability and growth prospects.

Misconduct of employees, subcontractors, agents and business partners could cause us to lose existing contracts or
customers and adversely affect our ability to obtai n new contracts and customers and could have a sign ificant adverse
impact on our business and reputation.

Misconduct could include fraud or other improper activities such as falsifying time or other records and violations of laws, including
the Anti-Kickback Act. Other examples could include the failure to comply with our policies and procedures or with federal, state or
local government procurement regulations, regulations regarding the use and safeguarding of classified or other protected
information, legislation regarding the pricing of labor and other costs in government contracts, laws and regulations relating to
environmental, health or safety matters, bribery of foreign government officials, import-export control, lobbying or similar activities,
and any other applicable laws or regulations. Any data loss or information security lapses resulting in the compromise of personal
information or the improper use or disclosure of sensitive or classified information could result in claims, remediation costs,
regulatory sanctions against us, loss of current and future contracts and serious harm to our reputation. Although we have
implemented policies, procedures and controls to prevent and detect these activities, these precautions may not prevent all
misconduct, and as a result, we could face unknown risks or losses. Our failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations or
misconduct by any of our employees, subcontractors, agents or business partners could damage our reputation and subject us to
fines and penalties, restitution or other damages, loss of security clearance, loss of current and future customer contracts and
suspension or debarment from contracting with federal, state or local government agencies, any of which would adversely affect our
business, reputation and our future results.

Due to the competitive process to obtain contracts and the likelihood of bid protests, we may be unabl e to achieve or
sustain revenue growth and profitability.

We expect that a majority of the business that we seek in the foreseeable future will be awarded through a competitive bidding
process. The U.S. Government has increasingly relied on contracts that are subject to a competitive bidding process, including
IDIQ, GSA Schedule and other multi-award contracts, which has resulted in greater competition and increased pricing pressure.
The competitive bidding process involves substantial costs and a number of risks, including significant cost and managerial time to
prepare bids and proposals for contracts that may not be awarded to us, or that may be awarded but for which we do not receive
meaningful task orders, and to the risk of inaccurately estimating the resources and costs that will be required to fulfill any contract
we win.
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Following contract award, we may encounter significant expense, delay, contract modifications or even contract loss as a result of
our competitors protesting the award of contracts to us in competitive bidding. Any resulting loss or delay of start-up and funding of
work under protested contract awards may adversely affect our revenues and/or profitability. In addition, multi-award contracts
require that we make sustained post-award efforts to obtain task orders under the contract. As a result, we may not be able to
obtain these task orders or recognize revenues under these multi-award contracts. Our failure to compete effectively in this
procurement environment would adversely affect our revenues and/or profitability.

The U.S. Government may terminate, cancel, modify o r curtail our contracts at any time prior to their completion and, if we
do not replace them, this may adversely affect our future revenues and profitability.

Many of the U.S. Government programs in which we participate as a contractor or subcontractor extend for several years and
include one or more base years and one or more option years. These programs are normally funded on an annual basis. Under our
contracts, the U.S. Government generally has the right to not exercise options to extend or expand our contracts and may
otherwise terminate, cancel, modify or curtail our contracts at its convenience. Any decisions by the U.S. Government to not
exercise contract options or to terminate, cancel, modify or curtail our major programs or contracts would adversely affect our
revenues, revenue growth and profitability.

We have experienced and continue to experience periodic performance issues under certain of our contracts. Some of our
contracts involve the development of complex systems and products to achieve challenging customer goals in a competitive
procurement environment. As a result, we sometimes experience technological or other performance difficulties, which have in the
past and may in the future result in delays, cost overruns and failures in our performance of these contracts. If a government
customer terminates a contract for default, we may be exposed to liability, including for excess costs incurred by the customer in
procuring undelivered services and products from another source. Depending on the nature and value of the contract, a
performance issue or termination for default could cause our actual results to differ from those anticipated and could harm our
reputation.

We face aggressive competition that can impact our ability to obtain contracts and therefore affect ou r future revenues
and growth prospects.

Our business is highly competitive and we compete with larger companies that have greater name recognition, financial resources
and larger technical staffs. We also compete with smaller, more specialized companies that are able to concentrate their resources
on particular areas. Additionally, we compete with the U.S. Government’s own capabilities and federal non-profit contract research
centers.

The markets in which we operate are characterized by rapidly changing technology and the needs of our customers change and
evolve regularly. Accordingly, our success depends on our ability to develop services and products that address these changing
needs and to provide people and technology needed to deliver these services and products. To remain competitive, we must
consistently provide superior service, technology and performance on a cost-effective basis to our customers. Our competitors may
be able to provide our customers with different or greater capabilities or technologies or better contract terms than we can provide,
including technical qualifications, past contract experience, geographic presence, price and the availability of qualified professional
personnel. In addition, our competitors may consolidate or establish teaming or other relationships among themselves or with third
parties to increase their ability to address customers’ needs. Accordingly, we anticipate that larger or new competitors or alliances
among competitors may emerge, which may adversely affect our ability to compete.

A failure to attract, train and retain skilled empl  oyees, including our management team, would adverse ly affect our ability
to execute our strategy and may disrupt our operati ons.

Our business involves the development of tailored services and solutions for our customers, a process that relies heavily upon the
expertise and services of our employees. Our continued success depends on our ability to recruit and retain highly trained and
skilled engineering, technical and professional personnel. Competition for skilled personnel is intense and competitors aggressively
recruit key employees. In addition, many U.S. Government programs require contractors to have security clearances. Depending on
the level of required clearance, security
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clearances can be difficult and time-consuming to obtain and personnel with security clearances are in great demand. Particularly in
highly specialized areas, it has become more difficult to retain employees and meet all of our needs for employees in a timely
manner, which may affect our growth. Although we intend to continue to devote significant resources to recruit, train and retain
qualified employees, we may not be able to attract, effectively train and retain these employees. Any failure to do so could impair
our ability to perform our contractual obligations efficiently and timely meet our customers’ needs and win new business, which
could adversely affect our future results.

In addition to attracting and retaining qualified engineering, technical and professional personnel, we believe that our success will
also depend on the continued employment of a highly qualified and experienced senior management team and its ability to retain
existing business and generate new business. Our senior management team is important to our business because personal
reputations and individual business relationships are a critical element of retaining and obtaining customer contracts in our industry,
particularly with agencies performing classified operations. An inability to retain appropriately qualified and experienced senior
executives could cause us to lose customers or new business opportunities.

We may not realize as revenues the full amounts ref  lected in our backlog, which could adversely affect our expected
future revenues and growth prospects.

As of January 30, 2015, our total backlog was $7.8 billion including $2.7 billion in funded backlog. Due to the U.S. Government’s
ability to not exercise contract options or to terminate, modify or curtail our programs or contracts and the rights of our non-U.S.
Government customers to cancel contracts and purchase orders in certain circumstances, we may realize less than expected or
may never realize revenues from some of the contracts that are included in our backlog. Our unfunded backlog, in particular,
contains management’s estimate of amounts expected to be realized on unfunded contract work that may never be realized as
revenues. If we fail to realize as revenues amounts included in our backlog, our future revenues, profitability and growth prospects
could be adversely affected.

Our earnings and profitability may vary based on th e mix of our contracts and may be adversely affecte  d by our failure to
accurately estimate and manage costs, time and reso  urces.

We generate revenues under various types of contracts, which include cost reimbursement, T&M, FP-LOE and FFP contracts. Our
earnings and profitability may vary materially depending on changes in the proportionate amount of revenues derived from each
type of contract, the nature of services or products provided, as well as the achievement of performance objectives and the stage of
performance at which the right to receive fees, particularly under incentive and award fee contracts, is finally determined. Cost
reimbursement and T&M contracts are generally less profitable than FFP contracts. Our operating results in any period may also be
affected, positively or negatively, by customer’s variable purchasing patterns of our more profitable proprietary products.

Our profitability is adversely affected when we incur contract costs that we cannot bill to our customers. To varying degrees, each of
our contract types involves some risk that we could underestimate the costs and resources necessary to fulfill the contract. While
FFP contracts allow us to benefit from cost savings, these contracts also increase our exposure to the risk of cost overruns.
Revenues from FFP contracts represented approximately 27% of our total revenues for fiscal 2015. When making proposals on
these types of contracts, we rely heavily on our estimates of costs and timing to complete the associated projects, as well as
assumptions regarding technical issues. In each case, our failure to accurately estimate costs or the resources and technology
needed to perform our contracts or to effectively manage and control our costs during performance could result, and in some
instances has resulted, in reduced profits or in losses. More generally, any increased or unexpected costs or unanticipated delays
in the performance of our contracts, including costs and delays caused by contractual disputes or other factors outside of our
control, such as performance failures of our subcontractors, natural disasters or other force majeure events, could make our
contracts less profitable than expected or unprofitable.
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We use estimates in recognizing revenues, and if we make changes to estimates used in recognizing reve  nues, our
profitability may be adversely affected.

Revenues from our contracts are primarily recognized using the percentage-of-completion method or on the basis of partial
performance towards completion. These methodologies require estimates of total costs at completion, fees earned on the contract,
or both. This estimation process, particularly due to the technical nature of the services performed and the long-term nature of
certain contracts, is complex and involves significant judgment. Adjustments to original estimates are often required as work
progresses, experience is gained and additional information becomes known, even though the scope of the work required under
the contract may not change. Any adjustment as a result of a change in estimate is recognized as events become known. Changes
in the underlying assumptions, circumstances or estimates could result in adjustments that may adversely affect our future financial
results.

Our failure to comply with the terms of our adminis trative agreement would have a material adverse eff  ect on our
business and future prospects.

In connection with the resolution of certain investigations related to our CityTime contract, we entered into a five year administrative
agreement with the Army on behalf of the U.S. Government in order to confirm our continuing eligibility to enter into and perform
contracts with the U.S. Government. Our compliance with the terms and conditions of the administrative agreement, including the
appointment of an independent monitor, require significant resources and management involvement. If we fail to comply with the
administrative agreement, the Army may extend the term of the administrative agreement or initiate suspension or debarment
proceedings against us. In addition, we continue to be subject to risks in connection with government reviews and investigations
and other legal disputes unrelated to the CityTime matter, which may subject us to civil or criminal penalties or administrative
sanctions, including the termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, the triggering of price reduction clauses, suspension of
payments, fines and suspension or debarment from doing business with governmental agencies.

Legal disputes could require us to pay potentially large damage awards and could be costly to defend, which would
adversely affect our cash balances and profitabilit y, and could damage our reputation.

We are subject to a number of lawsuits and claims described in “Legal Proceedings” in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
as may be updated in our future filings with the SEC, including our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. We are also subject to, and
may become a party to, a variety of other litigation or claims and suits that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of our
business. Adverse judgments or settlements in some or all of these legal disputes may result in significant monetary damages,
penalties or injunctive relief against us. Any claims or litigation could be costly to defend, and even if we are successful or if fully
indemnified or insured, could damage our reputation and make it more difficult to compete effectively or obtain adequate insurance
in the future. Litigation and other claims, including those described in “Legal Proceedings,” are subject to inherent uncertainties and
management’s view of these matters may change in the future.
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Our business and operations expose us to numerous | egal and regulatory requirements, and any violation of these
requirements could harm our business.

We are subject to numerous federal, state and foreign legal requirements on matters as diverse as data privacy and protection,
employment and labor relations, immigration, taxation, anticorruption, import/export controls, trade restrictions, internal and
disclosure control obligations, securities regulation and anti-competition. Compliance with diverse and changing legal requirements
is costly, time-consuming and requires significant resources. We also conduct business in certain identified growth areas, such as
health information technology, energy and environment, which are highly regulated and may expose us to increased compliance
risk. Violations of one or more of these diverse legal requirements in the conduct of our business could result in significant fines and
other damages, criminal sanctions against us or our officers, prohibitions on doing business and damage to our

reputation. Violations of these regulations or contractual obligations related to regulatory compliance in connection with the
performance of customer contracts could also result in liability for significant monetary damages, fines and/or criminal prosecution,
unfavorable publicity and other reputational damage, restrictions on our ability to compete for certain work and allegations by our
customers that we have not performed our contractual obligations.

Our business and financial results could be negativ ely affected by cyber or other security threats.

As a U.S. Government contractor and a provider of information technology services operating in multiple regulated industries and
geographies, we handle sensitive information. Therefore, we are continuously exposed to cyber attacks and other security threats,
including physical break-ins. Any electronic or physical break-in or other security breach or compromise may jeopardize security of
information stored or transmitted through our information technology systems and networks. This could lead to disruptions in
mission-critical systems, unauthorized release of confidential or otherwise protected information and corruption of data. Although
we have implemented policies, procedures and controls to protect against, detect and mitigate these threats, we face advanced
and persistent attacks on our information systems and attempts by others to gain unauthorized access to our information
technology systems are becoming more sophisticated. These attempts include covertly introducing malware to our computers

and networks and impersonating authorized users, among others, and may be perpetrated by well-funded organized crime or state
sponsored efforts. We seek to detect and investigate all security incidents and to prevent their occurrence or recurrence. We
continue to invest in and improve our threat protection, detection and mitigation policies, procedures and controls. In addition, we
work with other companies in the industry and government participants on increased awareness and enhanced protections against
cybersecurity threats. However, because of the evolving nature and sophistication of these security threats, which can be difficult to
detect, there can be no assurance that our policies, procedures and controls have or will detect or prevent any of these threats and
we cannot predict the full impact of any such past or future incident. We may experience similar security threats to the information
technology systems that we develop, install or maintain under customer contracts. Although we work cooperatively with our
customers and other business partners to seek to minimize the impacts of cyber and other security threats, we must rely on the
safeguards put in place by those entities. Any remedial costs or other liabilities related to cyber or other security threats may not be
fully insured or indemnified by other means. Occurrence of any of these security threats could expose us to claims, contract
terminations and damages and could adversely affect our reputation, ability to work on sensitive U.S. Government contracts,
business operations and financial results.

Internal system or service failures could disrupt o ur business and impair our ability to effectively p rovide our services and
products to our customers, which could damage our r eputation and adversely affect our revenues and pro fitability.

Any system or service disruptions, including those caused by ongoing projects to improve our information technology systems and
the delivery of services, whether through our shared services organization or outsourced services, if not anticipated and
appropriately mitigated, could have a material adverse effect on our business including, among other things, an adverse effect on
our ability to bill our customers for work performed on our contracts, collect the amounts that have been billed and produce
accurate financial statements in a timely manner. We are also subject to systems failures, including network, software or hardware
failures, whether caused by us,
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third-party service providers, cybersecurity threats, natural disasters, power shortages, terrorist attacks or other events, which could
cause loss of data and interruptions or delays in our business, cause us to incur remediation costs, subject us to claims and
damage our reputation. In addition, the failure or disruption of our communications could cause us to interrupt or suspend our
operations or otherwise adversely affect our business. Our property and business interruption insurance may be inadequate to
compensate us for all losses that may occur as a result of any system or operational failure or disruption and, as a result, our future
results could be adversely affected.

Customer systems failures could damage our reputati on and adversely affect our revenues and profitabil ity.

Many of the systems and networks that we develop, install and maintain for our customers involve managing and protecting
personal information and information relating to national security and other sensitive government functions. While we have
programs designed to comply with relevant privacy and security laws and restrictions, if a system or network that we develop, install
or maintain were to fail or experience a security breach or service interruption, whether caused by us, third-party service providers,
cybersecurity threats or other events, we may experience loss of revenue, remediation costs or face claims for damages or contract
termination. Any such event could cause serious harm to our reputation and prevent us from having access to or being eligible for
further work on such systems and networks. Our errors and omissions liability insurance may be inadequate to compensate us for
all of the damages that we may incur and, as a result, our future results could be adversely affected.

Many of our contracts contain performance obligatio ns that require innovative design capabilities, are technologically
complex, or are dependent upon factors not wholly w ithin our control. Failure to meet these obligation s could adversely
affect our profitability and future prospects.

We design and develop technologically advanced and innovative products and services applied by our customers in a variety of
environments. Problems and delays in development or delivery as a result of issues with respect to design, technology, licensing
and patent rights, labor, learning curve assumptions or materials and components could prevent us from achieving contractual
requirements.

In addition, our offerings cannot be tested and proven in all situations and are otherwise subject to unforeseen problems that could
negatively affect revenue and profitability such as problems with quality and workmanship, country of origin, delivery of
subcontractor components or services and unplanned degradation of product performance. Among the factors that may affect
revenue and profits could be unforeseen costs and expenses not covered by insurance or indemnification from the customer,
diversion of management focus in responding to unforeseen problems, loss of follow-on work, and, in the case of certain contracts,
repayment to the government customer of contract cost and fee payments we previously received.

We have contracts with the U.S. Government that are  classified, which may limit investor insight into portions of our
business.

We derive a portion of our revenues from programs with the U.S. Government that are subject to security restrictions (classified
programs), which preclude the dissemination of information that is classified for national security purposes. We are limited in our
ability to provide information about these classified programs, their risks or any disputes or claims relating to such programs. As a
result, investors have less insight into our classified programs than our other businesses and therefore less ability to fully evaluate
the risks related to our classified business.
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We have made and continue to make acquisitions, inv  estments, joint ventures and divestitures that invo Ive numerous
risks and uncertainties.

We selectively pursue strategic acquisitions, investments and joint ventures. These transactions require significant investment of
time and resources and may disrupt our business and distract our management from other responsibilities. Even if successful,
these transactions could reduce earnings for a number of reasons, including the amortization of intangible assets, impairment
charges, acquired operations that are not yet profitable or the payment of additional consideration under earn-out arrangements if
an acquisition performs better than expected. Acquisitions, investments and joint ventures pose many other risks that could
adversely affect our reputation, operations or financial results, including:

* we may not be able to identify, compete effectively for or complete suitable acquisitions and investments at prices we
consider attractive;

e we may not be able to accurately estimate the financial effect of acquisitions and investments on our business and we may
not realize anticipated synergies or acquisitions may not result in improved operating performance;

« we may encounter performance problems with acquired technologies, capabilities and products, particularly with respect to
those that are still in development when acquired;

* we may have trouble retaining key employees and customers of an acquired business or otherwise integrating such
businesses, such as incompatible accounting, information management, or other control systems, which could result in
unforeseen difficulties;

e we may assume material liabilities that were not identified as part of our due diligence or for which we are unable to receive
a purchase price adjustment or reimbursement through indemnification;

* we may assume legal or regulatory risks, particularly with respect to smaller businesses that have immature business
processes and compliance programs;

e acquired entities or joint ventures may not operate profitably, which could adversely affect our operating income or
operating margins and we may be unable to recover investments in any such acquisitions;

* acquisitions, investments and joint ventures may require us to spend a significant amount of cash or to issue capital stock,
resulting in dilution of ownership; and

* we may not be able to effectively influence the operations of our joint ventures or we may be exposed to certain liabilities if
our joint venture partners do not fulfill their obligations.

If our acquisitions, investments or joint ventures fail, perform poorly or their value is otherwise impaired for any reason, including
contractions in credit markets and global economic conditions, our business and financial results could be adversely affected.

In addition, we periodically divest businesses, including businesses that are no longer a part of our ongoing strategic plan. These
divestitures similarly require significant investment of time and resources, may disrupt our business, distract management from
other responsibilities and may result in losses on disposal or continued financial involvement in the divested business, including
through indemnification, guarantee or other financial arrangements, for a period of time following the transaction, which would
adversely affect our financial results.
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Goodwill and other intangible assets represent appr oximately 38% of our total assets and any impairmen t of these assets
could negatively impact our results of operations.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives, including goodwill, are tested for impairment at least annually or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Examples of
events or changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying value of intangible assets may not be recoverable could include a
significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate, an adverse action or assessment by a regulator,
unanticipated competition, loss of key personnel, or a more-likely-than-not expectation that a reporting unit or a significant portion of
a reporting unit will be sold or otherwise disposed. We face continued uncertainty in our business environment due to the
substantial fiscal and economic challenges facing the U.S. Government, our primary customer, as well as challenges in the
commercial healthcare industry, compounded by lower levels of U.S. Government reimbursements, including reductions in
Medicare reimbursements which in turn impact hospital IT spending. Adverse changes in fiscal and economic conditions, such as
the manner in which the budget cuts are implemented, including sequestration, and issues related to the nation’s debt ceiling, could
adversely impact our future revenues and profitability. These circumstances could result in an impairment of goodwill and/or other
intangibles. Also adverse equity market conditions that result in a decline in market multiples and our stock price could result in an
impairment of goodwill and/or other intangibles. Any future impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets would have a negative
impact on our profitability and financial results.

We depend on our teaming arrangements and relations  hips with other contractors and subcontractors. If we are not able
to maintain these relationships, or if these partie s fail to satisfy their obligations to us or the cu stomer, our revenues,
profitability and growth prospects could be adverse ly affected.

We rely on our teaming relationships with other prime contractors and subcontractors in order to submit bids for large procurements
or other opportunities where we believe the combination of services and products provided by us and the other companies will help
us to win and perform the contract. Our future revenues and growth prospects could be adversely affected if other contractors
eliminate or reduce their contract relationships with us, or if the U.S. Government terminates or reduces these other contractors’
programs, does not award them new contracts or refuses to pay under a contract. Companies that do not have access to U.S.
Government contracts may perform services as our subcontractor and that exposure could enhance such companies’ prospect of
securing a future position as a prime U.S. Government contractor which could increase competition for future contracts and impair
our ability to perform on contracts.

We may have disputes with our subcontractors arising from, among other things, the quality and timeliness of work performed by
the subcontractor, customer concerns about the subcontractor, our failure to extend existing task orders or issue new task orders
under a subcontract, our hiring of a subcontractor’s personnel or the subcontractor’s failure to comply with applicable law. Uncertain
economic conditions heighten the risk of financial stress of our subcontractors, which could adversely impact their ability to meet
their contractual requirements to us. If any of our subcontractors fail to timely meet their contractual obligations or have regulatory
compliance or other problems, our ability to fulfill our obligations as a prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor may be
jeopardized. Significant losses could arise in future periods and subcontractor performance deficiencies could result in our
termination for default. A termination for default could eliminate a revenue source, expose us to liability and have an adverse effect
on our ability to compete for future contracts and task orders, especially if the customer is an agency of the U.S. Government.
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We provide professional engineering and other servi ces, including engineering-procurement-construction , design build,
project delivery and commissioning, in connection w ith complex projects that involve significant risks and may require
long-term capital.

In connection with certain projects, we may commit to a specific completion date or performance standards, which may expose us
to significant additional costs and reputational damage if we miss the completion date or fail to achieve the performance standards,
including agreed upon financial damages. Project performance can be affected by a number of factors beyond our control, including
delays from governmental inaction, public opposition, inability to obtain financing, weather, unavailability or increased price of
materials, changes in project scope, accidents, environmental hazards, labor disruptions and other factors. If we assume risks
related to these events, such risks may not be insurable or may only be insurable on unacceptable terms. If these events occur, the
total project costs could exceed our estimates and we could experience reduced profits or, in some cases, incur a loss on a project,
which may reduce or eliminate overall profitability and have an adverse effect on our financial position and cash flows.

We entered into an agreement to sell our biomass-po  wered generating facility in Plainfield, Connecticu t. If the closing of
the sale is delayed, if we fail to close, or if sub ~ sequent to closing we foreclose on the facility in the event of buyer's
default, we will continue to own the facility and o ur lack of experience in owning, operating, and opt imizing the
performance of such a facility, as well as the risk s and uncertainties associated with the renewable e  nergy industry, may
adversely affect our profitability.

On March 24, 2015 we agreed to sell our Plainfield Renewable Energy biomass-powered generating facility. The closing of the
transaction is subject to certain closing conditions including various regulatory filings and approvals. Any delay or failure to satisfy
the closing conditions would prevent or delay the transaction from closing, in which event we would remain the owner of the facility.
As owner of the facility we would have continued exposure to certain risks associated with operating the plant as we have limited
experience owning, operating and optimizing a power plant, which may impair our ability to do so effectively and profitably. The
operation of a biomass-powered generating facility is subject to various risks and uncertainties, including those relating to feedstock
supply, emissions requirements, off-take arrangements for remaining, uncommitted power capacity, equipment failures, regulatory
compliance and permitting and changes in legislation, as well as other external factors that could reduce the availability of the
facility. In addition to a delay or failure to close the sale, the transaction is partially seller-financed. If buyer is unable to meet its
financial obligations under its note to us and defaults, among other remedies, we could foreclose on the facility and take
possession. In such event we would then be subject to the aforementioned risks and uncertainties of owning the facility.

Our services and operations sometimes involve using , handling or disposing of hazardous substances, wh ich could
expose us to potentially significant liabilities.

Some of our services and operations involve the assessment or remediation of environmental hazards, as well as the use, handling
or disposal of hazardous substances. These activities and our operations generally subject us to extensive foreign, federal, state
and local environmental protection and health and safety laws and regulations, which, among other things, require us to incur costs
to comply with these regulations and could impose liability on us for handling or disposing of hazardous substances. Furthermore,
failure to comply with these environmental protection and health and safety laws and regulations could result in civil, criminal,
regulatory, administrative or contractual sanctions, including fines, penalties or suspension or debarment from contracting with the
U.S. Government. Our current and previous ownership and operation of real property also subjects us to environmental protection
laws, some of which hold current or previous owners or operators of businesses and real property liable for hazardous substance
releases, even if they did not know of and were not responsible for the releases. If we have any violations of, or incur liabilities
pursuant to, these laws or regulations, our financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected.
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We could incur significant liabilities and suffer n egative publicity if our inspection or detection sy stems fail to detect
bombs, explosives, weapons, contraband or other thr eats.

We design, develop, manufacture, sell, service and maintain various inspection systems that are designed to assist in the detection
of bombs, explosives, weapons, contraband or other threats. In some instances, we also train operators of such systems. Many of
these systems utilize software algorithms that are probabilistic in nature and subject to significant technical limitations. Many of
these systems are also dependent on the performance of their operators. There are many factors, some of which are beyond our
control, which could result in the failure of our products to help detect the presence of bombs, explosives, weapons, contraband or
other threats. Some of these factors could include operator error, inherent limitations in our systems, and misuse or malfunction of
our systems. The failure of our systems to help detect the presence of any of these dangerous materials could lead to injury, death
and extensive property damage and may lead to product liability, professional liability, or other claims against us. Further, if our
systems fail to, or are perceived to have failed to help detect a threat, the negative publicity from such incident could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Our insurance may be insufficient to protect us fro m product and other liability claims or losses.

We maintain insurance coverage with third-party insurers as part of our overall risk management strategy and because some of our
contracts require us to maintain specific insurance coverage limits. However, not every risk or liability is or can be protected by
insurance, and, for those risks we insure, the limits of coverage we purchase or that are reasonably obtainable in the market may
not be sufficient to cover all actual losses or liabilities incurred. If any of our third-party insurers fail, cancel our coverage or
otherwise are unable to provide us with adequate insurance coverage, then our overall risk exposure and our operational expenses
would increase and the management of our business operations would be disrupted. Our insurance may be insufficient to protect
us from significant product and other liability claims or losses. Moreover, there is a risk that commercially available liability
insurance will not continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost, if at all. If liability claims or losses exceed our current or
available insurance coverage, our business, financial position, operating results and prospects may be harmed. Regardless of the
adequacy of our liability insurance coverages, any significant claim may have an adverse effect on our industry and market
reputation, leading to a substantial decrease in demand for our products and services and reduced revenues.

We face risks associated with our international bus iness.

Our international business operations may be subject to additional and different risks than our U.S. business. Failure to comply with
U.S. Government laws and regulations applicable to international business, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or U.S.
export control regulations, could have an adverse impact on our business with the U.S. Government and could expose us to
administrative, civil or criminal penalties. Additionally, these risks relating to international operations may expose us to potentially
significant contract losses.

In some countries, there is an increased chance for economic, legal or political changes that may adversely affect the performance
of our services, sale of our products or repatriation of our profits. International transactions can also involve increased financial and
legal risks arising from foreign exchange rate variability, imposition of tariffs or additional taxes, restrictive trade policies and
differing legal systems. We provide services and products in support of U.S. Government customers in countries with governments
that may be or may become unstable, which increases the risk of an incident resulting in injury or loss of life, or damage or
destruction of property, or inability to meet our contractual obligations. Although our international operations have historically
generated a small proportion of our revenues, we are seeking to grow our international business, in which case these regulatory,
geopolitical and other factors may have a greater impact on our business in the future and could adversely affect our business.
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We have only a limited ability to protect our intel lectual property rights, which are important to our success. Our failure to
adequately protect our proprietary information and intellectual property rights could adversely affect our competitive
position.

We rely principally on trade secrets to protect much of our intellectual property in cases where we do not believe that patent
protection is appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. Although our employees are subject to
confidentiality obligations, this protection may be inadequate to deter or prevent misappropriation of our confidential information.
We may be unable to detect unauthorized use of our intellectual property or otherwise take appropriate steps to enforce our rights.
Failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could adversely affect our competitive business position. If we are unable to
prevent third parties from infringing or misappropriating our copyrights, trademarks or other proprietary information, our competitive
position could be adversely affected. In addition, in connection with the performance of services, the U.S. Government has certain
rights to inventions, data, software codes and related material that we develop under government-funded contracts and
subcontracts, which means that U.S. Government may disclose or license our information to third parties, including, in some
instances, our competitors.

In the course of conducting our business, we may inadvertently infringe the intellectual property rights of others, resulting in claims
against us or our customers. Our contracts generally indemnify our customers for third-party claims for intellectual property
infringement by the services and products we provide. The expense of defending these claims may adversely affect our financial
results.

Business disruptions caused by natural disasters an d other crises could adversely affect our profitabi lity and our overall
financial position.

We have significant operations located in regions of the United States that may be exposed to damaging storms and other natural
disasters, such as hurricanes, tornadoes, blizzards, flooding, wildfires or earthquakes. Our business could also be disrupted by
pandemics and other national or international crises. Although preventative measures may help mitigate the damage from such
occurrences, the damage and disruption to our business resulting from any of these events may be significant. If our insurance and
other risk mitigation mechanisms are not sufficient to recover all costs, including loss of revenues from sales to customers, we
could experience a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations. Performance failures and disruptions
by our subcontractors due to these types of events may also adversely affect our ability to perform our obligations on a prime
contract, which could reduce our profitability due to damages or other costs that may not be fully recoverable from the
subcontractor or the customer and could result in a termination of the prime contract and have an adverse effect on our ability to
compete for future contracts.

Our financial results may vary significantly from p eriod-to-period.

Our financial results may fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, many of which are outside of our control. For these reasons,
comparing our operating results on a period-to-period basis may not be meaningful, and you should not rely on our past results as
an indication of our future performance. Our financial results may be negatively affected by any of the risk factors listed in this “Risk
Factors” section and other matters described elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We use estimates in accounting for many of our prog rams and changes in our estimates could adversely a  ffect our future
financial results.

Accounting for many of our programs requires judgment relative to assessing risks, including risks associated with estimating
directed delays and reductions in scheduled deliveries, unfavorable resolutions of claims and contractual matters, judgments
associated with estimating contract revenues and costs, and assumptions for schedule and technical issues. Due to the size and
nature of many of our contracts, the estimation of total revenues and cost at completion is complicated and subject to many
variables. For example, we must make assumptions regarding the length of time to complete the contract because costs also
include expected increases in wages and prices for materials, consider whether the intent of entering into multiple contracts was
effectively to enter into a single project

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 25




PART I

in order to determine whether such contracts should be combined or segmented, consider incentives or penalties related to
performance on contracts in estimating revenue and profit rates, and record them when there is sufficient information for us to
assess anticipated performance; and use estimates of award fees in estimating revenue and profit rates based on actual and
anticipated awards. Because of the significance of the judgments and estimation processes involved in accounting for construction
and production type contracts, materially different amounts could be recorded if we used different assumptions or if the underlying
circumstances were to change. Changes in underlying assumptions, circumstances or estimates may adversely affect our future
results of operations and financial condition.

The spin-off of our technical, engineering and ente  rprise information technology services business cou Id result in
substantial tax liability to us and our stockholder S.

We received a private letter ruling from the IRS and an opinion of tax counsel substantially to the effect that, for U.S. federal income
tax purposes, the spin-off and certain related transactions qualify for tax-free treatment under certain sections of the Internal
Revenue Code. However, if the factual assumptions or representations made in the private letter ruling request or the opinion are
inaccurate or incomplete in any material respect, including those relating to the past and future conduct of our business, we will not
be able to rely on the ruling or the opinion. Furthermore, the opinion covered certain matters on which the IRS does not rule and will
not be binding on the IRS or the courts. Accordingly, the IRS or the courts may challenge the conclusions stated in the opinion and
such challenge could prevail.

If, notwithstanding receipt of the private letter ruling and opinion, the spin-off and certain related transactions are determined to be
taxable, we would be subject to a substantial tax liability. In addition, if the spin-off transaction is taxable, each holder of our
common stock who received shares of the new company would generally be treated as receiving a taxable distribution of property
in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares received, thereby potentially increasing such holder’s tax liability.

Even if the spin-off otherwise qualified as a tax-free transaction, the distribution could be taxable to us (but not to our stockholders)
in certain circumstances if future significant acquisitions of our stock or the stock of the new company are deemed to be part of a
plan or series of related transactions that include the spin-off. In this event, the resulting tax liability could be substantial. In
connection with the spin-off, we entered into a tax matters agreement with the new company, under which it agreed not to enter into
any transaction without our consent that could cause any portion of the spin-off to be taxable to us and to indemnify us for any tax
liabilities resulting from such transactions. These obligations and potential tax liabilities may discourage, delay or prevent a change
of control of our company.

Risks Relating to Our Stock
We cannot assure you that we will continue to pay d ividends on our common stock.

In March 2012, our board of directors approved the initiation of a quarterly dividend program. The timing, declaration, amount and
payment of any future dividends fall within the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on many factors, including our
available cash, estimated cash needs, earnings, financial condition, operating results, capital requirements, as well as limitations in
our contractual agreements, applicable law, regulatory constraints, industry practice and other business considerations that our
board of directors considers relevant. A change in our dividend program could have an adverse effect on the market price of our
common stock.
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Provisions in our charter documents and under Delaw are law could delay or prevent transactions that ma  ny stockholders
may favor.

Some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of delaying, discouraging or preventing a merger
or acquisition that our stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which stockholders might receive a premium
for their shares. These restrictions, which may also make it more difficult for our stockholders to elect directors not endorsed by our
current directors and management, include the following:

» Our certificate of incorporation provides that our bylaws and certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation may be
amended by only two-thirds or more voting power of all of the outstanding shares entitled to vote. These supermajority
voting requirements could impede our stockholders’ ability to make changes to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

« Our certificate of incorporation contains certain supermajority voting provisions, which generally provide that mergers and
certain other business combinations between us and a related person be approved by the holders of securities having at
least 80% of our outstanding voting power, as well as by the holders of a majority of the voting power of such securities that
are not owned by the related person.

« Our stockholders may not act by written consent. As a result, a holder, or holders, controlling a majority of our capital stock
are limited in their ability to take certain actions other than in connection with its annual stockholders’ meeting or a special
meeting called at the request of qualified stockholders as provided in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

» Our board of directors may issue, without stockholder approval, shares of undesignated preferred stock. The ability to
authorize undesignated preferred stock makes it possible for our board of directors to issue preferred stock with voting or
other rights or preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to acquire us.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subject to certain restrictions on business combinations. Under Delaware law, a corporation
may not engage in a business combination with any holder of 15% or more of its capital stock unless the holder has held the stock
for three years, or among other things, our board of directors has approved the business combination or the transaction pursuant to
which such person became a 15% holder prior to the time the person became a 15% holder.

Forward-Looking Statement Risks
You may not be able to rely on forward-looking stat  ements.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that are based on our management’s belief and
assumptions about the future in light of information currently available to our management. In some cases, you can identify forward-
looking statements by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” and similar words or phrases or the negative of these words or phrases. These statements relate
to future events or our future financial performance, and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may
cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable when made, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements. There are a number of important factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those results anticipated by our forward-looking statements, which include, but are not limited to:

” o ” o ” o« ” o LT ” o«

» developments in the U.S. Government defense budget, including budget reductions, sequestration, implementation of
spending limits or changes in budgetary priorities, or delays in the U.S. Government budget process or approval of raising
the debt ceiling;
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delays in the U.S. Government contract procurement process or the award of contracts and delays or loss of contracts as a
result of competitor protests;

changes in U.S. Government procurement rules, regulations, and practices;

our compliance with various U.S. Government and other government procurement rules and regulations;
governmental reviews, audits and investigations of our company;

our ability to effectively compete and win contracts with the U.S. Government and other customers;

our reliance on information technology spending by hospitals/health care organizations;

our reliance on infrastructure investments by industrial and natural resources organizations;

energy efficiency and alternative energy sourcing investments;

investments by U.S. Government and commercial organizations in environment impact and remediation projects;

our ability to attract, train and retain skilled employees, including our management team, and to obtain security clearances
for our employees;

our ability to accurately estimate costs associated with our firm-fixed-price and other contracts;

our ability to comply with certain agreements entered into in connection with the CityTime matter;

resolution of legal and other disputes with our customers and others or legal or regulatory compliance issues;
cybersecurity, data security or other security threats, system failures or other disruptions of our business;

our ability to effectively acquire businesses and make investments;

our ability to maintain relationships with prime contractors, subcontractors and joint venture partners;

our ability to manage performance and other risks related to customer contracts, including complex engineering or design
build projects;

the failure of our inspection or detection systems to detect threats;
the adequacy of our insurance programs designed to protect us from significant product or other liability claims;
our ability to manage risks associated with our international business;

our ability to declare future dividends based on our earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and other factors,
including compliance with applicable law and our agreements;

risks associated with the spin-off of our technical, engineering and enterprise information technology services business,
such as unknown liabilities and risks associated with joint performance;

our ability to grow our commercial health and engineering businesses, which could be negatively affected by budgetary
constraints faced by hospitals and by developers of energy and infrastructure projects; and

our ability to execute our business plan and long-term management initiatives effectively and to overcome these and other
known and unknown risks that we face.
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We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any of the forward-looking statements to reflect events, circumstances,
changes in expectations, or the occurrence of unanticipated events after the date of those statements or to conform these
statements to actual results.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

As of January 30, 2015, we conducted our operations in approximately 236 offices located in 40 states, the District of Columbia and
various foreign countries. We consider our facilities suitable and adequate for our present needs. We occupy approximately

5.6 million square feet of floor space. Of this amount, we own approximately 1.1 million square feet, and the remaining balance is
leased. Our major locations are in the Washington, D.C. metropolitan area, where we occupy a combination of leased and owned
floor space of approximately 3.0 million square feet. We also have employees working at customer sites throughout the United
States and in other countries. As of January 30, 2015, we owned the following properties:

Number of Square

Location buildings footage Acreage

McLean, Virginia 1 287,000 15.1
San Diego, California 2 262,000 6.2
Virginia Beach, Virginia 2 159,000 22.5
Columbia, Maryland 1 95,000 7.3
Colorado Springs, Colorado 1 86,000 5.8
Orlando, Florida 1 85,000 18.0
Oak Ridge, Tennessee 1 83,000 12.5
Reston, Virginia 1 62,000 2.6

The nature of our business is such that there is no practicable way to relate occupied space to our reportable segments. See Note
16 of the combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information
regarding commitments under leases.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We have provided information about legal proceedings in which we are involved in Note 19 of the combined notes to the
consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In addition to the matters disclosed in Note 19, we are routinely subject to investigations and reviews relating to compliance with
various laws and regulations. Additional information regarding such investigations and reviews is set forth in Note 20 “Commitments
and Contingencies — Government Investigations and Reviews” of the combined notes to the consolidated financial statements
contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 29




PART I

Executive and Other Key Officers of the Registrant

The following is a list of the names and ages (as of March 25, 2015) of our executive and other key officers, indicating all positions
and offices held by each such person and each such person’s business experience during at least the past five years. All such
persons have been elected to serve until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal.

Name of officer

Age

Position(s) with the company and prior business experience

Sarah Allen*

S. Gulu Gambhir

Roger A. Krone*

Theodore W. Lay Il

Michael E. Leiter*

Vincent A. Maffeo*

56

46

58

65

45

64

Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer since 2013. Prior to
joining Leidos in September 2008, Ms. Allen served as the Director of Human
Resources in the TASC Business Unit of Northrop Grumman Corporation. Earlier in her
career, she held positions with TRW Environmental Safety Systems, Honeywell and
Hewlett-Packard Company.

Chief Technology Officer and Senior Vice President since 2013. Prior to that time, Mr.
Gambhir served as National Security Sector Chief Technology Officer and Senior Vice
President since 2009. Before joining Leidos

Mr. Gambhir served as director of Northrop Grumman's Science and Technology
Operating Unit of TASC, holding a variety of technical and managerial roles since 1991.
Previously, he worked at Space Applications Corporation and COMSAT Laboratories.

Chief Executive Officer since July 2014, succeeding John P. Jumper. Mr. Krone also
sits on the Leidos Board of Directors. He brings nearly 35 years of operational,
strategic, and financial execution experience for some of the nation’s most prominent
names in aerospace. Mr. Krone has held senior program management and finance
positions at The Boeing Company, McDonnell Douglas Corp., and General Dynamics.
Mr. Krone is currently director on the board for the United Launch Alliance, a member
of the advisory board at Georgia Tech, and a member of the board of WETA Public
Television and Radio in Washington, D.C. He is a long-time supporter of the Urban
League, and currently serves on the board of the Greater Washington chapter.

Senior Vice President, Ethics Compliance, Policy and Governance since September
2013. Mr. Lay joined the Ethics and Compliance Office in January 2011 as the Director
of Employee Ethics & Chair of the Employee Ethics Council. He has served as an
account manager and an operations manager at Leidos since joining the company in
2005. Mr. Lay joined the Employee Ethics Committee in 2009 while serving as Director
of Account Management & Business Resources for the Analysis, Simulations, Systems
Engineering, & Training Business Unit. Before transitioning to the civilian sector, he
was Deputy Director of NATO'’s Joint Warfare Centre in Stavanger, Norway. Mr. Lay
retired as a USAF Major General with 33 years of experience.

Executive Vice President for Business Development and Strategy since November
2014. Prior to joining Leidos, Mr. Leiter served as Head of Global Government &
Commercial Cyber Operations, and Senior Counselor to the Chief Executive Officer, of
Palantir Technologies from 2011 to 2014. Before entering the private sector, he served
as the Director of the National Counterterrorism Center (NCTC) from 2007 until 2011.

Executive Vice President and General Counsel since June 2010. Prior to joining
Leidos, from 1977 to 2009, Mr. Maffeo was with ITT Corporation, a high-technology
engineering and manufacturing company, where he served as Senior Vice President
and General Counsel from 1995 until 2009. He held various other increasingly
responsible legal positions at ITT Corporation in the telecommunications, defense and
automotive businesses, and at the European Headquarters of ITT Europe, before
becoming General Counsel.
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Name of officer Age Position(s) with the company and prior business experience

Ken Sharp* 44 Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller since 2013.
Prior to joining Leidos, Mr. Sharp was with with Computer Sciences Corporation, most
recently as Vice President Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer of its
largest business unit. Prior to that, he served as a senior manager at Ernst & Young
LLP. Mr. Sharp served in the United States Marine Corps. In addition, Mr. Sharp is a
Certified Public Accountant.

Mark W. Sopp* 49 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 2005. Prior to joining Leidos,
Mr. Sopp served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of
Titan Corporation, a defense and intelligence contractor, from April 2001 to July 2005
and Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Titan Systems Corporation, a
subsidiary of Titan Corporation, from 1998 to 2001.

Lou Von Thaer* 54 President, National Security Solutions since 2013. Prior to joining Leidos, Mr. Von
Thaer was President of General Dynamics Advanced Information Systems, and
Corporate Vice President of General Dynamics. He also previously served as Senior
Vice President of Operations for General Dynamics Advanced Information Systems,
and Senior Vice President for Advanced Technology Systems, a division of Lucent
Technologies. Mr. Von Thaer is a Member of IEEE and the Optical Society of America,
and has previously held advisory or board positions for the International Engineering
Consortium, International Council on Systems Engineering, and the Intelligence and
National Security Alliance (INSA).

* Indicates an executive officer

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of General Instructions to Form 10-K, the list above is included as an unnumbered Item in Part
| of this Annual Report on Form 10-K in lieu of being incorporated by reference from the definitive Proxy Statement to be used in
connection with the solicitation of proxies for Leidos’ 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders ("2015 Proxy Statement").
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Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stoc ~ kholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Secu  rities

Leidos’ common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the ticker symbol “LDOS.” Leidos, Inc. is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Leidos and there is no public trading market for common stock of Leidos, Inc. The range of high and low
sales prices at closing of Leidos' common stock on the NYSE for each fiscal quarter during the last two fiscal years are presented
below.

Historical Stock Prices

Fiscal 2015
Fiscal Quarter High Low
1st quarter (February 1, 2014 to May 2, 2014) $ 46.07 $ 34.64
2nd quarter (May 3, 2014 to August 1, 2014) $ 40.72 $ 36.66
3rd quarter (August 2, 2014 to October 31, 2014) $ 3820 $ 33.21
4th quarter (November 1, 2014 to January 30, 2015) $ 4441 $ 36.64

On September 27, 2013, Leidos effectuated a one-for-four reverse stock split of its shares of common stock, so that every four
shares of Leidos common stock issued and outstanding were combined and converted into one share of Leidos common stock.
The range of high and low sales prices at closing of Leidos' common stock on the NYSE for the first, second and a portion of the
third fiscal quarter on and before September 27, 2013 presented below were adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split. In addition,
the prices on and before September 27, 2013 include the value of our technical services and enterprise information technology
services business, which was spun off on that date. The prices after that date reflect only the business of Leidos Holdings, Inc. after
the spin off.

Fiscal 2014
Fiscal Quarter High Low
(Pre-spin Prices)
1st quarter (February 1, 2013 to May 3, 2013) $ 59.76 $ 45.28
2nd quarter (May 4, 2013 to August 2, 2013) $ 62.60 $ 51.68

3rd quarter (August 3, 2013 to September 27, 2013) $ 64.12 $ 57.32
(Post-spin Prices)

3rd quarter (September 28, 2013 to November 1, 2013) 47.51 45.30
4th quarter (November 2, 2013 to January 31, 2014) $ 49.02 $ 40.60

*
L4

Holders of Common Stock

As of March 16, 2015, there were approximately 25,554 holders of record of Leidos common stock. The number of stockholders of
record of Leidos common stock is not representative of the number of beneficial owners due to the fact that many shares are held
by depositories, brokers, or nominees. Leidos is the holder of record of all Leidos, Inc.'s common stock.

Dividend Policy

During fiscal 2014, Leidos declared and paid a special dividend of $4.00 per share of Leidos common stock and during fiscal 2015
and 2014 paid quarterly dividends totaling $1.28 and $1.60 per share of Leidos common stock, respectively. Leidos currently
intends to continue paying dividends on a quarterly basis, although the declaration of any future dividends will be determined by
Leidos’ board of directors and will depend on available cash, estimated cash needs, earnings, financial condition, operating results,
capital requirements, as well as limitations in our contractual agreements, applicable law, regulatory constraints, industry practice
and other business considerations
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that our board of directors considers relevant. Our ability to declare and pay future dividends on Leidos stock may be restricted by
the provisions of Delaware law and covenants in our then-existing indebtedness arrangements.

Leidos, Inc. has not declared or paid cash dividends to Leidos Holdings, Inc. Leidos, Inc. may declare and pay cash dividends to
Leidos Holdings, Inc. from time to time, but there is no present intention to do so.

Stock Performance Graph

In fiscal 2015, we have chosen to use the Standard & Poor's MidCap 400 index to replace the Standard & Poor's 500 index. The
market cap composition of the Standard & Poor's MidCap 400 index more closely aligns with Leidos' market cap, as compared to
the Standard & Poor's 500 index, while similarly providing a broad market representation of industries. The graph below provides a
comparison of the total cumulative five-year return for the newly selected index as well as the index used previously.

The following graph compares the total cumulative five-year return on Leidos common stock through our fiscal year ended
January 30, 2015 to three indices: (i) the Standard & Poor’s MidCap 400 index, (ii) the Standard & Poor’s 500 index and (iii) the
Standard & Poor’s North American Technology Services index. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 on February 1,
2010 and that dividends, if any, have been reinvested. On September 27, 2013, we completed the spin-off of New SAIC. Our
stockholders received one share of New SAIC common stock for every seven shares of our common stock held on the record date
(September 19, 2013). The effect of the spin-off is reflected in the cumulative total return as a reinvested dividend. The
comparisons in the graph are required by the SEC, based upon historical data and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of
possible future performance of Leidos common stock.

Leidos Total Shareholder Return vs. S8P 500, S&P 400 and S&P North American Tech - Sves
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Purchases of Equity Securities

In December 2013, our board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program ("2013 Stock Repurchase Program™) under which
we may repurchase up to 20 million shares of Leidos common stock. This share repurchase authorization replaces the March 2012
share repurchase authorization of 10 million shares. Stock repurchases may be made on the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions with third parties. Whether repurchases are made and the timing and actual number of shares repurchased depends
on a variety of factors including price, corporate capital requirements, other market conditions and regulatory requirements. The
repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or discontinued at any time.

The following table presents repurchases of Leidos' common stock during the quarter ended January 30, 2015:

Total Number of Maximum Number (or
Shares (or Approximate Dollar Value)
Units) Purchased as of Shares
Part of Publicly (or Units) that May
Total Number Average Price Announced Yet Be Purchased Under
of Shares (or Units) Paid per Share Repurchase the
Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs @ Plans or Programs ®
November 1, 2014 — November 30, 2014 2012 $ 39.97 — 8,113,674
December 1, 2014 — December 31, 2014 15,566 $ 37.18 — 8,113,674
January 1, 2015 — January 30, 2015 397 % 43.01 — 8,113,674
Total 17975 $ 37.62 —

(1) The total number of shares purchased includes: (i) shares surrendered to satisfy statutory tax withholdings obligations related to vesting of restricted stock
awards; and (ii) shares surrendered in payment of the exercise price of non-qualified stock options and/or to satisfy statutory tax withholdings obligations.

(2) We may repurchase up to 20 million shares of Leidos common stock under the 2013 Stock Repurchase Program, which was publicly announced in December
2013.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data set forth below is derived from our consolidated financial statements for each of the fiscal years in the
five-year period ended January 30, 2015. As Leidos Holdings, Inc. is a holding company and it consolidates Leidos, Inc. for
financial statement purposes, the following financial data relates to both companies, except where otherwise indicated. Leidos,
Inc.’s revenues and expenses comprise 100% of Leidos Holdings, Inc.'s revenues and operating expenses. In addition, Leidos, Inc.
comprises approximately the entire balance of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s assets, liabilities and operating cash flows, except for an
interest-bearing note between Leidos, Inc. and Leidos Holdings, Inc.

This information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Part Il and our consolidated financial statements and the combined notes thereto contained within this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Year Ended @

Januarygo, January 31, January 31, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 © 2013 2012 @ 2011

(in millions, except for per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:
Leidos Holdings, Inc.:

Revenues $ 5,063 $ 5755 % 6,449 $ 5804 $ 5,973
Operating (loss) income (214) 163 421 (64) 555
(Loss) income from continuing operations (330) 84 323 (239) 311
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 7 80 202 298 308
Net (loss) income $ (323) $ 164 $ 525 % 59 % 619
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (4.46) $ 098 $ 381 % (2.85) $ 3.31
Income from discontinued operations 0.10 0.96 2.38 3.53 3.27
$ (4.36) $ 194 % 6.19 $ 068 $ 6.58
Diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (4.46) $ 098 $ 381 % (2.85) $ 3.27
Income from discontinued operations 0.10 0.96 2.38 3.53 3.24
$ (4.36) $ 194 $ 6.19 $ 068 $ 6.51
Cash dividend per common share $ 128 $ 560 $ 192 $ — $ —
Leidos, Inc.:
Revenues $ 5063 $ 5755 $ 6,449 $ 5804 $ 5,973
Operating (loss) income (214) 163 421 (64) 555
(Loss) income from continuing operations (324) 86 324 (242) 303
Income from discontinued operations 7 80 202 298 308
Net (loss) income $ (317) $ 166 $ 526 $ 56 $ 611
January 30, January 31, January 31, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Leidos Holdings, Inc.:
Total assets $ 3281 $ 4,162 $ 5875 $ 6,667 $ 6,223
Notes payable and long-term debt, including current
portion $ 1,166 $ 1,333 % 1,295 $ 1,845 $ 1,844
Other long-term liabilities $ 168 $ 227  $ 170 $ 158 $ 126

(1) References to financial data are to the Company's continuing operations, unless otherwise noted. The operating results of the spin-off of New SAIC are
included in discontinued operations.

(2) Fiscal 2015 results include goodwill impairment charges of $486 million , intangible asset impairment charges of $41 million and a tangible asset impairment
charge of $40 million . For further information see, Note 4 "Goodwill and Intangible assets" and Note 3 "Acquisitions" of the combined notes to the consolidated
financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(3) Fiscal 2014 results include charges related to intangible asset impairments ( $51 million ), bad debt expense ( $44 million ), and separation transaction and
restructuring expenses ( $65 million ). For further information see, ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations .

(4) Fiscal 2012 results include a $540 million loss provision recorded in connection with resolution of the CityTime matter described in Note 19 "Legal Proceedings"
of the combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 35




PART Il

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial C ondition and Results of Operations

The following combined discussion and analysis of Leidos Holdings, Inc.'s ("Leidos") and Leidos, Inc.'s financial condition and
results of operations and quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and related combined notes. As Leidos is a holding company and consolidates Leidos, Inc. for
financial statement purposes, disclosures that relate to activities of Leidos, Inc. also apply to Leidos, unless otherwise noted.
Leidos, Inc.'s revenues and operating expenses comprise 100% of Leidos’ revenues and operating expenses. In addition, Leidos,
Inc. comprises approximately the entire balance of Leidos’ assets, liabilities and operating cash flows. Therefore, the following
qualitative discussion is applicable to both Leidos and Leidos, Inc., unless otherwise noted.

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements, including statements regarding our intent, belief, or current
expectations with respect to, among other things, trends affecting our financial condition or results of operations, backlog, our
industry, government budgets and spending, the impact of competition, and the performance and carrying value of our assets.
Such statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. See “Risk Factors—Forward-Looking
Statement Risks” in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include
those discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly in “Risk Factors.” Due to such uncertainties
and risks, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
hereof. We do not undertake any obligation to update these factors or to publicly announce the results of any changes to our
forward-looking statements due to future events or developments.

All amounts in this "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" are presented for our
continuing operations.

”

Unless indicated otherwise, references in this report to the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer collectively to Leidos , Leidos,
Inc., and its consolidated subsidiaries. Effective in fiscal 2014, we changed our fiscal year to a 52/53 week fiscal year ending on the
Friday closest to January 31, with fiscal quarters typically consisting of 13 weeks. For example, we refer to the fiscal year ending
January 30, 2015 as “fiscal 2015.” Unless otherwise noted, references to fiscal years are to fiscal years ended the Friday closest to
January 31. For example, fiscal 2015 began on February 1, 2014 and ends on January 30, 2015.

Overview

We are an applied technology company delivering solutions and services that leverage expertise in the national security, health and
engineering markets. We bring domain-specific capability to each of our markets, including imagery and signals intelligence,
advanced sensing phenomenology, intelligence collection methods, life sciences and power grid engineering. In addition to market-
specific capabilities, we have three core areas of technical expertise: data analytics, systems engineering and cybersecurity.
Customer needs in our markets span these three core areas of expertise, enabling cross-market innovations for our entire customer
set. We provide these solutions and services to government and commercial customers, both domestically and internationally.
Leidos' technically advanced solutions have enabled us to build strong ties with our key domestic customers. These customers
include agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense ("DoD"), the intelligence community, the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security ("DHS"), other U.S. Government civil agencies, government agencies of U.S. allies abroad, and state and local
government agencies. We operate in the following segments: National Security Solutions; Health and Engineering; and Corporate
and Other.

For additional information regarding our reportable segments, see “Business” in Part | and Note 18 of the combined notes to
consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our National Security Solutions segment provides solutions and systems for air, land, sea, space and cyberspace for the U.S.
intelligence community, the DoD, the military services, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and government agencies of
U.S. allies abroad. Our solutions deliver technology, large-scale intelligence systems,
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command and control, data analytics, cybersecurity, logistics, and intelligence analysis and operations support to critical missions
around the world.

Our Health business provides services and solutions to commercial hospitals and the DoD as well as conducts research and
development for U.S. Government and Commercial enterprises in the life sciences field. Our healthcare business is focused on
improving the overall availability and quality of data and services that ultimately improves the quality of care while lowering cost for
our customers. Our Engineering business leverages technology and skills in process engineering, engineering design and systems
integration to create innovative and cost effective solutions for our customers.

Our significant management initiatives include the following:

Achieving internal, or non-acquisition related, annual revenue growth through internal collaboration and better leveraging of
key differentiators across our company and the deployment of resources and investments into higher growth markets;

Increasing the growth of our operating profits through improving the quality of our revenues and contract profitability,
continued improvement in our information technology ("IT") systems infrastructure and related business processes for
greater effectiveness and efficiency across all business functions; and

Disciplined deployment of our cash resources and use of our capital structure to enhance shareholder value while retaining
an appropriate amount of financial leverage, through internal growth initiatives, stock repurchases, dividends, strategic
acquisitions, debt level management and other uses to achieve our goals.

Key financial events during fiscal 2015 include:

Revenues for fiscal 2015 decreased 12% from the prior year. The revenue contraction for the year was due to a decrease
in National Security Solutions segment revenues of 11% and Health and Engineering segment revenues of 14% .

Operating loss from continuing operations was $214 million for fiscal 2015 as compared to an operating income from
continuing operations of $163 million for fiscal 2014. The operating loss from continuing operations in fiscal 2015 included
$486 million of goodwill impairment charges, $41 million of intangible asset impairment charges and $40 million of a
tangible asset impairment charge. The operating income from continuing operations in fiscal 2014 included $65 million of
separation transaction and restructuring expenses, $51 million of intangible asset impairment charges, $44 million of bad
debt expense primarily related to receivables for two energy design-build construction projects, and $35 million of
infrastructure costs to establish two stand-alone companies.

Diluted loss per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2015 was $4.46 as compared to diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations of $0.98 in fiscal 2014 primarily due to the aforementioned reductions in operating income from
continuing operations of $377 million . In addition, there was a decrease in the diluted weighted average number of shares
outstanding of 9 million shares, or 11% , primarily due to shares repurchased under our accelerated stock repurchase
programs.

Cash and cash equivalents increased $13 million during fiscal 2015 primarily due to cash provided by operations of $396
million and $80 million proceeds from the U.S. Treasury cash grant, partially offset by debt repurchase payments of $175
million , stock repurchases of $215 million , and dividend payments of $95 million .

Net bookings (as defined in “Key Performance Measures—Bookings and Backlog”) were approximately $3.6 billion for
fiscal 2015, as compared to $4.9 billion in the prior year. Total backlog was $7.8 billion and $9.3 billion at January 30, 2015
and January 31, 2014, respectively.
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Spin-off Transaction

In accordance with a distribution agreement, on September 27, 2013 (the "Distribution Date"), Leidos completed a spin-off of its
technical services and enterprise information technology services business into an independent, publicly traded company named
Science Application International Corporation. The spin-off was effected through a tax-free distribution to Leidos' stockholders of
100% of the shares of New SAIC's common stock. On the Distribution Date, New SAIC's common stock was distributed, on a pro
rata basis, to Leidos' stockholders of record as of the close of business on September 19, 2013, the record date. Each holder of
Leidos common stock received one share of New SAIC common stock for every seven shares of Leidos common stock held on the
record date. Prior to the Distribution Date, Leidos Holdings, Inc. was named SAIC, Inc. and Leidos, Inc. was named Science
Applications International Corporation. As a result of the spin-off, the assets, liabilities, results of operations and cash flows of New
SAIC have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. References to financial information are to our
continuing operations, unless otherwise noted.

In fiscal 2014, in connection with the spin-off transaction and in order to align our cost structure for post-separation, we incurred
approximately $46 million in expenses related to lease termination costs, facility consolidation costs and other costs in connection
with vacating facilities that were not necessary for our future requirements as well as $10 million of severance costs and $9 million
of other separation transaction and restructuring expenses. In fiscal 2015, we incurred approximately $3 million of lease termination
and facility consolidation expenses related to adjustments to the prior year reserve established for loss on leases in connection with
revised sublease income assumptions. We do not expect to incur significant additional other separation transaction and
restructuring expenses in future fiscal years related to the spin-off transaction.

Dispositions
Fiscal 2015 Discontinued Operations:

In July 2014, we committed to plans to dispose of a business primarily focused on full service emergency management consulting
for disaster preparedness, response, recovery, and mitigation historically included in the our Health and Engineering segment. The
sale transaction was completed in the third quarter of fiscal 2015 with cash proceeds received of $19 million , resulting in an
immaterial gain on sale.

Fiscal 2014 Discontinued Operations:

In addition to the spin-off of New SAIC discussed above, in order to better align our business portfolio with our strategy, we sold or
committed to plans to dispose of certain other non-strategic components of our business, which are reclassified as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. The fiscal 2014 other dispositions were historically included in our National Security Solutions
segment.

In August 2013, we committed to plans to dispose of a business primarily focused on technology used to detect if an individual is
concealing explosive devices or other hidden weapons. In the first quarter of fiscal 2015, we adjusted the carrying values of the
business's assets to their fair value based on the estimated selling price of the business. The carrying value exceeded the fair value
which resulted in approximately $12 million of impairment charges recorded in discontinued operations, of which $9 million related
to fixed assets and inventory and the remainder related to intangible assets. The sale transaction was completed in the second
quarter of fiscal 2015 with insignificant cash proceeds received, resulting in an immaterial loss on sale.

In November 2013, we sold a certain component of our business, focused on machine language translation with insignificant cash
proceeds received, resulting in an immaterial gain on sale.

In January 2014, we committed to plans to dispose of Cloudshield Technologies, Inc. ("Cloudshield"), previously acquired in fiscal
2011, which is focused on producing a suite of cybersecurity hardware and associated software and services. The sale transaction
was completed in February 2015 with cash proceeds received of $5 million .
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Fiscal 2013 Discontinued Operations:

We sold certain components of our business, which were historically included in our Health and Engineering segment, primarily
focused on providing operational test and evaluation services to U.S. Government customers. We received net proceeds of $51
million resulting in a gain on sale before income taxes of $17 million related to this sale.

The pre-sale operating results of our discontinued operations discussed above for the periods presented were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Revenues $ 68 $ 2,745 % 4,780
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 60 2,480 4,311
Selling, general and administrative expenses (including impairment charges of
$9 million for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2015) 29 67 117
Bad debt expense — — 2
Intangible asset impairment charges 3 2 6
Separation transaction and restructuring expenses — 55 28
Operating (loss) income $ (24) $ 141 $ 316
Non-operating income (expense) $ 11 % @ $ 14
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes $ (13) $ 140 $ 330

Business Environment and Trends
U.S. Government Markets

In fiscal 2015, we generated approximately 79% of our total revenues from contracts with the U.S. Government, either as a prime
contractor or a subcontractor to other contractors engaged in work for the U.S. Government. Revenues under contracts with the
DoD, including subcontracts under which the DaD is the ultimate purchaser, represented approximately 67% of our total revenues
in fiscal 2015. Accordingly, our business performance is affected by the overall level of U.S. Government spending, especially
national security, homeland security, and intelligence spending, and the alignment of our service and product offerings and
capabilities with current and future budget priorities of the U.S. Government. Contributing to long term fiscal uncertainty is the
continuing uncertainty over sequestration and the debt ceiling extension.

We believe that U.S. Government budget deficits and the national debt have created increasing pressure to examine and reduce
spending across all federal agencies. The Budget Control Act of 2011 raised the U.S. Government'’s debt ceiling and imposed 10-
year discretionary spending sequestration caps expected to generate over $1 trillion in savings for the U.S. Government. According
to the Office of Management and Budget, these savings include nearly $500 billion in DoD baseline spending reductions over 10
years, which began to be implemented in the U.S. Government fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

In December 2013, the President signed into law the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2013, which reduced the effects of sequestration in
the U.S. Government fiscal years 2014 and 2015 for national security, but did not make the same concessions for the cuts in
medical reimbursements. Roughly 60% of all healthcare costs in the United States are reimbursed by a government program.
These reimbursements are tied to the government spending level and were significantly reduced as part of the Budget Control Act.
We believe the cuts in medical reimbursements had a direct effect in the amount of available spending on IT modernization in U.S.
hospitals and has therefore slowed the growth we had previously experienced in our commercial health IT practice.
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The implementation of sequestration spending cuts and associated government guidance and planning activities has impacted
existing contracts, caused program delays and cancellations and caused delays in other government contracting actions. In
addition, future implementation of spending cuts as we return to Sequestration in the U.S. Government fiscal year 2016 could cause
further delays in contract awards and continued uncertainty. We continue to evaluate the impact of spending reductions on our
businesses. The amount and nature of these federal spending reductions could adversely impact our operations, future revenues,
and growth prospects.

Trends in the U.S. Government contracting process, including a shift towards multiple-awards contracts (in which certain
contractors are preapproved using indefinite-delivery/indefinite-quantity ("IDIQ") and U.S. General Services Administration ("GSA")
contract vehicles) and awarding contracts on a low price, technically acceptable basis, have increased competition for U.S.
Government contracts, reduced backlogs by shortening periods of performance on contracts, and increased pricing pressure. We
expect that a majority of the business that we seek in the foreseeable future will be awarded through a competitive bidding process.
For more information on these risks and uncertainties, see “Risk Factors” in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Commercial Markets

Sales to customers in commercial markets (approximately 17% of total revenues in fiscal 2015) help to diversify us from reliance
upon U.S. Government business. Among the commercial markets we serve, the addressable market for our commercial electronic
health record (“EHR”) implementation consulting services has become increasingly competitive. Pressure factors in this market
include wider adoption and maturation of the life cycle of initial EHR system implementations and adverse pricing pressure, as
software providers for EHR systems are increasingly competing for EHR consulting services. Our healthcare provider customers
are also facing economic challenges with lower levels of Medicare reimbursement and the advent of outcome-based Medicare
reimbursements. In addition, the timing of HER consulting projects that we are reliant upon for revenue streams are affected by
government regulations, which impact the implementation time lines for system upgrades or implementations designed to comply
with Meaningful Use and International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems ("ICD-10") regulations.
Implementation requirements for both of these potential sales catalysts have been delayed, which we believe have adversely
impacted performance of our commercial health business. It is difficult to predict when or if these factors will improve, and therefore,
in the near term, our ability to grow and increase the profitability of our commercial health business remains uncertain.

Key Performance Measures

The primary financial performance measures we use to manage our business and monitor results of operations are revenue,
operating income, cash flows from operations and diluted EPS. We also believe that bookings and backlog are useful measures for
management and investors to evaluate our potential future revenues. In addition, we consider measures such as contract types and
revenue mix to be useful measures to management and investors evaluating our operating income and margin performance.

Bookings and Backlog. We had net bookings worth an estimated $3.6 billion and $4.9 billion during fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014,
respectively. Net bookings represent the estimated amount of revenue to be earned in the future from funded and unfunded
contract awards that were received during the year, net of any adjustments to previously awarded backlog amounts. We calculate
net bookings as the year's ending backlog plus the year’s revenues less the prior year’s ending backlog and less the backlog
obtained in acquisitions during the year.
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Backlog represents the estimated amount of future revenues to be recognized under negotiated contracts as work is performed.
We segregate our backlog into two categories as follows:

* Funded Backlog. Funded backlog for contracts with government agencies primarily represents contracts for which funding
is appropriated less revenues previously recognized on these contracts, and does not include the unfunded portion of
contracts where funding is incrementally appropriated or authorized on a quarterly or annual basis by the U.S. Government
and other customers, even though the contract may call for performance over a number of years. Funded backlog for
contracts with non-government agencies and commercial customers represents the estimated value on contracts, which
may cover multiple future years, under which we are obligated to perform, less revenues previously recognized on these
contracts.

» Negotiated Unfunded Backlog. Negotiated unfunded backlog represents estimated amounts of revenue to be earned in the
future from (1) negotiated contracts for which funding has not been appropriated or otherwise authorized and
(2) unexercised priced contract options. Negotiated unfunded backlog does not include future potential task orders
expected to be awarded under IDIQ, GSA Schedule, or other master agreement contract vehicles.

The estimated value of our total backlog as of the end of the last two fiscal years was as follows:

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
National Security Solutions:
Funded backlog $ 159 $ 1,854
Negotiated unfunded backlog 4,491 5,604
Total National Security Solutions backlog $ 6,087 $ 7,458
Health and Engineering:
Funded backlog $ 1,061 $ 1,144
Negotiated unfunded backlog 645 694
Total Health and Engineering backlog $ 1,706 $ 1,838
Total:
Funded backlog $ 2,657 $ 2,998
Negotiated unfunded backlog 5,136 6,298
Total backlog $ 7,793 % 9,296

Bookings and backlog fluctuate from period to period depending on our success rate in winning contracts and the timing of contract
awards, renewals, modifications and cancellations. Contract awards continue to be negatively impacted by ongoing industry-wide
delays in procurement decisions, and budget cuts, including sequestration, by the U.S. Government as discussed in “Business
Environment and Trends” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We expect to recognize a substantial portion of our funded backlog as revenues within the next 12 months. However, the U.S.
Government may cancel any contract at any time through a termination for the convenience of the U.S. Government. In addition,
certain contracts with commercial customers include provisions that allow the customer to cancel at any time. Most of our contracts
have cancellation terms that would permit us to recover all or a portion of our incurred costs and fees for work performed.
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Contract Types. Our earnings and profitability may vary materially depending on changes in the proportionate amount of revenues
derived from each type of contract. For a discussion of the types of contracts under which we generate revenue, see “Business—
Contract Types” in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following table summarizes revenues by contract type as a
percentage of our total revenue for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
Cost-reimbursement 48% 47% 46%
Time and materials (T&M) and fixed-price-level-of-effort (FP-LOE) 25 26 28
Firm-fixed-price (FFP) 27 27 26
Total 100% 100% 100%

The percentage of revenues generated from cost-reimbursement, T&M and FP-LOE, and FFP contracts remained relatively
consistent from fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2015.

Revenue Mix. We generate revenues under our contracts from (1) the efforts of our technical staff, which we refer to as labor-
related revenues, and (2) the materials provided on a contract and efforts of our subcontractors, which we refer to as M&S
revenues. M&S revenues are generated primarily from large, multi-year systems integration contracts and contracts in our logistics,
readiness and sustainment business area, as well as through sales of our proprietary products, such as our border, port and mobile
security products and our checked baggage explosive detection systems.

The following table presents changes in labor-related revenues and M&S revenues for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, Percent January 31,
2015 Percent change 2014 change 2013
(dollars in millions)

Labor-related revenues $ 2,989 14)% $ 3,478 1% $ 3,927
As a percentage of revenues 59 % 60 % 61 %

M&S revenues 2,074 (9)% 2,277 (10)% 2,522
As a percentage of revenues 41 % 40 % 39 %

The percentage of revenues attributed to labor-related and M&S revenues remained relatively consistent from fiscal fiscal 2014 to
fiscal 2015.

Geographic Location. Substantially all of our revenues and tangible long-lived assets are generated by or located in the United
States.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended 2015 to 2014 2014 to 2013
January 30, January 31, January 31, Dollar Percent Dollar Percent
2015 2014 2013 change change change change
(dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 5,063 $ 5755 $ 6,449 $ (692 (12)% $ (694) (11)%
Cost of revenues 4,392 4,992 5,548 (600) (12)% (556) (10)%
Selling, general and administrative
expenses:
General and administrative (G&A) 205 325 311 (120) BN% 14 5%
Bid and proposal (B&P) 68 70 109 (2) ()% (39) (36)%
Internal research and development 37 45 47 (8) (18)% (2) (4)%
(IR&D)
Bad debt expense 5 44 2 (39) (89)% 42 NM
Goodwill impairment charges 486 — — 486 100 % — — %
Asset impairment charges 81 51 — 30 59 % 51 100 %
Separation transaction and restructuring 3 65 11 (62) (95)% 54 NM
expenses
Operating (loss) income (214) 163 421 (377) NM (258) (61)%
Operating (loss) income margin (4.2)% 2.8% 6.5 %
Non-operating expense, net (69) (75) (76) 6 8 % 1 1%
(Loss) income from continuing (283) 88 345 (371) NM (257) (74)%
operations before income taxes
Income tax expense (47) (4) (22) (43) NM 18 (82)%
(Loss) income from continuing (330) 84 323 (414) NM (239) (74)%
operations
Income from discontinued operations, 7 80 202 (73) (91)% (122) (60)%
net of tax
Net (loss) income $ (323) % 164 % 525 $ (487) NM $ (361) (69)%

NM - Not meaningful

We classify indirect costs incurred within or allocated to our U.S. Government customers as overhead (included in cost of revenues)
and general and administrative expenses in the same manner as such costs are defined in our disclosure statements under U.S.
Government Cost Accounting Standards. General and administrative expenses decreased in fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal
2014 in part due to the aforementioned restructuring plan in fiscal 2014 to align our cost structure for post-separation.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Evaluations.

Goodwill Interim Impairment Evaluation. In the second quarter of fiscal 2015, our Health Solutions and Engineering reporting units
within the Health and Engineering reportable segment were adversely impacted by certain unexpected events that caused us to
reassess current year and future year performance expectations for both reporting units. Based on significant declines in forecasted
revenue volumes and delayed award decisions, we conducted an interim goodwill impairment test using the two-step quantitative
approach.

Based on the first step of the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test performed during the second quarter of fiscal 2015, we
determined that the carrying value of both the Health Solutions and Engineering reporting units were greater than the respective
estimated fair values of the reporting units, and the second step of the two-step
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guantitative goodwill impairment test was performed in order to determine the amount of the impairment of the respective reporting
units.

As a result of the second step evaluation, we recorded goodwill impairment charges in the Health Solutions and Engineering
reporting units of $369 million and $117 million , respectively, during the second quarter of fiscal 2015. There were no other
goodwill impairment charges as part of the interim goodwill impairment test recorded for the remaining reporting units. See Note 4
within our combined notes to the consolidated financial statements for further information.

Property, Plant & Equipment Evaluation. In March 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell 100% of our equity
membership interest in Plainfield. We adjusted the carrying values of Plainfield's assets to their fair values based on the estimated
selling price of the business pursuant to the terms of the agreement (Level 1 fair value measurement). The carrying value exceeded
the fair value which resulted in approximately $40 million of impairment charges. The sale transaction is expected to be completed
in the first half of 2015.

Reportable Segment Results. The following table summarizes changes in National Security Solutions revenues and operating
income for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended 2015 to 2014 2014 to 2013
January 30, January 31, January 31, Dollar Percent Dollar Percent
National Security Solutions 2015 2014 2013 change change change change
(dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 3594 $ 4049 $ 4650 $ (455) (11)% $ (601) (13)%
Operating income 286 292 360 (6) (2)% (68) (19)%
Operating income margin 8.0% 72% 7.7%

National Security Solutions revenues decreased $455 million , or 11% , for fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014. Revenue
contraction was primarily attributable to contract activities tied to the drawdown of overseas U.S. military forces ($320 million) which
includes a reduction of airborne programs that support intelligence collection ($153 million) and the ramp down of the Joint Logistics
Integration (JLI) program for tactical and mine resistant ambush protected vehicles ($82 million). The remainder of the decline was
primarily driven by overall reductions in defense and U.S. government spending resulting from sequestration and budget cuts, and
higher competition resulting in lower contract awards.

National Security Solutions revenues decreased $601 million , or 13% , for fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. Revenue
contraction was primarily attributable to contract activities tied to the drawdown of overseas U.S. military forces ($331 million)
including the ramp down of the JLI program ($238 million) and the completion of several intelligence contracts ($158 million). The
remainder of the decline was primarily driven by overall reductions in defense and U.S. Government spending resulting from
sequestration and budget cuts.

National Security Solutions operating income decreased $6 million , or 2% , for fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014. This
decrease in operating income was primarily attributable to a decrease in revenues ($32 million), partially offset by a net favorable
changes in contract estimates ($19 million), as compared to net unfavorable changes in contract estimates the prior year ($6
million).

National Security Solutions operating income decreased $68 million , or 19% , for fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. This
decrease was primarily attributable to the impact of lower revenues ($47 million), net unfavorable change in contract estimates ($6
million), which is primarily attributable to increased expenses on two international fixed price development programs for fiscal 2014
compared to fiscal 2013, which had a net favorable change in contract estimates ($30 million).
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The following table summarizes changes in Health and Engineering revenues and operating income for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended 2015 to 2014 2014 to 2013
January 30, January 31, January 31, Dollar Percent Dollar Percent
Health and Engineering 2015 2014 2013 change change change change
(dollars in millions)
Revenues $ 148 $ 1,718 $ 1,805 $ (233) 14)% $  (87) (5)%
Operating (loss) income (472) 20 138 (492) NM (118) (86)%
Operating (loss) income margin (31.8)% 1.2% 7.6 %

NM - Not meaningful

Health and Engineering revenues decreased $233 million , or 14% , for fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014. The revenue
contraction reflects a decline in engineering services ($92 million) primarily due to the completion of two energy design-build
construction projects in fiscal year 2014, lower sales in our health business primarily related to lower hospital electronic health care
record implementations ($82 million), and lower sales volumes in our security products business due to the completion of an
international support contract for the Army ($39 million) and timing of product shipments ($20 million).

Health and Engineering revenues decreased $87 million , or 5% , for fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. Internal revenue
contracted $232 million or 12% compared to prior year when including revenues for maxIT before the August 2012 acquisition. The
internal revenue contraction reflects lower sales in our health business primarily related to lower hospital electronic health care
record implementations ($112 million), a decline in engineering services for the U.S. Government and commercial customers ($91
million) and the completion of two energy design-build construction projects ($24 million).

Health and Engineering operating loss was $472 million for fiscal 2015 as compared to operating income of $20 million for fiscal
2014 and $138 million for fiscal 2013. Operating loss for fiscal 2015 was impacted by impairment charges for goodwill for our health
business ($369 million) and engineering business ($117 million), impairment charges for intangibles assets associated with our
health business ( $24 million ), our security products business ( $14 million ), and Plainfield ($3 million), as well as an impairment
charge to adjust the carrying values of the Plainfield plant's assets to their fair values based on the estimated selling price of the
business ( $40 million ). In addition, there was an operating loss due to power generation shortfalls at the Plainfield plant ($29
million), partially offset by a favorable legal settlement ($8 million), and a favorable change in contract estimates in fiscal 2015 ($5
million).

Health and Engineering operating income for fiscal 2014 included bad debt expense for certain receivables primarily related to two
energy design-build construction projects ( $44 million ), impairment charges for intangible assets associated with our security
products business ( $30 million ) and our health business ( $19 million ), an unfavorable change in contract estimates primarily
attributable to the Plainfield construction project ($15 million), and unfavorable legal settlement ($6 million).

Health and Engineering operating income for fiscal 2013 was impacted by an unfavorable change in contract estimates ($11
million).

After adding back the items identified above, Health and Engineering operating income margin decreased slightly for each period
from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2015 primarily due to the changes in the Health and Engineering business mix.
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The following table summarizes changes in Corporate and Other revenues and operating income (loss) for the last three fiscal
years:

Year Ended 2015 to 2014 2014 to 2013
January 30, January 31, January 31, Dollar Percent Dollar Percent
Corporate and Other 2015 2014 2013 change change change change
(dollars in millions)
Operating loss $ (28) $ (149) $ 77 $ 121 81% $ (72) (94)%

Corporate and Other operating loss represents corporate costs that are unallowable under U.S. Government Cost Accounting
Standards and the net effect of various items that are not directly related to the operating performance of the reportable segments.
Corporate and Other operating loss decreased by $121 million , or 81% , for fiscal 2015, as compared to fiscal 2014. The decrease
was driven primarily by a decrease in separation transaction and restructuring expenses ( $62 million ) associated with the
separation which was completed in fiscal 2014 and a decrease of costs to establish the infrastructures for two separate companies
($35 million). In addition, there was an insurance settlement ($15 million) in fiscal 2015.

Corporate and Other operating loss for fiscal 2014 increased by $72 million , or 94% , as compared to fiscal 2013. The increase
was driven primarily by the costs to effect the separation including an increase in separation transaction and restructuring expenses
( $54 million ) and costs to establish the infrastructures for two separate companies ($29 million), partially offset by a reduction of
other unallocable corporate costs.

Non-Operating Expense.
Leidos Holdings, Inc.

During the year ended January 30, 2015, we entered into interest rate swap agreements on our $450 million fixed rate 4.45% notes
maturing in December 2020. The interest rate swap agreements effectively converted a portion of our fixed-rate debt to floating-rate
debt tied to the changes in the six-month LIBOR benchmark interest rate.

Non-operating expense for fiscal 2015 decreased $6 million as compared to fiscal 2014. This decrease was primarily attributable to
a decrease in interest expense, which decreased $7 million due to interest expense reductions from the swap agreements and due
to the repurchase of $183 million of outstanding debt.

The decrease in non-operating expense was also attributable to an increase of $13 million of other income, primarily due to an early
termination fee and write-offs associated with the early payoff of the notes acquired as part of the Plainfield Renewable Energy
Project in fiscal 2014 of $8 million and a gain on extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2015 of $5 million .

This was offset by less interest income of $14 million primarily due to the collection or forgiveness of deferred receivables for
commercial customers related to certain construction contracts in fiscal 2014. Non-operating expense for fiscal 2014 and fiscal
2013 was comparable at $75 million and $76 million , respectively.

Leidos, Inc.

Interest income on Leidos, Inc.'s note with Leidos increased $6 million for fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014 and increased $3
million for fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. This note may fluctuate significantly from year to year based on changes in the
underlying note balance and interest rates throughout the fiscal year.

As more fully described in “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” contained within this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, we are currently exposed to interest rate risks and foreign currency risks that are inherent in the financial instruments
and contracts arising from transactions entered into in the normal course of business. From time to time, we use derivative
instruments to manage these risks.

Provision for Income Taxes. In fiscal 2015, we had a loss from continuing operations before income taxes resulting in a negative tax
rate of 16.6% . Our provision for income taxes as a percentage of income from continuing operations before income taxes was
4.5% , and 6.4% in fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. The goodwill impairment
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charge of $486 million , recorded in the three months ended August 1, 2014, which was mostly not deductible, had a significant
impact for the fiscal 2015 effective tax rate as compared to fiscal 2014. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2015 was also favorably
impacted by the tax benefit of a capital loss resulting from the conversion of one of our domestic subsidiaries to a Limited Liability
Company ("LLC").

The lower effective income tax rate for fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 was primarily due to lower earnings in fiscal 2014,
the tax deductibility of the special dividend on shares held by the Leidos Retirement Plan (an employee stock ownership plan) and
the resolution of certain tax contingencies with the tax authorities resulting in the recognition of an income tax benefit ( $7 million ).
The effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 benefited from a reduction in the provision for income tax as a result of our entering into an
issue resolution agreement with the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") with respect to the tax deductible portion of the CityTime
payment ( $96 million ).

Our valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was $120 million and $7 million as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014
respectively. The increase in the valuation allowance of $113 million over the prior year was due primarily to the recognition of a
deferred tax asset for capital loss carryovers recognized on the LLC conversion and deferred tax assets related to impaired capital
investments as we may not generate sufficient capital gains to realize the associated tax benefit. We also decreased the valuation
allowance during the year related to state net operating losses that were eliminated as a result of a tax status change in a legal
entity included in discontinued operations. The valuation allowance has also increased on certain state tax credits carryforwards
because the associated benefit may not be realized.

We file income tax returns in the United States and various state and foreign jurisdictions. We have effectively settled with the IRS
for all fiscal years prior to 2014. With a few exceptions, as of January 30, 2015, we are no longer subject to state, local or foreign
examinations by the tax authorities for years before fiscal 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview of Liquidity

We had $443 million in cash and cash equivalents at January 30, 2015, which were primarily comprised of cash held in investments
in several large institutional money market funds and bank deposits. We anticipate our principal sources of liquidity for the next 12
months and beyond will be our existing cash and cash equivalents and cash flows from operations. We may also borrow up to $500
million under our revolving credit facility. The available borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility is $500 million as of
January 30, 2015.

Our revolving credit facility is backed by a number of financial institutions, matures in March 2017 and, by its terms, can be
accessed on a same-day basis. We anticipate our principal uses of cash for the next 12 months and beyond will be for operating
expenses, capital expenditures, stock repurchases (see discussion below in " Stock Repurchase Programs") , dividends, debt
reduction, and acquisitions of businesses.

We may from time to time seek to retire or purchase our outstanding debt through cash purchases in the open market, privately
negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity
requirements, contractual restrictions, and other factors. The amounts involved may be material. In fiscal 2015, we paid $175
million to repurchase and retire a principal amount of $183 million of outstanding debt.

We anticipate that our operating cash flows, existing cash and cash equivalents, which have no restrictions on withdrawal, and
borrowing capacity under our revolving credit facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for at least the next
12 months.
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Summary of Cash Flows

The following table summarizes cash flow information for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013

(in millions)
Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations $ 396 $ 191 8 24
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities of continuing operations 51 297 (519)
Cash used in financing activities of continuing operations (478) (894) (718)
Cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 15 118 320
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations 29 a7 42
Cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations — — 4)
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 13  $ (305) $ (855)

Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Continuing Operations. Cash flows provided by operating activities of continuing
operations increased $205 million in fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014. The increase was primarily due to changes in working
capital of $217 million . Collections on accounts receivable for fiscal 2014 were negatively impacted by our name change and our
system shutdown to effect the spin-off of New SAIC, which caused delays in our customer invoicing. Days sales outstanding were
70 days for the three months ended January 30, 2015 as compared to 76 days for the corresponding period in the prior year.

Cash flows provided by operating activities of continuing operations increased $167 million in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal
2013. The increase was primarily due to less cash used of $273 million for changes in working capital primarily due to the $500
million cash settlement payment related to the CityTime Program in fiscal 2013. This was partially offset by an increase in the
average time to collect accounts receivable as a result of a slowdown in payments from the U.S. Government impacted by the
discontinuance of the U.S. Government’s accelerated payment initiative that encouraged agencies to pay contractors in a more
timely fashion, as well as other events including slower collections partially due to our name change. Days sales outstanding were
76 days for the three months ended January 31, 2014 as compared to 66 days for the corresponding period in the prior year. These
increases were partially offset by lower income from continuing operations of $239 million .

Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities of Continuing Operations. We generated $51 million of cash flows from investing
activities of continuing operations in fiscal 2015 including $80 million of proceeds from the U.S. Treasury cash grant, offset by $29
million to purchase property, plant, and equipment.

We generated $297 million of cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations in fiscal 2014, including a $295 million
dividend from New SAIC, $65 million of proceeds from the sale of facilities, $12 million of proceeds from the sale of cost method
investments, partially offset by a $26 million capital contribution to New SAIC and $53 million to purchase property, plant and
equipment.

We used $519 million of cash in support of investing activities of continuing operations in fiscal 2013, including $483 million (net of
cash acquired) to acquire maxIT and $39 million to purchase property, plant and equipment.

Cash Used in Financing Activities of Continuing Operations. We used $478 million of cash in support of financing activities of
continuing operations in fiscal 2015, including the repurchase and retirement of debt of $175 million , the payment of dividends of
$95 million and $215 million to repurchase shares of our stock primarily from the fiscal 2015 ASR as well as repurchases related to
employee benefit compensation plans, offset by $7 million in proceeds from the sale of stock under our employee stock purchase
plan (ESPP) and exercise of stock options.
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We used $894 million of cash in support of financing activities of continuing operations in fiscal 2014, including $477 million to pay
dividends on Leidos stock ($342 million from our special cash dividend), $152 million to pay off notes assumed as part of the
acquisition of Plainfield (an additional $13 million of costs to pay off these notes was included in cash flows from operating
activities), and $319 million to repurchase shares of our stock primarily from the accelerated stock repurchase program, partially
offset by consideration received of $38 million related to the real estate financing transaction and $13 million in proceeds from the
sale of stock under our ESPP and exercises of stock options. New SAIC received proceeds from the issuance of debt of $500
million , prior to the spin-off, and retained the debt obligation after spin-off.

We used $718 million of cash from financing activities of continuing operations in fiscal 2013, including $550 million to settle a note
payable at maturity, $165 million to pay dividends on Leidos stock and $22 million to repurchase shares of Leidos stock, offset by
$19 million in proceeds from the sale of stock under our ESPP.

Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations.

Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Discontinued Operations. Cash flows provided by operating activities of discontinued
operations decreased $103 million in fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014, primarily due to a decrease of net income of $73
million and a decrease of cash flows provided by operating activities of $22 million for New SAIC. Cash flows provided by operating
activities of discontinued operations decreased $202 million in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, due to a decrease in net
income of $122 million , a $17 million tax settlement on the gain from the sale of certain components of our business in fiscal 2013,
and an increase in payments for separation transaction costs.

Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities of Discontinued Operations. Cash flows provided by investing activities of
discontinued operations were $29 million for fiscal 2015 due to cash proceeds received for the sale of certain components of our
business in fiscal 2015. Cash flows used in investing activities of discontinued operations were $17 million for fiscal 2014 for the
purchase of property, plant, and equipment. Cash flows provided by investing activities of discontinued operations were $42 million
for fiscal 2013, including $51 million of proceeds from the sale of certain components of our business offset by $9 million for the
purchase of property, plant, and equipment.

Cash Used in Financing Activities of Discontinued Operations. There were no cash flows from financing activities of discontinued
operations for fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014. Cash flows used in financing activities of discontinued operations were $4 million for
fiscal 2013 from repayments of debt.

Leidos, Inc.'s Cash Flows. Any differences in cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations for Leidos, Inc. as
compared to Leidos are primarily attributable to changes in interest payments (which reduce cash flows from operating activities of
Leidos, Inc.) made by Leidos, Inc. on its note with Leidos and changes in excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensation
(which reduce cash flows from operating activities for Leidos).

Leidos, Inc. used cash in investing activities of $250 million in fiscal 2015, including repayments on its related party note with Leidos
of $457 million and $29 million to purchase property, plant, and equipment offset by proceeds from the related party note with
Leidos of $156 million and $80 million of proceeds from the U.S. Treasury cash grant.

Leidos, Inc. used cash in investing activities of $486 million in fiscal 2014, including repayments on its related party note with Leidos
of $501 million , partially offset by proceeds from the related party note with Leidos of $13 million .

Leidos, Inc. used cash in financing activities of continuing operations of $718 million in fiscal 2013, including repayments on its note
with Leidos of $411 million partially offset by proceeds from the note of $244 million . In addition, Leidos, Inc. used $550 million in
cash to settle a third-party note payable at maturity (as described above in Leidos' cash used in financing activities of continuing
operations).
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Special Cash Dividend

In fiscal 2014, Leidos' board of directors declared a special cash dividend of $4.00 per share of Leidos common stock and paid an
aggregate of $342 million to stockholders as of the record date of June 14, 2013.

Stock Repurchase Programs

In fiscal 2014, our board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program (2013 Stock Repurchase Program) under which we
may repurchase up to 20 million shares of Leidos common stock. This share repurchase authorization replaces the March 2012
share repurchase authorization of 10 million shares. Stock repurchases may be made on the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions with third parties. Whether repurchases are made and the timing and actual number of shares repurchased depends
on a variety of factors including price, corporate capital requirements, other market conditions and regulatory requirements. The
repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or discontinued at any time.

In fiscal 2015, we entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase ("ASR") agreement with a financial institution to repurchase
shares of our outstanding common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $200 million , resulting in a delivery of 5.3 million
shares, completed during the second quarter of fiscal 2015.

In fiscal 2014, we entered into an ASR agreement with a different financial institution to repurchase shares of our outstanding
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $300 million , resulting in an initial delivery of 5.6 million shares of our
outstanding shares of common stock for an aggregate value of $255 million . The final delivery of approximately 1.0 million shares
for a total value of $45 million under the program was completed during the first quarter of fiscal 2015.

Outstanding Indebtedness

During fiscal 2015, we entered into interest rate swap agreements to hedge the fair value with respect to all of the $450 million
aggregate principal outstanding on our fixed rate 4.45% notes maturing in December 2020 (the “Notes”). The objective of these
instruments is to hedge the Notes against changes in fair value due to the variability in the six-month LIBOR rate (the benchmark
interest rate), which effectively converted the debt into floating interest rate debt. Under the terms of the interest rate swap
agreements, we will receive semi-annual interest payments at the coupon rate of 4.45% and will pay variable interest based on the
six-month LIBOR rate. The counterparties to these agreements are financial institutions.
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Our outstanding notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following:

Stated Effective January 30, January 31,
interest rate interest rate 2015 2014

(dollars in millions)

Leidos Holdings, Inc. senior unsecured notes:
$450 million notes issued in fiscal 2011, which mature in

December 2020 @ 4.45% 453% $ 466 $ 449
$300 million notes issued in fiscal 2011, which mature in
December 2040 5.95% 6.03% 232 300
Leidos, Inc. senior unsecured notes:
$250 million notes issued in fiscal 2003, which mature in July 2032 7.13% 7.43% 248 248
$300 million notes issued in fiscal 2004, which mature in July 2033 5.50% 5.85% 182 296
Capital leases and other notes payable due on various dates
through fiscal 2021 0%-3.7% Various 38 40
Total notes payable and long-term debt 1,166 1,333
Less current portion 2 2
Total notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion $ 1,164 $ 1,331
Fair value of notes payable and long-term debt $ 1,152 % 1,350

(1) As aresult of executing the interest rate swap agreements, the carrying value of $466 million includes a fair value adjustment of $17 million attributable to
changes in the benchmark interest rate, the six-month LIBOR rate, from the inception of the interest rate swap agreements to January 30, 2015.

During fiscal 2015, we repurchased in the open market and retired principal amounts of $67 million on our $300 million 5.95% notes
issued by Leidos Holdings, Inc. maturing in December 2040 and $116 million on our $300 million 5.50% notes issued by Leidos,
Inc. maturing in July 2033. We recorded a $3 million gain on extinguishment of debt for the Leidos Holdings, Inc. notes and a $2
million gain for the Leidos, Inc. notes as part of the partial repayment of the respective notes. The total combined gain of $5 million
represents the difference between the repurchase price of $175 million and the net carrying amount of the notes repurchased less
the write-off of a portion of the unamortized debt discount and deferred financing costs on a pro-rata basis to the reduction of debt.
We recorded the gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt in "Other Income, net" in our consolidated statements of income.

The notes payable outstanding as of January 30, 2015 contain financial covenants and customary restrictive covenants, including,
among other things, restrictions on our ability to create liens and enter into sale and leaseback transactions. We were in compliance
with all covenants as of January 30, 2015. For additional information on our notes payable and long-term debt, see Note 9 of the
combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Credit Facility. We have a revolving credit facility, which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Leidos, Inc., which had provided
for $750 million in unsecured borrowing capacity at interest rates determined, at our option, based on either LIBOR plus a margin or
a defined base rate. During fiscal 2015, we amended the credit facility to, among other things, change the ratio of consolidated
funded debt to EBITDA that we are required to maintain. A pro-rata portion of the unamortized deferred costs related to the prior
arrangement were written off at the time of the amendment. The remaining unamortized deferred costs relating to the prior
arrangement and the immaterial fee paid to amend the credit facility, which was deferred, will be amortized over the term of the
amended credit facility. In connection with the amendment to the credit facility, we exercised our right under the credit agreement to
voluntarily reduce the combined commitment of the lenders from $750 million to $500 million . The maturity date of the facility is
March 2017. As of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, there were no borrowings outstanding under the credit facility.
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The credit facility contains certain customary representations and warranties, as well as certain affirmative and negative covenants.
The financial covenants contained in the amended credit facility require that, for a period of four trailing fiscal quarters, we maintain
a ratio of consolidated funded debt, including borrowings under this facility, to EBITDA (adjusted for other items as defined in the
credit facility) of not more than 4.0 to 1.0 no later than January 29, 2016 and 3.75 to 1.0 thereafter and a ratio of EBITDA (adjusted
for certain items as defined in the credit facility) to interest expense of greater than 3.5 to 1.0. We were in compliance with these
financial covenants as of January 30, 2015. A failure to meet these financial covenants in the future could eliminate our borrowing
capacity under the credit facility.

The available borrowing capacity on the credit facility may vary each quarter based on the trailing four quarters of EBITDA. If our
trailing four quarters of EBITDA declines below a certain threshold in relation to outstanding debt, the borrowing capacity available
under the credit facility is reduced. Our available borrowing capacity based on the results of our trailing four quarters of EBITDA as
of January 30, 2015 is approximately $500 million .

For additional information on our credit facility, see Note 9 of the combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have outstanding performance guarantees and cross-indemnity agreements in connection with certain of our unconsolidated
joint venture investments. We also have letters of credit outstanding principally related to guarantees on contracts with foreign
government customers and surety bonds outstanding principally related to performance and subcontractor payment bonds as
described in Note 20 of the combined notes to consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
These arrangements have not had, and management does not believe it is likely that they will in the future have, a material effect
on our liquidity, capital resources, operations or financial condition.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes, as of January 30, 2015, our obligations to make future payments pursuant to certain contracts or
arrangements and provides an estimate of the fiscal years in which these obligations are expected to be satisfied:

Payments Due by Fiscal Year

2021 &
Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter

(in millions)

Contractual obligations:
Long-term debt (including current portion) ®  $ 2,154 $ 65 $ 65 $ 65 $ 65 $ 65 $ 1,829

Operating lease obligations 396 88 76 66 55 41 70
Capital lease obligations 2 1 1 — — — —
Other long-term liabilities @ 47 11 11 7 7 2 9
Total contractual obligations $ 2599 $ 165 $ 153 $ 138 $ 127 $ 108 $ 1,908

®Includes total interest payments on our outstanding debt of $63 million in fiscal 2016 through 2020 and $670 million in fiscal 2021 and thereafter. The total
interest payments on our outstanding debt are calculated based on the stated fixed rates of the senior unsecured notes and do not reflect the variable interest
component due to the interest rate swap agreements.

@ Other long-term liabilities were allocated by fiscal year as follows: a liability for our foreign defined benefit pension plan is based upon the expected near-term
contributions to the plan (for a discussion of potential changes in these pension obligations, see Note 15 of the combined notes to consolidated financial
statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K); liabilities under deferred compensation arrangements are based upon the average annual
payments in prior years upon termination of employment by participants; and other liabilities are based on the fiscal year that the liabilities are expected to be
realized. The table above does not include income tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions of $6 million and $4 million of additional tax liabilities, as we are not
able to reasonably estimate the timing of payments in individual years due to uncertainties in the timing of audit outcomes and when settlements will become
due.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to a number of reviews, investigations, claims, lawsuits and other uncertainties related to our business. For a
discussion of these items, see Notes 19 and 20 of the combined notes to the consolidated financial statements contained within this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial
statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Management evaluates these
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimates and assumptions have been prepared by management on the
basis of the most current reasonably available information. The results of these estimates form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from
these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

We have several critical accounting policies that are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of
operations and require management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments. Typically, the circumstances that make
these judgments difficult, subjective and complex have to do with making estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain. Our critical accounting policies are described below.
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Revenue Recognition. We generate our revenues from various types of contracts, which include firm-fixed-price, time-and-
materials, fixed-price-level-of-effort, cost-plus-fixed-fee, cost-plus-award-fee and cost-plus-incentive-fee contracts.

Firm-fixed-price contracts—Revenues and fees on these contracts that are system integration or engineering in nature are primarily
recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting utilizing the cost-to-cost method. The completed contract
method is utilized when reasonable and reliable cost estimates for a project cannot be made.

Time-and-materials contracts—Revenue is recognized on time-and-materials contracts based on the hours provided in
performance under the contract multiplied by the negotiated contract billing rates, plus the negotiated contract billing rate of any
allowable material and subcontract costs and out-of-pocket expenses.

Fixed-price-level-of-effort contracts (FP-LOE)—These contracts are substantially similar to time-and-materials contracts except they
require a specified level of effort over a stated period of time. Accordingly, we recognize revenue on FP-LOE contracts with the U.S.
Government in a manner similar to time-and-materials contracts in which we measure progress toward completion based on the
hours provided in performance under the contract multiplied by the negotiated contract billing rates, plus the negotiated contract
billing rate of any allowable material costs and out-of-pocket expenses.

Cost-plus-fixed-fee contracts—Revenue is recognized on cost-plus-fixed-fee contracts with the U.S. Government on the basis of
partial performance equal to costs incurred, plus an estimate of applicable fees earned as we become contractually entitled to
reimbursement of costs and the applicable fees.

Cost-plus-award-fee/cost-plus-incentive fee contracts—Revenues and fees on these contracts with the U.S. Government are
primarily recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, most often based on the cost-to-cost method. We
include an estimate of the ultimate incentive or award fee to be received on the contract in the estimate of contract revenues for
purposes of applying the percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

Revenues from services and maintenance contracts, notwithstanding contract type, are recognized over the term of the respective
contracts as the services are performed and revenue is earned. Revenues from unit-priced contracts are recognized as
transactions are processed based on objective measures of output. Revenues from the sale of manufactured products are recorded
upon passage of title and risk of loss to the customer, which is generally upon delivery, provided that all other requirements for
revenue recognition have been met.

We also use the efforts-expended method of percentage-of-completion using measures such as labor dollars for measuring
progress toward completion in situations in which this approach is more representative of the progress on the contract. For
example, the efforts-expended method is utilized when there are significant amounts of materials or hardware procured for the
contract that is not representative of progress on the contract. Additionally, we utilize the units-of-delivery method under
percentage-of-completion on contracts where separate units of output are produced. Under the units-of-delivery method, revenue is
generally recognized when the units are delivered to the customer, provided that all other requirements for revenue recognition
have been met.

We also evaluate contracts for multiple elements, and when appropriate, separate the contracts into separate units of accounting
for revenue recognition.

We provide for anticipated losses on contracts by recording an expense during the period in which the losses are determined.
Amounts billed and collected but not yet recognized as revenues under certain types of contracts are deferred. Contract costs
incurred for U.S. Government contracts, including indirect costs, are subject to audit and adjustment through negotiations between
us and government representatives. We have agreed upon and settled indirect contract costs through fiscal 2008. Revenues on
U.S. Government contracts have been recorded in amounts that are expected to be realized upon final settlement.
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Contract claims are unanticipated additional costs incurred but not provided for in the executed contract price that we seek to
recover from the customer. Such costs are expensed as incurred. Additional revenue related to contract claims is recognized when
the amounts are awarded by the customer. Un-priced change orders are included in revenue when they are probable of recovery in
an amount at least equal to the cost.

In certain situations, primarily where we are not the primary obligor on certain elements of a contract such as the provision of
administrative oversight and/or management of government-owned facilities or logistical support services related to other vendors’
products, we recognize as revenues the net management fee associated with the services and exclude from our income statement
the gross sales and costs associated with the facility or other vendors’ products.

Changes in Estimates on Contracts. Changes in estimates related to certain types of contracts accounted for using the percentage
of completion method of accounting are recognized in the period in which such changes are made for the inception-to-date effect of
the changes. Changes in these estimates can routinely occur over the contract performance period for a variety of reasons,
including changes in contract scope, changes in contract cost estimates due to unanticipated cost growth or retirements of risk for
amounts different than estimated, and changes in estimated incentive or award fees. Aggregate changes in contract estimates
decreased operating loss by $24 million ( $0.20 per diluted share) for fiscal 2015 and decreased operating income by $21 million

( $0.15 per diluted share) for fiscal 2014. Aggregate changes in contract estimates increased operating income by $19 million

( $0.14 per diluted share) for fiscal 2013.

Receivables. Our accounts receivable include amounts billed and currently due from customers as well as billable receivables that
generally consist of amounts to be billed within the next month. Since the Company's receivables are primarily with the U.S.
Government, we do not have exposure to a material credit risk. Unbilled receivables consists of amounts billable and contract
retentions. Amounts billable are stated at estimated realizable value and consist of costs and fees, substantially all of which are
expected to be billed and collected within one year. Amounts billable also include rate variances that are billable upon negotiation
of final indirect rates with the U.S. Government and, once billed, are subject to audit and approval by government representatives.
Contract retentions are billed upon contract completion, or the occurrence of a specified event, and when negotiation of final
indirect rates with the U.S. Government is complete. Consequently, the timing of collection of retention balances is outside our
control. Based on our historical experience, the majority of retention balances are expected to be collected beyond one year and
write-offs of retention balances have not been significant. When events or conditions indicate that amounts outstanding from
customers may become uncollectible, an allowance is estimated and recorded.

We extended deferred payment terms with original contractual maturities that may exceed one year to commercial customers
related to certain construction projects. As of January 30, 2015, we had outstanding receivables of $18 million , net of allowance of
$7 million , related to one construction project with deferred payment terms, which have not been paid in accordance with the initial
payment terms established with the customer. We have filed a legal claim to enforce the payment terms as established in the
contract. Based on these events, we have determined that the receivables are not expected to be collected within the next 12
months. Accordingly, the receivables are classified as non-current in "Other Assets" on the consolidated balance sheet as of
January 30, 2015.

Business Combinations and Goodwill and Intangible Assets Impairment. The accounting for business combinations requires
management to make judgments and estimates of the fair value of assets acquired, including the identification and valuation of
intangible assets, as well as the liabilities and contingencies assumed. Such judgments and estimates directly impact the amount of
goodwill recognized in connection with each acquisition.

Gooduwill represents purchase consideration paid in a business combination that exceeds the values assigned to the net assets of
acquired businesses. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level annually, at the
beginning of the fourth quarter and during interim periods whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. Goodwill is evaluated for impairment either under a qualitative assessment option or a two-step quantitative
approach depending on facts and circumstances of a reporting unit, including the excess of fair value over carrying amount in
previous assessments and changes in business environment.
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When performing a qualitative assessment, we consider factors including, but not limited to, current macroeconomic conditions,
industry and market conditions, cost factors, financial performance, and other events relevant to the entity or reporting unit under
evaluation to determine whether it is more likely or not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If we
determine that it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, a quantitative two-step
goodwill impairment test is performed.

In evaluating the first step of the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test, the estimated fair value of each reporting unit is
compared to its carrying value, which includes the allocated goodwill. If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is more than its
carrying value, including allocated goodwill, no further analysis is required. If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying value, including allocated goodwill, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining
an implied fair value of goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is the residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a
reporting unit’s identifiable assets and liabilities from its estimated fair value calculated in the first step. If the carrying value of a
reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then we record an impairment charge equal to the difference.

We estimate the fair value of each reporting unit using both market and income approaches.

The market approach consists of the guideline public company method, which is a valuation technique where the fair value is
calculated based on market prices obtained from a detailed market analysis of publicly traded companies that provide a reasonable
basis of comparison for each reporting unit. Valuation ratios are selected that relate market prices to selected financial metrics from
comparable companies. These ratios are applied after consideration of adjustments and weightings related to financial position,
growth, volatility, working capital movement and other factors. Due to the fact that stock prices of comparable companies represent
minority interests we also consider an acquisition control premium to reflect the impact of additional value associated with a
controlling interest.

The income approach is a valuation technique where the fair value is calculated based on forecasted future cash flows within the
projection period discounted back to the present value with appropriate risk adjusted discount rates, which represent the weighted-
average cost of capital (WACC) for each reporting unit. This includes assessing the cost of equity and debt capital as of the
valuation date. In addition, a terminal value is developed for forecasted future cash flows beyond the projection period discounted
back to the present value. The forecasts used in our estimation of fair value are developed by management based on business and
market considerations.

Each model is based upon certain key assumptions that require the exercise of significant judgment including judgments for the use
of appropriate financial projections, economic expectations, discount rates and WACC as well as using available market data. The
goodwill impairment test process also requires management to make significant judgments and assumptions, including revenue,
profit, expected long-term growth rates and cash flow forecasts about the reporting units to which goodwill is assigned. The fair
values of our reporting units are based on estimates and assumptions that are believed to be reasonable. Significant changes to
these estimates and assumptions could adversely impact our conclusions and actual future results may differ from the estimates. In
addition, the identification of reporting units and the allocation of assets and liabilities to the reporting units when determining the
carrying value of each reporting unit also requires judgment.

Our fiscal 2015 annual goodwill impairment analysis indicated the estimated fair value of all of our reporting units were substantially
in excess of their carrying values. Accordingly, no goodwill impairment charges were recorded as part of the annual goodwill
impairment analysis. See " Goodwill Interim Impairment Evaluation” discussed above in Results of Operations for information
regarding the results of our interim goodwill impairment analysis performed in the second quarter of fiscal 2015.

The carrying value of goodwill as of January 30, 2015 was $1.2 billion . We face continued uncertainty in our business environment
due to the substantial fiscal and economic challenges facing the U.S. Government, our primary customer, as well as challenges in
the commercial healthcare industry, compounded by lower levels of U.S. Government reimbursements, including reductions in
Medicare reimbursements which in turn impact hospital IT spending. Adverse changes in fiscal and economic conditions, such as
the manner in which the budget cuts are
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implemented, including sequestration, and issues related to the nation’s debt ceiling, could adversely impact our future revenues
and profitability. These circumstances could result in an impairment of goodwill and/or other intangibles. Also adverse equity market
conditions that result in a decline in market multiples and our stock price could result in an impairment of goodwill and/or other
intangibles.

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are assessed for impairment at
the beginning of the fourth quarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. In fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014, we recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $41 million and $51 million ,
respectively. In fiscal 2013 we did not recognize any intangible asset impairment charges. The carrying value of intangible assets
as of January 30, 2015 was $37 million .

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method of accounting, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Under this method, changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in income in the period
such changes are enacted. The provision for federal, state, foreign and local income taxes is calculated on income before income
taxes based on current tax law and includes the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates from those used previously in
determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provision differs from the amounts currently payable because certain items of
income and expense are recognized in different reporting periods for financial reporting purposes than for income tax purposes.

Recording our provision for income taxes requires management to make significant judgments and estimates for matters whose
ultimate resolution may not become known until the final resolution of an examination by the IRS or state agencies. Additionally,
recording liabilities for uncertain tax positions involves significant judgment in evaluating our tax positions and developing our best
estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid.

We record net deferred tax assets to the extent we believe these assets will more likely than not be realized. In making such
determination, we consider all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary
differences, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies and recent results of operations. If we were to determine that
we would be able to realize our deferred income tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount or would no longer
be able to realize our deferred income tax assets in the future as currently recorded, we would make an adjustment to the valuation
allowance which would decrease or increase the provision for income taxes.

We also recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions when it is more likely than not that a tax position will not be sustained upon
examination and settlement with various taxing authorities. Liabilities for uncertain tax positions are measured based upon the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. We have experienced years when
liabilities for uncertain tax positions were settled for amounts different from recorded amounts as described in Note 14 of the
combined notes to the consolidated financial statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Stock-Based Compensation. We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the accounting standard for stock
compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of this standard, share-based compensation cost is measured at the
grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which is generally
the vesting period, net of an estimated forfeiture rate. The estimation of stock option fair value requires management to make
complex estimates and judgments about, among other things, employee exercise behavior, forfeiture rates, and the volatility of
Leidos common stock. These judgments directly affect the amount of compensation expense that will ultimately be recognized.

Prior to our separation transaction, the expected term of all awards granted was derived from our historical experience with the
exception of awards granted to our outside directors prior to fiscal 2013 which were derived utilizing the “simplified” method
presented in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Nos. 107 and 110, “Share-Based Payment.” Expected volatility was based on an
average of the historical volatility of Leidos' stock and the implied
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volatility from traded options on Leidos stock. The risk-free interest rate was based on the yield curve of a zero-coupon U.S.
Treasury bond with a maturity equal to the expected term of the stock option on the date of grant. We used historical data to
estimate forfeitures.

After the separation transaction, the expected term for all awards granted is derived utilizing the “simplified” method due to the lack
of historical experience post separation. Expected volatility is estimated based on a weighted average historical volatility of a group
of publicly-traded peer companies for a period consistent with the expected option term. We will continue to use peer group volatility
information, until our historical volatility is relevant, to measure expected volatility for future option grants. The risk-free rate is
derived in same manner as prior to the separation transaction. We use historical data to estimate forfeitures.

For fiscal 2015 we assumed a weighted average volatility of 25.1%. For fiscal 2014 we assumed weighted average volatilities of
25.0% for awards granted prior to the separation transaction and 30.1% for awards granted after the separation transaction.
Weighted average volatility of 24.5% was assumed for fiscal 2013. If other assumptions are held constant, an increase or decrease
by 10% in our fiscal 2015 volatility assumptions would have changed the grant-date fair value of our fiscal 2015 option awards by
approximately 11%.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to internal revenue growth (contraction) percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial
measure that we reconcile to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. We calculate our internal revenue growth
(contraction) percentage by comparing our reported revenue for the current year to the revenue for the prior year adjusted to
include the actual revenue of acquired businesses for the comparable prior year before acquisition. This calculation has the effect
of adding revenue for the acquired businesses for the comparable prior year to our prior year reported revenue.

We use internal revenue growth (contraction) percentage as an indicator of how successful we are at growing our base business
and how successful we are at growing the revenues of the businesses that we acquire. Our integration of acquired businesses
allows our current management to leverage business development capabilities, drive internal resource collaboration, utilize access
to markets and qualifications, and refine strategies to realize synergies, which benefits both acquired and existing businesses. As a
result, the performance of the combined enterprise post-acquisition is an important measurement. In addition, as a means of
rewarding the successful integration and growth of acquired businesses, and not acquisitions themselves, incentive compensation
for our senior management is based, in part, on achievement of revenue targets linked to internal revenue growth.

The limitation of this non-GAAP financial measure as compared to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is that
internal revenue growth (contraction) percentage is one of two components of the total revenue growth (contraction) percentage,
which is the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. We address this limitation by presenting the total revenue growth
(contraction) percentage next to or near disclosures of internal revenue growth (contraction) percentage. This financial measure is
not meant to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for comparable GAAP measures and should be read only in conjunction
with our consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP. The method that we use to calculate internal
revenue growth (contraction) percentage is not necessarily comparable to similarly titled financial measures presented by other
companies.
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Internal revenue growth (contraction) percentages for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 were calculated as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013

(dollars in millions)
National Security Solutions:

Prior fiscal year’s revenues, as reported $ 4,049 $ 4,650 $ 4,618
Revenues of acquired businesses for the comparable prior year period — — —
Prior fiscal year’s revenues, as adjusted $ 4,049 $ 4,650 $ 4,618
Current fiscal year’s revenues, as reported 3,594 4,049 4,650
Internal revenue (contraction) growth $ (455) % (601) $ 32
Internal revenue (contraction) growth percentage (11)% (13)% 1%
Health and Engineering:
Prior fiscal year's revenues, as reported $ 1,718 $ 1,805 $ 1,580
Revenues of acquired businesses for the comparable prior year period — 145 177
Prior fiscal year's revenues, as adjusted $ 1,718 $ 1,950 $ 1,757
Current fiscal year’s revenues, as reported 1,485 1,718 1,805
Internal revenue (contraction) growth $ (233) % (232) % 48
Internal revenue (contraction) growth percentage (14)% (12)% 3%
Total*:
Prior fiscal year’s revenues, as reported $ 5,755 $ 6,449 $ 5,804
Revenues of acquired businesses for the comparable prior year period — 145 177
Prior fiscal year’s revenues, as adjusted $ 5,755 $ 6,594 $ 5,981
Current fiscal year’s revenues, as reported 5,063 5,755 6,449
Internal revenue (contraction) growth $ (692) % 839) % 468
Internal revenue (contraction) growth percentage (12)% (13)% 8%

* Total revenues include amounts related to Corporate and Other intersegment eliminations.
Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting Pronouncemen ts

For a discussion of these items, see Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the combined notes to the consolidated
financial statements contained with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Effects of Inflation

Approximately 48% of our revenues are derived from cost-reimbursement type contracts, which are generally completed within one
year. Bids for longer-term FFP and T&M and FP-LOE contracts typically include sufficient provisions for labor and other cost
escalations to cover anticipated cost increases over the period of performance. As a result, our revenues and costs have generally
both increased commensurate with inflation and net income as a percentage of total revenues has not been significantly affected.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Mark et Risk

We are exposed to certain market risks in the normal course of business. Our current market risk exposures are primarily related to
interest rates and foreign currency fluctuations. The following information about our market sensitive financial instruments contains
forward-looking statements.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 59




PART Il

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investments and long-term debt obligations. We
have established an investment policy that prioritizes our objectives to minimize principal exposure, maximize liquidity and generate
after-tax returns. This policy establishes guidelines regarding acceptability of instruments and maximum maturity dates and requires
diversification in the investment portfolios by establishing maximum amounts that may be invested in designated instruments and
issuers. Our policy authorizes, with board of directors’ approval, the limited use of derivative instruments to hedge specific interest
rate risks.

Debt obligations and derivatives. At January 30, 2015, we had 1.2 billion of fixed rate debt. During fiscal 2015, we entered into
interest rate swap agreements with respect to all of the $450 million aggregate principal outstanding on our fixed rate 4.45% notes
maturing in December 2020. The interest rate swap agreements effectively converted a portion of our fixed-rate debt to floating-rate
debt tied to the changes in the six-month LIBOR benchmark interest rate. As a result, we may experience fluctuations in interest
expense.

As of January 30, 2015, the fair value of our interest rate swaps was $17 million . Under the terms of the interest rate swap
agreements, we will receive semi-annual interest payments at the coupon rate of 4.45% and will pay variable interest based on the
six-month LIBOR rate. The counterparties to these agreements are financial institutions. We do not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. We cannot predict future market fluctuations in interest rates and their impact on
our interest rate swaps due to the payment of variable rate interest in comparison to the fixed amount paid. A hypothetical 10%
movement in the six-month LIBOR rate would have less than a $2 million impact on our annual interest expense due to the interest
rate swaps in comparison to the fixed rate 4.45% notes. For additional information related to our debt and interest rate swap
agreements, see Notes 8 and 9, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements contained in this Annual Report.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. At January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, our cash and cash equivalents included investments in
several large institutional money market funds and bank deposits. A 10% interest rate movement would not materially impact the
value of the holdings or on interest income.

Foreign Currency Risk

Although the majority of our transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars, some of our transactions are denominated in foreign
currencies. Our foreign currency exchange rate risk relates to receipts from customers, payments to suppliers and certain
intercompany transactions denominated in currencies other than our (or one of our subsidiaries’) functional currency. Our foreign
operations are immaterial and we do not expect this risk to have a material impact.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See our consolidated financial statements attached hereto and listed on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth
on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Ac counting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer (our Chief Executive Officer) and principal financial officer
(our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer), has evaluated the effectiveness of Leidos’ and Leidos, Inc.'s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of January 30,
2015, and our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of
the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission. These disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportin = g

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this report that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financ  ial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of Leidos' and Leidos, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of January 30, 2015 based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Our management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
January 30, 2015, and has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting as of that date was effective.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, audited our consolidated financial statements included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K and our internal control over financial reporting, and that firm'’s reports on our internal control over
financial reporting are set forth below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Leidos Holdings, Inc.

Reston, Virginia

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Leidos Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
January 30, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 30,
2015, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended January 30, 2015 of the Company and our report dated March 25,
2015, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 25, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of

Leidos, Inc.

Reston, Virginia

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Leidos, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 30,
2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 30,
2015, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended January 30, 2015, of the Company and our report dated March 25,
2015, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
McLean, Virginia

March 25, 2015
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governa  nce

For certain information required by Item 10 with respect to executive officers, see “Executive and Other Key Officers of the
Registrant” at the end of Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. For additional information required by Item 10 with respect to
executive officers and directors, including audit committee and audit committee financial experts, procedures by which stockholders
may recommend nominees to the board of directors, and compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
see the information set forth under the captions “Proposal 1-Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance” and “Other Information”
appearing in the 2015 Proxy Statement, which required information is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on

Form 10-K.

We have adopted a code of conduct that applies to our principal executive officer and our senior financial officers. A copy of our
code of conduct is available on the Investor Relations section of our website free of charge at www.leidos.com by clicking on the
links entitled “Investors” then “Corporate Governance” and then “Code of Conduct.” We intend to post on our website any material
changes to or waivers from our code of business ethics. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into and is
not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

For information required by Item 11 with respect to executive compensation and director compensation, see the information set
forth under the captions “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive Compensation” and “Corporate Governance” in the
2015 Proxy Statement, which required information is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

For information required by Item 11 with respect to compensation committee interlocks and insider participation, see the information
set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance” in the 2015 Proxy Statement, which required information is incorporated by
reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

For information required by Item 12 with respect to the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management, see the
information set forth under the caption “Other Information” in the 2015 Proxy Statement, which required information is incorporated
by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Information with respect to our equity compensation plans as of January 30, 2015 is set forth below:

(© B
Number of securities
remaining available

(@) (b) for future issuance
Number of securities Weighted-average under equity
to be issued upon exercise price of compensation
exercise of outstanding plans (excluding
outstanding options, options, warrants securities reflected
Plan Category warrants and rights and rights in column (a))
E((ql)uny compensation plans approved by security holders 6298370 @ $ 38.50 © 16,270,926 ©
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders © — — — @
Total 6,298,370 $ — @ 16,270,926

@ The following equity compensation plans approved by security holders are included in this plan category: the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2006
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

@ Represents (i) 2,429,467 shares of Leidos common stock reserved for future issuance for performance-based awards assuming achievement of the target level
of performance for unearned performance-based awards (does not include an additional 63,531 shares if the maximum level of performance is achieved) and
other stock awards under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, (ii) 287,687 shares of Leidos common stock issuable pursuant to dividend equivalent rights and (iii)
3,581,216 shares of Leidos common stock reserved for future issuance upon the exercise of outstanding options awarded under the 2006 Equity Incentive
Plan. Does not include shares to be issued pursuant to purchase rights under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

®  Does not include shares to be issued for performance-based and other stock awards and shares of stock issuable pursuant to dividend equivalent rights, which
will not require any payment upon issuance of those shares.

@ Represents 12,488,011 shares of Leidos common stock under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 3,782,915 shares of Leidos common stock under
the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. The maximum number of shares initially available for issuance under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan was 2.3 million.
The 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides for an automatic increase to the share reserve on the first day of each fiscal year beginning on February 1,
2007 in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 2.3 million shares, (ii) two percent of the number of shares of Leidos common stock outstanding on the last day of
the immediately preceding fiscal year or (iii) a number determined by the compensation committee of the board of directors. The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
was amended in June 2012 to provide that the maximum number of shares available for issuance thereunder is 12.5 million. Those shares (i) that are issued
under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan that are forfeited or repurchased at the original purchase price or less or that are issuable upon exercise of awards
granted under the plan that expire or become unexercisable for any reason after their grant date without having been exercised in full, (ii) that are withheld from
an option or stock award pursuant to a Company-approved net exercise provision, or (iii) that are not delivered to or are award shares surrendered by a holder
in consideration for applicable tax withholding will continue to be available for issuance under the plan.

®  The Stock Compensation Plan and the Management Stock Compensation Plan have not been approved by security holders and are included in this plan
category. These plans do not provide for a maximum number of shares available for future issuance.

Some of the principal features of the Stock Compensation Plan and the Management Stock Compensation Plan, together referred
to as the Stock Compensation Plans, are summarized below, which summary is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the Stock
Compensation Plans. Stockholder approval of the Stock Compensation Plans was not required.

Summary of the Stock Compensation Plans

The Stock Compensation Plans have been adopted to provide a long-term incentive to key employees by making deferred awards
of shares of Leidos stock. All officers and employees are eligible to receive awards under the Stock Compensation Plan. However,
only a select group of management and highly compensated senior employees are eligible to receive awards under the
Management Stock Compensation Plan. We intend to limit participants of the Management Stock Compensation Plan to individuals
that would permit the plan to be treated as a “top hat” plan under applicable Internal Revenue Service and Department of Labor
Regulations.

The awarding authority (as appointed by our board of directors) designates those key employees receiving awards and the number
of share units to be awarded. Each share unit generally corresponds to one share of stock, but the employee receiving an award of
share units will not have a direct ownership interest in the shares of stock represented by the share units. We have established a
trust which enables us to transfer shares of Leidos stock into
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the trust for purposes of funding the Stock Compensation Plans’ obligations. The trust, which is maintained by Vanguard Fiduciary
Trust Company as trustee under a trust agreement between the trustee and us, is a special type of trust known as a rabbi trust. In
order to avoid current taxation of awards under the Stock Compensation Plans, the trust must permit our creditors to reach the
assets of the trust in the event of our bankruptcy or insolvency.

The awarding authority will establish a vesting schedule of not more than seven years for each award. Awards will generally vest
100% at the end of the fourth year following the date of award. The death of a participant or a change in control of us will result in
full vesting of an award. A participant will forfeit any unvested portions of the account if the participant’s employment terminates for
any reason other than death. We receive the benefit of forfeited amounts to satisfy future awards under the Stock Compensation
Plans.

Participants of the Stock Compensation Plan receive a lump sum distribution of their awards in shares of stock once they become
vested while participants of the Management Stock Compensation Plan receive a distribution of their awards in shares of stock
following termination or retirement. Participants will be taxed on the value of any amounts distributed from the Stock Compensation
Plans at the time of the distribution.

The day-to-day administration of the Stock Compensation Plans is provided by the nonqualified plans committee appointed by our
board of directors. We have the right to amend or terminate the Stock Compensation Plans at any time and for any reason.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

For information required by Item 13 with respect to certain relationships and related transactions and the independence of directors
and nominees, see the information set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance” in the 2015 Proxy Statement, which
required information is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

For information required by Item 14 with respect to principal accounting fees and services, see the information set forth under the
caption “Audit Matters” in the 2015 Proxy Statement, which required information is incorporated by reference into this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of the report:
1. Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements are attached hereto and listed on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in our consolidated
financial statements or the notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

2.1 Distribution Agreement dated September 25, 2013. Incorporated by referenced to Exhibit 2.1 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2013.

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Leidos Holdings, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2013.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Leidos Holdings, Inc.

3.3 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Leidos, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to our
Current Report on From 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2013.

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Leidos, Inc.

4.1 Indenture dated June 28, 2002 between Leidos, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as trustee. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on July 3, 2002 with the SEC. (SEC File No. 000-
12771)

4.2 First Supplemental Indenture, dated October 13, 2006, by and among Leidos, Inc., Leidos Holdings, Inc. and The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on October 17, 2006 with the SEC. (SEC File No.
001-33072)

4.3 Indenture dated as of December 20, 2010, among Leidos Holdings, Inc., Leidos, Inc., and The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as Trustee. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
as filed on December 22, 2010 with the SEC.

10.1* Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Annual Report on
Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

10.2* Leidos, Inc. Stock Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.2 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K
as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

10.3* Leidos, Inc.’s Management Stock Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Annual Report
on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

10.4* Leidos, Inc.'s Keystaff Deferral Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K as

filad with tha QEC nn Marrh 27 2014



10.5* Leidos, Inc.’s Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Annual Report on
Form-10K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

10.6* Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18

10.19*

10.20*

Leidos, Inc.’s 401(k) Excess Deferral Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

Form of Stock Award Agreement of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 31, 2009 as filed on
December 9, 2009 with the SEC.

Form of Stock Award Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
October 31, 2009 as filed on December 9, 2009 with the SEC.

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC
on March 27, 2014.

Form of Performance Share Award Agreement of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30, 2011 as filed
on June 3 2011 with the SEC.

Form of Amendment to Performance Share Award Agreement of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
(for Performance Share Award Agreements entered into prior to March 22, 2012). Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30, 2012 as filed on June 1,
2012 with the SEC.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC
on March 27, 2014.

Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Management) of Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed as with the SEC on March 27,
2014.

Form of Recoupment Policy and Non-Solicitation Acknowledgment and Agreement. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30, 2010 as
filed on June 4, 2010 with the SEC.

Amended and Restated Four Year Credit Agreement, dated March 11, 2011, among Leidos Holdings, Inc., as
borrower, Leidos, Inc., as guarantor, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent, Bank of America, N.A., as syndication
agent, Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., The Bank of Nova Scotia and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as co-
documentation agents, and the other lenders party thereto. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Leidos
Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on March 15, 2011 with the SEC.

Form of Indemnification Agreement.

Form of Severance Protection Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the SEC on March 27. 2014.



10.21* Employment Letter Agreement dated February 29, 2012, to John P. Jumper. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A as filed on March 2, 2012 with the SEC.
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

10.22* Stock Offer Letter dated February 29, 2012 to John P. Jumper. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Leidos
Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A as filed on March 2, 2012 with the SEC.

10.23 Deferred Prosecution Agreement between Leidos, Inc. and the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New
York effective March 14, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
March 14, 2012 with the SEC.

10.24 Administrative Agreement between Leidos, Inc. and the United States Army on behalf of the U.S. Government, dated
August 21, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 21,
2012 with the SEC.

10.25 Employee Matters Agreement dated September 25, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2013.

10.26 Tax Matters Agreement dated September 25, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2013.

10.27 Transition Services Agreement dated September 25, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2013.

10.28 Agreement, dated October 11, 2013, by and among Leidos Renewable Energy, LLC, Plainfield Renewable Energy
Owner, LLC and Plainfield Renewable Energy Holdings, LLC. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on December 10, 2013.

10.29t1t Confirmation, dated December 13, 2013, regarding Issuer Forward Repurchase Transaction to between Leidos
Holdings, Inc. and Bank of America, N.A. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 our Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

10.30* Executive Employment Agreement dated June 30, 2014. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July, 2, 2014.

10.31 Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Four Year Credit Agreement dated as of March 11, 2011, as
amended by Amendment No. 1 dated April 19, 2013, among Leidos Holdings, Inc., as borrower, and Leidos, Inc., as
guarantor, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent and the other lending institutions party thereto. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 20, 2014.

10.32* Transition Agreement, dated January 23, 2015, between Leidos Holdings, Inc. and Mark W. Sopp. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January, 29, 2015.

10.33* Form of Performance Share Award Agreement of Leidos Holdings, Inc.'s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (for Performance
Share Award Agreements entered into on or after April 3, 2015).

10.34* Memorandum of Understanding, executed on March 24, 2014, between the Company and K. Stuart Shea.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on June 4, 2014.

21 Subsidiaries of Registrants.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.



31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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PART IV

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

99.1 Patent License and Assignment Agreement dated as of August 12, 2005 between Leidos, Inc. and VirnetX, Inc.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed on April 1,
2010 with the SEC.

99.2% Amendment No. 1 dated as of November 2, 2006 to Patent License and Assignment Agreement between Leidos, Inc.
and VirnetX, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as
filed on April 1, 2010 with the SEC.

99.3 Amendment No. 2 dated as of March 12, 2008 to Patent License and Assignment Agreement between Leidos, Inc.
and VirnetX, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as
filed on April 1, 2010 with the SEC.

99.4% Professional Services Contract effective September 7, 1999 between Leidos, Inc. and In-Q-Tel, Inc. (f/k/a In-Q-It,
Inc.). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Leidos Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed on
April 1, 2010 with the SEC.

101 Interactive Data File.

* Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

T Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of these exhibits.

Tt Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Leidos Holdings, Inc.

By /sl Mark W. Sopp

Mark W. Sopp
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office r

Dated: March 25, 2015

Leidos, Inc.

By /sl Mark W. Sopp

Mark W. Sopp
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office r

Dated: March 25, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of each of Leidos Holdings, Inc. and Leidos, Inc., in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Roger A. Krone Principal Executive Officer March 25, 2015

Roger A. Krone

/sl Mark W. Sopp Principal Financial Officer March 25, 2015
Mark W. Sopp
/sl Kenneth P. Sharp Principal Accounting Officer March 25, 2015

Kenneth P. Sharp

/s/ David G. Fubini Director March 25, 2015
David G. Fubini
/s/  John J. Hamre Director March 25, 2015

John J. Hamre

/s/  Miriam E. John Director March 25, 2015
Miriam E. John
/sl John P. Jumper Director March 25, 2015

John P. Jumper

/sl Harry M. J. Kraemer, Jr. Director March 25, 2015
Harry M. J. Kraemer, Jr.

/sl Gary S. May Director March 25, 2015
Gary S. May
/sl Lawrence C. Nussdorf Director March 25, 2015

Lawrence C. Nussdorf

/sl Robert S. Shapard Director March 25, 2015

PAahav © Chanavd




/s/ Noel B. Williams Director March 25, 2015

Noel B. Williams
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Leidos Holdings, Inc.
Reston, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Leidos Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 30, 2015. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Leidos
Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 30, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 30, 2015, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated March 25, 2015, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 25, 2015
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 443 % 430
Receivables, net 896 1,082
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets 273 256
Assets of discontinued operations 6 39
Total current assets 1,618 1,807
Property, plant and equipment, net 308 482
Intangible assets, net 37 93
Goodwill 1,207 1,693
Deferred income taxes 14 15
Other assets 97 72
$ 3281 % 4,162
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 675 $ 716
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 264 285
Notes payable and long-term debt, current portion 2 2
Liabilities of discontinued operations 10 6
Total current liabilities 951 1,009
Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion 1,164 1,331
Other long-term liabilities 168 227
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 16, 19 and 20)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value,10 million shares authorized and no shares issued and
outstanding at January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014 — —
Common stock, $.0001 par value, 500 million shares authorized, 74 million and 80 million shares
issued and outstanding at January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively — —
Additional paid-in capital 1,433 1,576
Accumulated (deficit) earnings (424) 25
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (12) (6)
Total stockholders’ equity 998 1,595
$ 3281 % 4,162

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions, except per
share amounts)
Revenues $ 5,063 $ 5755 $ 6,449
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 4,392 4,992 5,548
Selling, general and administrative expenses 310 440 467
Bad debt expense 5 44 2
Goodwill impairment charges 486 — —
Asset impairment charges 81 51 —
Separation transaction and restructuring expenses 3 65 11
Operating (loss) income (214) 163 421
Non-operating income (expense):
Interest income 1 15 9
Interest expense (75) (82) (93)
Other income (expense), net 5 (8) 8
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes (283) 88 345
Income tax expense 47 4) (22)
(Loss) income from continuing operations (330) 84 323
Discontinued operations (Note 2):
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes (13) 140 330
Income tax benefit (expense) 20 (60) (128)
Income from discontinued operations 7 80 202
Net (loss) income $ (323) $ 164 $ 525
(Loss) earnings per share (Note 12):
Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (4.46) $ 098 $ 3.81
Income from discontinued operations 0.10 0.96 2.38
$ (4.36) $ 194 $ 6.19
Diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (4.46) $ 098 % 3.81
Income from discontinued operations 0.10 0.96 2.38
$ (4.36) $ 194 $ 6.19

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report F-4




LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Net (loss) income $ (323) % 164 $ 525
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (2 — Q)
Deferred taxes 1 — 1
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax (1) — —
Reclassification of realized loss on settled derivative instruments to net income — — —
Deferred taxes — — —
Reclassification of realized loss on settled derivative instruments to net income,
net of tax — — —
Pension liability adjustments (7 (6) 14
Deferred taxes 3 2 (5)
Pension liability adjustments, net of tax (4) (4) 9
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (5) (4) 9
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (328) $ 160 $ 534

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Shares .
Additional Accumulated other
Common Preferred paid-in earnings comprehensive
stock stock capital (deficit) loss Total
(in millions, except for per share amounts)

Balance at January 31, 2012 85 — $ 2028 $ 164 $ (11) $ 2181
Net income — — — 525 — 525
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — — — 9 9
Issuances of stock (less forfeitures) 1 — 24 — — 24
Shares repurchased or retired or withheld for

tax withholdings on vesting of restricted

stock — — (20) (12) — (22)
Dividends of $1.92 per common share — — — (167) — (167)
Adjustments for income tax benefits from

stock-based compensation — — (16) — — (16)
Stock-based compensation (including

discontinued operations of $31 million) — — 84 — — 84

Balance at January 31, 2013 86 — 2,110 510 (2) 2,618
Net income — — — 164 — 164
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — — (4) (4)
Issuances of stock (less forfeitures) — — 33 — — 33
Shares repurchased or retired or withheld for

tax withholdings on vesting of restricted

stock (6) — (165) (154) — (319)
Dividends of $1.60 per common share — — — (139) — (139)
Special cash dividend of $4.00 per share — — — (356) — (356)
Adjustments for income tax benefits from

stock-based compensation — — (12) — — (12)
Stock-based compensation (including

discontinued operations of $21 million) — — 76 — — 76
Dividend received, net of contribution paid,

from the spin-off of New SAIC — — 269 — — 269
Spin-off of New SAIC — — (736) — — (736)

Balance at January 31, 2014 80 — 1,576 25 (6) 1,595
Net loss — — — (323) — (323)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — — (5) (5)
Issuances of stock (less forfeitures) 1 — 1 — — 1
Shares repurchased or retired or withheld for
tax withholdings on equity awards (7 — (178) (37) — (215)
Dividends of $1.28 per common share — — — (89) — (89)
Adjustments for income tax benefits from

stock-based compensation — — (6) — — (6)
Stock-based compensation — — 42 — — 42
Other — — (2) — — (2)

Balance at January 30, 2015 74 — $ 1433 % (424) $ 11) $ 998

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations:
Net (loss) income $ (323) % 164 $ 525
Income from discontinued operations (7 (80) (202)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by continuing
operations:
Depreciation and amortization 62 80 90
Stock-based compensation 42 55 53
Goodwill impairment charges 486 — —
Asset impairment charges 81 51 —
Bad debt expense 5 44 2
Restructuring charges, net 3 17 2
Other — 2 (2)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions:
Receivables 162 (69) 218
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets (12) 44 5
Income taxes receivable/payable (87) 54 (58)
Deferred income taxes 56 (38) 67
Other assets 2 18 (9)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (43) (87) (694)
Accrued payroll and employee benefits (21) (66) 27
Other long-term liabilities (20) 2 —
Total cash flows provided by operating activities of continuing operations 396 191 24
Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations:
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (29) (53) (39)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired of $9 million in fiscal 2013 — 3) (483)
Net proceeds for purchase price adjustments related to prior year acquisitions — — 1
Proceeds from sale of assets — 65 2
Proceeds from U.S. Treasury cash grant 80 — —
Net proceeds of cost method investments — 12 —
Dividend received from the separation of New SAIC — 295 —
Contribution paid related to the separation of New SAIC — (26) —
Other — 7 —
Total cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities of continuing operations 51 297 (519)
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [CONTINUED]

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)

Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations:

Payments on notes payable and long-term debt (177) (152) (550)

Payments for deferred financing costs — (5) —

Payment from New SAIC for deferred financing costs — 5 —

Proceeds from real estate financing transaction — 38 —

Proceeds from debt issuance — 500 —

Distribution of debt to New SAIC — (500) —

Sales of stock and exercises of stock options 7 13 19

Repurchases of stock (215) (319) (22)

Dividend payments (95) 477) (165)

Other 2 3 —
Total cash flows used in financing activities of continuing operations (478) (894) (718)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations (32) (406) (1,213)
Cash flows from discontinued operations:

Cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 15 118 320

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations 29 a7 42

Cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations — — (4)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations 44 101 358
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13 (305) (855)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 430 735 1,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 443 % 430 $ 735

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS, INC.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of
Leidos, Inc.
Reston, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Leidos, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of

January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 30, 2015. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Leidos, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended January 30, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 30, 2015, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated March 25, 2015, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
March 25, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LEIDOS, INC.

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 443 % 430
Receivables, net 896 1,082
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets 273 256
Assets of discontinued operations 6 39
Total current assets 1,618 1,807
Property, plant and equipment, net 308 482
Intangible assets, net 37 93
Goodwill 1,207 1,693
Deferred income taxes 14 15
Other assets 97 72
Note receivable from Leidos Holdings, Inc. (Note 10) 1,412 1,137
$ 4693 $ 5,299
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 675 $ 716
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 264 285
Notes payable and long-term debt, current portion 2 2
Liabilities of discontinued operations 10 6
Total current liabilities 951 1,009
Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion 1,164 1,331
Other long-term liabilities 168 227
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 16, 19 and 20)
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value, 10,000 shares authorized, 5,000 shares issued and outstanding at
January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014 — —
Additional paid-in capital 207 207
Accumulated earnings 2,214 2,531
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (11) (6)
Total stockholder's equity 2,410 2,732
$ 4693 $ 5,299

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)

Revenues $ 5063 $ 5755 $ 6,449
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues 4,392 4,992 5,548

Selling, general and administrative expenses 310 440 467

Bad debt expense 5 44 2

Goodwill impairment charges 486 — —

Asset impairment charges 81 51 —

Separation transaction and restructuring expenses 3 65 11
Operating (loss) income (214) 163 421
Non-operating income (expense):

Interest income 11 19 10

Interest expense (75) (82) (93)

Other income (expense), net 5 (8) 8
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes (273) 92 346
Income tax expense (51) (6) (22)
(Loss) income from continuing operations (324) 86 324
Discontinued operations (Note 2):

(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes (13) 140 330

Income tax benefit (expense) 20 (60) (128)
Income from discontinued operations 7 80 202
Net (loss) income $ (317) % 166 $ 526

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Net (loss) income $ (317) $ 166 $ 526
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (2) — Q)
Deferred taxes 1 — 1
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax (1) — —
Reclassification of realized loss on settled derivative instruments to net income — — —
Deferred taxes — — —
Reclassification of realized loss on settled derivative instruments to net income,
net of tax — — —
Pension liability adjustments (7 (6) 14
Deferred taxes 3 2 (5)
Pension liability adjustments, net of tax 4) 4) 9
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (5) 4) 9
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (322) % 162 $ 535

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.

Leidos Holdings, Inc. Annual Report F-12




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'’S EQUITY

LEIDOS, INC

Accumulated

Shares of Additional other
common paid-in Accumulated comprehensive
stock capital earnings loss Total
(in millions, except for share amounts)

Balance at January 31, 2012 5,000 $ 233 % 1,839 $ (1)) $ 2,061
Net income — — 526 — 526
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — — 9 9

Balance at January 31, 2013 5,000 233 2,365 (2) 2,596
Net income — — 166 — 166
Contribution paid related to the spin-off of

New SAIC — (26) — — (26)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — 4) 4)

Balance at January 31, 2014 5,000 207 2,531 (6) 2,732
Net loss — — (317) — (317)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — (5) (5)

Balance at January 30, 2015 5,000 $ 207 3 2,214 % (1)) $ 2,410

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations:
Net (loss) income $ (317) $ 166 $ 526
Income from discontinued operations (7 (80) (202)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by continuing
operations:
Depreciation and amortization 62 80 90
Stock-based compensation 42 55 53
Goodwill impairment charges 486 — —
Asset impairment charges 81 51 —
Bad debt expense 5 44 2
Restructuring charges, net 3 17 2
Other (6) — 3)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions:
Receivables 162 (69) 218
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets (12) 44 5
Income taxes receivable/payable (87) 54 (58)
Deferred income taxes 56 (38) 67
Other assets 2 18 (9)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (43) (87) (694)
Accrued payroll and employee benefits (22) (66) 27
Other long-term liabilities (20) 2 —
Total cash flows provided by operating activities of continuing operations 396 191 24
Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations:
Proceeds on obligations of Leidos Holdings, Inc. 156 13 —
Payments on obligations of Leidos Holdings, Inc. (457) (501) —
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (29) (53) (39)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired of $9 million in fiscal 2013 — 3) (483)
Net proceeds for purchase price adjustments related to prior year acquisitions — — 1
Proceeds from sale of assets — 65 2
Proceeds from U.S. Treasury cash grant 80 — —
Net proceeds of cost method investments — 12 —
Contribution paid related to the separation of New SAIC — (26) —
Other — 7 —
Total cash flows used in investing activities of continuing operations (250) (486) (519)
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LEIDOS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [CONTINUED]

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)

Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations:

Proceeds on obligations of Leidos Holdings, Inc. — — 244

Payments on obligations of Leidos Holdings, Inc. — — (4112)

Payments on notes payable and long-term debt (177) (152) (550)

Payments for deferred financing costs — (5) —

Payment from New SAIC for deferred financing costs — 5 —

Proceeds from real estate financing transaction — 38 —

Dividend payments — — Q)

Other — 3 —
Total cash flows used in financing activities of continuing operations a77) (112) (718)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations (32) (406) (1,213)
Cash flows from discontinued operations:

Cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 15 118 320

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations 29 a7 42

Cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations — — (4)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations 44 101 358
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13 (305) (855)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 430 735 1,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 443 % 430 $ 735

See accompanying combined notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.
LEIDOS, INC.

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Leidos Holdings, Inc. (“Leidos”) is a holding company whose direct 100% -owned subsidiary is Leidos, Inc., an applied technology
company focused on delivering solutions and services that leverage expertise in the national security, health and engineering
markets. Leidos, Inc. provides these solutions and services to government and commercial customers, both domestically and
internationally. These customers include agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense ("DoD"), the intelligence community, the U.S.
Department of Homeland Security ("DHS"), and other U.S. Government civil agencies, state and local government agencies and
foreign governments. Unless indicated otherwise, references to the "Company," "we," "us" and "our" refer collectively to Leidos
Holdings, Inc., Leidos, Inc., and its consolidated subsidiaries.

On September 27, 2013 (the "Distribution Date"), Leidos completed the spin-off of its technical services and enterprise information
technology services business into an independent, publicly traded company named Science Applications International Corporation
(“New SAIC"). The separation was effected through a tax-free distribution to Leidos' stockholders of 100% of the shares of New
SAIC's common stock. On the Distribution Date, New SAIC's common stock was distributed, on a pro rata basis, to Leidos'
stockholders of record as of the close of business on September 19, 2013, the record date. Each holder of Leidos common stock
received one share of New SAIC common stock for every seven shares of Leidos common stock held on the record date. Prior to
the Distribution Date, Leidos Holdings, Inc. was named SAIC, Inc. and Leidos, Inc. was named Science Applications International
Corporation.

As a result of the spin-off, the assets, liabilities, results of operations and cash flows of New SAIC have been classified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. References to financial data are to the Company’s continuing operations, unless
otherwise noted. See Note 2-Dispositions for further information.

Immediately following the spin-off, Leidos effectuated a one-for-four reverse stock split of its shares of common stock, so that every
four shares of Leidos common stock issued and outstanding were combined and converted into one share of Leidos common
stock. Each reference to the number of shares outstanding or per share amounts has been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock
split for all periods presented.

The consolidated financial statements of Leidos include the accounts of its majority-owned and 100% -owned subsidiaries,
including Leidos, Inc. The consolidated financial statements of Leidos, Inc. include the accounts of its majority-owned and 100% -
owned subsidiaries. Leidos does not have separate operations, assets or liabilities independent of Leidos, Inc., except for a note
with Leidos, Inc. (the “related party note”), on which interest is recognized. From time to time, Leidos issues stock to employees of
Leidos, Inc. and its subsidiaries, which is reflected in Leidos' Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and results in an
increase to the related party note (see Note 10). All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

These Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements apply to both Leidos and Leidos, Inc. As Leidos consolidates Leidos,
Inc. for financial statement purposes, disclosures that relate to activities of Leidos, Inc. also apply to Leidos.
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Reporting Periods

Unless otherwise noted, references to fiscal years are to fiscal years ended the Friday closest to January 31, for fiscal 2014 or later
periods or fiscal year ended January 31, for fiscal 2013. Effective in fiscal 2014, the Company changed its fiscal year to a 52/53
week fiscal year ending on the Friday closest to January 31, with fiscal quarters typically consisting of 13 weeks . Fiscal 2015
began on February 1, 2014 and ended on January 30, 2015. The Company does not believe that the change in its fiscal year has a
material effect on the comparability of the periods presented.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Management evaluates these estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis, including those
relating to allowances for doubtful accounts, inventories, fair value and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, income taxes,
estimated profitability of long-term contracts, pension benefits, stock-based compensation expense, contingencies and litigation.
Estimates and assumptions have been prepared by management on the basis of the most current and best available information at
the time of estimation and actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements
have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Separation Transaction and Restructuring Expenses

In anticipation of the spin-off of New SAIC from the Company, the Company initiated an overall spin-off program to align the
Company’s cost structure for post-spin-off. In fiscal 2014 the Company reduced headcount, which resulted in severance costs, and
reduced its real estate footprint by vacating facilities that are not necessary for its future requirements, which resulted in lease
termination and facility consolidation expenses.

Separation transaction and restructuring expenses related to New SAIC, exclusive of any tax impacts, of $55 million for the year
ended January 31, 2014, and $28 million for the year ended January 31, 2013, respectively, were reclassified as discontinued
operations.

The separation transaction and restructuring expenses for continuing operations for each of the three years ended January 30,
2015 were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013

(in millions)
Strategic advisory services $ — $ 7 % 1
Legal and accounting services — 2 —
Lease termination and facility consolidation expenses 3 46 2
Severance costs — 10 8
Separation transaction and restructuring expenses in operating (loss) income 3 65 11
Less: income tax benefit Q) (25) 4)
Separation transaction and restructuring expenses, net of tax $ 2 3 40 $ 7
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For the years ended January 30, 2015, January 31, 2014, and January 31, 2013, all separation transaction and restructuring
expenses for continuing operations were in the Corporate and Other segment. The Company does not expect to incur significant
additional other separation transaction and restructuring expenses in future fiscal years related to the spin-off transaction.

The following table represents the restructuring liability balance as of January 30, 2015 and summarizes the changes during the
period attributable to costs incurred and charged to expense, costs paid or otherwise settled, and any adjustments to the liability:

Lease
Termination and
Facility
Consolidation
Severance Costs Expenses Total
(in millions)
Balance as of January 31, 2013 $ 8 $ 2 $ 10
Charges 10 41 51
Cash payments a7 (23) (40)
Balance as of January 31, 2014 $ 1 3 20 % 21
Charges — 3 3
Cash payments (1) (12) (13)
Balance as of January 30, 2015 $ — % 11 % 11

Operating Cycle

The Company’s operating cycle for long-term contracts may be greater than one year and is measured by the average time
intervening between the inception and the completion of those contracts. Contract-related assets and liabilities are classified as
current assets and current liabilities.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company occasionally forms joint ventures and/or enters into arrangements with special purpose limited liability companies for
the purpose of bidding and executing on specific projects. The Company analyzes each such arrangement to determine whether it
represents a variable interest entity (VIE). If the arrangement is determined to be a VIE, the Company assesses whether it is the
primary beneficiary of the VIE and is consequently required to consolidate the VIE.

In fiscal 2012, the Company entered into a fixed price agreement to provide engineering, procurement, and construction services to
a special purpose limited liability company (Plainfield Renewable Energy LLC or "Plainfield") for a specific renewable energy
project. The Company analyzed this arrangement and determined that Plainfield was a VIE. Prior to the third quarter of fiscal 2014,
the VIE was not consolidated by the Company because the Company was not the primary beneficiary.

On October 11, 2013, the Company and Plainfield Renewable Energy Owner, LLC (“project owner”) entered into a consensual
foreclosure agreement pursuant to which, the project owners agreed to transfer 100% of the equity interest of Plainfield Renewable
Energy Holdings, LLC (“PRE Holdings”) to an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Leidos in full satisfaction of certain secured
obligations owed by the project owner to the Company. Plainfield is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PRE Holdings. As a result of the
entry into the foreclosure agreement, the Company determined that it has the power to direct the activities of the VIE and has the
right to receive benefits from or the obligation to absorb the losses of the VIE. Accordingly, the Company was deemed the primary
beneficiary of the VIE, resulting in the consolidation of Plainfield as of October 11, 2013. See Note 3 - Acquisitions, for further
information.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues are generated primarily from contracts with the U.S. Government, commercial customers, and various
international, state and local governments or from subcontracts with other contractors engaged in work with such customers. The
Company performs under various types of contracts, which include firm-fixed-price, time-and-materials, fixed-price-level-of-effort,
cost-plus-fixed-fee, cost-plus-award-fee and cost-plus-incentive-fee contracts.

Firm-fixed-price contracts—Revenues and fees on these contracts that are system integration or engineering in nature are primarily
recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting utilizing the cost-to-cost method. The completed contract
method is utilized when reasonable and reliable cost estimates for a project can not be made.

Time-and-materials contracts—Revenue is recognized on time-and-materials contracts based on the hours provided in
performance under the contract multiplied by the negotiated contract billing rates, plus the negotiated contract billing rate of any
allowable material and subcontract costs and out-of-pocket expenses.

Fixed-price-level-of-effort contracts (FP-LOE)—These contracts are substantially similar to time-and-materials contracts except they
require a specified level of effort over a stated period of time. Accordingly, the Company recognizes revenue on FP-LOE contracts
with the U.S. Government in a manner similar to time-and-materials contracts in which the Company measures progress toward
completion based on the hours provided in performance under the contract multiplied by the negotiated contract billing rates, plus
the negotiated contract billing rate of any allowable material costs and out-of-pocket expenses.

Cost-plus-fixed-fee contracts—Revenue is recognized on cost-plus-fixed-fee contracts with the U.S. Government on the basis of
partial performance equal to costs incurred, plus an estimate of applicable fees earned as the Company becomes contractually
entitled to reimbursement of costs and the applicable fees.

Cost-plus-award-fee/cost-plus-incentive fee contracts—Revenues and fees on these contracts with the U.S. Government are
primarily recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, most often based on the cost-to-cost method. The
Company includes an estimate of the ultimate incentive or award fee to be received on the contract in the estimate of contract
revenues for purposes of applying the percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

Revenues from services and maintenance contracts, notwithstanding contract type, are recognized over the term of the respective
contracts as the services are performed and revenue is earned. Revenues from unit-priced contracts are recognized as
transactions are processed based on objective measures of output. Revenues from the sale of manufactured products are recorded
upon passage of title and risk of loss to the customer, which is generally upon delivery, provided that all other requirements for
revenue recognition have been met.

The Company also uses the efforts-expended method of percentage-of-completion using measures such as labor dollars for
measuring progress toward completion in situations in which this approach is more representative of the progress on the contract.
For example, the efforts-expended method is utilized when there are significant amounts of materials or hardware procured for the
contract that is not representative of progress on the contract. Additionally, the Company utilizes the units-of-delivery method under
percentage-of-completion on contracts where separate units of output are produced. Under the units-of-delivery method, revenue is
generally recognized when the units are delivered to the customer, provided that all other requirements for revenue recognition
have been met.

The Company evaluates its contracts for multiple elements, and when appropriate, separates the contracts into separate units of
accounting for revenue recognition.

The Company provides for anticipated losses on contracts by recording an expense during the period in which the losses are
determined. Amounts billed and collected but not yet recognized as revenues under certain types of contracts are deferred.
Contract costs incurred for U.S. Government contracts, including indirect costs, are subject to audit and adjustment through
negotiations between the Company and government representatives. The
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Company has agreed upon and settled indirect contract costs through fiscal 2008. Revenues on U.S. Government contracts have
been recorded in amounts that are expected to be realized upon final settlement.

Contract claims are unanticipated additional costs incurred but not provided for in the executed contract price that the Company
seeks to recover from the customer. Such costs are expensed as incurred. Additional revenue related to contract claims is
recognized when the amounts are awarded by the customer. Un-priced change orders are included in revenue when they are
probable of recovery in an amount at least equal to the cost.

In certain situations, primarily where the Company is not the primary obligor on certain elements of a contract such as the provision
of administrative oversight and/or management of government-owned facilities or logistical support services related to other
vendors’ products, the Company recognizes as revenue the net management fee associated with the services and excludes from
its income statement the gross sales and costs associated with the facility or other vendors’ products.

Changes in Estimates on Contracts

Changes in estimates related to certain types of contracts accounted for using the percentage of completion method of accounting
are recognized in the period in which such changes are made for the inception-to-date effect of the changes. Changes in these
estimates can routinely occur over the contract performance period for a variety of reasons, including changes in contract scope,
changes in contract cost estimates due to unanticipated cost growth or retirements of risk for amounts different than estimated, and
changes in estimated incentive or award fees. Aggregate changes in contract estimates decreased operating loss by $24 million
($0.20 per diluted share) for fiscal 2015 and decreased operating income by $21 million ( $0.15 per diluted share) for fiscal 2014.
Aggregate changes in contract estimates increased operating income by $19 million ( $0.14 per diluted share) for fiscal 2013.

Discontinued Operations

From time-to-time, the Company may dispose (or management may commit to plans to dispose) of non-strategic components of the
business, which are reclassified as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Pre-contract Costs

Costs incurred on projects as pre-contract costs are deferred as assets (inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets)
when the Company has been requested by the customer to begin work under a new arrangement prior to contract execution and it
is probable that the Company will recover the costs through the issuance of a contract. When the formal contract has been
executed, the costs are recorded to the contract and revenue is recognized.

Fair Value Measurements

The accounting standard for fair value measurements establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in
measuring fair value as follows: observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets ( Level 1 ); inputs other than the quoted
prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly ( Level 2 ); and unobservable inputs in which there is little or
no market data, which requires the Company to develop its own assumptions ( Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments is determined based on quoted market prices, if available, or management’s best estimate. It
is management’s belief that the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments other than derivatives (see Financial
Instruments below), which include cash equivalents and long-term investments, are reasonable estimates of their related fair
values. The carrying value of accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate their fair values. The fair
value of long-term debt (see Note 9) is determined based on current interest rates available for debt with terms and maturities
similar to the Company’s existing debt arrangements ( Level 2 inputs).
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Management evaluates its investments for other-than-temporary impairment at each balance sheet date. When testing long-term
investments for recovery of carrying value, the fair value of long-term investments is determined using various valuation techniques
and factors, such as market prices of comparable companies ( Level 2 input), discounted cash flow models ( Level 3 input) and
recent capital transactions of the portfolio companies being valued ( Level 3 input). If management determines that an other-than-
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment has occurred, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the investment to its
estimated fair value ( Level 2 input). At January 30, 2015, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs.

The Company’s non financial instruments measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis included goodwill, indefinite-lived
intangible assets and long-lived tangible assets. The valuation methods used to determine fair value require a significant degree of
management judgment to determine the key assumptions, as such the Company generally classifies non financial instruments as
either Level 2 or Level 3 fair value measurements. At January 30, 2015, goodwill, certain indefinite-lived intangible assets, and
tangible assets are measured at fair value. See Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets and Note 3 - Acquisitions, respectively, for
further information.

Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain market risks which are inherent in certain transactions entered into during the normal course of
business. These transactions include sales or purchase contracts denominated in foreign currencies, investments in equity
securities and exposure to changing interest rates. The Company uses a risk management policy to assess and manage cash flow
and fair value exposure. The policy permits the use of derivative instruments with certain restrictions.

The Company uses interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate debt against changes in fair value due to variability in interest rates.
The Company is party to interest rate swap agreements that have been designated as fair value hedges and are recorded at fair
value on the consolidated balance sheet. The fair value of the interest rate swaps are determined based on observed values for
underlying interest rates on the LIBOR yield curve (Level 2).

The Company does not hold derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company’s cash equivalents were primarily comprised of investments in several large institutional money market funds and
bank deposits. There are no restrictions on the withdrawal of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents. The Company's cash
equivalents are recorded at historical cost, which equals fair value based on quoted market prices ( Level 1 input as defined by the
accounting standard for fair value measurements).

Restricted Cash

The Company has restricted cash balances, primarily representing advances from a customer, that are restricted as to use for
certain expenditures related to that customer’s contract. Restricted cash balances are included as "Other assets" in the Company's
consolidated balance sheets.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk primarily consist of cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. At January 30, 2015, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents bear both fixed and variable interest rates.
Although credit risk is limited, the Company’s receivables are concentrated with its principal customers, which are the various
agencies of the U.S. Government and customers engaged in work for the U.S. Government, and to a lesser degree, commercial
companies.
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Investments

Investments in entities and corporate joint ventures where the Company has a noncontrolling ownership interest representing less
than 50% and over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence, are accounted for under the equity method
of accounting whereby the Company recognizes its proportionate share of the entities’ net income or loss and does not consolidate
the entities’ assets and liabilities. Equity investments in entities over which the Company does not have the ability to exercise
significant influence and whose securities do not have a readily determinable fair value are carried at cost or cost net of other-than-
temporary impairments.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Raw material inventory is valued using the average
cost method. Work-in-process inventory includes raw material costs plus labor costs, including fringe benefits, and allocable
overhead costs. The majority of finished goods inventory consists of border, port and mobile security products and baggage
scanning equipment. The Company evaluates inventory against historical and planned usage to determine appropriate provisions
for obsolete inventory. For the years ended January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, the Company's inventory balance consisted
primarily of inventoried costs relating to long-term contracts.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment as well as costs associated with major renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals and betterments are expensed as incurred.

Construction in Progress (CIP) is used to accumulate all costs for projects that are not yet complete. CIP balances are transferred
to the appropriate asset account when the asset is capitalized and ready for its intended use.

When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from
the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized. Depreciation is recognized using the methods and estimated useful lives
as follows:

Depreciation method Estimated useful lives (in years)
Computers and other equipment Straight-line or declining-balance 2-10
Buildings Straight-line 30-40
Building improvements and leasehold improvements Straight-line Shorter of lease term or 25
Office furniture Straight-line or declining-balance 6-9
Electric generation facility Straight-line 25

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for potential impairment whenever there is evidence that events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated
fair value.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Gooduwill represents purchase consideration paid in a business combination that exceeds the values assigned to the net assets of
acquired businesses. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level annually, at the
beginning of the fourth quarter and during interim periods whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. Goodwill is evaluated for impairment either under a qualitative assessment option or a two-step quantitative
approach depending on facts and circumstances of a reporting unit, including the excess of fair value over carrying amount in
previous assessments and changes in business environment.

When performing a qualitative assessment, the Company considers factors including, but not limited to, current macroeconomic
conditions, industry and market conditions, cost factors, financial performance and other events relevant to the entity or reporting
unit under evaluation to determine whether it is more likely or not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount. If the Company determines that it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, a
guantitative two-step goodwill impairment test is performed.

In evaluating the first step of the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test, the estimated fair value of each reporting unit is
compared to its carrying value, which includes the allocated goodwill. If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is more than its
carrying value, including allocated goodwill, no further analysis is required. If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying value, including allocated goodwill, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining
an implied fair value of goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is the residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a
reporting unit’s identifiable assets and liabilities from its estimated fair value calculated in the first step. If the carrying value of a
reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then the Company records an impairment charge equal to the difference.

The Company estimates the fair value of each reporting unit using both market and income approaches (Level 3) when a
guantitative analysis is required.

The market approach consists of the guideline public company method which is a valuation technique where the fair value is
calculated based on market prices obtained from a detailed market analysis of publicly traded companies that provide a reasonable
basis of comparison for each reporting unit. Valuation ratios are selected that relate market prices to selected financial metrics from
comparable companies. These ratios are applied after consideration of adjustments and weightings related to financial position,
growth, volatility, working capital movement, and other factors. Due to the fact that stock prices of comparable companies represent
minority interests the Company also considers an acquisition control premium to reflect the impact of additional value associated
with a controlling interest.

The income approach is a valuation technique where the fair value is calculated based on forecasted future cash flows within the
projection period discounted back to the present value with appropriate risk adjusted discount rates, which represent the weighted-
average cost of capital ("WACC") for each reporting unit. This includes assessing the cost of equity and debt capital as of the
valuation date. In addition, a terminal value is developed for forecasted future cash flows beyond the projection period discounted
back to the present value. The forecasts used in the Company’s estimation of fair value are developed by management based on
business and market considerations.

The goodwill impairment test process and valuation model is based upon certain key assumptions that require the exercise of
significant judgment including judgments for the use of appropriate financial projections, economic expectations, discount rates and
WACC as well as using available market data.

An interim goodwill impairment evaluation was performed during the second quarter of fiscal 2015 and resulted in goodwiill
impairment charges of $486 million . See Note 4—Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further information.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using the method that best reflects how their economic benefits are utilized or, if a
pattern of economic benefits cannot be reliably determined, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets with finite lives are being amortized over the following periods:

Estimated useful lives (in years)

Customer relationships 5-10
Software and technology 9-15
Other 5

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. See Note 4 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets for impairment charges taken during the
period. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are assessed for impairment at the beginning of the fourth
guarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The Company classifies indirect costs incurred within or allocated to its U.S. Government customers as overhead (included in cost
of revenues) or general and administrative expenses in the same manner as such costs are defined in the Company’s disclosure
statements under U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include general and administrative, bid and proposal and internal research and
development ("IR&D") expenses.

The Company conducts research and development activities under customer-funded contracts and with company-funded IR&D
funds. In fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, company-funded IR&D expense was $37 million , $45 million , and $47 million , respectively.
Expenses for research and development activities performed under customer contracts are charged directly to cost of revenues for
those contracts.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method in accordance with the accounting standard for
income taxes. The asset and liability method requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Under this method,
changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in income in the period such changes are enacted.

The Company records net deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes these assets will more likely than not be realized. In
making such determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies and recent results of operations. If
the Company were to determine that it would be able to realize its deferred income tax assets in the future in excess of their net
recorded amount or would no longer be able to realize its deferred income tax assets in the future as currently recorded, the
Company would make an adjustment to the valuation allowance which would decrease or increase the provision for income taxes.

The provision for federal, state, foreign and local income taxes is calculated on income before income taxes based on current tax
law and includes the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates from those used previously in determining deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Such provision differs from the amounts currently payable because certain items of income and expense are
recognized in different reporting periods for financial reporting purposes than for income tax purposes.
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The Company recognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positions when it is more likely than not that a tax position will not be sustained
upon examination and settlement with various taxing authorities. Liabilities for uncertain tax positions are measured based upon the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its income tax expense.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes the fair value of all stock-based awards, including stock options, granted to employees and directors in
exchange for services as compensation expense over the requisite service period, which is typically the vesting period, net of an
estimated forfeiture rate.

Special Cash Dividend

In fiscal 2014, Leidos' board of directors declared a special cash dividend of $4.00 per share of Leidos common stock and paid an
aggregate of $342 million to stockholders as of the record date of June 14, 2013. See Note 13 — Stock-Based Compensation, for
further information regarding the modifications made to the Company’s outstanding stock options resulting from the special cash
dividend. There were no modifications made to the Company’s vesting stock awards and performance-based stock awards as a
result of the special dividend.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of consolidated international subsidiaries, for which the functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, are
translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at each balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and a weighted average
exchange rate over the reporting period for revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Translation adjustments are recorded as
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income.

Accounting Standards Updates Adopted

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-04: Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date . This standard requires an entity to
measure obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the
scope of this guidance is fixed at the reporting date, as the sum of the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its
arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. The
guidance also requires an entity to disclose the nature and amount of the obligation as well as other information about those
obligations. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2013. The adoption of the provisions of ASU 2013-04 did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Parent’s Accounting for the Cumulative
Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment
in a Foreign Entity . This standard applies to the release of the cumulative translation adjustment into net income when a parent
either sells a part of or all of its investment in a foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or
group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business within a foreign entity. In addition, the amendments resolve the diversity in
practice for the treatment of business combinations achieved in stages (i.e. step acquisitions) involving a foreign entity. The
amendments in this are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. The
adoption of the provisions of ASU 2013-04 did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.
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In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and
Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity . The
amendments in the ASU change the criteria for reporting discontinued operations while enhancing disclosures in this area. Under
the new guidance, only disposals representing a strategic shift in operations should be presented as discontinued operations.
Those strategic shifts should have a major effect on the organization’s operations and financial results. Examples include a disposal
of a major geographic location, a major line of business or a major equity method investment. In addition, the new guidance
requires expanded disclosures about discontinued operations that will provide financial statement users with more information
about the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of discontinued operations. The new guidance also requires disclosure of the
pre-tax income attributable to a disposal of a significant part of an organization that does not qualify for discontinued operations
reporting. This disclosure will provide users with information about the ongoing trends in a reporting organization’s results from
continuing operations. The amendments in the ASU are effective in the first quarter of 2015 for public organizations with calendar
year ends. The Company elected to early adopt the provisions of ASU No. 2014-08 and the standard did not have a material effect
on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Accounting for Share-Based Payments When
the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period . This standard
was issued to provide guidance on share based payment awards in which a performance target may be achieved after an
employee completes the requisite service period to achieve the award. In some instances, this has led to a performance award
being granted subsequent to the employee no longer rendering services to the issuing company. Previously, no guidance had been
included in the codification on how to account for these transactions. The amendments require that a performance target that
affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The
amendments in this ASU are effective for all entities for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments may be adopted prospectively or retrospectively. The
Company elected to early adopt the provisions of ASU No. 2014-12 and the standard did not have a material effect on the
Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

During the fiscal years presented, the Company adopted various accounting standards issued by the FASB, none of which had a
material effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Accounting Standards Updates Issued But Not Yet Ado pted

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) . This ASU affects any
entity that either enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of non-
financial assets unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards (for example, insurance contracts or lease
contracts). This ASU will supersede all revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition and industry-specific
guidance throughout the Industry Topics of the codification. The guidance's core principle is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In applying the revenue principles, an entity will identify the contract
(s) with a customer, identify the performance obligations, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations and recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied (either over time or point in time). The
ASU further states that an entity should disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The amendments in this
ASU are effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December
15, 2016, for public companies. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is still evaluating the provisions of ASU 2014-09 and
its impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
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In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-01, Income Statement-Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20) . This
Update eliminates from GAAP the concept of extraordinary items and it is intended to simplify income statement classification.
Under the existing guidance, an entity is required to separately disclose extraordinary items, net of tax, in the income statement
after income from continuing operations if an event or transaction is of an unusual nature and occurs infrequently. This separate,
net-of-tax presentation (and corresponding earnings per share impact) will no longer be allowed. The existing presentation and
disclosure guidance for items that are unusual in nature or occur infrequently will be retained and will be expanded to include items
that are both unusual in nature and infrequently occurring. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted, but only as of the beginning of the
fiscal year of adoption. The Company does not expect the provisions of ASU 2015-01 to have a material effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 2—Dispositions:
Fiscal 2015 Discontinued Operations:

In July 2014, the Company committed to plans to dispose of a business primarily focused on full service emergency management
consulting for disaster preparedness, response, recovery, and mitigation historically included in the Company's Health and
Engineering segment. The sale transaction was completed in the third quarter of fiscal 2015 with cash proceeds received of $19
million , resulting in an immaterial gain on sale.

Fiscal 2014 Discontinued Operations:

Separation of New SAIC

As discussed in Note 1, the Company completed the spin-off of New SAIC on September 27, 2013. In anticipation of this spin-off,
the Company entered into a credit agreement in June 2013 as a guarantor that consisted of a unsecured term credit facility of $500
million with New SAIC as the borrower. New SAIC was a subsidiary of Leidos prior to the separation date. On September 26, 2013,
New SAIC borrowed $500 million under this term credit facility which was unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. The
Company was released from its guaranty on September 27, 2013, the completion date of the separation transaction. At separation,
New SAIC made a $295 million dividend payment to Leidos and reimbursed Leidos, Inc. $5 million for financing costs previously
advanced to New SAIC to secure the revolving and term credit facility, and Leidos, Inc. made a $26 million capital contribution to
New SAIC.

The spin-off was made pursuant to the terms of a Distribution Agreement and several other agreements entered into between the
Company and New SAIC on September 25, 2013. These agreements set forth, among other things, the principal actions needed to
be taken in connection with the separation and govern certain aspects of the relationship between the Company and New SAIC
following the separation. These agreements generally provide with certain exceptions, that each party is responsible for its
respective assets, liabilities and obligations, including employee benefits, insurance and tax related assets and liabilities, whether
accrued or contingent, except that unknown liabilities will be shared between the parties in certain circumstances. The agreements
also describe the party’s commitments to provide each other with certain services for a limited time to help ensure an orderly
transition. The agreements also include the treatment of existing contracts, proposals, and teaming arrangements where New SAIC
will jointly perform work after separation on Leidos contracts. While the Company is a party to the Distribution Agreement and the
ancillary agreements, the Company has determined that it does not have significant continuing involvement in the operations of
New SAIC, nor does the Company expect significant continuing cash flows from New SAIC.
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The operating results of New SAIC through the Distribution Date, which have been classified as discontinued operations, for the
periods presented were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Revenues $ 39 $% 2,712  $ 4,683
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 39 2,447 4,230
Selling, general and administrative expenses — 42 65
Bad debt expense — — 2
Separation transaction and restructuring expenses — 55 28
Operating income $ — $ 168 $ 358

The major classes of assets and liabilities included in discontinued operations through the Distribution Date related to the spin-off of
New SAIC are presented in the table below:

January 31,
2013

(in millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1
Receivables, net 717
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets 101
Total current assets 819
Property, plant and equipment, net 29
Intangible assets, net 6
Goodwill 491
Deferred income taxes 2
Other assets 1
Total assets 1,348
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 461
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 185
Notes payable and long-term debt 1
Total current liabilities 647
Non-current liabilities —
Total liabilities $ 647
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Other Fiscal 2014 Discontinued Operations

The fiscal 2014 other non-strategic dispositions were historically included in the Company's National Security Solutions segment.

In August 2013, the Company committed to plans to dispose of a business primarily focused on technology used to detect if an
individual is concealing explosive devices or other hidden weapons. In the first quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company adjusted the
carrying values of the business's assets to their fair value based on the estimated selling price of the business. The carrying value
exceeded the fair value which resulted in approximately $12 million of impairment charges recorded in discontinued operations, of
which $9 million related to fixed assets and inventory and the remainder related to intangible assets. The sale transaction was
completed in the second quarter of fiscal 2015 with insignificant cash proceeds received, resulting in an immaterial loss on sale.

In November 2013, the Company sold a certain component of the Company's business, focused on machine language translation
with insignificant cash proceeds received, resulting in an immaterial gain on sale.

In January 2014, the Company committed to plans to dispose of Cloudshield Technologies, Inc. ("Cloudshield"), previously
acquired in fiscal 2011, which is focused on producing a suite of cybersecurity hardware and associated software and services. The
sale transaction was completed in February 2015 with cash proceeds received of $5 million .

Fiscal Year 2013 Dispositions:

The Company sold certain components of its business, which were historically included in the Company’s Health and Engineering
segment, primarily focused on providing operational test and evaluation services to U.S. Government customers. The Company
received net proceeds of $51 million resulting in a gain on sale before income taxes of $17 million related to this sale.

The pre-sale operating results through the date of disposal of the Company's discontinued operations discussed above, excluding
the spin-off of New SAIC, for each of the three years ended January 30, 2015 were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Revenues $ 29 % 33 % 97
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 21 33 81
Selling, general and administrative expenses (including impairment charges of $9
million for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2015) 29 25 52
Intangible asset impairment charges 3 2 6
Operating loss $ (24) $ 27) % (42)
Non-operating income (expense) $ 11 % 1 $ 14
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes $ 13) $ (28) $ (28)

The major classes of assets and liabilities included in discontinued operations through the date of disposal, not including the spin-
off of New SAIC, are immaterial for disclosure purposes.
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Note 3—Acquisitions:

The Company acquires businesses as part of its growth strategy to provide new or enhance existing capabilities and offerings to
customers. The Company completed acquisitions during each of the years presented, which individually and in the aggregate were
not considered significant business combinations in the year acquired. No businesses were acquired during the year ended
January 30, 2015.

Acquisition information for the years presented was as follows:

Year Ended
January 31, January 31,
2014 2013
(% in millions)
Number of acquisitions 1 1
Purchase consideration (paid and accrued) $ 111 $ 505

The following table summarizes the fair value (preliminary or final) of goodwill and intangible assets acquired at the date of
acquisition as well as the components and weighted average useful lives of the intangible asset:

2014 2013
($ in millions)

Goodwill:

Tax deductible goodwill $ — $ —

Non-tax deductible goodwill — 395
Identifiable intangible assets:

Customer relationships (finite-lived) $ — 3 62

Other (finite-lived) 3 10

Weighted average lives of finite-lived intangibles:

Customer relationships — 5 years
Other 12 years 1 year
All finite-lived intangible assets 12 years 4 years

Plainfield Renewable Energy Holdings LLC

As described in Note 1, the Company became the primary beneficiary of Plainfield on October 11, 2013 (the "transaction™), which
required the consolidation of the VIE. The Company also determined that Plainfield met the definition of a business and as such is
gaining control of 100% of PRE Holdings equity through the consensual foreclosure agreement which constituted a change in
control accounted for as a business combination.

The Plainfield Renewable Energy Project involves the design, construction, and financing of a 37.5 megawatt biomass-fueled
power plant in Plainfield, Connecticut (the "plant"). Connecticut Light & Power will purchase approximately 80% of the power
produced by the plant based on a 15 -year off-take agreement, utilizing the plant's status as a renewable power source. In addition,
there are fuel supply agreements with initial terms of 5 to 15 years and minimum purchase requirements either at prevailing
market prices or a set price plus a CPI index. Subsequent to the business combination, three of the acquired fuel supply
agreements were impaired in fiscal 2015. See Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further information.
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The project was partially financed by the Company’s provision of extended payment terms for certain of its services performed on
the project and, at the time of this transaction, the Company had a receivable of $137 million due from Plainfield. The remainder of
the project was financed by the Carlyle Group with two secured notes aggregating $148 million , which these notes were
assumed by the Company as part of consensual foreclosure. On December 6, 2013, the Company entered into an Early Payoff
Agreement with the Carlyle Group to settle the two secured notes totaling $152 million in principal and paid on December 16, 2013
an aggregate of $165 million to fully satisfy its obligation to Carlyle which included the principal amount, interest due on the notes of
$7 million , including an additional interest payment per the Early Payoff agreement and $6 million in an early termination fee. In
addition, the unamortized deferred debt issuance costs and debt discount at the time of the pay off was expensed and included in
"Other Income, net" in the Company's consolidated statements of income.

At the time the Company became the primary beneficiary of Plainfield, the Company measured the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at their fair values. The difference between the estimated fair value of the plant in comparison to the carrying value of the
Company's deferred payment term receivables forgiven as of the date of the transaction resulted in a $32 million loss as "Bad debt
expense" in the Company's consolidated statements of income during the third quarter of fiscal 2014. In addition as part of the
transaction, contingent consideration of approximately $3 million remains to be paid as of January 30, 2015, of which $2 million will
be paid on the earlier of November 2015 or the successful sale of the plant, and the remainder of which will be paid solely upon the
successful sale of the plant.

In July 2014, the Company received a cash grant of $80 million from the U.S. Treasury Department, which was recorded as a
reduction to the fixed asset basis of the plant on the consolidated balance sheet. For tax purposes, the tax basis of the plant was
reduced by half of the amount of the cash grant. This difference between the excess tax basis of the plant over the book basis
resulted in a $27 million deferred tax asset which was recorded as a reduction to the fixed asset basis of the plant. The U.S.
Treasury grant also contains a recapture provision that could require the Company to repay funds to the Treasury in certain
circumstances which the Company deems not probable.

The aggregate purchase consideration that the Company exchanged for PRE Holdings is as follows (in millions):

Forgiveness of accounts receivable (net of $32 million bad debt expense) $ 105
Contingent consideration 6
Total purchase consideration $ 111

The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition were as follows (in millions):

Property, plant and equipment $ 248
Other assets 8
Notes payable assumed (net of debt discount) (148)
Total identifiable net assets acquired 108
Intangible assets 3
Total purchase consideration $ 111

In March 2015, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell 100% of the equity membership interest in Plainfield. The
Company adjusted the carrying values of Plainfield's assets to their fair values based on the estimated selling price of the business
pursuant to the terms of the agreement (Level 1 fair value measurement). The carrying value exceeded the fair value which
resulted in approximately $40 million of impairment charges. The sale transaction is expected to be completed in the first half of the
next fiscal year.
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maxIT Healthcare Holdings, Inc.

In August 2012, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of maxIT Healthcare Holdings, Inc. ("maxIT"), a provider of clinical,
business and information technology services primarily to commercial hospital groups and other medical delivery organizations.
This acquisition expanded the Company’s commercial consulting practice in electronic health record ("EHR") implementation and
optimization and strengthened the Company’s capabilities to provide these services to its federal healthcare customers as those
customers migrate to commercial off-the-shelf EHR applications. This acquisition was in the Health and Engineering segment. The
results of maxIT have been included in the financial statements since the date of acquisition.

The fair values of the maxIT assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition were as follows (in millions):

Cash $ 9
Receivables 50
Other assets 24
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued payroll and employee benefits (22)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (24)
Total identifiable net assets acquired 38
Goodwill 395
Intangible assets 72
Total purchase price $ 505

Note 4—Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

The Company has the following reportable segments that contain goodwill: National Security Solutions (NSS) and Health and
Engineering (HES).

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level annually, at the beginning of the fourth quarter, and during interim
periods whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. In the second quarter of fiscal
2015, as part of its normal quarterly procedures, the Company considered both qualitative and quantitative factors associated with
each of the Company's reporting units and determined that there were indicators that the carrying values of the Health Solutions
and Engineering reporting units may not be fully recoverable due to operating performance shortfalls and forecasted declines of
revenues and operating income. The Company performed an interim evaluation for these reporting units that resulted in
impairments of the goodwill carrying value.

The balance and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment were as follows:

NSS HES Total
(in millions)
Balance at January 31, 2013 $ 719 % 974 % 1,693
Corporate reorganizations 69 (69) —
Balance at January 31, 2014 $ 788 % 905 $ 1,693
Goodwill impairment — (486) (486)
Balance at January 30, 2015 $ 788 $ 419 $ 1,207
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Gooduwill corporate reorganizations in fiscal 2014 resulted from the transfer of certain operations between reportable segments. The
carrying value of goodwill by segment at January 31, 2013 has been recast to give effect to the change in reportable segments and
for discontinued operations ( $11 million for discontinued operations occurring in fiscal 2015).

During the second quarter of fiscal 2015, the Health Solutions reporting unit experienced a significant decline in both actual and
forecasted revenue volumes primarily in the Company's commercial health consulting business resulting from a reduction in project
opportunities, delayed award decisions, and completion of several larger electronic health records ("EHR") implementation
engagements that were not extended or replaced with other projects. The declines were also impacted by delays in legislative
compliance deadlines (i.e. ICD-10 and Meaningful Use Stage 2). These events attributed to a significant reduction in the
Company's sales pipeline, forecasted revenue, and operating income. The nature of the Company's commercial health consulting
engagements are short term in nature and the aforementioned events transpired and became known during the second quarter of
fiscal 2015 and triggered a revised and lower financial forecast.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2015, the Engineering reporting unit experienced delayed or lost award decisions and
reductions in scope on several large engineering construction projects as clients shifted priorities and adjusted their capital
expenditure plans that were anticipated to be awarded to the Company during the second quarter of fiscal 2015. The Engineering
reporting unit was also impacted by significant reduction in scope of services with an existing client. These events culminated in a
significant reduction in the Company's sales pipeline, revenue, and operating income. The aforementioned events transpired and
became known during the second quarter of fiscal 2015 and triggered a revised and lower financial forecast.

Based on the unexpected impacts and other unanticipated factors discussed above, the Company conducted an interim goodwill
impairment test using the two-step quantitative approach.

As described in Note 1, the Company utilized both the market and income approach as part of the first step of the two-step
guantitative goodwill impairment test to determine the estimated fair value of both the Health Solutions and Engineering reporting
units.

The Company performed the market approach, guideline public company method, by applying pricing multiples derived from
publicly traded guideline companies that are comparable to the reporting units to determine their fair values. The Company utilized
enterprise/earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("EBITDA") multiples and enterprise/revenue multiples
which averaged 6.0 and 0.5, respectively, for the Health Solutions reporting unit, and 6.8 and 0.4 , respectively, for the Engineering
reporting unit. In addition, the fair value under the guideline public company method included a control premium of 20% , which was
determined based on a review of comparable market transactions.

The income approach was performed by calculating the fair value based on forecasted future cash flows discounted back to the
present value, including significant judgments related to the risk adjusted discount rates, terminal growth rates, and weighted-
average cost of capital ("WACC"). The projected cash flows were developed by management for planning purposes based on
current known business and market conditions as well as future anticipated industry trends. The method included certain cost
adjustments that a market participant buyer would not incur to operate the respective reporting units. A terminal value growth rate of
3% and 2% and WACC of 12% and 14% (which includes a specific company risk premium of 2% ) were used for the Health
Solutions and Engineering reporting units, respectively.

Based on the first step of the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test, the Company determined that the fair values of the
Health Solutions and Engineering reporting units were 62% and 91% of their carrying values, respectively. Due to the fact that
indicators of impairment existed, the second step of the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test was performed to determine
the implied fair value of goodwill and the impairment amount of the respective reporting units.
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As a result of the second step evaluation, the Company recorded goodwill impairment charges in the Health Solutions and
Engineering reporting units of $369 million and $117 million , respectively, for the three months ended August 1, 2014, which
represents the difference between the carrying value and the implied fair value.

Based on a qualitative analysis performed during the Company's fiscal 2015 and 2014 annual impairment evaluation for certain of
its reporting units, it was determined that it is more likely than not that the fair values of the reporting units were in excess of the
individual reporting unit carrying values, and as a result, a quantitative step one analysis was not necessary. Additionally, based on
the results of the quantitative step one analysis for certain other of its reporting units, it was determined that their fair values were in
excess of the individual reporting units carrying values. As a result, no goodwill impairments were identified as part of the annual
goodwill impairment evaluation. In fiscal 2013, the Company performed a quantitative step one analysis of its reporting units as part
of the annual goodwill impairment evaluation and determined there was no goodwill impairment as all of the reporting unit fair
values exceeded their carrying values.

Intangible assets, including those arising from preliminary estimates of assets acquired relating to acquisitions, consisted of the
following:

January 30, 2015 January 31, 2014
Gross Net Gross Net
carrying Accumulated carrying carrying Accumulated carrying
value amortization value value amortization value
(in millions)
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships $ 70 $ (57) $ 13 % 94 3% 47 $ 47
Software and technology 52 (42) 11 65 (36) 29
Other — — — 4 Q) 3
Total finite-lived intangible assets 122 (98) 24 163 (84) 79
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
In-process research and
development 9 — 9 10 — 10
Trade names 4 — 4 4 — 4
Total indefinite-lived intangible
assets 13 — 13 14 — 14
Total intangible assets $ 135 $ 9°8) $ 37 % 177 % B84) $ 93

Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets was $15 million , $35 million , and $35 million for the fiscal years
ended January 30, 2015, January 31, 2014, and January 31, 2013, respectively.

The Company recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $41 million for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2015. The
Company recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $51 million , including an additional $2 million of other intangible asset
impairment charges not described below, for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014. There were no intangible asset impairment
charges for fiscal year 2013.

During fiscal 2015, the Company determined that certain intangible assets associated with fuel supply contracts obtained through
the Plainfield Renewable Energy Project foreclosure were not recoverable due to changes in the Company's fuel supply strategy
and newly identified requirements to operate the plant which impacted expected benefits from the related fuel supply arrangements.
As a result, the Health and Engineering reportable segment recognized an impairment charge of $3 million to write-off the carrying
value associated with the intangible assets of three fuel supply agreements.
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The Company determined that certain intangible assets consisting of software and technology, associated with the acquisition of
Reveal Imaging Technologies, Inc. in fiscal 2011, were not recoverable due to lower projected revenue levels from the associated
products and customers. As a result, the Health and Engineering reportable segment recognized impairment charges of $14 million
and $30 million during fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014, respectively, to reduce the carrying value of these intangible assets to their
estimated fair values. Fair value was estimated using the income approach based on management's forecast of future cash flows to
be derived from the assets' use ( Level 3).

The Company determined that certain customer relationship intangible assets associated with the acquisitions of Vitalize and maxIT
in fiscal 2012 and 2013, respectively, were not recoverable due to lower projected revenue and operating income levels from the
associated customers. As a result, the Health and Engineering reportable segment recognized impairment charges of $24 million
and $19 million during fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014, respectively, to reduce the carrying value of these intangible assets to their
estimated fair values. Fair value was estimated using the income approach based on management’s forecast of future cash flows to
be derived from the assets’ use ( Level 3).

The estimated annual amortization expense related to finite-lived intangible assets as of January 30, 2015 was as follows:

Year Ending January 30

(in millions)

2016 $ 8

2017 7

2018 5

2019 3

2020 1

2021 and thereafter —
$ 24

Actual amortization expense in future periods could differ from these estimates as a result of future acquisitions, divestitures,
impairments, the outcome and timing of completion of in-process research and development projects (the assets of which will
become amortizable upon completion and placement into service, or will be impaired if abandoned), adjustments to preliminary
valuations of intangible assets and other factors.
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Note 5—Receivables:

The components of receivables, net consisted of the following:

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
Billed and billable receivables $ 655 $ 794
Unbilled receivables:

Amounts billable 230 288
Contract retentions 21 15
Allowance for doubtful accounts (20) (15)

$ 896 $ 1,082

The Company’s accounts receivable includes amounts billed and currently due from customers as well as billable receivables that
generally consist of amounts to be billed within the next month. Since the Company’s receivables are primarily with the U.S.
Government, the Company does not have exposure to a material credit risk. Amounts billable are stated at estimated realizable
value and consist of costs and fees, substantially all of which are expected to be billed and collected within one year. Amounts
billable also include rate variances that are billable upon negotiation of final indirect rates with the U.S. Government and, once
billed, are subject to audit and approval by government representatives. Contract retentions are billed upon contract completion, or
the occurrence of a specified event, and when negotiation of final indirect rates with the U.S. Government is complete.
Consequently, the timing of collection of retention balances is outside the Company’s control. Based on the Company’s historical
experience, the majority of retention balances are expected to be collected beyond one year and write-offs of retention balances
have not been significant. When events or conditions indicate that amounts outstanding from customers may become uncollectible,
an allowance is estimated and recorded.

The Company has extended deferred payment terms with original contractual maturities that may exceed one year to commercial
customers related to certain construction projects. As of January 30, 2015, the Company had outstanding receivables of $18
million , net of allowance of $7 million , related to one construction project with deferred payment terms, which have not been paid
in accordance with the initial payment terms established with the customer. The Company has filed a legal claim to enforce the
payment terms as established in the contract. Based on these events, the Company has determined that the receivables are not
expected to be collected within the next 12 months. Accordingly, the receivables are classified as non-current in "Other Assets" on
the consolidated balance sheet as of January 30, 2015. During fiscal 2015, the Company received partial payment of $21 million
from the customer.

During fiscal 2014, the Company recorded "Bad debt expense" in the Company's consolidated statements of income of $41 million
related to two different construction projects. In addition, approximately $105 million of the outstanding deferred payment term
receivables were used to acquire PRE Holdings under the consensual foreclosure.
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Note 6—Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant, and equipment, net consisted of the following:

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)

Electric generation facility $ 127  $ 269
Computers and other equipment 166 204
Leasehold improvements 156 167
Buildings and improvements 107 113
Office furniture and fixtures 37 43
Land 26 27
Construction in progress 2 —
621 823

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (313) (341)
$ 308 $ 482

Depreciation expense was $47 million , $45 million , and $55 million for fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.
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Note 7—Composition of Certain Financial Statement C  aptions:

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Prepaid income taxes and tax refunds receivable $ 102 % 24
Inventories 70 59
Restricted cash 30 18
Prepaid expenses 28 34
Deferred income taxes 12 89
Other 31 32
$ 273 % 256
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Accrued liabilities $ 327 % 395
Accounts payable 244 218
Collections in excess of revenues on uncompleted contracts and deferred revenue 104 103
$ 675 $ 716
Accrued payroll and employee benefits:
Salaries, bonuses and amounts withheld from employees’ compensation $ 138 % 152
Accrued vacation 123 128
Accrued contributions to employee benefit plans 3 5
$ 264 $ 285
Other long-term liabilities:
Deferred compensation $ 39 % 38
Lease related obligations 31 33
Deferred tax liabilities 21 66
Accrued pension liabilities 8 9
Liabilities for uncertain tax positions 6 12
Other 63 69
$ 168 $ 227

Note 8—Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitie  s:

During fiscal 2015, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements to hedge the fair value with respect to all of the $450
million aggregate principal outstanding on the Company's fixed rate 4.45% notes maturing in December 2020 (the “Notes”). The
objective of these instruments is to hedge the Notes against changes in fair value due to the variability in the six-month LIBOR rate
(the benchmark interest rate), which effectively converted the debt into floating interest rate debt. Under the terms of the interest
rate swap agreements, the Company will receive semi-annual interest payments at the coupon rate of 4.45% and will pay variable
interest based on the six-month LIBOR rate. The counterparties to these agreements are financial institutions.

The interest rate swaps were accounted for as a fair value hedge of the Notes and qualified for the shortcut method of hedge
accounting which allows for the assumption of no ineffectiveness reported in earnings. The resulting changes in the fair value of the
interest rate swaps are fully offset by the changes in the fair value of the underlying debt (the hedged item).
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The fair value of the Notes is stated at an amount that reflects changes in the benchmark interest rate subsequent to the inception
of the interest rate swaps through the reporting date. The cash flows associated with the interest rate swaps are classified as
operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps and their impact on the related fair value of the debt in the consolidated balance sheet is as
follows:

Interest rate swaps Hedged items
January 30, January 31, January 30, January 31,
Balance sheet line item 2015 2014 Balance sheet line item 2015 2014
(in millions)
Notes payable and long-term debt,
Other assets $ 17 $ — net of current portion $ 17 $ —

Note 9—Debt:
Revolving Credit Facility

Leidos has a revolving credit facility, which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Leidos, Inc. which had provided for $750
million in unsecured borrowing capacity at interest rates determined, at Leidos’ option, based on either LIBOR plus a margin or a
defined base rate. During fiscal 2015, the Company amended the credit facility to, among other things, change the ratio of
consolidated funded debt to EBITDA that the Company is required to maintain. A pro-rata portion of the unamortized deferred costs
related to the prior arrangement was written off at the time of the amendment. The remaining unamortized deferred costs relating to
the prior arrangement and the immaterial fee paid to amend the credit facility, which were deferred, will be amortized over the term
of the amended credit facility. In connection with the amendment to the credit facility, the Company exercised its right under the
credit agreement to voluntarily reduce the combined commitments of the lenders from $750 million to $500 million . The maturity
date of the credit facility is March 2017 . As of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, there were no borrowings outstanding
under the credit facility.

The credit facility contains certain customary representations and warranties, as well as certain affirmative and negative covenants.
The financial covenants contained in the amended credit facility require that, for a period of four trailing fiscal quarters, the
Company maintains a ratio of consolidated funded debt, including borrowings under this credit facility, to EBITDA (adjusted for
certain items as defined in the credit facility) of not more than 4.0 to 1.0 until no later than January 29, 2016 and 3.75to 1.0
thereafter, and a ratio of EBITDA (adjusted for certain items as defined in the credit facility) to interest expense of greater than 3.5
to 1.0 . The Company was in compliance with these financial covenants as of January 30, 2015. A failure by the Company to meet
these financial covenants in the future could eliminate the Company’s borrowing capacity under the credit facility.

The available borrowing capacity on the credit facility may vary each quarter based on the trailing four quarters of EBITDA. If the
Company's trailing four quarters of EBITDA declines below a certain threshold in relation to outstanding debt, the borrowing
capacity available under the credit facility is reduced. The available borrowing capacity based on the results of the Company's
trailing four quarters of EBITDA as of January 30, 2015 was approximately $500 million .

Other covenants in the credit facility restrict certain of the Company’s activities, including, among other things, its ability to create
liens, dispose of certain assets and merge or consolidate with other entities. The credit facility also contains certain customary
events of default, including, among others, defaults based on certain bankruptcy and insolvency events, nonpayment, cross-
defaults to other debt, breach of specified covenants, Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) events, material
monetary judgments, change of control events, and the material inaccuracy of the Company’s representations and warranties. In
addition, the Company's ability to declare and pay future dividends on Leidos stock may be restricted by the provisions of Delaware
law and covenants in the revolving credit facility.
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Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

The Company’s notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following for the years presented:

Stated Effective January 30, January 31,
interest rate interest rate 2015 2014

(dollars in millions)
Leidos Holdings, Inc. senior unsecured notes:
$450 million notes issued in fiscal 2011, which mature in

December 2020 @ 4.45% 453% $ 466 $ 449
$300 million notes issued in fiscal 2011, which mature in
December 2040 5.95% 6.03% 232 300
Leidos, Inc. senior unsecured notes:
$250 million notes issued in fiscal 2003, which mature in July 2032 7.13% 7.43% 248 248
$300 million notes issued in fiscal 2004, which mature in July 2033 5.50% 5.85% 182 296
Capital leases and other notes payable due on various dates
through fiscal 2021 0%-3.7% Various 38 40
Total notes payable and long-term debt 1,166 1,333
Less current portion 2 2
Total notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion $ 1,164 $ 1,331
Fair value of notes payable and long-term debt $ 1,152 $ 1,350

(1) As aresult of executing the interest rate swap agreements, the carrying value of $466 million includes a fair value adjustment of $17 million attributable to
changes in the benchmark interest rate, the six-month LIBOR rate, from the inception of the interest rate swap agreements to January 30, 2015.

The fair value of long-term debt is determined based on current interest rates available for debt with terms and maturities, and
credit risk similar to the Company’s existing debt arrangements.

Interest is payable on the Company’s senior unsecured notes on a semi-annual basis with principal payments due on maturity. The
note discounts, deferred debt issuance costs, and the loss on the settlement of related treasury lock contracts are amortized to
interest expense (approximately $1 million was amortized in fiscal 2015), which results in an effective interest rate that is higher
than the stated interest rate of the notes. The senior unsecured notes contain customary restrictive covenants, including, among
other things, restrictions on the Company'’s ability to create liens and enter into sale and leaseback transactions under certain
circumstances. The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of January 30, 2015.

During fiscal 2015, the Company repurchased in the open market and retired principal amounts of $67 million on its $300 million
5.95% notes issued by Leidos Holdings, Inc. maturing in December 2040 and $116 million on its $300 million 5.50% notes issued
by Leidos, Inc. maturing in July 2033. The Company recorded a $3 million gain on extinguishment of debt for the Leidos Holdings,
Inc. notes and a $2 million gain for the Leidos, Inc. notes as part of the partial repayment of the respective notes. The total
combined gain of $5 million represents the difference between the repurchase price of $175 million and the net carrying amount of
the notes repurchased less the write-off of a portion of the unamortized debt discount and deferred financing costs on a pro-rata
basis to the reduction of debt. The Company recorded the gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt in "Other Income, net" in the
Company’s consolidated statements of income.
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Maturities of notes payable and long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ending January 30

(in millions)
2016 $ 3
2017 3
2018 2
2019 2
2020 2
2021 and thereafter 1,159
Total principal payments 1,171
Less unamortized discount 5
$ 1,166

Note 10—Related Party Transactions:

Leidos, Inc. has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of Leidos under its $450 million 4.45% notes and $300 million
5.95% notes. These notes have been reflected as debt of Leidos, Inc. in these consolidated financial statements. Leidos, Inc. has
fully and unconditionally guaranteed any borrowings under Leidos’ amended and restated revolving credit facility maturing in fiscal
2018 . Leidos has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of Leidos, Inc. under its $300 million 5.5% notes and $250
million 7.13% notes.

Leidos and Leidos, Inc. have a related party note in connection with a loan of cash between the entities, which is adjusted to reflect
issuances of stock by Leidos to employees of Leidos, Inc. and its subsidiaries and Leidos, Inc.’s payment of certain obligations on
behalf of Leidos. The related party note bears interest based on LIBOR plus a market-based premium. Portions of the related party
note may be repaid at any time. The note automatically extends for successive one -year periods unless either Leidos or Leidos,
Inc. provides prior notice to the other party. As of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, the note receivable from Leidos
Holdings, Inc. to Leidos, Inc. was $1.4 billion and 1.1 billion , respectively. The note receivable also includes the distribution of the
assets and liabilities of New SAIC of $736 million that occurred at the time of the separation in September 2013.
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Note 11—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss were as follows:

January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes of $0 million and $(1) million as of

January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively $ 1 3 2
Unrecognized net loss on settled derivative instruments associated with outstanding debt, net of

taxes of $3 million as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively (5) (5)
Unrecognized loss on defined benefit plan, net of taxes of $5 million and $2 million as of January 30,

2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively (7 3)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes of $8 million and $4 million as of

January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively $ (11) $ (6)

Reclassifications from other comprehensive income to net income, relating to foreign currency translation adjustments,
unrecognized net gain (loss) on settled derivative instruments associated with outstanding debt and the unrecognized net gain
(loss) on defined benefit plan for the years ended January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively, were not material.
Reclassifications for foreign currency translation adjustments and unrecognized gain (loss) on settled derivative instruments
associated with outstanding debt are recorded in other income, net, and reclassifications for unrecognized net gain (loss) on
defined benefit plan is recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Note 12—(Loss) Earnings Per Share (EPS):

The Company is required to allocate a portion of its earnings to its unvested stock awards containing nonforfeitable rights to
dividends or dividend equivalents (participating securities) in calculating EPS using the two-class method.

Unvested stock awards granted prior to fiscal 2013 are participating securities requiring application of the two-class method. In
fiscal 2013, the Company began issuing unvested stock awards that have forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents.
These stock awards are not participating securities requiring application of the two-class method but are dilutive common share
equivalents subject to the treasury stock method. Basic EPS is computed by dividing income less earnings allocable to participating
securities by the basic weighted average number of shares outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed similar to basic EPS, except the
weighted average number of shares outstanding is increased to include the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and other
stock-based awards.
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A reconciliation of the (loss) income used to compute basic and diluted EPS for the years presented was as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Basic EPS:
(Loss) income from continuing operations, as reported $ (330) $ 84 % 323
Less: allocation of distributed and undistributed earnings to participating securities — 3) (7
(Loss) income from continuing operations, for computing basic EPS $ (330) $ 81 §% 316
Net (loss) income, as reported $ (323) $ 164 $ 525
Less: allocation of distributed and undistributed earnings to participating securities — 3) (12)
Net (loss) income, for computing basic EPS $ (323) $ 161 $ 514
Diluted EPS:
(Loss) income from continuing operations, as reported $ (330) $ 84 $ 323
Less: allocation of distributed and undistributed earnings to participating securities — 3) @)
(Loss) income from continuing operations, for computing diluted EPS $ (330) $ 81 $ 316
Net (loss) income, as reported $ (323) % 164 $ 525
Less: allocation of distributed and undistributed earnings to participating securities — 3) (12)
Net (loss) income, for computing diluted EPS $ (323) $ 161 $ 514

The following table provides a reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares outstanding used to compute basic and
diluted EPS for the years presented. The presentation gives effect to the one-for-four reverse stock split which occurred after

market close on September 27, 2013.

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 74 83 83
Dilutive common share equivalents—stock options and other stock awards — — —
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 74 83 83
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Basic and diluted EPS for the years presented was as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (4.46) $ 098 % 3.81
Income from discontinued operations 0.10 0.96 2.38
$ (4.36) $ 194 % 6.19
Diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (4.46) $ 098 $ 3.81
Income from discontinued operations 0.10 0.96 2.38
$ (4.36) $ 194 % 6.19

For the year ended January 30, 2015, all outstanding common stock equivalents were excluded in the computation of diluted (loss)
per share because their effect would have been anti-dilutive due to the net loss for the period.

For the year ended January 31, 2014, the declared dividends exceeded current year earnings. Therefore, the Company was in a
loss position for computing diluted (loss) per share and all outstanding common stock equivalents were excluded in the computation
because their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

The following anti-dilutive stock-based awards were excluded from the weighted average number of shares outstanding used to
compute basic and diluted EPS for the years presented:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Stock options excluded 4 5 5
Vesting stock awards excluded 3 3 —

In fiscal 2015, the Company entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase agreement with a financial institution to repurchase
shares of its outstanding common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $200 million . The Company paid $200 million to the
financial institution and received an initial delivery of 4.5 million shares of its outstanding shares of common stock for an aggregate
value of approximately $168 million . The final delivery consisted of approximately 0.8 million shares for a total value of
approximately $32 million under the program and was completed in fiscal 2015. The purchase was allocated between additional
paid in capital and retained earnings. All shares delivered were immediately retired. The total amount of shares delivered by the
financial institution were adjusted by the volume weighted average price of the Company's stock over the valuation period specified
in the ASR.

In fiscal 2014, the Company entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase ("ASR") agreement with a different financial institution
to repurchase shares of its outstanding common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $300 million . During the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2014, the Company paid $300 million to the financial institution and received an initial delivery of 5.6 million shares of its
outstanding shares of common stock for an aggregate value of $255 million . The remaining $45 million was recorded as a forward
contract at January 31, 2014 indexed to the Company's common stock in additional paid in capital. The final delivery of
approximately 1.0 million shares for a total value of $45 million under the program was completed during the first quarter of fiscal
2015. The purchase was allocated between additional paid in capital and retained earnings. All shares delivered were immediately
retired.
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The total amount of shares delivered by the financial institution were adjusted by the volume weighted average price of the
Company's stock over the valuation period specified in the ASR.

The delivery of 6.3 million and 5.6 million shares of Leidos common stock related to ASR purchases for the year ended January 30,
2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively, reduced the Company's outstanding shares used to determine the weighted average
shares outstanding for purposes of calculating basic and diluted EPS for the periods presented.

Note 13—Stock-Based Compensation:

Plan Summaries. At January 30, 2015, the Company had stock-based compensation awards outstanding under the following plans:
the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, the Management Stock Compensation Plan, the Stock Compensation Plan and the 2006 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"). Leidos issues new shares upon the issuance of stock awards, vesting of stock units or exercise of
stock options under these plans.

The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan provides the Company’s and its affiliates’ employees, directors and consultants the opportunity to
receive various types of stock-based compensation and cash awards. As of January 30, 2015, the Company has issued stock
options, vested stock awards, restricted stock awards including restricted stock units ("vesting stock"), performance-based awards
and cash awards under this plan. The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan provides that in the event of the Company’s merger with or into
another corporation, a sale of substantially all of its assets or the transfer of more than 50% of Leidos' outstanding shares by tender
offer or similar transaction, the successor entity may assume or substitute all outstanding awards. If the successor entity does not
assume or substitute all outstanding awards, the vesting of all awards will accelerate and any repurchase rights on awards will
terminate. If a successor entity assumes or substitutes all awards and a participant is involuntarily terminated by the successor
entity for any reason other than death, disability or cause within 18 months following the change of control, all outstanding awards
of the terminated participant will immediately vest and be exercisable for a period of six months following termination. In the event
of a change of control, the vesting of all awards held by non-employee directors of the Company will accelerate. Stock awards
granted under the plan prior to fiscal 2015 generally vest or become exercisable 20% a year for the first three years and 40% in the
fourth year. In fiscal 2015, the Company began granting awards that generally vest or become exercisable 25% a year over four
years. As of January 30, 2015, 3.8 million shares of Leidos' stock were reserved for future issuance under the 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan.

The Company has a Management Stock Compensation Plan and a Stock Compensation Plan, together referred to as the Stock
Compensation Plans. The board of directors may at any time amend or terminate the Stock Compensation Plans. The Stock
Compensation Plans provide for awards in share units to eligible employees. Benefits from these plans are payable in shares of
Leidos' stock that are held in a trust for the purpose of funding benefit payments to the plans’ participants. The fair value of the
awards granted under the Stock Compensation Plans, which are vesting share unit awards, is based on the fair value of the award
on the date of grant. Compensation expense is measured at grant date and generally recognized over the vesting period of four
years. Awards granted vest 100% after four years following the date of the award. Upon a change in control of the Company (as
defined by the Stock Compensation Plans), participant accounts will become fully vested and shares of Leidos stock held in the
accounts will be immediately distributed. The Stock Compensation Plans do not provide for a maximum number of shares available
for future issuance.

The Company has an ESPP which allows eligible employees to purchase shares of Leidos' stock at a discount of up to 15% of the
fair market value on the date of purchase. During the three years ended January 30, 2015, the discount was 5% of the fair market
value on the date of purchase thereby resulting in the ESPP being non-compensatory. As of January 30, 2015, 12.5 million shares
of Leidos' stock were authorized and reserved for future issuance under the ESPP.
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Stock-Based Compensation and Related Tax Benefits Recognized. Stock-based compensation and related tax benefits recognized
under all plans were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Stock-based compensation expense:
Stock options $ 5 % 10 $ 9
Vesting stock awards 35 46 44
Vested stock awards 2 — —
Total stock-based compensation expense recorded in continuing operations $ 42  $ 56 $ 53
Total stock-based compensation expense recorded in discontinued operations $ — % 21 % 31
Tax benefits recognized from stock-based compensation $ 16 $ 22 % 21

New SAIC Spin-off Adjustments. As a result of the separation of New SAIC, effective September 27, 2013, all outstanding equity
awards related to New SAIC employees were assumed by New SAIC. Also in connection with the separation, adjustments were
made to the share amounts and exercise prices of all remaining outstanding Leidos stock options, and the share amounts for
vesting stock awards and performance-based stock awards as of the Distribution Date such that the adjustments were generally
made to preserve the aggregate intrinsic value at the distribution date pursuant to the terms of the stock based compensation plans
under which they were issued. Taking into account the change in the value of the Company’s common stock as a result of the
distribution of the New SAIC shares, the conversion ratio applied to all outstanding equity awards at the distribution date was
1.4523 . In addition, all outstanding equity awards reflected the Company’s one-for-four reverse stock split.

As a result of the spin-off adjustments, a modification was made on September 27, 2013 to Leidos and New SAIC stock options
outstanding as of the distribution date by which additional stock-based compensation expense was recognized, as the fair value of
the outstanding options immediately following the spin-off was greater than the fair value immediately prior to the spin-off. An
increase of expense related to the modification of $3 million was recorded for awards that were fully vested on the modification
date, and an additional $3 million of incremental fair value will be recorded in future periods for unvested awards that will continue
to vest, resulting in a total additional stock compensation cost of $6 million with a weighted average modification fair value of $1.02
related to continuing Leidos stock options outstanding.

The spin-off adjustments are reflected in the tables below as well as the one-for-four stock split discussed in Note 1.

Stock Options. Stock options may be granted with exercise prices no less than the fair value of Leidos' common stock on the date
of grant and for terms not greater than ten years. Beginning in fiscal year 2012, stock options granted under the 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan have a term of seven years and a vesting period of four years, except for stock options granted to the Company’s
outside directors, which have a vesting period of one year. Prior to fiscal year 2012, stock options granted under the 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan had a term of five years. Stock options were granted with exercise prices equal to fair value on the date of grant.

In March 2013, Leidos' board of directors declared a special cash dividend of $4.00 per share of Leidos common stock and paid an
aggregate $342 million on June 28, 2013 to stockholders of record on June 14, 2013. In connection with the special cash dividend,
anti-dilutive adjustments were made to all outstanding stock options on the dividend record date to preserve their value following
the special cash dividend, as required by the Company's 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. The modifications were made to reduce the
exercise prices of the outstanding stock options and to increase the number of shares issuable upon the exercise of each option
such that the aggregate difference between the market price and exercise price times the number of shares issuable upon exercise
was
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substantially the same immediately before and after the payment of the special dividend. These adjustments did not result in
additional share-based compensation expense, as the fair value of the outstanding options immediately following the payment of
the special cash dividend was equal to the fair value immediately prior to such distribution. These adjustments are reflected in the
“Special Dividend Adjustment” line in the stock option activity table below.

The fair value of the Company'’s stock option awards is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-
pricing model. The fair value of the Company’s stock option awards is generally expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period of four years, except for stock options granted to the Company’s outside directors, which is recognized over the vesting
period of one year or less.

Prior to the Company's separation transaction, the expected term of all awards granted was derived from the Company's historical
experience with the exception of awards granted to our outside directors prior to fiscal 2013 which were derived utilizing the
“simplified” method presented in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Nos. 107 and 110, “Share-Based Payment”. Expected volatility was
based on an average of the historical volatility of Leidos' stock and the implied volatility from traded options on Leidos stock. The
risk-free interest rate was based on the yield curve of a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond with a maturity equal to the expected term
of the stock option on the date of grant. The Company used historical data to estimate forfeitures.

After the separation transaction, the expected term for all awards granted is derived utilizing the “simplified” method due to the lack
of historical experience post separation. Expected volatility is estimated based on a weighted average historical volatility of a group
of publicly-traded peer companies for a period consistent with the expected option term. The Company will continue to use peer
group volatility information, until historical volatility of the Company is relevant, to measure expected volatility for future option
grants. The risk-free rate is derived in same manner as prior to the separation transaction. The Company uses historical data to
estimate forfeitures.

The weighted average grant-date fair value and assumptions used to determine fair value of stock options granted for each of the
three years ended January 30, 2015 were as follows:

Year Ended
January 31, 2014 January 31, 2014
January 30, (Grants After (Grants Before January 31,
2015 Spin) Spin) 2013

Weighted average grant-date fair value $ 6.15 $ 9.04 $ 9.48 $ 6.76 **
Expected term (in years) 4.7 4.8 5.0 5.0
Expected volatility 25.1% 29.5% 30.0% 24.5%
Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 1.4% 1.4% 1.0%
Dividend yield 2.9% 2.4% 2.8% 3.7%

** Adjusted for additional awards granted for the $4.00 Special Dividend
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Stock option activity for each of the periods presented was as follows:

Weighted
average
Shares of Weighted remaining
stock under average contractual Aggregate
stock options exercise price term intrinsic value
(in millions) (in years) (in millions)
Outstanding at January 31, 2012 5.2 $ 71.60 25 §% —
Options granted 1.3 52.79
Options forfeited or expired (1.6) 70.17
Options exercised — — —
Outstanding at January 31, 2013 4.9 67.24 3.0 —
Options granted 1.4 54.86
Special dividend adjustments 0.4
Options forfeited or expired (1.3) 71.80
Spin-off Adjustment (1.9) 57.85
Outstanding at September 27, 2013 (before spin) 3.5 $ 59.25 39 $ 24
Outstanding at September 28, 2013 (after spin) 49 *»*  $ 40.20 ** 39 % 24
Options granted 0.2 45.16
Options forfeited or expired (0.4) 39.43
Options exercised (0.2) 43.10 1
Outstanding at January 31, 2014 4.5 $ 40.32 38 $ 25
Options granted 0.7 37.25
Options forfeited or expired (1.5) 43.90
Options exercised (0.2) 34.89 1
Outstanding at January 30, 2015 3.6 $ 38.50 40 $ 14
Exercisable at January 30, 2015 15 $ 40.90 24 % 4
Vested and expected to vest in the future as of January 30,
2015 3.5 $ 38.57 39 $ 13

** Adjusted for Conversion Ratio of 1.4523

As of January 30, 2015, there was $5 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to stock
options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years. The tax benefits realized from exercises
of stock options for the three years ending January 30, 2015 were immaterial. The fair value of stock exchanged upon exercises of
stock options was $1 million for the year ended January 31, 2014.

Vesting Stock Awards. Compensation expense is measured at the grant date fair value and generally recognized over the vesting
period of four years, or seven years for certain stock awards granted under the Stock Compensation Plans based upon required
service conditions and in some cases performance conditions.
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Vesting stock award activity for each of the periods presented was as follows:

Shares of stock
under stock

Weighted
average grant-

awards date fair value
(in millions)

Unvested at January 31, 2012 3.0 70.00
Awards granted 1.7 52.48
Awards forfeited (0.4) 62.84
Awards vested 1.2) 71.28

Unvested at January 31, 2013 3.1 60.78
Awards granted 2.1 53.51
Awards forfeited (0.4) 58.28
Awards vested (0.9 64.76
Spin-off Adjustment (1.5) 57.04

Unvested at September 27, 2013 (before spin) 2.4 $ 59.98

Unvested stock awards at September 28, 2013 (after spin) 35 = @ 41.54
Awards granted 0.4 = 4541 =
Awards forfeited (0.2) 39.75

Unvested stock awards at January 31, 2014 3.7 $ 39.58
Awards granted 0.8 37.06
Awards forfeited (0.5) 39.05
Awards vested (1.0) 41.08

Unvested stock awards at January 30, 2015 3.0 $ 38.51

* Includes Modified Performance-Based Awards
** Adjusted for Conversion Ratio of 1.4523

As of January 30, 2015, there was $45 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to vesting
stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years. The fair value of vesting stock
awards that vested in fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013 was $34 million , $49 million , and $66 million , respectively.

Performance-Based Stock Awards. The Company grants performance-based stock awards to certain officers and key employees of
the Company under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. The Company’s performance-based stock awards vest and the stock is issued
at the end of a three -year period based upon the achievement of specific performance criteria, with the number of shares ultimately
awarded, if any, ranging up to 150% of the specified target awards. If performance is below the threshold level of performance, no
shares will be issued. The performance period for certain performance-based stock awards was deemed completed as of the last
fiscal quarter prior to the spin-off with the target shares prorated for the completed period earned. For all of the remaining target
shares in the original award, the performance condition was removed and the awards are subject to vesting based on continued
employment through the original performance period and reflected in the vesting stock awards table above.

There were no performance-based stock awards granted in fiscal 2014 and the outstanding awards represent the awards whose
performance conditions were completed in the last fiscal quarter prior to the spin-off and continue to vest over the original service
period of the award. For the fiscal 2015 awards granted, one-third of the target number
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of shares of stock granted under the awards will be allocated to each fiscal year over the three-year performance period and the
actual number of shares to be issued with respect to each fiscal year will be based upon the achievement of that fiscal year’'s
performance criteria.

Performance-based stock award activity for each of the periods presented was as follows:

Expected number
of shares of stock

to be issued under Weighted
performance-based average grant-
stock awards date fair value
(in millions)
Unvested at January 31, 2013 0.3 $ 52.96
Awards canceled (0.2) « 53.11 +
Unvested at January 31, 2014 01 = $ 36.65 =
Awards granted 0.1 37.64
Awards vested (0.2) 36.69
Unvested at January 30, 2015 0.1 $ 37.70

* Includes Modified Performance-Based Stock Awards
**Adjusted for Conversion Ratio of 1.4523

The weighted average grant date fair value for performance-based stock during fiscal 2015 was $36.88 and $52.52 during fiscal
2013. There were no grants for performance-based stock awards during fiscal 2014.

As of January 30, 2015, there was $1.0 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to
performance-based stock awards granted under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.0 years. The fair value of performance-based stock awards that vested in fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014
was $2.3 million and $1.5 million , respectively. There were no vesting events for performance-based stock awards during fiscal
2013.
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Note 14—Income Taxes:

Substantially all of the Company’s income from continuing operations before income taxes for the three years ended January 30,
2015 was earned in the United States. The provision for income taxes related to continuing operations for each of the three years
ended January 30, 2015 included the following:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Current:
Federal and foreign $ 16 $ 32 % (52)
State (6) 13 9
Deferred:
Federal and foreign 26 (28) 55
State 11 (13) 10
Total $ 47  $ 4 3 22

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to
income from continuing operations before income taxes for each of the three years ended January 30, 2015 follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(dollars in millions)
Amount computed at the statutory federal income tax rate (35%) $ 99 % 31 % 121
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 3 — 10
Taxable conversion of subsidiary (116) — —
Change in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 105 — —
Change in accruals for uncertain tax positions 2 (5) Q)
CityTime uncertain tax liability — — (96)
Research and development credits (4) 3) (5)
Dividends paid to employee stock ownership plan (4) (22) (9)
U.S. manufacturing activity benefit — 3) (1)
Non-deductible penalties — 4 —
Non-deductible goodwiill 156 — —
Other 4 2 3
Total $ 47 $ 4 % 22
Effective income tax rate (16.6)% 4.5% 6.4%

The Company's effective tax rate in fiscal 2015 was negatively impacted by the goodwill impairment charge of $486 million ,
recorded in the three months ended August 1, 2014, which was mostly not deductible. The effective tax rate was also impacted
favorably by Leidos’ conversion of a subsidiary treated as a corporation to a LLC regarded as a partnership for U.S. federal and
state income tax purposes. The Company had not previously recorded a benefit for the excess tax basis over the investment in the
stock of the domestic subsidiary. As a result of the conversion, the Company recognized a capital loss on its investment in stock
and an ordinary gain on the subsidiary's assets. The capital loss of $160 million (tax effected) will be used to offset $58 million of
capital gains recognized during fiscal
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2015 and prior years with the remaining $102 million of capital losses recorded as a long term deferred tax asset. The Company
may not generate capital gains to realize the benefit from the capital loss carryforward. In recognition of this uncertainty, the
Company has recorded a $102 million valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset related to the capital loss carryforward. The
conversion also created a $34 million (tax effected) ordinary gain recognized in fiscal 2015.

The Company’s lower effective income tax rate for fiscal 2014 when compared to fiscal 2013 was primarily due to lower earnings in
fiscal 2014, the tax deductibility of the special dividend on shares held by the Leidos Retirement Plan (an employee stock
ownership plan) and the resolution of certain tax contingencies with the tax authorities resulting in the recognition of an income tax
benefit of approximately $7 million . The effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 benefited from a $96 million reduction in the provision for
income tax as the result of an issue resolution agreement with the IRS with respect to the tax deductible portion of the CityTime
payment which is described in Note 19.

In fiscal 2014, the Company benefited from the dividends paid to New SAIC’s employees patrticipating in the plan up to the date of
the spin-off and the special dividend of $7 million and $11 million , respectively.

In fiscal 2015, discontinued operations reflect a tax benefit of $18 million due to the conversion of one of the Company's domestic
subsidiaries held in discontinued operations. This conversion resulted in a deemed liquidation for U.S. tax purposes and triggered
tax deductions and an income tax benefit.

On September 13, 2013, the Treasury Department and the Internal Revenue Service issued final regulations regarding the
deduction and capitalization of amounts paid to acquire, produce, improve, or dispose of tangible personal property. These
regulations are generally effective for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The application of these regulations did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred income taxes are recorded for differences in the basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and tax
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) were comprised of the following:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
Accrued vacation and bonuses $ 4 3 62
Investments 3 3
Deferred compensation 39 38
Vesting stock awards 28 34
Credits and net operating losses carryovers 9 27
Employee benefit contributions 4 3
Capital loss carryover 113 —
Reserves 41 51
Deferred rent and tenant allowances 15 14
Other 15 9
Total deferred tax assets 311 241
Valuation allowance (120) (7
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 191 234
Deferred revenue 47 (31)
Fixed asset basis differences — (27)
Purchased intangible assets (121) (138)
Partnership interest (10) —
Other (8) —
Total deferred tax liabilities (186) (196)
Net deferred tax assets $ 5 & 38
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) were as follows:
Year Ended
January 30, January 31,
2015 2014
(in millions)
Net current deferred tax assets $ 12 % 89
Net non-current deferred tax assets 14 15
Net non-current deferred tax liabilities (22) (66)
Total net deferred tax assets $ 5 % 38

At January 30, 2015, the Company had no federal net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards and has $12 million of state tax credits at
January 30, 2015, which expire in fiscal 2018 to fiscal 2029. The Company expects to utilize $8 million of these state tax credits.

As of January 30, 2015, the Company has a capital loss carryforward of $292 million which will expire in 2020. The Company does
not believe it will be able to generate capital gains to realize the benefit from the capital loss carryforward. As a result, a full
valuation allowance has been provided in fiscal 2015.
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The Company’s unrecognized tax benefits are primarily related to certain recurring deductions customary for the Company’s
industry. The changes in the unrecognized tax benefits, excluding accrued interest and penalties, were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 14 3 21 % 129
Additions for tax positions related to current year 2 — —
Additions for tax positions related to prior years 11 2 2
Reductions for tax positions related to prior years (5) — (207)
Settlements with taxing authorities (1) — (1)
Lapse of statute of limitations (4) (9) (2)

Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ 17 $ 14 3 21

Unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective income tax
rate $ 5 % 6 $ 10

In fiscal 2015, the Company's unrecognized tax benefits increased primarily due to the uncertain portion of the deferral of certain
revenues, certain affirmative state claims and the research and development tax credit offset by a decrease due to the expiration of
federal and several states statutes of limitations and the termination of certain state credits. In fiscal 2014, the Company’s
unrecognized tax benefits decreased primarily due to the expiration of the fiscal 2009 statute of limitations. In fiscal 2013, the
Company'’s unrecognized tax benefits decreased primarily due to the issue resolution agreement with the IRS with respect to the
CityTime loss provision recorded in the prior year.

At each of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, accrued interest and penalties totaled $2 million and $2 million , respectively. A
negligible amount of interest and penalties were recognized in the consolidated statements of income in fiscal 2015, 2014, and
2013.

At January 30, 2015, the balance of unrecognized tax benefits included liabilities for uncertain tax positions of $19 million , $6
million of which were classified as other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The balance of unrecognized tax
benefits at January 31, 2014 included liabilities for uncertain tax positions of $16 million , $12 million of which were classified as
other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company files income tax returns in the United States and various state and foreign jurisdictions and is subject to routine
compliance reviews by the IRS and other taxing authorities. The Company has effectively settled with the IRS for all fiscal years
prior to 2014. With a few exceptions, as of January 30, 2015, the Company is no longer subject to state, local, or foreign
examinations by the tax authorities for years before fiscal 2012.

During the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that resolution of reviews by taxing authorities, both domestic and international,
could be reached with respect to $14 million of the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits, depending on the timing of ongoing
examinations, any litigation and expiration of statute of limitations, either because the Company’s tax positions are sustained or
because the Company agrees to their disallowance and pays the related income tax. While the Company believes it has adequate
accruals for uncertain tax positions, the tax authorities may determine that the Company owes taxes in excess of recorded accruals
or the recorded accruals may be in excess of the final settlement amounts agreed to by tax authorities.
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Note 15—Retirement Plans:
Defined Contribution Plans

The Company sponsors several defined contribution plans, including the Leidos, Inc. Retirement Plan ("the Retirement Plan") which
is both a 401(k) plan and an employee stock ownership plan, in which most employees are eligible to participate. These plans allow
eligible participants to contribute a portion of their income through payroll deductions and the Company may also make
discretionary contributions. Company contributions expensed for the Retirement Plan were $62 million , $81 million and $92 million
in fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. At the end of fiscal 2014, the Company elected to decrease its discretionary employer
match contribution percentage and also provided for an additional Company contribution to be given to all eligible employees,
regardless of whether the employee patrticipates in the 401(k) plan, payable at the end of the calendar year to all employees
employed on the last day of the calendar year, with certain exceptions.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company maintains two deferred compensation plans, the Keystaff Deferral Plan (KDP) and the Key Executive Stock Deferral
Plan (KESDP), for the benefit of certain management or highly compensated employees or Board of Directors and allows eligible
participants to elect to defer all or a portion of their annual bonus, sign-on bonus or certain other bonuses. Directors may also elect
to defer their director fees and retainers. The Company makes no contributions to the KDP but maintains participant accounts for
deferred amounts and interest earned. Interest is accrued based on the Moody’s Seasoned Corporate Bond Rate. Deferred
balances are generally paid upon retirement or termination. Under the KESDP, eligible participants may elect to defer in share units
all or a portion of their bonus awards granted under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (see Note 13) and prior plans. The Company
makes no contributions to the accounts of KESDP participants. Benefits from the KESDP are payable in shares of Leidos' stock
that may be held in a trust for the purpose of funding benefit payments to KESDP participants. Deferred balances will generally be
paid upon retirement or termination.

Beginning in fiscal 2012, the Company sponsored a 401(k) Excess Deferral Plan (Excess Plan) for the benefit of certain
management or highly compensated employees that allows participants to elect to defer up to 20% of their eligible salary once the
participant has met the contribution limit imposed on the Leidos, Inc. Retirement Plan. The Company makes matching contributions
to participants who have received a reduced Company contribution in the Leidos, Inc. Retirement Plan due to the participant’s
deferral of salary into the Excess Plan which are included in the contributions expensed amount for defined contributions plans in
the above paragraph.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors a defined benefit pension plan in the United Kingdom for plan participants that primarily performed services
on an expired customer contract. While benefits are no longer accruing under the plan, the Company has continuing defined benefit
pension obligations with respect to certain plan participants. In fiscal 2012, the Company sold certain components of its business,
including the component of its business that contained this pension and employed the pension plan participants. The Company has
classified the operating results of this business component, including pension expense through the date of sale, as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. Pursuant to the definitive sale agreement, the Company retained the assets and obligations of
this defined benefit pension plan. As a result of retaining the pension obligation, the remaining immaterial components of ongoing
pension expense, primarily interest costs and assumed return on plan assets subsequent to the sale, are recorded in continuing
operations.

In fiscal 2013, certain plan participants in the Company’s defined benefit pension plan, who previously transferred their employment
to a successor contractor upon the expiration of the customer contract, elected to transfer, and the Company transferred, $46
million of pension plan assets to that successor contractor’s plan and settled $63 million of related pension plan obligations. As a
result of the transfer, the Company recorded an immaterial settlement gain in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal
2013.
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The projected benefit obligation as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014 was $121 million and $106 million , respectively. The
fair value of plan assets as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014 was $113 million and $98 million , respectively. The plan
funding status was underfunded by $8 million and $9 million as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respectively.

The plan’s assets consist of investments in pooled funds that contain investments with values based on quoted market prices, but
for which the pools are not valued on a daily quoted market basis (Level 2 inputs).

Other

The Company also sponsors a defined benefit pension plan for employees working on one U.S. Government contract. As part of
the contractual agreement, the customer reimburses the Company for contributions made to the plan that are allowable under
government contract cost accounting requirements. If the Company were to cease being the contractor as a result of a
recompetition process, this defined benefit pension plan and related plan assets and liabilities would transfer to the new contractor.
If the contract expires or is terminated with no transfer of the plan to a successor contractor, any amount by which plan liabilities
exceed plan assets, as of that date, will be reimbursed by the U.S. Government customer. Since the Company is not responsible
for the current or future funded status of this plan, no assets or liabilities arising from its funded status are recorded in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and no amounts associated with this plan are included in the defined benefit plan
disclosures above. As of June 2014, the majority of the participants were transferred from the defined benefit pension plan into a
new defined contribution plan for which there is a matching Company contribution. These participants can no longer make
contributions into the defined benefit pension plan or earn future pension benefits. The remaining participants will continue in the
defined benefit pension plan and will continue to earn future pension benefits however, any Company matching contributions
previously made into the plan have been discontinued.

Note 16—Leases:

The Company occupies most of its facilities under operating leases. Most of the leases require the Company to pay maintenance
and operating expenses such as taxes, insurance and utilities and also contain renewal options to extend the lease and provisions
for periodic rate escalations to reflect inflationary increases. Certain equipment is leased under short-term or cancelable operating
leases. Rental expense for facilities and equipment related to continuing operations for the three fiscal years ended January 30,
2015 were as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Gross rental expense $ 107 % 181 % 154
Less sublease income 9) (6) 4)
Net rental expense $ 98 $ 175 % 150

In fiscal 2015 the Company continued its real estate optimization initiatives to reduce future rental expense and exited additional
facilities from those exited in connection with the spin-off activities in the prior year and incurred lease termination costs. Rental
expense in the table above for fiscal 2014 includes lease termination costs that were attributed to the spin-off transaction, whereby
the Company took significant actions in order to align its cost structure post-separation to reduce its real estate footprint by vacating
facilities that are not necessary for its future requirements.
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Future minimum lease commitments and lease or sublease receipts under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at January 30,
2015 are as follows:

Operating lease Sublease
Year Ending January 30 commitment receipts
(in millions)
2016 $ 88 $ 7
2017 76 7
2018 66 5
2019 55 4
2020 41 3
2021 and thereafter 70 9
Total $ 396 $ 35

As of January 30, 2015, the Company had capital lease obligations of $2 million that are payable over the next three years .
Sale and Leaseback Agreement

On May 3, 2013, the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement relating to the sale of approximately 18 acres of land in
Fairfax County, Virginia, including four office buildings, a multi-level parking garage, surface parking lots, and other related
improvements and structures, as well as tangible personal property and third-party leases. This sale is expected to be completed in
a series of transactions over approximately six years .

On July 26, 2013, the Company closed the first phase of the purchase and sale agreement and received proceeds of $83 million ,
net of selling costs. The Company leased back from the buyer three of the office buildings over varying lease terms. The sale of two
of the office buildings was accounted for as a sale-leaseback transaction with proceeds from the sale of $40 million , a
corresponding book value of $42 million resulting in a $2 million loss recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.
These leases were accounted for as operating leases over a six months term which ended on January 31, 2014. The sale of the
third office building is being accounted for as a financing transaction. The allocated consideration received of $38 million was
recorded as a note payable to be paid over seven years with interest at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, estimated at 3.7% .
The right of use for the multi-level parking garage and surface parking lots were allocated proceeds of $1 million and $4 million ,
respectively, and were accounted for as other long term liabilities.
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Note 17—Supplementary Cash Flow Information:

Supplementary cash flow information, including non-cash investing and financing activities, for the three fiscal years ended January
30, 2015 was as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Vested stock issued as settlement of annual bonus accruals $ 1 3 2 $ 2
Stock issued in lieu of cash dividends $ 3 3 18 % 3
Capital lease obligations $ — % 1 % —
Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions $ — 259 % 541
Cash paid in acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $9 million in fiscal 2013 $ — 3 % (483)
Forgiveness of accounts receivable to acquire equity interest in business
combination $ — % (105) $ —
Accrued liability for acquisition of business $ — $ 3) % (13)
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions $ — $ 148 % 45
Cash paid for interest (including discontinued operations) $ 74 % 82 $ 92
Cash paid for income taxes (including discontinued operations) $ 5 % 63 $ 128

Note 18—Business Segment Information:

The Company defines its reportable segments based on the way the chief operating decision maker (CODM), currently its chief
executive officer, manages the operations of the Company for purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance. The
Company has the following reportable segments: National Security Solutions, Health and Engineering, and Corporate and Other.

National Security Solutions provides solutions and systems for air, land, sea, space and cyberspace for the U.S. intelligence
community, the DoD, the military services, the DHS and government agencies of U.S. allies abroad. The Company's solutions
deliver technology, large scale intelligence systems, command and control, data analytics, cybersecurity, logistics, and intelligence
analysis and operations support to critical missions around the world. Major customers of National Security Solutions include
national and military intelligence agencies, and other federal, civilian and commercial customers in the national security complex.

Health and Engineering businesses capitalize on our knowledge and experience in technology and innovation. Major customers of
Health and Engineering primarily include the U.S. federal government, state and local governmental agencies, foreign
governments, hospitals and commercial enterprises in various industries. The Health business provides services and solutions to
commercial hospitals and the Department of Defense as well as conducting research and development for U.S. Government and
Commercial enterprises in the life sciences field. The Health business provides health systems integration services to implement
and optimize the use of electronic health records, apply data analytics and behavioral health research to help enable customers to
improve healthcare quality and patient outcomes, detect and prevent diseases, enhance scientific discovery, and reduce costs to
the healthcare system. The Engineering business leverages technology and skills in process engineering, engineering design and
systems integration to create innovative and cost effective solutions for its customers. These include products and solutions in
energy generation, efficiency and management, environmental services, securing critical infrastructure, and designing and building
construction projects.

Corporate and Other includes the operations of the Company’s internal real estate management subsidiary, various corporate
activities, certain corporate expense items that are not reimbursed by the Company’s U.S. Government customers and certain other
revenue and expense items excluded from the CODM'’s evaluation of a reportable segment’s performance.
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The following tables summarize business segment information for each of the three years ended January 30, 2015:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in millions)
Revenues:
National Security Solutions $ 3594 % 4,049 $ 4,650
Health and Engineering 1,485 1,718 1,805
Corporate and Other (16) (9) (1)
Intersegment elimination — 3) (5)
Total revenues $ 5063 $ 5755 $ 6,449
Operating income (loss):
National Security Solutions $ 286 $ 292 3 360
Health and Engineering (472) 20 138
Corporate and Other (28) (149) (77)
Total operating (loss) income $ (214) $ 163 $ 421
Amortization of intangible assets:
National Security Solutions $ — $ 3 % 5
Health and Engineering 15 32 30
Total amortization of intangible assets $ 15 % 35 % 35

Asset information by segment is not a key measure of performance used by the CODM. Interest income, interest expense and
provision for income taxes, as reported in the consolidated financial statements, are not part of operating income and are primarily
recorded at the corporate level. Under U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards, indirect costs including depreciation expense
are collected in numerous indirect cost pools which are then collectively allocated out to the Company’s reportable segments based
on a representative causal or beneficial relationship of the costs in the pool to the costs in the base. While depreciation expense is
a component of the allocated costs, the allocation process precludes depreciation expense from being specifically identified by the
Company’s individual reportable segments. For this reason, depreciation expense by reportable segment has not been reported
above.

Substantially all of the Company’s revenues and tangible long-lived assets are generated by or located in the United States. As
such, the financial information by geographic location is not presented.

The Company’s total revenues are largely attributable to prime contracts with the U.S. Government or to subcontracts with other
contractors engaged in work for the U.S. Government. The percentages of total revenues for the U.S. Government, its agencies
and other customers comprising more than 10% of total revenues in any of the three years ended January 30, 2015 were as
follows:

Year Ended
January 30, January 31, January 31,
2015 2014 2013
U.S. Government 79% 78% 81%
U.S. DoD 67% 68% 70%
U.S. Army 16% 19% 23%
Maryland Procurement Office 10% 8% 8%
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Note 19—Legal Proceedings:
Timekeeping Contract with City of New York

In March 2012, the Company reached a settlement with the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York and the City
of New York ("City") relating to investigations being conducted by the U.S. Attorney’s Office and the City with respect to the
Company'’s contract to develop and implement an automated time and attendance and workforce management system ("CityTime")
for certain agencies of the City. As part of this settlement, the Company entered into a deferred prosecution agreement ("DPA")
with the U.S. Attorney’s Office, under which the Company paid approximately $500 million and the U.S. Attorney’s Office deferred
prosecution of a single criminal count against the Company, which alleged that the Company, through the conduct of certain
managerial employees and others, caused the City to significantly overpay for the CityTime system. Leidos fully satisfied the
requirements of the DPA during its three year term and the DPA expired on March 14, 2015. As a result, the U.S. Attorney's Office
filed an application with the Court to dispose of the charge that was filed against Leidos as part of the DPA. On March 16, 2015, the
Court entered an order disposing of the pending charge.

In August 2012, the Company entered into an administrative agreement with the U.S. Army, on behalf of all agencies of the U.S.
Government that confirms the Company’s continuing eligibility to enter into and perform contracts with all agencies of the U.S.
Government following the CityTime settlement. The Army has determined that the U.S. Government will have adequate assurances
under the terms of the administrative agreement that initiation of suspension or debarment is not necessary to protect the U.S.
Government's interests following the CityTime settlement. Under the terms of the administrative agreement, the Company has
agreed, among other things, to maintain a contractor responsibility program having the specific elements described in the
administrative agreement, including retaining a monitor and providing certain reports to the U.S. Army. The administrative
agreement will continue in effect for five years, provided that the Company may request earlier termination after three years.

Data Privacy Litigation

The Company was previously a defendant in a putative class action, In Re: Science Applications International Corporation ("SAIC")
Backup Tape Data Theft Litigation, which was an Multidistrict Litigation ("MDL") action in U.S. District Court for the District of
Columbia relating to the theft of computer back-up tapes from a vehicle of a company employee. In May 2014, the District Court
dismissed all but two plaintiffs from the MDL action. In June 2014, Leidos and its co-defendant, TRICARE, entered into settlement
agreements with the remaining two plaintiffs who subsequently dismissed their claims with prejudice.

On September 20, 2014, the Company was hamed as a defendant in a putative class action, Martin Fernandez, on Behalf Of
Himself And All Other Similarly Situated v. Leidos, Inc. in the Eastern District Court of California, related to the same theft of
computer backup tapes. The recent complaint includes allegations of violations of the California Confidentiality of Medical
Information Act, the California Unfair Competition Law, and other claims. The Company intends to vigorously defend against these
claims, and filed a motion to dismiss in January 2015.

Derivative and Securities Litigation

Between February and April 2012, alleged stockholders filed three putative securities class actions. One case was withdrawn and
two cases were consolidated in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York in In re SAIC, Inc. Securities Litigation .
The consolidated securities complaint named as defendants the Company, its chief financial officer, two former chief executive
officers, a former group president, and the former program manager on the CityTime program, and was filed purportedly on behalf
of all purchasers of the Company's common stock from April 11, 2007 through September 1, 2011. The consolidated securities
complaint asserted claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 based on allegations that the
Company and individual defendants made misleading statements or omissions about the Company’s revenues, operating income,
and internal controls in connection with disclosures relating to the CityTime project. The plaintiffs sought to recover from the
Company and the individual defendants an unspecified amount of damages class members allegedly incurred
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by buying Leidos’ stock at an inflated price. On October 1, 2013, the District Court dismissed many claims in the complaint with
prejudice and on January 30, 2014, the District Court entered an order dismissing all remaining claims with prejudice and without
leave to replead. The plaintiffs have moved to vacate the District Court's judgment or obtain relief from the judgment and for leave
to file an amended complaint. On September 2014, the District Court denied plaintiff's motions. The plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal
on October 30, 2014 to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit where the appeal remains pending.

Greek Government Contract

Background and Arbitration. In May 2003, the Company entered into a firm-fixed-price contract with the Hellenic Republic of Greece
(the Customer) to provide a Command, Control, Communications, Coordination and Integration System (the System) to support the
2004 Athens Summer Olympic Games (the Olympics) and to serve as the security system for the Customer’s public order
departments following completion of the Olympics.

In November 2008, the Customer accepted the System in writing pursuant to the requirements of the contract. At the time, the
Customer determined that the System substantially complied with the terms of the contract and accepted the System with certain
alleged minor omissions and deviations. Upon System acceptance, the Company invoiced the Customer for approximately $16
million , representing the undisputed portion of the contract balance owed to the Company. The Customer has not paid this final
invoice.

In June 2009, the Company initiated arbitration before the International Chamber of Commerce against the Customer seeking
damages for breaches of contract by the Customer. In July 2013, the Company received an arbitral award for approximately $44
million . The Customer has yet to satisfy the arbitral award. The Company is pursuing an enforcement action in U.S. District Court
for the District of Columbia. In September 2013, the Customer filed a petition in a Greek court seeking to nullify the arbitral award
and to stay enforcement of the award in Greece. A hearing on the Customer's nullification request was held in Greece in April 2014.
The parties agreed to a stay of the Company's enforcement action in U.S. District Court until the Greek court issued a ruling on the
Customer's nullification request. In June 2014, the Athens Court of Appeals annulled the arbitral award. The Company appealed
the annulment decision to the Supreme Court of Greece in January 2015 to have the arbitral award reinstated. The Company is
continuing to pursue enforcement of the award in the U.S. District Court as is still its right under U.S. and international law. The
outcomes of the appeal in Greece and the Company's pending enforcement action are uncertain.

Financial Status and Contingencies. As a result of the significant uncertainties on this contract, the Company converted to the
completed-contract method of accounting and ceased recognizing revenues for the System development portion of this contract in
fiscal 2006. No profits or losses were recorded on the Greek contract during fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013. As of January 30, 2015,
the Company has recorded $123 million of losses under the Greek contract, reflecting the Company’s estimated total cost to
complete the System, assuming the Greek contract value was limited to the cash received to date. Based on the complex nature of
this contractual situation and the difficulties encountered to date, significant uncertainties exist and the Company is unable to
reliably estimate the ultimate outcome. The Company may reverse a portion of the losses from the Greek contract if it receives
future payments as provided in the arbitral award.

As of January 30, 2015, the Company has $12 million of receivables relating to value added tax ("VAT") that the Company has paid
and believes it is entitled to recover either as a refund from the taxing authorities or as a payment under the Greek contract. The
Company has invoiced the Customer for $28 million for VAT and the Customer has failed to make payment. If the Customer fails to
pay the outstanding VAT amounts or the Company is unable to recover the amount as a refund from the taxing authorities, the
Company’s total losses on the Greek contract could increase.

The Company has met certain advance payment and performance bonding requirements through the issuance of euro-
denominated standby letters of credit. As of January 30, 2015, there were $4 million in standby letters of credit outstanding relating
to the support and maintenance of the System. In the arbitration, the Company was awarded but has not received $22 million
representing the amounts drawn by the Customer in fiscal 2011 on certain standby
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letters of credit as well as damages. The principal subcontractor has provided to the Company euro-denominated standby letters of
credit in the amount of $18 million as of January 30, 2015, of which $17 million relates to the delivery of the System. The Company
may draw on the subcontractor’s standby letters of credit under certain circumstances by providing a statement to the responsible
bank that the subcontractor has not fulfilled its obligations under the subcontract.

Other

The Company is also involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of its business, none of which, in the
opinion of the Company’s management, based upon current information, will likely have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 20—Other Commitments and Contingencies:
VirnetX, Inc.

In fiscal 2007, the Company transferred several patents to VirnetX Inc., a subsidiary of VirnetX Holding Corp. In consideration of
this transfer, the Company received certain license rights and the right to receive a percentage of the consideration received in
patent infringement or enforcement claims against third parties. In November 2012, a jury found that Apple Corporation infringed
two of the patents that the Company previously transferred to VirnetX and awarded approximately $368 million to VirnetX, but the
United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit vacated this award. Although VirnetX petitioned the appeals court for an en
banc review, this request was denied and the case has been remanded to the Federal District Court for further proceedings. On
December 17, 2014, VirnetX settled a separate patent infringement dispute with Microsoft Corporation, with those parties executing
an Amended Settlement and License Agreement. This agreement amended and restated certain terms of the original Settlement
and License Agreement, dated May 14, 2010, between VirnetX and Microsoft. Under the terms of the amended agreement,
Microsoft agreed to pay $23 million to VirnetX to settle the patent dispute and expand Microsoft's license. Under its agreements
with VirnetX, the Company would receive 35% of the proceeds obtained by VirnetX under this settlement with Microsoft after
reduction for attorneys' fees and costs incurred in litigating those claims. The Company and VirnetX are currently in discussions
regarding the allocation of these proceeds. No assurances can be given as to when or if the Company will receive any proceeds in
connection with these matters. In addition, if the Company receives any proceeds under its agreements with VirnetX, the Company
is required to pay a royalty on the proceeds received to the customer who paid for the development of the technology. The
Company does not have any assets or liabilities recorded in connection with this matter as of January 30, 2015.

Government Investigations and Reviews

The Company is routinely subject to investigations and reviews relating to compliance with various laws and regulations with
respect to its role as a contractor to federal, state, and local government customers and in connection with performing services in
countries outside of the United States. Adverse findings in these investigations or reviews can lead to criminal, civil or
administrative proceedings, and the Company could face penalties, fines, compensatory damages, and suspension or debarment
from doing business with governmental agencies. In addition, the Company could suffer serious reputational harm if allegations of
impropriety were made against Leidos. Adverse findings could also have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows due to its reliance on government contracts.

U.S. Government agencies, including the Defense Contract Audit Agency ("DCAA"), Defense Contract Management Agency
("DCMA"), and others, routinely audit and review a contractor’s performance on government contracts, indirect rates and pricing
practices, and compliance with applicable contracting and procurement laws, regulations, and standards. They also review the
adequacy of the contractor’'s compliance with government standards for its business systems, including: a contractor’'s accounting
system, earned value management system, estimating system, materials management and accounting system, property
management system, and purchasing system. Both contractors and the U.S. Government agencies conducting these audits and
reviews have come under increased scrutiny including such subjects as billing practices, labor charging, and accounting for
unallowable costs.
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As a result, audits and reviews have become more rigorous and the standards to which the Company is held are being more strictly
interpreted, increasing the likelihood of an audit or review resulting in an adverse outcome. During the course of its current audits,
the DCAA is closely examining and questioning costs and several of the Company’s long established and disclosed practices
increasing the uncertainty as to the ultimate conclusion that will be reached. In addition, the Company also monitors compliance
with these practices and has an obligation under its contracts to make disclosures of specific improprieties based on credible
evidence.

The Company changed its indirect rate structure used in its indirect cost system in fiscal 2011 and future years. The DCAA is
performing reviews of these changes and the Company’s compliance with certain other U.S. Government Cost Accounting
Standards. A finding of significant control deficiencies in the Company’s system audits or other reviews can result in cash
payments, penalties and potentially decremented billing rates.

The Company’s indirect cost audits by the DCAA remain open for fiscal 2009 and subsequent fiscal years. Although the Company
has recorded contract revenues subsequent to and including fiscal 2009 based upon an estimate of costs that the Company
believes will be approved upon final audit or review, the Company does not know the outcome of any ongoing or future audits or
reviews and adjustments, and if future adjustments exceed the Company’s estimates, its profitability would be adversely affected.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement with New SAIC and upon the separation date, the Company's liability of $45 million for net
amounts to be refunded to customers for potential adjustments from such audit or review of contract costs was allocated to New
SAIC in the amount of $18 million and the Company in the amount of $27 million . For open periods prior to the spin-off, matters
may be settled by the Company with reimbursements due from New SAIC. Subsequent to the separation date, any amounts owed
in addition to the $45 million liability for periods prior to the separation date will be proportioned between Leidos and New SAIC in
accordance with the Distribution Agreement.

As of January 30, 2015, the Company has recorded a liability of $41 million for its current best estimate of net amounts to be
refunded to customers for potential adjustments from such audits or reviews of contract costs. This amount includes potential
adjustments related to both pre-separation and post-separation audits or reviews.

Joint Ventures

The Company has a guarantee that relates only to claims brought by the sole customer of its joint venture, Bechtel SAIC Company,
LLC, for specific contractual nonperformance of the joint venture. The Company also has a cross-indemnity agreement with the
joint venture partner, pursuant to which the Company will only be ultimately responsible for the portion of any losses incurred under
the guarantee equal to its ownership interest of 30% . As of January 31, 2014, the joint venture had completed performance
requirements on the customer contract and was in the process of completing contract close-out activities. Based on current
conditions, the Company believes the likelihood of having to make any future payment related to the guarantee is remote.

Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds

The Company has outstanding letters of credit of $60 million as of January 30, 2015, principally related to guarantees on contracts.
The Company also has outstanding surety bonds in the amount of $224 million as of January 30, 2015, principally related to
performance and subcontractor payment bonds on the Company’s contracts. The outstanding letters of credit expire over the next
four fiscal years and the surety bonds have various terms with the majority of the bonds expiring over the next five fiscal years.

Other

The Company maintains self-insured medical and workers compensation insurance plans. The Company provided estimated
accruals for claims incurred but not yet reported of $16 million and $19 million as of January 30, 2015 and January 31, 2014,
respectively.
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Note 21—Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudite  d):

Selected unaudited financial data for each quarter of the last two fiscal years is presented in the table below and has been recast to
reflect discontinued operations for all periods presented.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Fiscal 2015 ©
Revenues $ 1,312 % 1,306 $ 1,276 $ 1,169
Operating income (loss) $ 87 % (410) $ 72 % 37
Income (loss) from continuing operations ® $ 45 3% (439) $ 38 3 26
(Loss) income from discontinued operations $ 38 $ 1 $ 4 $ 18
Net income (loss) ® $ 37 3% (438) $ 34 3 44
Basic earnings (loss) per share @ $ 058 $ (5.93) $ 052 $ 0.36
Diluted earnings (loss) per share @ $ 058 $ (5.93) $ 051 $ 0.35
Fiscal 2014 “
Revenues $ 1593 $ 1,457 % 1,414 % 1,291
Operating income (loss) $ 777 % 10 % 5 $ 81
Income (loss) from continuing operations © $ 41 3% 4 % 8 $ 47
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 40 $ 38 % 5 & 3)
Net income (loss) $ 81 $ 42 $ 3) 3 44
Basic earnings (loss) per share @ $ 044 $ 0.05 $ (0.10) $ 0.57
Diluted earnings (loss) per share @ $ 044 $ 0.05 $ (0.10) $ 0.56

All per share amounts presented give effect to the one-for-four reverse stock split completed on September 27, 2013.

(1) Income (loss) from continuing operations and net income relate to Leidos Holdings, Inc. only. See Leidos, Inc.'s amounts detailed below
(2) Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations are computed independently for each of the quarters presented and therefore may not sum to the total for

the fiscal year.

(3) Fiscal 2015 quarterly results include goodwill impairment charges of $486 million in the second quarter, intangible asset impairment charges of $24 million and
$17 million in the second and third quarter, respectively, and a tangible asset impairment charge of $40 million in the fourth quarter. For further information see,
Note 3 - Acquisitions and Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets.

(4) Fiscal 2014 quarterly results include the following charges: 1) intangible asset impairment charges of $30 million and $19 million in the second and third
quarter, respectively; 2) bad debt expense for certain receivables related to two energy design-build construction projects of $42 million in the third quarter; and

3) separation transaction and restructuring expenses in each of the quarters of approximately $14 million , $19 million , $25 million , and $7 million ,

respectively. For further information see, Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets.
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Leidos, Inc.:

Income (loss) from continuing operations and net income (loss) of Leidos, Inc. includes interest expense on the related party note
and associated income taxes, which relate solely to Leidos, Inc. and are not reflected in the consolidated amounts above. Income
(loss) from continuing operations and net income (loss) of Leidos, Inc. for each quarter of the last two fiscal years was as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in millions)
Fiscal 2015
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 46 $ (437) $ 40 $ 27
Net income (loss) $ 38 % (436) $ 36 $ 45
Fiscal 2014
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 41  $ 4 3% 38 $ 49
Net income (loss) $ 81 $ 42 $ 3 $ 46
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ARTICLEI.
OFFICES

Section 1.0Registered Office. The registered office of Leidos Holdings, Inc. (t®rporation”) in the State of Delaware shall the a
1209 Orange Street, City of Wilmington, County aWCastle, and the name of the registered agatitarge thereof shall be The Corporation
Trust Company.

Section 1.0Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of the imess of the Corporation shall be at 11951 FreeDanre,
Reston, VA 20190. The Board of Directors (the “Biiis hereby granted full power and authority lange said principal office from one
location to another.

Section 1.00ther Offices. The Corporation may also have an office or offigesuch other place or places, either within ohaiit the
State of Delaware, as the Board may from timene tdetermine or as the business of the Corporatmnrequire.

ARTICLEII.
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 2.0JAnnual Meetings. An annual meeting of stockholders shall be heldHerelection of directors and to transact suckroth
business as may properly be brought before theingeet

Section 2.0Z5pecial M eetings.

(a) Special meetings of the stockholders of thep@ation for any purpose or purposes may be calieshy time by the
Board, or by a committee of the Board which hashdy designated by the Board and whose powersatiwrity, as provided in a
resolution of the Board or in the Bylaws, inclutie power to call such meetings, and shall be caletthe Secretary of the Corporation
following the Secretary’s receipt of written reqtse® call a meeting of stockholders (a “Speciaklteg Request”jrom one stockholdt
of record owning at least ten percent (10%), or@nmore stockholders of record of shares repregirt the aggregate at least twenty-
five percent (25%), in each case of the combindthggower of the then outstanding shares of absés and series of capital stock of
the Corporation entitled to vote on the matter atters to be brought before the proposed speciatintg voting as a single class, and
who have delivered such requests in accordanceanilsubject to the provisions of these Bylawsaasnded from time to time),
including any limitations set forth in these Bylaws the ability to make such a request for suchezisl meeting. Special meetings may
not be called by any other person or persons; geakihowever, that if and to the extent that amcisb meeting of stockholders may be
called by any other person or persons specifiahinprovisions of the Certificate of Incorporatimnany amendment thereto or any
certificate filed under Section 151(g) of the Geh&orporation Law of the State of Delaware (“Deda/Law”) (or its successor statute
as in effect from time to time hereafter), thentsapecial meeting may also be called by the pers@ersons, in the manner, at the ti
and for the purposes so specified.

(b) In determining whether Special Meeting Requbatge met the requirements of this Section 2.02tiphes Special
Meeting Requests will not be considered togeth#iraf relate to different items of business. Aduitlly, in order to be valid, all Spec
Meeting Requests must have been dated and deliteeted Secretary within sixty (60) days of thelieat dated Special Meeting
Request. Business transacted at any special mexdtsigckholders shall be limited to the purpogatesl in the notice. A Special
Meeting Request shall be signed by each stockhatdetuly authorized agent, requesting the specesdting and shall set forth: (i) a
brief description of each matter of business ddginebe brought before the special meeting andehsons for conducting such busines:
at the special meeting, (ii) the text of the praas business (including the text of any resohsiproposed for consideration and in the
event that such business includes a proposal tocthese Bylaws, the language of the proposed amemni), (i) any material interest
of each stockholder and any beneficial owner onsghmehalf the special meeting is being requestdteibusiness desired to be brot
before the special meeting, (iv) the name and addees they appear on the Corporation's booksabf tockholder requesting the
special meeting and any beneficial owner on whose
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behalf the special meeting is being requestedh@xlass and number of shares of the Corporatiiohaare owned by each stockholder
requesting the special meeting and any benefigiako on whose behalf the special meeting is bedngested, and (vi) any other
information that is required to be set forth int@c&holder's notice required pursuant to Secti®7 ®f these Bylaws and, if the purpose
of the special meeting includes the appointmemection of one or more directors to the Board ti6ac3.03 of these Bylaws.

A stockholder may revoke a Special Meeting Regakahy time prior to the special meeting; provitiesvever, that if any
such revocations are received by the Secretaryaana result of such revocation, the number ofewoked Special Meeting Requests
longer represents at least the requisite numbgharfes entitling the stockholders to request thimgaf a special meeting pursuant to
Section 2.02(a), then the Board shall have theelien to determine whether or not to proceed Withspecial meeting. If none of the
stockholders who submitted the Special Meeting Refjappear or send a qualified representativedfised! in these Bylaws) to present
the proposal(s) or business submitted by the stddks for consideration at the special meetinghgroposal(s) or business shall be
disregarded, notwithstanding that proxies in respésuch vote may have been received by the Catjgor or such stockholder(s).

A Special Meeting Request shall not be valid (dr@Board shall have no obligation to call a spetieéting in respect of
such Special Meeting Request) if it relates totamiof business that is not a proper subject fuk$tolder action under applicable law.

The Board shall determine the place, if any, ardheé date and time, of any stockholder requegtedial meeting. The
Board may submit its own proposal or proposalséorsideration at a stockholder requested speciatinge

Section 2.03ime and Place of Meetings. All meetings of the stockholders shall be helduathsplaces, within or without the State of
Delaware, on such date and at such time as maytfroento time be designated by the person or parsalting the respective meeting and
specified in the respective notices or waiversaifoe thereof.

Section 2.0MNotice of Meetings and Adjourned M eetings; Waivers of Notice.

(a) Whenever stockholders are required or permitigdke any action at a meeting, a notice of tketing shall be given to
stockholders of the Corporation, as required bylieplple law, which shall state the place, date lamdr of the meeting, and, in the case of a
special meeting, the purpose or purposes for wihiehmeeting is called. Notice may be given by siglivery means (mail, telecopy, electro
or other) as the Secretary deems appropriate acmhipliance with applicable law and shall be debdkto the stockholder’'s address as it
appears on the stock transfer records of the Catipor. Unless otherwise required by Delaware Lawhaotice shall be given not less than 1(
nor more than 60 days before the date of the ngptdieach stockholder of record entitled to votsuath meeting. Unless otherwise expressly
required by Delaware Law, when a meeting is adjedno another time or place (whether or not a quasupresent), notice need not be given
of the adjourned meeting if the time and placedbtare announced at the meeting at which the atjoent is taken. At the adjourned
meeting, the Corporation may transact any busiwassh might have been transacted at the originatimg. If the adjournment is for more
than 30 days, or after the adjournment a new redatel is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a noditthe adjourned meeting shall be given to
each stockholder of record entitled to vote atntieeting.

(b) Any waiver of any such notice given by the pergentitled thereto, whether before or after theetstated therein, shall be
deemed equivalent to notice. Attendance of a peasarmeeting shall constitute a waiver of notiteuzh meeting, except when the person
attends the meeting for the express purpose ottibge and such person objects at the beginnirtgemeeting, to the transaction of any
business because the meeting is not lawfully caltetbnvened. Business transacted at any spec&tingef stockholders shall be limited to
the purposes stated in the notice.

Section 2.0%uorum. Except as provided by Delaware Law, the holdergobrd of a majority in voting interest of the stapf stock o
the Corporation entitled to be voted thereat, preseperson or by proxy, shall constitute a quofonthe transaction of business at any
meeting of the stockholders of the Corporationry a
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adjournment thereof. In the absence of a quoruamaimeeting or any adjournment thereof, a majanityoting interest of the stockholders
present in person or by proxy and entitled to ¥bezeat or, in the absence therefrom of all theldtolders, any officer entitled to preside at, or
to act as a secretary of, such meeting may adguech meeting from time to time. At any such adjedrmeeting at which a quorum is present
any business may be transacted which might have tb@esacted at the meeting as originally called.

Section 2.06/cting.

(a) At each meeting of the stockholders, each stolder shall be entitled to vote, in person or hyxy, each share or fractional
share of the stock of the Corporation having votights on the matter in question and which shallehbeen held by such stockholder and
registered in such stockholder’'s name on the bobkse Corporation:

(i) on the date fixed pursuant to Section 6.05heke Bylaws as the record date for the determimatictockholders entitle
to notice of and to vote at such meeting, or

(i) if no such record date shall have been sodjxken (a) at the close of business on the dayrédie day on which notir
of the meeting shall be given or (b) if notice loé imeeting shall be waived, at the close of businaeghe day before the day on which the
meeting shall be held.

(b) Shares of its own stock belonging to the Casion or to another corporation, if a majority bétshares entitled to vote in the
election of directors in such other corporatiohedd, directly or indirectly, by the Corporatiomadl neither be entitled to vote nor be counted
for quorum purposes.

(c) Any such voting rights may be exercised bydtwekholder entitled thereto in person or by hiserproxy delivered to the
secretary of the meetingrovided, however , that no proxy shall be voted or acted upon dfteze (3) years from its date unless said proxjl she
provide for a longer period. At any meeting of gheckholders all matters, except as otherwise gealin the Certificate of Incorporation, th
Bylaws, Delaware Law, the rules or regulationsrof atock exchange applicable to the Corporatiomnyrregulation applicable to the
Corporation or its securities, shall be decidedh®yvote of a majority in voting interest of theaktholders present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote thereon, a quorum being preseme. Viote at any meeting of the stockholders on amgiipn need not be by ballot, except as
otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorpa@vator unless so directed by the chair of the mgetdn a vote by ballot, each ballot shall be
signed by the stockholder voting, or by his or x&xy, if there be such proxy, and it shall stage number of shares voted.

Section 2.0Business at Annual Meeting (other than the Election of Directors). Only such business (other than nominations for
election to the Board, which must comply with thieyisions of Section 3.03(b)) may be transactezhadnnual meeting of stockholders as is
either (1) specified in the notice of meeting (ny dupplement thereto) given by or at the directibthe Board (or any duly authorized
committee thereof), (2) otherwise properly brougéfore the meeting by or at the direction of thefio(or any duly authorized committee
thereof), or (3) otherwise properly brought beftive meeting by a stockholder who is a stockholdeecord at the time of the giving of notice
provided for in this Section 2.07 and on the reatate for the determination of stockholders erttitle notice of and to vote at the meeting and
who complies with the notice procedures set fartthis Section 2.07. In addition to any other aggilie requirements, for business to be
properly brought before an annual meeting by aksiolder, the stockholder must have given timelyigeothereof in writing to the Secretary of
the Corporation. To be timely, a stockholder’s oetinust be delivered to or mailed and receiveeptincipal office of the Corporation not
later than the close of business on the 90th dayearlier than the close of business on the 1@8th prior to the first anniversary of the
preceding year's annual meeting (provided, howetat,in the event that the date of the annual imgé&t more than 30 days before or more
than 70 days after such anniversary date, notidadgtockholder must be so delivered not eatian the close of business on the 120th day
prior to such annual meeting and not later tharctbge of business on the later of the 90th dayrpa such annual meeting or the 10th day
following the day on which public announcemenths tlate of such meeting is first made by the Catpmr). In no event shall the public
announcement of an adjournment or postponememt ahaual meeting commence a new time period (@neiany time period) for the giving
of a stockholder’s notice as described above.
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A stockholder’s notice to the Secretary of the @oagion shall set forth: (a) as to each matterstoekholder proposes to bring
before the annual meeting, a brief descriptiorhefliusiness desired to be brought before the anmerting and the reasons for conducting
such business at the annual meeting and the téledfusiness (including the text of any resoliproposed for consideration and in the e
that such business includes a proposal to amesé Byaws, the language of the proposed amendnat)(b) as to the stockholder giving
notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whoskdlf the proposal is being made, (i) the nameaaiiless of such person, (ii) (A) the class o
series and number of all shares of stock of the@uattion which are owned beneficially or of recbgdsuch person and any affiliates or
associates of such person, (B) the name of eacimeerholder of shares of all stock of the Corporatwned beneficially but not of record by
such person or any affiliates or associates of pecbon, and the number of such shares of stottleaorporation held by each such nominee
holder, (C) whether and the extent to which anyadéive instrument, swap, option, warrant, shotéiast, hedge or profit interest or other
transaction has been entered into by or on behalich person, or any affiliates or associatesiohgerson, with respect to stock of the
Corporation, and (D) whether and the extent to tvlaicy other transaction, agreement, arrangemamiderstanding (including any short
position or any borrowing or lending of sharestotk of the Corporation) has been made by or omlbelfi such person, or any affiliates or
associates of such person, the effect or inteahgfof the foregoing being to mitigate loss totmmanage risk or benefit of stock price char
for, such person, or any affiliates or associatesioh person, or to increase or decrease theg/ptiver or pecuniary or economic interest of
such person, or any affiliates or associates di petson, with respect to stock of the Corporat{oiy;a description of all agreements,
arrangements, or understandings (whether writterraly between or among such person, or any aé#iar associates of such person, and an
other person or persons (including their namespimection with the proposal of such business agdwaterial interest of such person or any
affiliates or associates of such person, in sudiness, including any anticipated benefit thereftorauch person, or any affiliates or associate
of such person; (iv) whether the stockholder giviagice intends, or is part of a group that intetdsolicit proxies from other stockholders in
support of such proposal; (v) a representationtti@stockholder giving notice intends to appegyarson or by proxy at the annual meeting to
bring such business before the meeting; and (vi)adimer information relating to such person thatldde required to be disclosed in a proxy
statement or other filing required to be made inn&xtion with the solicitation of proxies by sudrgon with respect to the proposed busines:
to be brought by such person before the annualingeptirsuant to Section 14 of the Securities Exglkaict of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulations priyated thereunder.

A stockholder providing notice of business propogele brought before an annual meeting shall éurtipdate and supplement
such notice, if necessary, so that the informapimvided or required to be provided in such nogigesuant to this Section 2.07 shall be true
correct as of the record date for determining tbeldolders entitled to receive notice of the ahmoueeting. Such update and supplement shal
be delivered to or be mailed and received by theeSary at the principal office of the Corporatiwst later than five business days after the
record date for determining the stockholders etitb receive notice of the annual meeting. Notlsimgtained in this Section 2.07 shall be
deemed to affect any rights of stockholders to estjinclusion of proposals in the Corporation’sxgretatement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under
the Exchange Act (or any successor provision oj.law

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thiscfen 2.07, unless otherwise required by law orBbard or the chair of the
annual meeting determines otherwise, if the stolddrqor a qualified representative of the stockieo) does not appear at the annual meeting
of stockholders of the Corporation to present tfoppsed business, such proposed business shéiéinsacted, notwithstanding that proxie:
in respect of such vote may have been receivetidorporation. For purposes of this Section 2@Be considered a qualified representative
of the stockholder, a person must be authorizeal Wyiting executed by such stockholder or an ebmitrtransmission delivered by such
stockholder to act for such stockholder as proxhatmeeting of stockholders and such person mragiupe such writing or electronic
transmission, or a reliable reproduction of thetimgi or electronic transmission, at the meetingtotkholders.

No business shall be conducted at the annual ngeeticept in accordance with the procedures sdt forthis Section 2.07;

provided, however, that nothing in this Section72sball be deemed to preclude discussion by amkistdder of any business properly brought
before the annual meeting.
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The chair of the annual meeting shall, if the fagssrant, determine and declare to the meetingtihsiness was not properly
brought before the meeting in accordance with $leistion 2.07 and if he should so determine, hd sbaleclare to the meeting and any such
business not properly brought before the meetiad sbt be transacted.

Section 2.08.ist of Stockholders. The Secretary of the Corporation shall prepareraakle, at least ten (10) days before every meefi
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholdetitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alptiahkorder, and showing the address of each
stockholder and the number of shares registeréiteimame of each stockholder. Such list shall lmnap the examination of any stockholder,
for any purpose germane to the meeting, duringharglibusiness hours, for a period of at least18) days prior to the meeting, as required b
applicable law. The list shall also be produced eyt at the time and place of the meeting dutirgvithole time thereof, and may be inspe:
by any stockholder who is present.

Section 2.09nspectors. Prior to each meeting of the stockholders, one arennspectors shall be appointed by the Boardf ng such
appointment shall have been made, such inspedialistge appointed by the chair of the meeting,citleereat. Each inspector so appointed
shall first subscribe an oath or affirmation faithy to execute the duties of an inspector at sueleting with strict impartiality and according
the best of his or her ability. Such inspectorfsllistake charge of the ballots at such meetingntthe ballots cast on any question and delive
a written report of the results thereof to the sty of such meeting. The inspector(s) need netdekholders of the Corporation. Any officer
of the Corporation may be an inspector on any questher than a vote for or against his or hectéda to any position with the Corporation
on any other question in which he or she may hbectlir interested other than as a stockholder.

Section 2.1Regulationsfor Conduct of Stockholders Meeting. The Board may adopt by resolution such rules agdlagions for the
conduct of the meeting of stockholders as it stiedim appropriate. Except to the extent inconsist@htsuch rules and regulations adopted by
the Board, the chair of any meeting of stockholddal have the right and authority to convene agjdurn the meeting, to prescribe such
rules, regulations and procedures and to do ali aats as, in the judgment of such chair, are gpjai@ for the proper conduct of the meeting.
Such rules, regulations or procedures, whethertaddpy the Board or prescribed by the chair ofntfeeting, may include, without limitation,
the following: (a) the establishment of an agendarder of business for the meeting; (b) rules pratedures for maintaining order at the
meeting and the safety of those present; andr{ifdliions on the time allotted to questions or camta by participants. Unless and to the
extent determined by the Board or the chair oftfeeting, meetings of stockholders shall not beireduo be held in accordance with the n
of parliamentary procedure.

ARTICLEIII.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 3.0%General Powers. The property, business and affairs of the Corponathall be managed by or under the direction ®f th
Board, who may exercise all such powers of the @aton and do all such lawful acts and thingsrashat by Delaware Law, the Certificate
of Incorporation or these Bylaws directed or regdito be exercised or done by the stockholderseo€orporation.

Section 3.0Number. The exact number of directors shall be fixed frimmetto time, within the limits specified in the @&cate of
Incorporation, by resolution of the Board.

Section 3.0FElection of Directors.

(a) Voting. The directors shall be elected annually by thekstoltlers of the Corporation. A nominee for directball be elected k
the vote of the majority of votes cast with resgeaiuch nomineg’election, except that directors shall be elebied plurality of the votes ce
in a contested election. An election is contestéioel number of nominees exceeds the number oftdireto be elected. For election of
directors, a majority of the votes cast meanstti@nhumber of votes cast “for” a nominee exceedsstites cast “againsthat nominee, withot
counting abstentions as votes cast. If directad@be elected by a plurality vote, stockholdeay mot vote against a nominee.
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(b) Nomination of Directors. Only persons who are nominated in accordance Wwéldllowing procedures shall be eligible for
election as directors of the Corporation. Nominadiof persons for election to the Board may be na@emeeting of stockholders (1) by or at
the direction of the Board, (2) by the Nominatimgl@orporate Governance Committee (or any other authorized committee of the Board),
or (3) by any stockholder of the Corporation wha stockholder of record at the time of the givirignotice provided for in this Section 3.03
and on the record date for the determination afidtolders entitled to notice of and to vote at seeeting and who complies with the notice
procedures set forth in this Section 3.03(b). Idith to any other applicable requirements, foaination to be made by a stockholder, sucl
stockholder must have given timely notice in watio the Secretary of the Corporation. To be timalgtockholder’s notice to the Secretary o
the Corporation must be delivered to or mailed r@e@ived at the principal office of the Corporatiwot later than the close of business on the
90th day, nor earlier than the close of businestheri20th day, prior to the first anniversarylt# preceding year’s annual meeting (provided,
however, that in the event that the date of thesahmeeting is more than 30 days before or mone fedays after such anniversary date,
notice by the stockholder must be so delivereceadier than the close of business on the 120thpday to such annual meeting and not later
than the close of business on the later of the 88jhprior to such annual meeting or the 10th d#lgwWwing the day on which public
announcement of the date of such meeting is fiesterby the Corporation). In no event shall the jpisinouncement of an adjournment or
postponement of an annual meeting commence a nevperiod (or extend any time period) for the givaf a stockholder’s notice as
described above.

Such stockholder’s notice to the Secretary shalfiaséh: (a) as to each person whom the stockhgldeposes to nominate for
election or re-election as a director (i) the naag®, business address and residence addresshgiengon, (ii) the principal occupation or
employment of such person, (iii) (A) the class@iiess and number of all shares of stock of the @an which are owned beneficially or of
record by such person and any affiliates or astexiaf such person, (B) the name of each nominkelehof shares of all stock of the
Corporation owned beneficially but not of recorddugch person or any affiliates or associates df pgeson, and the number of such shares o
stock of the Corporation held by each such nomhadéder, (C) whether and the extent to which anyvadirve instrument, swap, option,
warrant, short interest, hedge or profit interesdtber transaction has been entered into by dretwalf of such person, or any affiliates or
associates of such person, with respect to stottkeo€orporation and (D) whether and the extemthizh any other transaction, agreement,
arrangement or understanding (including any shasitipn or any borrowing or lending of shares aicktof the Corporation) has been made
or on behalf of such person, or any affiliatesssoziates of such person, the effect or intenhgfd the foregoing being to mitigate loss to, or
to manage risk or benefit of stock price changessiach person, or any affiliates or associatesioh person, or to increase or decrease the
voting power or pecuniary or economic interestuatsperson, or any affiliates or associates of grhon, with respect to stock of the
Corporation; and (iv) any other information relgtito such person that would be required to be ased in a proxy statement or other filings
required to be made in connection with solicitagiof proxies for election of directors pursuangtxtion 14 of the Exchange Act, and the r
and regulations promulgated thereunder; and () & stockholder giving the notice, and the bierafowner, if any, on whose behalf the
nomination is being made, (i) the name and recdditess of such person; (ii) (A) the class or sai@snumber of all shares of stock of the
Corporation which are owned beneficially or of netby such person and any affiliates or associaftesch person, (B) the name of each
nominee holder of shares of the Corporation owregteficially but not of record by such person or affiliates or associates of such person,
and the number of shares of stock of the Corpardt&d by each such nominee holder, (C) whetheitlam@xtent to which any derivative
instrument, swap, option, warrant, short interestige or profit interest or other transaction heenbentered into by or on behalf of such
person, or any affiliates or associates of suchgerwith respect to stock of the Corporation ddvihether and the extent to which any other
transaction, agreement, arrangement or undersigfidiciuding any short position or any borrowinge@mding of shares of stock of the
Corporation) has been made by or on behalf of packon, or any affiliates or associates of suchgerthe effect or intent of any of the
foregoing being to mitigate loss to, or to mandgk or benefit of stock price changes for, suctsper or any affiliates or associates of such
person, or to increase or decrease the voting pomgecuniary or economic interest of such persony affiliates or associates of such
person, with respect to stock of the Corporati@i);g description of all agreements, arrangementsinderstandings (whether written or oral)
between such person, or any affiliates or assateuch person, and any proposed nominee orthey person or persons (including their
names) pursuant to which the nomination(s) aregoiade by such person, and any material interesiaif person, or any affiliates or
associates of such person, in such nominationjdig any
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anticipated benefit therefrom to such person, gradfiliates or associates of such person; (i@@resentation that the stockholder giving nc
intends to appear in person or by proxy at the imgéb nominate the persons named in its noticea (epresentation whether such stockhc
intends, or is part of a group that intends, tacégbroxies from other stockholders in supporsath nomination; and (vi) any other informat
relating to such person that would be requiredetalisclosed in a proxy statement or other filingguired to be made in connection with the
solicitation of proxies for election of directorarguant to Section 14 of the Exchange Act andufesrand regulations promulgated thereunde
Such notice must be accompanied by a written cardesach proposed nominee to being named as aneenaind to serve as a director if
elected. The Corporation may require any proposedimee to furnish such other information as mageeably be required by the Corporat
to determine the eligibility of such proposed noedro serve as a director of the Corporation.

A stockholder providing notice of any nominatiomposed to be made at a meeting of stockholderkfahidler update and
supplement such notice, if necessary, so thantleennation provided or required to be provideduts notice pursuant to this Section 3.03(b)
shall be true and correct as of the record datdétermining the stockholders entitled to receigtae of the meeting. Such update and
supplement shall be delivered to or be mailed aodived by the Secretary at the principal officéhef Corporation not later than five business
days after the record date for determining theks$tolzlers entitled to receive notice of such meeting

No person shall be eligible for election as a doeof the Corporation unless nominated in accocdamith the procedures set forth
herein. Notwithstanding anything above to the cmytrin the event that the number of directorsd@lected to the Board at an annual meetin
is increased and there is no public announcemetitdborporation naming the nominees for the amuidi directorships at least 100 days priol
to the first anniversary of the preceding year'sual meeting, a stockholder’s notice required iy 8ection 3.03(b) shall also be considered
timely, but only with respect to nominees for tliglitional directorships, if it shall be deliveramthe Secretary of the Corporation at the
principal executive offices of the Corporation fater than the close of business on the 10th digwiimg the day on which such public
announcement is first made by the Corporation.

The chair of the meeting shall, if the facts watraetermine and declare to the meeting that a matioin was not made in
accordance with the foregoing procedure and, ittier should so determine, the chair shall soattedb the meeting, and the defective
nomination shall be disregarded.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thiscen 3.03(b), unless otherwise required by appliedaw or the Board or the
chair of the annual meeting determines otherwfgbgistockholder (or a qualified representativéhef stockholder) does not appear at the
annual or special meeting of stockholders of thepBi@tion to present a nomination, such nominasiall be disregarded, notwithstanding -
proxies in respect of such vote may have beenveddiy the Corporation. For purposes of this Sac3i®3(b), to be considered a qualified
representative of the stockholder, a person muatiieorized by a writing executed by such stockéolt an electronic transmission delivered
by such stockholder to act for such stockholdesragy at the meeting of stockholders and such pensast produce such writing or electronic
transmission, or a reliable reproduction of thetingi or electronic transmission, at the meetingtotkholders.

Section 3.0Resignations. Any director of the Corporation may resign at anyet by giving written notice or notice by electroni
transmission to the Board or to the Secretary @Gbrporation. Any such resignation shall takeafét the time specified therein, or, if the
time be not specified, it shall take effect immeeligupon its receipt; and unless otherwise spettifherein, the acceptance of such resignatio
shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 3.0Removal. Unless otherwise restricted by statute, the Ceatifi of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any direciothe entire
Board may be removed with or without cause by thlddrs of twothirds of the total voting power of all outstandisiyares then entitled to vc
at an election of directors.

Section 3.08/acancies. Except as otherwise provided in the Certificaténobrporation, any vacancy in the Board, whethealise of
death, resignation, disqualification, an increastiheé number of directors, or any other cause, omdy be filled by vote of the majority of the
remaining directors, although less than a quoruachElirector so chosen to fill a vacancy shall affate until his or her successor shall have
been elected and shall qualify or until such dveshall resign or shall have been removed.
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Section 3.0First Meeting. The Board shall meet as soon as practicable aitdr annual election of directors and notice of dirsh
meeting shall not be required.

Section 3.0&Regular M eetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at Suoéstas the Board shall from time to time by
resolution determine. If any day fixed for a reguteeeting shall be a legal holiday at the placere/tiee meeting is to be held, then the mee
shall be held at the same hour and place on thiesnegeeding business day not a legal holiday. fixa® provided by applicable law, notice of
regular meetings need not be given.

Section 3.0%pecial M eetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called attiamg by the Chair of the Board, by the Chief Exaa
Officer or by the Secretary upon the written requést least one-third of the directors then ificgf. Such meetings shall be held at the
principal office of the Corporation, or at suchetlplace or places, within or without the Stat®efaware, as the person or persons calling the
meeting may designate.

Section 3.1@ommittees. The Board may designate one or more committeel, @aomittee to consist of one or more of the doescbf
the Corporation. The Board may designate one oerdectors as alternate members of any commiithe,may replace any absent or
disqualified member at any meeting of the commitke¢he absence or disqualification of a membex obmmittee, the member or members
present at any meeting and not disqualified froitinge whether or not such member or members comst# quorum, may unanimously
appoint another member of the Board to act at teetimg in the place of any absent or disqualifiedhmher. Any such committee, to the extent
provided in the resolution of the Board, shall hand may exercise all the powers and authorithefBoard in the management of the busii
and affairs of the Corporation, and may authofieegeal of the Corporation to be affixed to allgrapvhich may require it; but no such
committee shall have the power or authority in mexfiee to (a) approving or adopting, or recommenthrifpe stockholders, any action or me
(other than the election or removal of directorg)ressly required by Delaware Law to be submittestockholders for approval or (b)
adopting, amending or repealing any of these Bylawmy such committee shall keep written minutegomeetings and report the same to the
Board at the next regular meeting of the Board. Bogrd committee may create one or more subcomesitisach subcommittee to consist of
one or more members of such committee, and delégdbte subcommittee any or all of the powers efdcbmmittee.

Section 3.1Notice of Meetings. Notice of all special meetings of the Board or mndttee shall be mailed to each director, addretsed
his or her residence or usual place of businedsast five (5) days before the day on which theting is to be held, or shall be personally
delivered or otherwise given by such delivery me@gglecopy, electronic or other) as the Secretagnts appropriate and in compliance with
applicable law, at least two (2) days before the atawhich the meeting is to be held. Such noties lve waived by any director and any
meeting shall be a legal meeting without noticeitngwbeen given if all the directors shall be prédbareat or if those not present shall, either
before or after the meeting, waive notice of orsmot to (in writing or by electronic transmissiauch meeting or shall after the meeting sign
the approval of the minutes thereof. All such wesyeonsents or approvals shall be filed with theoorate records or be made a part of the
minutes of the meeting.

Section 3.12Place of Meeting, Etc. The Board (or committee of the Board) may hold ahigs meetings at such place or places withi
without the State of Delaware as the Board (orcttiamittee) may from time to time by resolution desite or as shall be designated by the
person or persons calling the meeting or in theaair a waiver of notice of any such meeting. Bines may participate in any regular or
special meeting of the Board or a committee by reedirtonference telephone or other communicatigungenent pursuant to which all
persons participating in the meeting can hear ettodr, and such participation shall constitute gmes in person at such meeting.

Section 3.13uorum and Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws obélaware Law, the presence of a
majority of the total number of directors shallreguired to constitute a quorum for the transaatibbusiness at any meeting of the Board anc
the presence of a majority of the total numberigdadors then serving on a committee of the Bohall e required to constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business at any meeting of soofmittee, and all matters shall be decided atsaiej meeting, a quorum being present, by
the affirmative votes of a majority of the dire@qresent. In the absence of a quorum at any ngeetiany adjournment thereof, a majority of
directors present may adjourn such meeting frore tiontime. At any adjourned meeting at which a goois present, any business may be
transacted which might have been transacted at the
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meeting as originally called. Notice of any adjeeormeeting need not be given. The directors shabrly as a Board or as a committee
thereof, and the individual directors shall haveppaer as such.

Section 3.14Action by Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at ar@eting of the Board or of any committee thereof
may be taken without a meeting if all members efBoard or such committee consent thereto in vgritinby electronic transmission, as the
case may be, and such written consent or electtarismission is filed with the minutes of proceei of the Board or committee.

Section 3.1%ompensation. The directors shall receive such compensationhfeir services as directors, and such additional
compensation for their services as members of amyttees of the Board, as may be authorized byterd.

Section 3.1@oard L eader ship.

(a) Chair of the Board . The Board may elect or appoint, from among itsniners, a Chair of the Board and one or more Vice
Chairs of the Board, who shall not be considereditiye of holding such position officers of ther@oration. The Chair of the Board, when
present, shall preside at all meetings of the $tolclers of the Corporation and of the Board. Thai€bf the Board shall perform, under the
direction and subject to the control of the Boaitiduties incident to the office of Chair of the&@d and such other duties as the Board may
assign to the Chair of the Board from time to time.

(b) Lead Director. At any time the Chair of the Board is not indepeanides that term is defined in the Corporation’spiooate
Governance Guidelines and any additional indepeceleriteria established by the Board of Directthve,Securities and Exchange Commis
and the New York Stock Exchange, the independeatiirs may designate from among them a Lead Diréetving the duties and
responsibilities required by any applicable rulethe New York Stock Exchange and as otherwiserdeted by the Board of Directors from
time to time.

ARTICLEIV.
OFFICERS

Section 4.0Principal Officers. The principal officers of the Corporation shalld€hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officeme
or more Presidents of various ranks, one or moeeiive Vice Presidents, a Secretary, a Contratkera Treasurer, all of whom shall serve
under the direction and subject to the controhefBoard.

Section 4.02Additional Officersand Agents. In addition to the principal officers designatedection 4.01, the Board may from time
to time elect such other officers and agents amit deem necessary or advisable, including oneooe Mice Presidents of various rank, one o
more Assistant Vice Presidents, one or more AstiSacretaries, one or more Assistant Treasunedsaa Assistant Controller, each of which
officers and agents shall be subject to the cowfrtte Board and have such authority and perfaroh sluties as are provided in these Bylaws
or as the Board, Chair of the Board or Chief ExiweuDfficer may from time to time determine. Eatlch officer shall hold office until his or
her successor shall have been duly chosen andigdali until his or her earlier resignation, rerabwr other disqualification for service. No
person shall be deemed an officer of the Corparatidess and until elected as an officer by ther@@aaccordance with Section 4.02 or
Section 4.03.

Section 4.0Flection. The officers of the Corporation shall be electedusdly (or at such other intervals as the Board aetgrmine) by
the Board. Each such officer shall hold office Linig or her successor shall have been duly eleatedqualified or until his or her earlier
resignation, removal or other disqualification $ervice.

Section 4.0RKRemoval. All officers and agents of the Corporation, eleabeppointed by the Board, may be removed, eitliir or
without cause, at any time, by (a) resolution addfty the Board or (b) if the officer or agent @& a principal officer by the Chief Executive
Officer (or someone to whom the Chief Executivei€gff has delegated this authority).

Section 4.09Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving writteotice to the Board, the Chair of the Board,@ihef
Executive Officer or the Secretary of the CorpanatiAny such resignation shall take
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effect at the date of the receipt of such noticatany later time specified therein; and unlebemtise specified therein, the acceptance of
resignation shall not be necessary to make it gfiec

Section 4.06/acancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignatiemoval, disqualification, or other cause, rhayfilled in
the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regydapantments to such office.

Section 4.0TChief Executive Officer. Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as begiven by the Board to the Chair of the Bo
if any, the Chief Executive Officer, if such officis appointed, shall, subject to the control & Board, have general supervision, direction an
control of the business and officers of the
Corporation. In the event of the death, disabiityother absence of the Chair of the Board, theedwif the Chair of the Board may be
performed by the Chief Executive Officer, includipgesiding at any meeting of the Board or the diotkers of the Corporation. The Chief
Executive Officer may execute (in facsimile or athise) and deliver certificates for shares of tleg@ration, any deeds, mortgages, bonds,
contracts or other instruments that the Board b#sogsized to be executed and delivered, excepases where the execution and delivery
thereof shall be expressly and exclusively delefyadeone or more other officers or agents of thep@rtion by the Board or these Bylaws, or
where the execution and delivery thereof shalldmgiired by applicable law to be executed and dedivéy another person.

Section 4.08resident(s). Individuals appointed to the office of Presideralsperform, under the direction and subject todbaetrol of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, all datincident to the office of President and suclenthuties as the Board or Chief Executive
Officer may assign to such President from timerteet The President may execute (in facsimile oentlise) and deliver certificates for shares
of the Corporation, any deeds, mortgages, bondadraxts or other instruments that the Board oiGhef Executive Officer has authorized to
be executed and delivered, except in cases whemxtircution and delivery thereof shall be expreasty exclusively delegated to one or more
other officers of agents of the Corporation by Board or these Bylaws, or where the execution atidety thereof shall be required by
applicable law to be executed and delivered bytargierson. Individuals appointed to the officéadsident of an organizational unit of the
Corporation or Group President shall perform, uriderdirection and subject to the control of theilp the Chief Executive Officer and the
President of the Corporation and shall have susbratuties as the Board, Chief Executive OfficePmgsident of the Corporation may assigc
such officers from time to time.

Section 4.09/ice Presidents. Each Vice President of the Corporation shall penfaunder the direction and subject to the contfdhe
Board, the Chief Executive Officer or Presidenttsduties as the Board, the Chief Executive Offia@y President or such other office or
officers may assign to such Vice President fronettmtime. Vice Presidents of the Corporation mayusther designated as Executive Vice
Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents, Vice PresidAstsistant Vice Presidents or such other simitir &s the Board may designate.

Section 4.1(Becretary. The Secretary of the Corporation or his or herglest shall attend all meetings of the stockholdétee
Corporation, the Board and committees establislyatidoBoard and shall record correctly the proasgsiof such meetings in a book suitable
for such purposes. The Secretary shall attestavitignature and the seal of the Corporation (ieifaite or otherwise) all stock certificates
issued by the Corporation and shall keep or caube kept a stock ledger in which all transactjpadaining to shares of all classes and serie:
of capital stock of the Corporation shall be cotlserecorded. The Secretary shall also attest witignature and the seal of the Corporation (ir
facsimile or otherwise) all deeds, conveyancegieranstruments requiring the seal of the CorponatfThe Chair of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer or the Secretary shall give, ange to be given, notice of all meetings of theldtolders of the Corporation and special
meetings of the Board or committees establishetth®yBoard. The Secretary is authorized to issutficates, to which the corporate seal may
be affixed, attesting to the incumbency of officefshe Corporation or to actions duly taken by stmckholders of the Corporation, the Board
or any committee established by the Board. Theebagr shall perform, under the direction and sutijg¢he control of the Board and the ClI
Executive Officer, all duties incident to the offiof Secretary and such other duties as the BoattedChief Executive Officer may assign to
the Secretary from time to time. The duties of Sleeretary may also be performed by any Assistarre®ey of the Corporation.

Section 4.1 Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation iargeral shall supervise all of the financial affairs
of the Corporation, under the direction and suliethe control of the Board and the Chief Exeautdfficer. The Chief Financial Officer shall
perform, under the direction and subject to the
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control of the Board and the Chief Executive Offfja| duties incident to the office of Chief Firaal Officer and such other duties as the
Board or the Chief Executive Officer may assigtht® Chief Financial Officer from time to time.

Section 4.12Zreasurer. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall have the aad custody of all the funds, notes, bonds, dabes stock
and other securities of the Corporation that maypemto the hands of the Treasurer, acting in sagiacity. The Treasurer shall be respons
for the investment and reinvestment of funds ofGloeporation in accordance with general investnpatities determined from time to time by
the Corporation and shall ensure that the Corpmras adequately funded at all times by arrangimgler the direction and subject to the
control of the Board, the Chief Executive Officand the Chief Financial Officer, for the issuantdebt, equity and other forms of securities
that may be necessary or appropriate. The Treamagrendorse (in facsimile or otherwise) checkaftdy notes, bonds, debentures and other
instruments for the payment of money for depositallection when necessary or appropriate and negpsit the same to the credit of the
Corporation in such banks or depositories as trer@may designate from time to time, and the Tneasunay endorse (in facsimile or
otherwise) all commercial documents requiring eedorents for or on behalf of the Corporation. TheaSurer may deliver instructions to
financial institutions by facsimile or otherwiseh& Treasurer may execute (in facsimile or othenaslaeceipts and vouchers for payments
made to the Corporation. The Treasurer shall readerccount of the Treasurer’s transactions t@tied or its Audit Committee as often as
the Board or its Audit Committee shall require frtime to time. The Treasurer shall enter regularlihe books to be kept by the Treasurer fo
that purpose, a full and adequate account of afliesoreceived and paid by the Treasurer on acaithe Corporation. If requested by the
Board, the Treasurer shall give a bond to the Qaitjgn for the faithful performance of the Treasisaluties, the expenses of which bond ¢
be borne by the Corporation. The Treasurer shalbpa, under the direction and subject to the aardf the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, all dutiegident to the office of Treasurer and such othdfes as the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer or the Chief Financial Officer may assignthe Treasurer from time to time. The duties efTheasurer may be performed by any
Assistant Treasurer of the Corporation.

Section 4.1 ontroaller. The Controller of the Corporation shall be the Eaecounting officer of the Corporation, shall ntain
adequate records of all assets, liabilities anustations of the Corporation and shall be resptil the design, installation and maintenance
of accounting and cost control systems and proesdinroughout the Corporation. The Controller alsall keep in books belonging to the
Corporation full and accurate accounts of recedftand disbursements made by, the Corporation.Cdreroller shall render an account of the
Controller’'s transactions to the Board or its Auddmmittee as often as the Board or its Audit Cottaaishall require from time to time. The
Controller shall perform, under the direction anbiject to the control of the Board, the Chief Exa@iOfficer and the Chief Financial Office
all duties incident to the office of Controller asdich other duties as the Board, the Chief Exeeudifficer and the Chief Financial Officer, n
assign to the Controller from time to time. Theiesibf the Controller may also be performed by Asgistant Controller of the Corporation.

ARTICLE V.
DELEGATIONSOF AUTHORITY

Section 5.0Execution of Contracts. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, thar& may authorize any officer or officers,
agent or agents, to enter into any contract or@eegny instrument in the name of and on behati®fCorporation, and such authority may be
general or confined to specific instances; andss$® authorized by the Board or by these Bylawsfficer, agent or employee shall have
power or authority to bind the Corporation by appitact or engagement or to pledge its credit oetaler it liable for any purpose or in any
amount.

Section 5.0ZChecks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for payment afiy, notes or other evidence of indebtednessd
in the name of or payable to the Corporation, deakigned or endorsed by such person or persahism anch manner as, from time to time,
shall be determined by resolution of the Board.hEsach officer, assistant, agent or attorney gjiedl such bond, if any, as the Board may
require.

Section 5.0Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employttll be deposited from time to time to the creélihe
Corporation in such banks, trust companies or albpositories as the Board may select, or
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as may be selected by any officer or officers,stast or assistants, agent or agents, or attomaitarneys of the Corporation to whom such
power shall have been delegated by the Board.Heoparpose of deposit and for the purpose of didiedor the account of the Corporation,
the Chair of the Board, the Chief Executive Offidae Chief Financial Officer, any President, thedBurer or any Vice President who has |
authorized by the Chief Executive Officer, Chiefi&mcial Officer or Treasurer to do so (or any otféicer or officers, assistant or assistants,
agent or agents, or attorney or attorneys of thgp@ation who shall from time to time be determimgdhe Board) may endorse, assign and
deliver checks, drafts and other orders for themgayt of money which are payable to the order ofGbgporation.

Section 5.045eneral and Special Bank Accounts. The Board (or a committee of the Board to whichhspower is delegated) may from
time to time authorize the opening and keepingesfegal and special bank accounts with such banlst,dompanies or other depositories as
the Board (or committee) may select or as may leetsal by any officer or officers, assistant ongtasts, agent or agents, or attorney or
attorneys of the Corporation to whom such powel $laae been delegated by the Board. The Boardmmele such special rules and
regulations with respect to such bank accountsineonsistent with the provisions of these Bylaasjt may deem expedient.

ARTICLE VI.
SHARES AND SHARE TRANSFER

Section 6.0Certificates Representing Stock.

(a) Form and Execution of Certificates. Certificates (if any) representing shares of stmckny bond, debenture or other corporat
securities of the Corporation shall be in such fasis consistent with the Certificate of Incorgimaand applicable law, and shall be
numbered in the order in which they shall be issaredi shall be signed in the name of the Corpordtjothe President or a Vice President, anc
by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary or byltieasurer or an Assistant Treasurer. Any oflasfahe signatures on the certificates may b
a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agemnegistrar who has signed, or whose facsimile gigeshas been placed upon, any such
certificate has ceased to be such officer, trarefent or registrar before such certificate is@glsisuch certificate may be issued by the
Corporation with the same effect as though thegrevgho signed such certificate, or whose facsisigmature shall have been placed
thereupon, were such officer, transfer agent astexy at the date of issue.

(b) Special Designation on Certificates. If the Corporation is authorized to issue more tbaa class of stock or more than one
series of any class, then the powers, the desargtihe preferences, and the relative, particigatiptional or other special rights of each clas
of stock or series thereof and the qualificatidinsitations or restrictions of such preferences/andghts shall be set forth in full or
summarized on the face or back of the certifichte the Corporation shall issue to represent slads or series of stock; provided, however,
that, except as otherwise provided in Section Z@Metaware Law, in lieu of the foregoing requirertethere may be set forth on the face or
back of the certificate that the Corporation skssllie to represent such class or series of stetk@ment that the Corporation will furnish
without charge to each stockholder who so requhstpowers, the designations, the preferencesthenilative, participating, optional or ot
special rights of each class of stock or seriesetifeand the qualifications, limitations or restivos of such preferences and/or rights.

(c) Lost Certificates. Except as provided in this Section 6.01(c), no wentificates for shares shall be issued to repdace
previously issued certificate unless the lattesusendered to the Corporation and canceled ataime time. The Corporation may issue a new
certificate of stock in the place of any certifiegireviously issued by it, alleged to have beet) &islen, mutilated or destroyed, and the
Corporation may require the owner of the lost,estpmutilated or destroyed certificate, or the ovgkegal representative, to give the
Corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it agatiany claim that may be made against it on accolhie alleged loss, theft, mutilation or
destruction of any such certificate or the issuasfcgich new certificate; provided, however, thatw certificate or uncertificated share may
be issued without requiring any bond when, in tidgment of the Board, or the Secretary of the Qatjam, it is proper so to do.

Section 6.02Jncertificated Shares. Subject to any conditions imposed by Delaware LtheBoard may provide by resolution or
resolutions that some or all of any or all classeseries of the stock of the Corporation
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shall be uncertificated shares. Within a reasontile after the issuance or transfer of any unftested shares, the Corporation shall send to
the registered owner thereof any written noticespribed by Delaware Law.

Section 6.03ransfers of Stock. Upon compliance with provisions restricting thenster or registration of transfer of shares of Istdfc
any, transfers or registrations of transfers ofahaf stock of the Corporation shall be made onlyhe books of the Corporation by the
registered holder thereof, or by the attorney efrégistered holder thereunto authorized by powattorney duly executed and filed with the
Secretary, or with a transfer clerk or a transt@md, if any, and with respect to shares repreddmecertificates, upon surrender of the
certificate or certificates for such shares properidorsed, and with respect to uncertificatedesharpon the execution by the transferor and
transferee of all transfer documents in such fosrtha Corporation shall reasonably require, anth mspect to all shares, upon the payme
all taxes thereon. The person in whose name sbégstsck stand on the books of the Corporationldletieemed the owner thereof for all
purposes as regards the Corporation. Whenevertamgsare pledged for collateral security suchdhatl be reflected on the books of the
Corporation.

Section 6.0Regulations. The Board may make such rules and regulationsraaytdeem expedient, not inconsistent with thedavy,
concerning the issue, transfer and registratioredificates for shares of the stock of the Corpiora It may appoint, or authorize any officer
officers to appoint, one or more transfer clerksme or more transfer agents and one or more ragisand may require all certificates for
stock to bear the signature or signatures of ankierh.

Section 6.05-ixing Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record. In order that the Corporation may determine theldtolders
entitled to notice of or to vote at any meetingtafckholders or any adjournment thereof, or ewtittereceive payment of any dividend or othe
distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitléo exercise any rights in respect of any othangle, conversion or exchange of stock or fo
purpose of any other lawful action, the Board niayif advance, a record date, which shall not lmeenthan 60 nor less than 10 days before
the date of such meeting, nor more than 60 days fwiany other action. If in any case involving ttetermination of stockholders for any
purpose other than notice of or voting at a meatingtockholders, the Board shall not fix such@ord date, the record date for determining
stockholders for such purpose shall be the closmisiness on the day on which the Board shall atth@ptesolution relating thereto. A
determination of stockholders entitled to noticeofo vote at a meeting of stockholders shall applany adjournment of such meeting;
provided, however, that the Board may fix a nevordaate for the adjourned meeting.

ARTICLE VII.
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.03Seal. The Board shall provide a corporate seal, whicll §ieain the form of a circle and shall bear thenesof the
Corporation and words and figures showing thaiGheporation was incorporated in the State of Detavead the year of incorporation.

Section 7.02Vaiver of Notices. Whenever notice is required to be given by thedawy, the Certificate of Incorporation or Delaware
Law, the person entitled to said notice may waivwghsnotice (in writing or by electronic transmissipeither before or after the time stated
therein, and such waiver shall be deemed equivadembtice.

Section 7.03Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin lo@ day after the Friday closest to December 3hdah gear.

Section 7.0/Amendments. These Bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, aeeiod repealed, and new Bylaws may be made by the
Board, by vote of a majority of the number of dtoes then in office as directors, acting at any tingeof the Board. No section of the Bylaws
shall be adopted, repealed, altered, amended @ndesl by the stockholders of the Corporation ekbgphe vote of the holders of not less 1
two-thirds of the total voting power of all outsthimg shares of voting stock of the Corporation.

Section 7.0Pesignation of Engineer. The Corporation engages in the practice of engingén various jurisdictions which regulate
such practice, including the State of Washingtarorder to comply with the laws of such jurisdiciso including the State of Washington, all
engineering decisions pertaining to any projeargineering activities in any such jurisdictionlsba made by a designated engineer license
to practice in such jurisdiction who shall be apped by the Board from time to time as vacanciesioc
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BYLAWS
OF
LEIDOS, INC.
(a Delawar e cor por ation)

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

Section 1.0Registered Office. The registered office of LEIDOS, INC. (the “Corptioa”) in the State of Delaware shall be at 1209
Orange Street, City of Wilmington, County of Newsfla, and the name of the registered agent in eltheyeof shall be The Corporation Trus
Company.

Section 1.0Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of the imess of the Corporation shall be at 11951 FreeDanre,
Reston, Virginia 20190. The Board of Directors (tBeard”) is hereby granted full power and authptit change said principal office from
one location to another.

Section 1.0Dther Offices. The Corporation may also have an office or offigesuch other place or places, either within ohaiit the
State of Delaware, as the Board may from timene tdletermine or as the business of the Corporatmnrequire.

ARTICLEII
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 2.0JAnnual Meetings. An annual meeting of stockholders shall be heldtierelection of directors and to transact suclkeroth
business as may properly be brought before theingeet

Section 2.05pecial M eetings. Special meetings of the stockholders of the Cotpmrdor any purpose or purposes may be calledhat a
time by the Board, or by a committee of the Boahiclw has been duly designated by the Board and evbowers and authority, as providec
a resolution of the Board or in the Bylaws, include power to call such meetings, but such spewégdtings may not be called by any other
person or persons; provided, however, that if anthé extent that any special meeting of stockheldey be called by any other person or
persons specified in any provisions of the Ceditficof Incorporation or any amendment thereto grcantificate filed under Section 151(g) of
the General Corporation Law of the State of DelanéDelaware Law”) (or its successor statute asffact from time to time hereafter), then
such special meeting may also be called by theopesspersons, in the manner, at the times anthépurposes so specified.

Section 2.03ime and Place of Meetings. All meetings of the stockholders shall be helduathsplaces, within or without the State of
Delaware, on such date and at such time as maytfroento time be designated by the person or parsaling the respective meeting and
specified in the respective notices or waiversaifoe thereof.

Section 2.0MNotice of Meetings and Adjourned M eetings; Waivers of Notice.

(a) Whenever stockholders are required or permitigdke any action at a meeting, a notice of teeting shall be given to stockholders
of the Corporation, as required by applicable haich shall state the place, date and hour of teetimg, and, in the case of a special meetinc
the purpose or purposes for which the meetinglisdtaNotice may be given by such delivery meanaileelecopy, electronic or other) as the
Secretary deems appropriate and in complianceapipicable law and shall be delivered to the stotddr’s address as it appears on the stoc
transfer records of the Corporation. Unless otheewequired by Delaware Law, such notice shallibengnot less than 10 nor more than 60
days before the date of the meeting to each stdd&hof record entitled to vote at such meetingleds otherwise expressly required by
Delaware Law, when a meeting is adjourned to amdtime or place (whether or not a quorum is présemtice need not be given of the
adjourned meeting if the time and place thereobamunced at the meeting at which the adjournisdaken. At the adjourned meeting, the
Corporation may transact any business which migketbeen transacted at the original meeting. latjeurnment is for more
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than 30 days, or after the adjournment a new redatel is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a noditthe adjourned meeting shall be given to
each stockholder of record entitled to vote atntieeting.

(b) Any waiver of any such notice given by the perentitled thereto, whether before or after theetstated therein, shall be deemed
equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person atating shall constitute a waiver of notice of sod®eting, except when the person attends th
meeting for the express purpose of objecting, aicth person objects at the beginning of the meetinthe transaction of any business becaus
the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. iBass transacted at any special meeting of stodkh®khall be limited to the purposes state
in the notice.

Section 2.0%uorum. Except as provided by Delaware Law, the holdergobrd of a majority in voting interest of the stapf stock o
the Corporation entitled to be voted thereat, preseperson or by proxy, shall constitute a quofonthe transaction of business at any
meeting of the stockholders of the Corporationryr adjournment thereof. In the absence of a quatamy meeting or any adjournment
thereof, a majority in voting interest of the stbolders present in person or by proxy and entitbeebte thereat or, in the absence therefrom ¢
all the stockholders, any officer entitled to pdesat, or to act as a secretary of, such meetingad@urn such meeting from time to time. At
any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum isgmte any business may be transacted which migfet heen transacted at the meeting as
originally called.

Section 2.06/cting.

(a) At each meeting of the stockholders, each $imider shall be entitled to vote, in person or byxy, each share or fractional share of
the stock of the Corporation having voting rightstbe matter in question and which shall have esdd by such stockholder and registered ir
such stockholder's name on the books of the Cotjoora

(i) on the date fixed pursuant to Section 6.05heke Bylaws as the record date for the determimatictockholders entitled to
notice of and to vote at such meeting, or

(i) if no such record date shall have been sodijxken (a) at the close of business on the dagrédiie day on which notice of the
meeting shall be given or (b) if notice of the nieghall be waived, at the close of business erddy before the day on which the
meeting shall be held.

(b) Shares of its own stock belonging to the Caaion or to another corporation, if a majority bétshares entitled to vote in the elec
of directors in such other corporation is heldedily or indirectly, by the Corporation, shall it be entitled to vote nor be counted for
quorum purposes.

(c) Any such voting rights may be exercised bydtuekholder entitled thereto in person or by hiserproxy delivered to the secretary
of the meeting; provided, however, that no proxglishe voted or acted upon after three (3) yeamnfits date unless said proxy shall provide
for a longer period. At any meeting of the stockleot all matters, except as otherwise provideténQertificate of Incorporation, these
Bylaws, Delaware Law, or any regulation applicabléhe Corporation or its securities, shall be dediby the vote of a majority in voting
interest of the stockholders present in persory@rbxy and entitled to vote thereon, a quorum pgiresent. The vote at any meeting of the
stockholders on any question need not be by balkatept as otherwise provided in the Certificatthabrporation or unless so directed by the
chair of the meeting. On a vote by ballot, eaclobahall be signed by the stockholder voting, whis or her proxy, if there be such proxy, .
it shall state the number of shares voted.

Section 2.0 ist of Stockholders. The Secretary of the Corporation shall prepareraakle, at least ten (10) days before every meefi
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholdetiled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alptiahkorder, and showing the address of each
stockholder and the number of shares registerédtkimame of each stockholder. Such list shall lmmap the examination of any stockholder,
for any purpose germane to the meeting, duringhargibusiness hours, for a period of at least18) days prior to the meeting, as required b
applicable law. The list shall also be produced legyt at the time and place of the meeting dutigvthole time thereof, and may be inspe:
by any stockholder who is present.

Section 2.08 nspectors. Prior to each meeting of the stockholders, one arenmspectors shall be appointed by the Boardf ng such
appointment shall have been made, such inspedtaliste appointed by the chair of the
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meeting, to act thereat. Each inspector so appbstiall first subscribe an oath or affirmationtiéitly to execute the duties of an inspector at
such meeting with strict impartiality and accordinghe best of his or her ability. Such inspedpshall take charge of the ballots at such
meeting, count the ballots cast on any questiondafider a written report of the results thereoftte secretary of such meeting. The inspector
(s) need not be stockholders of the Corporatiory. éfficer of the Corporation may be an inspectoaog question other than a vote for or
against his or her election to any position with @orporation or on any other question in whictohshe may be directly interested other than
as a stockholder.

Section 2.0Regulationsfor Conduct of Stockholders Meeting. The Board may adopt by resolution such rules agdlagions for the
conduct of the meeting of stockholders as it stiedim appropriate. Except to the extent inconsist@htsuch rules and regulations adopted by
the Board, the chair of any meeting of stockholddal have the right and authority to convene agjdurn the meeting, to prescribe such
rules, regulations and procedures and to do ali aats as, in the judgment of such chair, are gpjai@ for the proper conduct of the meeting.
Such rules, regulations or procedures, whethertaddpy the Board or prescribed by the chair ofntfeeting, may include, without limitation,
the following: (a) the establishment of an agendarder of business for the meeting; (b) rules mrmtedures for maintaining order at the
meeting and the safety of those present; andrifdliions on the time allotted to questions or camta by participants. Unless and to the
extent determined by the Board or the chair oftfeeting, meetings of stockholders shall not beirequo be held in accordance with the n
of parliamentary procedure.

ARTICLE Il
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 3.0%General Powers. The property, business and affairs of the Corponathall be managed by or under the direction ®f th
Board, who may exercise all such powers of the @ation and do all such lawful acts and thingsrashat by Delaware Law, the Certificate
of Incorporation or these Bylaws directed or regdito be exercised or done by the stockholderseo€orporation.

Section 3.0Number. The exact number of directors shall be fixed frimmetto time, within the limits specified in the @&cate of
Incorporation, by resolution of the Board.

Section 3.0Flection of Directors. The directors shall be elected annually by thekstoltlers of the Corporation and the persons
receiving the greatest number of votes, up to thmber of directors to be elected, shall be thegrexrshen elected. The election of directors is
subject to any provisions contained in the Cedificof Incorporation relating thereto, including gamovisions for a classified board and for
cumulative voting.

Section 3.0Resignations. Any director of the Corporation may resign at anyet by giving written notice or notice by electroni
transmission to the Board or to the Secretary @Gbrporation. Any such resignation shall takeafét the time specified therein, or, if the
time be not specified, it shall take effect immeeligupon its receipt; and unless otherwise spettifherein, the acceptance of such resignatio
shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 3.05/acancies. Except as otherwise provided in the Certificaténgbrporation, any vacancy in the Board, whetheabse of
death, resignation, disqualification, an increastiheé number of directors, or any other cause, omdy be filled by vote of the majority of the
remaining directors, although less than a quoruachEdirector so chosen to fill a vacancy shall hadfate until his or her successor shall have
been elected and shall qualify or until such dweshall resign or shall have been removed.

Section 3.06irst Meeting. The Board shall meet as soon as practicable atdr annual election of directors and notice of dirsh
meeting shall not be required.

Section 3.0Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at Suodstas the Board shall from time to time by
resolution determine. If any day fixed for a reguteeeting shall be a legal holiday at the placere/tiee meeting is to be held, then the mee
shall be held at the same hour and place on thesnegeeding business day not a legal holiday. i@ provided by applicable law, notice of
regular meetings need not be given.
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Section 3.08pecial Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called ptiame by the Chair of the Board, by the Chief
Executive Officer or by the Secretary upon theteritrequest of at least one-third of the directibes in office. Such meetings shall be held at
the principal office of the Corporation, or at suither place or places, within or without the Stat®elaware, as the person or persons calling
the meeting may designate.

Section 3.0Committees. The Board may designate one or more committeel, @aomittee to consist of one or more of the doecbf
the Corporation. The Board may designate one oerdectors as alternate members of any commiithe,may replace any absent or
disqualified member at any meeting of the commitke¢he absence or disqualification of a membex obmmittee, the member or members
present at any meeting and not disqualified froitinge whether or not such member or members comst# quorum, may unanimously
appoint another member of the Board to act at teetimg in the place of any absent or disqualifiedhmher. Any such committee, to the extent
provided in the resolution of the Board, shall hand may exercise all the powers and authorithefBoard in the management of the busii
and affairs of the Corporation, and may authofieegeal of the Corporation to be affixed to allgrapvhich may require it; but no such
committee shall have the power or authority inmerfiee to (a) approving or adopting, or recommentiiripe stockholders, any action or me
(other than the election or removal of directorg)ressly required by Delaware Law to be submittestbckholders for approval or (b)
adopting, amending or repealing any of these Bylawmy such committee shall keep written minuteg®meetings and report the same to the
Board at the next regular meeting of the Board. Bogrd committee may create one or more subcomesijtisach subcommittee to consist of
one or more members of such committee, and delégdie subcommittee any or all of the powers efédbmmittee.

Section 3.1Notice of Meetings. Notice of all special meetings of the Board or mutttee shall be mailed to each director, addretsed
his or her residence or usual place of businedsast five (5) days before the day on which theting is to be held, or shall be personally
delivered or otherwise given by such delivery meaglecopy, electronic or other) as the Secretagnts appropriate and in compliance with
applicable law, at least two (2) days before the atawhich the meeting is to be held. Such notieg lve waived by any director and any
meeting shall be a legal meeting without noticeitngwbeen given if all the directors shall be prédbareat or if those not present shall, either
before or after the meeting, waive notice of, angant to (in writing or by electronic transmissisnth meeting or shall after the meeting sign
the approval of the minutes thereof. All such wesyeonsents or approvals shall be filed with thigorate records or be made a part of the
minutes of the meeting.

Section 3.1Place of Meeting, Etc. The Board (or committee of the Board) may hold ahis meetings at such place or places withi
without the State of Delaware as the Board (orcttramittee) may from time to time by resolution desite or as shall be designated by the
person or persons calling the meeting or in theaar a waiver of notice of any such meeting. Btines may participate in any regular or
special meeting of the Board or a committee by medirtonference telephone or other communicatigogpenent pursuant to which all
persons participating in the meeting can hear e#todr, and such participation shall constitute @mnee in person at such meeting.

Section 3.1uorum and Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws obblaware Law, the presence of a
majority of the total number of directors shallreguired to constitute a quorum for the transaatbbusiness at any meeting of the Board anc
the presence of a majority of the total numberiafadors then serving on a committee of the Bohall e required to constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business at any meeting of saoimittee, and all matters shall be decided atsaichh meeting, a quorum being present, by
the affirmative votes of a majority of the dire@q@resent. In the absence of a quorum at any ngeetiany adjournment thereof, a majority of
directors present may adjourn such meeting frore tontime. At any adjourned meeting at which a goois present, any business may be
transacted which might have been transacted ah#®ting as originally called. Notice of any adjaanmeeting need not be given. The
directors shall act only as a Board or as a coremitiereof, and the individual directors shall haggower as such.

Section 3.13Action by Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at ar@eting of the Board or of any committee thereof
may be taken without a meeting if all members efBoard or such committee consent thereto in vgritinby electronic transmission, as the
case may be, and such written consent or electtmarismission is filed with the minutes of procewyi of the Board or committee.

March 20, 2015 5




Section 3.14Compensation. The directors shall receive such compensationhfeir services as directors, and such additional
compensation for their services as members of amynttees of the Board, as may be authorized byterd.

Section 3.1%fficers of the Board. The Board may elect or appoint, from among its mensiba Chair of the Board and one or more '
Chairs of the Board, who shall not be consideredglitiye of holding such position officers of ther@oration. The Chair of the Board, when
present, shall preside at all meetings of the $tolclers of the Corporation and of the Board. ThaiCaf the Board shall perform, under the
direction and subject to the control of the Boaltlduties incident to the office of Chair of the&d and such other duties as the Board may
assign to the Chair of the Board from time to time.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

Section 4.0Principal Officers. The principal officers of the Corporation shall&€hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officeme
or more Presidents of various ranks, one or moeeiive Vice Presidents, a Secretary, a Contratkera Treasurer, all of whom shall serve
under the direction and subject to the controhefBoard.

Section 4.02Additional Officersand Agents. In addition to the principal officers designatedSaction 4.01, the Board may from time
time elect such other officers and agents as it degyn necessary or advisable, including one or Mime Presidents of various rank, one or
more Assistant Vice Presidents, one or more AstiSacretaries, one or more Assistant Treasunedsaa Assistant Controller, each of which
officers and agents shall be subject to the coufrtthe Board and have such authority and perfaroh sluties as are provided in these Bylaws
or as the Board, Chair of the Board or Chief ExweuDfficer may from time to time determine. Eacitls officer shall hold office until his or
her successor shall have been duly chosen andigdali until his or her earlier resignation, reraber other disqualification for service. No
person shall be deemed an officer of the Corparatidess and until elected as an officer by ther@@aaaccordance with Section 4.02 or
Section 4.03.

Section 4.0Flection. The officers of the Corporation shall be electedusdly (or at such other intervals as the Board aetgrmine) by
the Board. Each such officer shall hold office Linig or her successor shall have been duly eleatedqualified or until his or her earlier
resignation, removal or other disqualification $ervice.

Section 4.0RKRemoval. All officers and agents of the Corporation, eleabecppointed by the Board, may be removed, eitliir or
without cause, at any time, by (a) resolution addftty the Board or (b) if the officer or agent & a principal officer by the Chief Executive
Officer (or someone to whom the Chief Executivei¢aff has delegated this authority).

Section 4.0Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving writteotice to the Board, the Chair of the Board, Gingef
Executive Officer or the Secretary of the CorpanatiAny such resignation shall take effect at thteaf the receipt of such notice or at any
later time specified therein; and unless othernscified therein, the acceptance of such resigmatiall not be necessary to make it effective

Section 4.08/acancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignatiemoval, disqualification, or other cause, rbayilled in
the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regydapatments to such office.

Section 4.0TChief Executive Officer. Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as begiven by the Board to the Chair of the Bo
if any, the Chief Executive Officer, if such officis appointed, shall, subject to the control & Board, have general supervision direction anc
control of the business and officers of the Corpona In the event of the death, disability or athbsence of the Chair of the Board, the duties
of the Chair of the Board may be performed by theeCExecutive Officer, including presiding at amgeting of the Board or the stockholders
of the Corporation. The Chief Executive Officer megecute (in facsimile or otherwise) and delivatiieates for shares of the Corporation,
any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or othteninents that the Board has authorized to be egdautd delivered, except in cases where
the execution and delivery thereof shall be expyemsd exclusively delegated to one or more otliicars or agents of the Corporation by the
Board or these
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Bylaws, or where the execution and delivery thesdafll be required by applicable law to be execatedidelivered by another person.

Section 4.0&resident(s). Individuals appointed to the office of Presideralsperform, under the direction and subject todbetrol of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, all datincident to the office of President and suclenthuties as the Board or Chief Executive
Officer may assign to such President from timerteet The President may execute (in facsimile oentlise) and deliver certificates for shares
of the Corporation, any deeds, mortgages, bondgraxis or other instruments that the Board oiGhief Executive Officer has authorized to
be executed and delivered, except in cases wherexécution and delivery thereof shall be expreastyexclusively delegated to one or more
other officers of agents of the Corporation by Board or these Bylaws, or where the execution aidety thereof shall be required by
applicable law to be executed and delivered byrargierson. Individuals appointed to the officé’cdsident of an organizational unit of the
Corporation or Group President shall perform, uriderdirection and subject to the control of theiip the Chief Executive Officer and the
President of the Corporation and shall have suicbratuties as the Board, Chief Executive OfficePrgsident of the Corporation may assic
such officers from time to time.

Section 4.0%ice Presidents. Each Vice President of the Corporation shall penfarnder the direction and subject to the contfohe
Board, the Chief Executive Officer or Presidenthsduties as the Board, the Chief Executive Offiaay President or such other office or
officers may assign to such Vice President fronettmtime. Vice Presidents of the Corporation mayusther designated as Executive Vice
Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents, Vice Presidéstsstant Vice Presidents or such other simitkr &s the Board may designate.

Section 4.1(Becretary. The Secretary of the Corporation or his or herglest shall attend all meetings of the stockholdétke
Corporation, the Board and committees establislyatido Board and shall record correctly the proasgsibf such meetings in a book suitable
for such purposes. The Secretary shall attestavitignature and the seal of the Corporation (ieifaite or otherwise) all stock certificates
issued by the Corporation and shall keep or caube kept a stock ledger in which all transactjpertaining to shares of all classes and serie:
of capital stock of the Corporation shall be cotlserecorded. The Secretary shall also attest witignature and the seal of the Corporation (ir
facsimile or otherwise) all deeds, conveyancegieranstruments requiring the seal of the CorponafThe Chair of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer or the Secretary shall give, auge to be given, notice of all meetings of theldiolders of the Corporation and special
meetings of the Board or committees establishetth&yBoard. The Secretary is authorized to issutficates, to which the corporate seal may
be affixed, attesting to the incumbency of officefshe Corporation or to actions duly taken by skeckholders of the Corporation, the Board
or any committee established by the Board. TheeSayr shall perform, under the direction and sultjethe control of the Board and the ClI
Executive Officer, all duties incident to the o#fiof Secretary and such other duties as the BaattedChief Executive Officer may assign to
the Secretary from time to time. The duties of Seeretary may also be performed by any AssistacreSey of the Corporation.

Section 4.1Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation iargeral shall supervise all of the financial affairs
of the Corporation, under the direction and suliethe control of the Board and the Chief Exeautdfficer. The Chief Financial Officer shall
perform, under the direction and subject to therbof the Board and the Chief Executive Officalt,duties incident to the office of Chief
Financial Officer and such other duties as the Baauthe Chief Executive Officer may assign to @eef Financial Officer from time to time.

Section 4.1ZTreasurer. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall have the aad custody of all the funds, notes, bonds, debes stock
and other securities of the Corporation that magemto the hands of the Treasurer, acting in saglacity. The Treasurer shall be respons
for the investment and reinvestment of funds of@oeporation in accordance with general investnpatities determined from time to time by
the Corporation and shall ensure that the Corpmrasi adequately funded at all times by arrangimgler the direction and subject to the
control of the Board, the Chief Executive Officand the Chief Financial Officer, for the issuantdebt, equity and other forms of securities
that may be necessary or appropriate. The Treamagrendorse (in facsimile or otherwise) checkaftdy notes, bonds, debentures and other
instruments for the payment of money for depositaltection when necessary or appropriate and negpsit the same to the credit of the
Corporation in such banks or
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depositories as the Board may designate from tintiente, and the Treasurer may endorse (in facsionittherwise) all commercial documents
requiring endorsements for or on behalf of the Goapon. The Treasurer

may deliver instructions to financial institutiobg facsimile or otherwise. The Treasurer may exe¢utfacsimile or otherwise) all receipts ¢
vouchers for payments made to the Corporation.Treasurer shall render an account of the Treasut@nsactions to the Board or its Audit
Committee as often as the Board or its Audit Conteaishall require from time to time. The Treasstll enter regularly in the books to be
kept by the Treasurer for that purpose, a full adequate account of all monies received and pattidyreasurer on account of the
Corporation. If requested by the Board, the Trearssinall give a bond to the Corporation for théhfiail performance of the Treasurer’s duties,
the expenses of which bond shall be borne by thpdation. The Treasurer shall perform, under tihection and subject to the control of the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chiefdficial Officer, all duties incident to the offioeTreasurer and such other duties as the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief &iicial Officer may assign to the Treasurer fronetimtime. The duties of the Treasurer 1
be performed by any Assistant Treasurer of the @aitjpn.

Section 4.1ontroller. The Controller of the Corporation shall be the thecounting officer of the Corporation, shall ntain
adequate records of all assets, liabilities anusaations of the Corporation and shall be respénfi the design, installation and maintenance
of accounting and cost control systems and proesdinroughout the Corporation. The Controller alsall keep in books belonging to the
Corporation full and accurate accounts of recapitand disbursements made by, the Corporation.Cdreroller shall render an account of the
Controller’s transactions to the Board or its Aud@dmmittee as often as the Board or its Audit Cottamishall require from time to time. The
Controller shall perform, under the direction antject to the control of the Board, the Chief ExaeuOfficer and the Chief Financial Office
all duties incident to the office of Controller asdich other duties as the Board, the Chief Exeeudificer and the Chief Financial Officer, n
assign to the Controller from time to time. Theigsibf the Controller may also be performed by Asgistant Controller of the Corporation.

ARTICLE YV
DELEGATIONSOF AUTHORITY

Section 5.0Execution of Contracts. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, thar& may authorize any officer or officers,
agent or agents, to enter into any contract oreegny instrument in the name of and on behati®@iCorporation, and such authority may be
general or confined to specific instances; andss$® authorized by the Board or by these Bylawsfficer, agent or employee shall have
power or authority to bind the Corporation by appitact or engagement or to pledge its credit oetaler it liable for any purpose or in any
amount.

Section 5.0ZChecks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for payment @iy, notes or other evidence of indebtednessd
in the name of or payable to the Corporation, deakigned or endorsed by such person or persahism anch manner as, from time to time,
shall be determined by resolution of the Board.hEsach officer, assistant, agent or attorney gjiedl such bond, if any, as the Board may
require.

Section 5.0PDeposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employttll be deposited from time to time to the creélihe
Corporation in such banks, trust companies or albpositories as the Board may select, or as magleeted by any officer or officers,
assistant or assistants, agent or agents, or eftemattorneys of the Corporation to whom suchgoshall have been delegated by the Board.
For the purpose of deposit and for the purposelbéation for the account of the Corporation, tHea of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, any Presidethie Treasurer or any Vice President who has ha#orized by the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer to do so (oy ather officer or officers, assistant or assistaagent or agents, or attorney or attorneys of
the Corporation who shall from time to time be deti@ed by the Board) may endorse, assign and dalivecks, drafts and other orders for the
payment of money which are payable to the ordé¢h@fCorporation.

Section 5.045eneral Special Bank Accounts. The Board (or a committee of the Board to whichhspower is delegated) may from time
to time authorize the opening and keeping of gdraema special bank accounts with such banks, tustpanies or other depositories as the
Board (or committee) may select or as may be s=dduy
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any officer or officers, assistant or assistarggrd or agents, or attorney or attorneys of thep@uattion to whom such power shall have been
delegated by the Board. The Board may make suahadpales and regulations with respect to suchkkmtounts, not inconsistent with the
provisions of these Bylaws, as it may deem expédien

ARTICLE VI
SHARES AND SHARE TRANSFER

Section 6.0 ertificates Representing Stock. Certificates (if any) representing shares of stmc&ny bond, debenture or other corporate
securities of the Corporation shall be in such fasris consistent with the Certificate of Incorgimaand applicable law, and shall be
numbered in the order in which they shall be issaredi shall be signed in the name of the Corpordtiothe President or a Vice President, anc
by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary or byltieasurer or an Assistant Treasurer. Any oflasfahe signatures on the certificates may b
a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agemegistrar who has signed, or whose facsimile gigeahas been placed upon, any such
certificate, has ceased to be such officer, trarafent or registrar before such certificate igask such certificate may nevertheless be issued
by the Corporation with the same effect as tholghperson who signed such certificate, or whossrfale signature shall have been placed
thereupon, were such officer, transfer agent astexy at the date of issue.

Section 6.02Z'ransfers of Stock. Upon compliance with provisions restricting thenster or registration of shares of stock, if any,
transfers or registrations of transfers of shafetark of the Corporation shall be made only anltboks of the Corporation by the registered
holder thereof, or by the attorney of the registdrelder thereunto authorized by power of attortely executed and filed with the Secretary,
or with a transfer clerk or a transfer agent, i,aand with respect to shares represented by icatdéf upon surrender of the certificate or
certificates for such shares properly endorsedvatidrespect to uncertificated shares, upon threeetion by the transferor and transferee of a
transfer documents in such form as the Corporatiail reasonably require, and, with respect tsladres, upon the payment of all taxes
thereon. The person in whose name shares of stac sn the books of the Corporation shall be dektime owner thereof for all purposes as
regards the Corporation. Whenever any shares edg@dl for collateral security such fact shall feected on the books of the Corporation.

Section 6.0Regulations. The Board may make such rules and regulationsraaytdeem expedient, not inconsistent with thedavy,
concerning the issue, transfer and registratioredificates for shares of the stock of the Corpiora It may appoint, or authorize any officer
officers to appoint, one or more transfer clerkeme or more transfer agents and one or more ragisand may require all certificates for
stock to bear the signature or signatures of ankiarh.

Section 6.04ogt, Stolen, Destroyed and Mutilated Certificates. In any case of any alleged loss, theft, destructomutilation of any
certificate of stock, another may be issued ipliége upon certification of such alleged loss, tthagstruction, or mutilation and upon the giv
of a bond or indemnity to the Corporation in suchnf and in such sum as the Board may direct; pemljithowever, that a new certificate or
uncertificated share may be issued without reqgiainy bond or indemnity when, in the judgment ef Board, or the Corporate Secretary, it i
proper so to do.

Section 6.0F-ixing Date for Deter mination of Stockholders of Record. In order that the Corporation may determine theldtolders
entitled to notice of or to vote at any meetingtafckholders or any adjournment thereof, or ewtittereceive payment of any dividend or othe
distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitleo exercise any rights in respect of any othangle, conversion or exchange of stock or fo
purpose of any other lawful action, the Board miayifh advance, a record date, which shall not leeenthan 60 nor less than 10 days before
the date of such meeting, nor more than 60 days firiany other action. If in any case involving thetermination of stockholders for any
purpose other than notice of or voting at a meatingtockholders, the Board shall not fix sucheord date, the record date for determining
stockholders for such purpose shall be the clogrisiness on the day on which the Board shall atth@ptesolution relating thereto. A
determination of stockholders entitled to noticeofo vote at a meeting of stockholders shall applany adjournment of such meeting;
provided, however, that the Board may fix a new record date foratipurned meeting.

March 20, 2015 9




ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.03Seal. The Board shall provide a corporate seal, whicll §ieain the form of a circle and shall bear thenesof the
Corporation and words and figures showing thailQheporation was incorporated in the State of Detaveand the year of incorporation.

Section 7.02Vaiver of Notices. Whenever notice is required to be given by thedawy or the Certificate of Incorporation or Delawar
Law, the person entitled to said notice may waivwghsnotice (in writing or by electronic transmissipeither before or after the time stated
therein, and such waiver shall be deemed equivadembtice.

Section 7.03Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin lo@ day after the Friday closest to December 3hdah gear.

Section 7.0/Amendments. These Bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, aeeiod repealed, and new Bylaws may be made by the
Board, by vote of a majority of the number of dtges then in office as directors, acting at any tingeof the Board.

Section 7.0Pesignation of Engineer. The Corporation engages in the practice of engingén various jurisdictions which regulate
such practice, including the State of Washingtarorder to comply with the laws of such jurisdiciso including the State of Washington, all
engineering decisions pertaining to any projeargineering activities in any such jurisdictionlsba made by a designated engineer license
to practice in such jurisdiction who shall be apped by the Board from time to time as vacanciesioc
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EXHIBIT 10.19

FORM OF
INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT
This Agreement is made effective as of , between Leidos Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corpamgthe “
Company’), and (the * Indemnit8e
RECITALS

A. The Company and Indemnitee recognize thdilhigompetent persons have become more reluctaari@
publicly-held corporations as directors, officers or ineotbapacities unless they are provided with adegouatection
through insurance and/or adequate indemnificatgarest inordinate risks of claims and actions agjaimem arising out of
their service to, and activities on behalf of, #¢ngsrporations.

B. Inrecognition of (1) Indemnitee’s need fabstantial protection against personal liabilityonder to enhance
Indemnitee’s continued and effective service toGloenpany and (2) Indemnitee’s reliance on the giowus of the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation (* Certiftesof Incorporatiori) requiring indemnification of the Indemnitee teet
fullest extent permitted by law, and in part to\pde Indemnitee with specific contractual assurahes the protection
promised by the Certificate of Incorporation wid bvailable to Indemnitee (regardless of, amongrdtiings, an
amendment to or revocation of the Certificate @bhporation, any change in the composition of tbenany’s Board of
Directors or an acquisition transaction relatingn® Company), the Company wishes to provide & Agreement for the
indemnification of, and the advancing of expensestdemnitee to the fullest extent permitted bw &nd as set forth in this
Agreement.

C. The Certificate of Incorporation and the Gah€orporation Law of the State of Delaware (* DGQ expressl
provide that the indemnification provisions setlictherein are not exclusive and contemplate tbatracts may be enter:
into between the Company and members of the Bddirectors, officers and other persons with respedndemnification

D. Itisreasonable, prudent and necessanht®Company to obligate itself contractually to imeéfy, and to
advance expenses on behalf of, such persons folkkst extent permitted by applicable law so ttaty will serve or
continue to serve the Company free from undue coribat they will not be so indemnified.

E. This Agreement is a supplement to, and ithérance of, the Certificate of Incorporation angl eesolutions
adopted pursuant thereto and shall not be deerseldstitute therefor, nor to diminish or abrogate @ghts of Indemnitee
thereunder.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the premises and of Indemnétegreeing to serve or continuing to serve the Gomglirectly or
at its request, with another enterprise, and intentb be legally bound hereby, the parties heagiee as follows:




1. Basic Indemnification Agreement .
(@) General Indemnity and Exceptions.

(1) Indemnity . In the event Indemnitee was, is or becomes a pauy witness or other participant
in, or is threatened to be made a party to or \s&re other participant in, a Claim (as define&éction 9(b)) by reason of
(or arising in part out of) an Indemnifiable Evéas defined in Section 9(d)), the Company shakmdify Indemnitee to the
fullest extent permitted by law, against: (i) amgall Expenses (as defined in Section 9(c)), juelys fines, penalties and
amounts paid in settlement (including all interassessments and other charges paid or payaldarnection therewith) of
such Claim actually and reasonably incurred byrobehalf of Indemnitee in connection with such @laand (i) any
federal, state, local or foreign taxes imposedrmaieinnitee as a result of the actual or deemedpteaeany payments under
this Agreement. Such indemnification shall be maslsoon as practicable but in any event no laser 830 days after written
demand is presented to the Company.

(2) Indemnity ExceptionsPrior to Changein Control . Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, prior to a Change int@bijas defined in Section 9(a)) and except asos#t in Sections 1(b), 3
and 7, Indemnitee shall not be entitled to inderoatfon pursuant to this Agreement in connectiothwany Claim: (i)
initiated by Indemnitee against the Company or dingctor or officer of the Company, unless the Camphas joined in or
consented to the initiation of such Claim; (ii) reagh account of Indemnitee’s conduct which const#a breach of
Indemnitee’s duty of loyalty to the Company orsteckholders or is an act or omission not in gaothfor involves
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation oétlaw; or (iii) arising from the purchase and dafdndemnitee of
securities in violation of Section 16(b) of the Gettes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the ‘hBrge Act).

(b) Reviewing Party Determination of IndemnificationThe indemnification obligations of the Company
under Section 1(a) shall not be applicable if tegiBwing Party (as defined in Section 9(f)) hagdatned (in a written
opinion, in any case in which the special indepahdeunsel referred to in Section 2 is involvedttmdemnitee would not
be permitted to be indemnified under applicable lpravided, however, that if Indemnitee has commenced legal
proceedings in the Court of Chancery of the Sthi@etaware (th¢* Delaware Court) to secure a determination that
Indemnitee should be indemnified under applicadne lany determination made by the Reviewing P&y indemnitee
would not be permitted to be indemnified under mayble law shall not be binding until a final judicdetermination is mau
with respect thereto (as to which all rights of egtherefrom have been exhausted or lapsed)eréthas not been a Change
in Control, the Reviewing Party shall be selectgdh® Board of Directors, and if there has beemsu€hange in Control,
the Reviewing Party shall be the special indepencamnsel referred to in Section 2. If there haanbeo determination by
the Reviewing Party or if the Reviewing Party detieres that Indemnitee substantively would not brengiéed to be
indemnified in whole or in part under applicablerJandemnitee shall have the right to commencgdtion in the Delaware
Court seeking an initial determination by the caurthallenging any such determination by the Rewig Party or any
aspect thereof and the Company hereby consengswize of process and to appear in any such praogediny
determination by the Reviewing Party otherwise I3b@iconclusive and binding on the Company andrimdiee. The
Company shall indemnify Indemnitee




for Expenses incurred by Indemnitee in connectigh the successful establishment or enforcementhiole or in part, by
Indemnitee of Indemnitee’s right to indemnificationadvances.

(c) Advancement of ExpenseH.requested by Indemnitee in writing, the Compahwgll advance (within
ten business days of such written request) anyaliitkpenses to Indemnitee (an “ Expense AdvahcEhe obligation of
the Company to make an Expense Advance shall heciub the condition that the Company receivesagertaking that, i
when and to the extent that the Reviewing Partgrd@hes that Indemnitee would not be permittedeted indemnified
under applicable law, the Company shall be entiibelge reimbursed by Indemnitee (who hereby agreesimburse the
Company) for all such amounts theretofore paidyigied, however, that if Indemnitee has commenced legal proceadimg
Delaware Court as provided in Section 1(b), thefemnitee shall not be required to reimburse tbmgany for any Expen:
Advance until a final judicial determination is neagith respect thereto (as to which all rights mpeal therefrom have been
exhausted or lapsed). Indemnitee’s obligation imberse the Company for Expense Advances shalhbeaured and no
interest shall be charged thereon.

2. Special Independent Counsdl after Certain Changesin Control.

(@ Role of Special Counsellf there is a Change in Control of the Comparth€othan a Change in
Control approved by two-thirds or more of the Compa Board of Directors who were directors immeeliaiprior to such
Change in Control), then with respect to all matteereafter arising concerning the rights of Indiee to indemnity
payments and Expense Advances under this Agreesnanty other agreement, the Certificate of Incampion or the
Company’s Bylaws (the “ Bylawy now or hereafter in effect relating to Claims fademnifiable Events, the Company
shall seek legal advice only from special indepahdeunsel selected by Indemnitee and approvetidZompany (which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld orykia and who has not otherwise performed servimethé Company
within the last five years or for Indemnitee. Ssgiecial independent counsel, among other thingdl, stithin 90 days of its
retention, render its written opinion to the Compand Indemnitee as to whether and to what extetgrhnitee would be
permitted to be indemnified under applicable |

(b) Selection of Special Counsdh the event that Indemnitee and the Company aablario agree on the
selection of the special independent counsel, spehial independent counsel shall be selectedtbgolm among at least
five law firms with (i) offices in the State of Catiare having more than fifty attorneys, (i) amgtof “av” or better in the
then current Martindale Hubbell Law Directory aiig attorneys specializing in corporate law. Sisetection shall be made
in the presence of Indemnitee (and his or her legahsel or either of them, as Indemnitee may elect

(c) Payment for Special CounselThe Company agrees to pay the reasonable febs special
independent counsel referred to above and to iimtlgmnify such counsel against any and all expefiselsiding attorneys’
fees), claims, liabilities, and damages arisingafudr relating to this Agreement or to its engagatrpursuant hereto.

3. Indemnification for Enforcement Expenses. The Company shall indemnify Indemnitee againgtamd all
expenses (including attorneyfges) and, if requested by Indemnitee in writifgglis(within ten business days of such writ
request) advance such expenses to Indemnitee, wteancurred by Indemnitee in connection with &tgim asserted or
action




brought by Indemnitee for (a) indemnification ovadce payment of Expenses by the Company undeAgteement or an
other agreement, Certificate of Incorporation @ Bylaws now or hereafter in effect relating toi@igs for Indemnifiable
Events and/or (b) recovery under any directors’ @ffiders’ liability insurance policies maintainég the Company,
regardless of whether Indemnitee ultimately is iheiteed to be entitled to such indemnification, athe@expense payment
insurance recovery, as the case may be. The Inteershall qualify for advances solely upon the atien and delivery to
the Company of an undertaking providing that theemnitee undertakes to repay the advance to teatakiat it is
ultimately determined that the Indemnitee is nditkex to be indemnified by the Company.

4. Partial Indemnity . If, under any provisions of this Agreement, Inchéiee is entitled to indemnification by the
Company of some, but not all, of the Expenses,uelgs, fines, penalties and amounts paid in segtieiof a Claim, the
Company shall indemnify Indemnitee for the portibareof to which Indemnitee is entitled. Moreovestwithstanding any
other provision of this Agreement, to the extest tindemnitee has been successful on the meratherwise in defense of
any or all Claims relating in whole or in part to lademnifiable Event or in defense of any issumatter therein, including
dismissal without prejudice, Indemnitee shall deimnified against all Expenses incurred in conoadtierewith. In
connection with any determination by the Reviewitagty or otherwise as to whether Indemnitee igledtto be indemnifie
hereunder, the burden of proof shall be on the Gomypo establish that Indemnitee is not so entitled

5. NoPresumption . For purposes of this Agreement, the terminatioany action, suit or proceeding by
judgment, order, settlement (whether with or withocaurt approval) or conviction, or upon a pleanofo contendere, or i
equivalent, shall not create a presumption thag¢nmutee did not meet any particular standard oflaohor have any
particular belief

6. Indemnification Procedures.

(@ Notification of Claim. Within 30 days after receipt by Indemnitee ofic®bf the commencement of a
Claim which may involve an Indemnifiable Event, émanitee will, if a claim in respect thereof is ® imade against the
Company under this Agreement, submit to the Companyitten notice identifying the Claim, but the ission so to notify
the Company will not relieve it from any liabilityhich it may have to Indemnitee under this Agreenuerhess the Compar
is materially prejudiced by such lack of notice.

(b) Defense of Claim.

(1) With respect to any such Claim as to which Indee®itotifies the Company of the
commencement thereof: (i) the Company will be Edito participate therein at its own expense; @héxcept as otherwis
provided below, to the extent that it may wish, @@mpany (jointly with any other indemnifying padimilarly notified)
will be entitled to assume the defense thereof) waunsel selected by the Board of Directors andaeably satisfactory to
Indemnitee.

(2) After notice from the Company to Indemnitee ofelsction to assume the defense of a Claim,
the Company will not be liable to Indemnitee unithes Agreement for any legal or other expensesesylEntly incurred by
Indemnitee in connection with the defense theretbier than reasonable costs of investigation atlesrwise provided
below.




(3) Indemnitee shall have the right to employ its owaresel in such action, suit or proceeding, bu
the fees and expenses of such counsel incurrednatiee from the Company of its assumption ofdeénse thereof shall
be at the expense of Indemnitee unless (i) the @mpnt of counsel by Indemnitee has been authobiyete Company, (i
Indemnitee shall have reasonably concluded that¢ tmay be a conflict of interest between the Comzard the Indemnitee
in the conduct of the defense of such action,iprtiie Company shall not in fact have employedrnssl to assume the
defense of such action, in each of which casedgteeand expenses of counsel shall be at the sgéithe Company. The
Company shall not be entitled to assume the defeinsey claim brought by or on behalf of the Companas to which
Indemnitee shall have made the conclusion provideth clause (ii) above.

(c) Consent to SettlemenWith respect to any such Claim as to which Indee®itotifies the Company of
the commencement thereof, the Company shall nbable to indemnify Indemnitee under this Agreemintany amounts
paid in settlement of any action or claim effectgthout its written consent. The Company shall settle any action ¢
claim in any manner which would impose any penaitiimitation on Indemnitee without Indemnitee’sitten consent.
Neither the Company nor Indemnitee will unreasonabthhold or delay their consent to any proposetlement

7. Non-exclusivity. The rights of Indemnitee under this Agreement gbalin addition to any other rights
Indemnitee may have under the Certificate of Inooapon, the Bylaws, the DGCL, any agreement, & wbtthe
stockholders, a resolution of directors or otheewldo amendment, alteration or repeal of this Agweat or of any provision
hereof shall limit or restrict any right of Indertee under this Agreement in respect of any aca&ert or omitted by such
Indemnitee acting on behalf of the Company andatéquest of the Company prior to such amendra#iatation or repea
To the extent that a change in the DGCL (whethesthtute or judicial decision), the Certificateimforporation or the
Bylaws permits greater indemnification than woudddfforded currently under the Certificate of Irnmanation, the Bylaws
and this Agreement, it is the intent of the partiet Indemnitee shall enjoy by this Agreementgteater benefits so
afforded by such change. No right or remedy in igseement is intended to be exclusive of any otigdt or remedy, and
every other right and remedy shall be cumulative iaraddition to every other right and remedy urtties Agreement or
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity dnexise. The assertion or employment of any righitemedy under this
Agreement shall not prevent the concurrent assedie@mployment of any other right or remedy.

8. Liability Insurance.

(@) Policy; Notice. To the extent the Company maintains an insurgntey or policies providing
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, Indeitee shall be covered by such policy or policreagcordance with its or
their terms to the maximum extent of the coveragalable for any Company director or officer. If,the time the Company
receives notice from any source of a Claim as tmlhvimdemnitee is a party or a participant (as m&gs or otherwise), the
Company has directors’ and officers’ liability imance in effect, the Company shall give prompta®tf such Claim to the
insurers in accordance with the procedures sdt forthe respective policies. The Company shalighier take all
reasonably necessary or desirable action to caweissurers to pay, on behalf of the Indemnitéegraounts payable as a
result of such Claim in accordance with the terinsugh policies.
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(b) Potential Change in Control In the event of a Potential Change in Controldgfened in Section 9(e)),
the Company shall maintain in force any and alliiaace policies then maintained by the Companyignmoy directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance, in respect of Indertae, for a period of at least two years afteraghd of current policy period
then in effect. In satisfying this obligation, tBempany shall not be obligated to pay premiumscaess of 200% of the
annualized premium for each such policy based emptamium in effect on the date of the Potentiai@e in Control, and
in the event coverage cannot be obtained for souat, the Company shall cause to be obtained ak mgaurance as can
be obtained for an amount equal to 200% of the alimed premium on terms not less favorable thasdho effect on the
date of the Potential Change in Control in termsaMerage and amounts. The Company shall indenmdgmnitee for
Expenses incurred by Indemnitee in connection aith successful action brought by Indemnitee foovecy under any
insurance policy referred to in this Section 8()l ahall advance to Indemnitee the Expenses of actatn in the manner
provided in Section 3 above. Notwithstanding thedoing, the Company shall have no obligation umiierSection 8(b) il
the event that (i) the Potential Change in Congslllts in a Change in Control and (ii) the acagicompany, surviving
corporation or other resulting entity is requiregptovide directors’ and officersiability insurance, in respect of Indemnit
and for at least the period provided in this Sec8¢b) on terms and in amounts that are at leastléq or more favorable
than those in effect on the date of the Potenti@r@e in Control.

9. Certain Definitions.

(@ A *“Change in Control” of the Company means, and shall be deemed to ltawered upon, any of tl
following events:

(1) The acquisition by any person (as defined in Se@®i@)(9) of the Exchange Act and used in
Sections 13(d) and 14(d) thereof including a grasiplefined in Section 13(d) thereof) of benefioi@hership (as defined in
Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulationgutiet Exchange Act) of twenty-five percent (25%jmre of the
outstanding Voting Securities; provided, howeveeat the following acquisitions shall not constitat€hange in Control for
purposes of this subparagraph (1): (i) any acgaisdirectly from the Company; (ii) any acquisitibg the Company or ar
of its subsidiaries; (iii) any acquisition by anygloyee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsoresi@ntained by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (iv) anywsijon by any corporation pursuant to a transectihich complies with
clauses (i), (i) and (iii) of subparagraph (3)dyej or

(2) Individuals who, as of December 5, 2014, constitméeBoard of Directors of the Company (
“ Incumbent Board) cease for any reason to constitute at leastjantaof the Company’s Board of Directors; provitje
however, that any individual who becomes a direotdhe Company subsequent to December 5, 2014vhnde election, ¢
whose nomination for election by the Company'sidtotders, to the Board of Directors was eitheafiproved by a vote of
at least a majority of the directors then compgdime Incumbent Board or (ii) recommended by a matg committee
comprised entirely of directors who are then IncanttBoard members shall be considered as thoudhisdividual were a
member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, s purpose, any such individual whose initial agstion of office
occurs as a result of either an actual or thredtetextion contest (as such terms are used in Riaell of Regulation 14A
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promulgated under the Exchange Act), other actuttireatened solicitation of proxies or consentaroactual or threaten:
tender offer; or

(3) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, or catatibn or sale or other disposition of all
substantially all of the assets of the CompanyBaiSiness Combinatidh, in each case unless following such Business
Combination, (i) all or substantially all of therpens who were the beneficial owners, respectiv#lyhe outstanding shares
and outstanding Voting Securities immediately ptiosuch Business Combination own, directly orrieclly, more than fift
percent (50%) of the combined voting power of thentoutstanding Voting Securities entitled to \gdeerally in the
election of directors of the Company or, as thecaay be, of the entity resulting from the Busin@ssbination (including,
without limitation, an entity which as a resultsafch transaction owns the Company or all or subathnall of the
Company's assets either directly or through ormmaare subsidiaries) in substantially the same prtapts as their ownershi
immediately prior to such Business Combinatiorthefoutstanding Voting Securities (provided, howetleat for purposes
of this clause (i) any shares of common stock dingcsecurities of such resulting entity receivgdsbch beneficial owners
in such Business Combination other than as thétrefssuch beneficial owners' ownership of outstagdshares or
outstanding Voting Securities immediately priostech Business Combination shall not be consideré@ owned by such
beneficial owners for the purposes of calculatimgrtpercentage of ownership of the outstandingmomstock and voting
power of the resulting entity); (ii) no person (kxding any entity resulting from such Business Coration or any employe
benefit plan (or related trust) of the Companyuwatsentity resulting from the Business Combinatioaeficially owns,
directly or indirectly, twenty-five percent (25%i) more of the combined voting power of the therstartding voting
securities of such entity resulting from the Bussy€ombination unless such person owned twentypkeveent (25%) or
more of the outstanding shares or outstanding Yddecurities immediately prior to the Business Cioiaon; and (iii) at
least a majority of the members of the Board oEBtors of the entity resulting from such Business@Gination were
members of the Incumbent Board at the time of #ee@ation of the initial agreement, or the actiortref Board of Directors,
providing for such Business Combination;

(4) Approval by the Company's stockholders of a conegiguidation or dissolution of the
Company.

For purposes of clause (3) above, any person wipairgs outstanding voting securities of the entsulting from the
Business Combination by virtue of ownership, ptesuch Business Combination, of outstanding VoS8egurities of both
the Company and the entity or entities with whith Company is combined shall be treated as twapsrafter the Busine
Combination, who shall be treated as owning outBtenvoting securities of the entity resulting frone Business
Combination by virtue of ownership, prior to suctisBiess Combination of, respectively, outstandiogng Securities of
the Company, and of the entity or entities with ethihe Company is combined.

(b) A*Claim” is any threatened, pending or completed action, griceeding or alternative dispute
resolution mechanism, or any inquiry, hearing @estigation, whether conducted by the Company graginer party, and
whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigag or other.
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(c) “Expenses’ include attorneys’ fees and all other costs, fegpenses and obligations of any nature
whatsoever paid or incurred in connection with Btigating, defending, being a witness in, partitigain (including
appeal), or preparing to defend, any Claim relatingny Indemnifiable Event.

(d) An*“Indemnifiable Event” is any event or occurrence (whether before or #fiedate hereof) related
to the fact that Indemnitee is or was a directéircer, employee, consultant, agent or fiduciaryooto the Company, or any
subsidiary of the Company, or is or was servinthatrequest of the Company as a director, offieeployee, trustee, agent
or fiduciary of another corporation, partnershgng venture, employee benefit plan, trust or o#rgerprise, or by reason of
anything done or not done by Indemnitee in any sagacity.

(e) A “Potential Change in Control’ shall be deemed to have occurred if (i) the Conypenters into an
agreement, the consummation of which would resuthé occurrence of a Change in Control; (ii) aagspn (including the
Company) publicly announces an intention to takeas which, if consummated, would constitute a@ein Control; (iii)
any person, other than a trustee or other fidudaigling securities under an employee benefit pfathe Company or a
corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by theckholders of the Company in substantially the ssgnoportions as their
ownership of stock of the Company, who is or becothe beneficial owner, directly or indirectly,s#curities of the
Company representing 9.5% or more of the combimmgitty power of the Company’s then outstanding \fpt8ecurities,
increases such person’s beneficial ownership di securities by five percentage points or more tveiinitial percentage
of such Voting Securities held by such personjwrtfie Board of Directors of the Company adoptesolution to the effect
that, for purposes of this Agreement, a Potenti@rige in Control has occurred.

(f) A *Reviewing Party” is (i) the Companyg Board of Directors (provided that a majority akdtors are
not parties to the particular Claim for which Ind@tee is seeking indemnification) or (ii) any otlparson or body
appointed by the Company’s Board of Directors, wghioot a party to the particular Claim for whicldémnitee is
seeking indemnificationa majority of the disinteeeksdirectors (even if less than a quorum), , i9rif{ithere has been
a Change in Control, the special independent couefared to in Section 2.

(@) “Voting Securities” means any securities of the Company which votergépen the election of

directors.

10. Amendments, Termination and Waiver . No supplement, modification, amendment or tertmnsof this
Agreement shall be binding unless executed in ngiby both of the parties hereto. No waiver of ahthe provisions of th
Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute aexvaif any other provisions hereof (whether orsiotilar) nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver.

11.  Contribution . If the indemnification provided in Sections 1 & unavailable, then, in respect of any Clain
in which the Company is jointly liable with Indenee (or would be if joined in the Claim), the Compahall contribute to
the amount of Expenses, judgments, fines, penatidsamounts paid in settlement as appropriateflect: (a) the relative
benefits received by the Company, on the one reamdlJndemnitee, on the other hand, from the trammsatrom which
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the Claim arose, and (b) the relative fault of@mmpany, on the one hand, and of Indemnitee, oottier, in connection
with the events which resulted in such Expenselgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid iresedtht, as well as any
other relevant equitable considerations. The raddault of the Company, on the one hand, and @éhmitee, on the other,
shall be determined by reference to, among othegshthe parties’ relative intent, knowledge, asc® information and
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstarressilting in such Expenses and liabilities. Thenany agrees that it
would not be just and equitable if contribution guant to this Section 11 were determined by pialidbcation or any other
method of allocation which does not take accounhefequitable considerations described in thigiGed 1.

12.  Subrogation . In the event of payment under this AgreementGbmpany shall be subrogated to the extent c
such payment to all of the rights of recovery afdmnitee, who shall execute all papers requiredsaatl do everything that
may be necessary to secure such rights, inclutimg@xecution of such documents necessary to eti@{@ompany
effectively to bring suit to enforce such rights.

13.  No Duplication of Payments. The Company shall not be liable under this Agresito make any payment in
connection with any Claim made against Indemnibethé extent Indemnitee has otherwise actuallyivedegpayment (under
an insurance policy, the Certificate of Incorparator otherwise) of the amounts otherwise idembiédnereunder.

14.  Binding Effect . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inurthéobenefit of and be enforceable by the
parties hereto and their respective successorassigns (including any direct or indirect successopurchase, merge
consolidation or otherwise to all or substantialllyof the business and/or assets of the Compapgyse, heirs, and perso
and legal representatives. This Agreement shatimag in effect regardless of whether Indemnitesticoies to serve as a
director or officer (or in one of the capacitiesigrerated in Section 9(d) hereof) of the Companyf@ny other enterprise at
the Board of Director’s request.

15.  Severability . The provisions of this Agreement shall be seVerabthe event that any of the provisions herec
(including any provision within a single sectiomragraph or sentence) are held by a court of canpgirisdiction to be
invalid, void or otherwise unenforceable, and #m@aining provisions shall remain enforceable toftiflest extent permitte
by law.

16. Applicable Law and Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement and the legal relations among thiegsshall
be governed by, and construed and enforced in daooe with, the laws of the State of Delaware, avitlregard to its
conflict of laws rules. The Company and Indemnktieesby irrevocably and unconditionally:

(@) agree that any action or proceeding arising owr @ connection with this Agreement shall be biaug
only in the Delaware Court and not in any othetesta federal court in the United States of Amedcany court in any
other country;

(b) consent to submit to the exclusive jurisdictiorthed Delaware Court for purposes of any action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection witrstAigreement

(c) appoint, irrevocably, to the extent such partyasanresident of the State of Delaware, the Comjgany
agent for service of process as its agent in taee$if Delaware for
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acceptance of legal process in connection withsaigi action or proceeding against such party wighsame legal force and
validity as if served upon such party personallshimi the State of Delaware;

(d) waive any objection to the laying of venue of anglsaction or proceeding in the Delaware Court; an

(e) waive, and agree not to plead or to make, any dlaahany such action or proceeding brought in the
Delaware Court has been brought in an impropemaarivenient forum.

17. ldentical Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or morateoparts, each of which shall-
all purposes be deemed to be an original but allleth together shall constitute one and the sagneement. Only one such
counterpart signed by the party against whom es#iity is sought needs to be produced to evidédmeexistence of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered ihi® indemnification Agreement effective as of tlaedfirst
written above.

LEIDOSHOLDINGS, INC.
By: __
Name:

Title:

[Indemnitee]
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Exhibit 10.33

FORM OF
LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.

2006 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARD AGREEMENT

BY ACCEPTING THE AWARD DESCRIBED IN THISAGREEMENT, YOU VOLUNTARILY AGREE TO
ALL OF THE TERMSAND CONDITIONSSET FORTH IN THISAGREEMENT, THE AWARD GRANT
NOTICE AND IN THE PLAN.

This Performance Share Award Agreement (thisgt eement ), effective as of the Grant Date (as defined belos
between Leidos Holdings, Inc., Inc., a Delawargoation (the ‘Company ”), and Recipient (as defined below).

This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditapdicable to the award granted to Recipient pursta@athe Awar:
Grant Notice (as defined below) representing atrighreceive a number of shares of the Comm@ommon Stoc
(the “ Shares ™) based on the extent, if any, to which the applieddrformance Goals (as defined below) have
achieved for the Performance Period (as definealjglthe “Performance Share Award ”).

1. DEFINITIONS. The following terms shall have the meanings asneefibelow. Capitalized terms used herein
not defined shall have the meanings attributedhtamt in the Companyg’ 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (as may
amended from time to time, thétan ”).

“ Award Grant Notice” means the notice delivered to Recipient concuryesith this Agreement setting fol
the Performance Goals and which is hereby madetd@aeof and incorporated by reference into trgse®ment.

“ Determination Date ” means the date following the end of the PerforoeaReriod (and within two and one
half months following the end of the Performanceid® on which the Committee makes a final deteation o
whether and to what extent the Performance Goalesh in the Award Grant Notice have been achiefgr the entir
Performance Period, as described in Section 3 hereo

“ Executive Officer " means an officer of the Company designated as farghurposes of Section 16 of -
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“ Grant Date” means the effective date of the grant of the Perdoice Share Award as set forth in the Ay
Grant Notice.

“ Ineligible Position ” means a position of employment with the CompangroAffiliate that is not eligible
receive Performance Share Awards as determineldeb@ dommittee.
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“ Involuntary Termination Without Cause ” means a termination of the RecipienEmployment initiated |
the Company for reasons other than conduct thati®lation of the Company’s policies or ethictdsdards.

“ Performance Goals” means the goals approved by the Committee for éniPnance Period to be set fc
in the Award Goal Notice, which shall be used ttedaine whether, and to what extent, the Perform&itare Awar
shall be earned and therefore Shares shall bedissudrecipient after the Determination Date pursu@an this
Agreement.

“ Performance Period ” means the period of three fiscal years from figear 20 through fiscal year 20
inclusive, based on the Company’s audited annoahfiial statements.

“ Permanent Disability ” means the status of disability determined conchlgitty the Committee based uj
certification of disability by the Social Securdministration or upon such other proof as the Caotte@ may requir
effective upon receipt of such certification oretiproof by the Committee.

“ Recipient ” means the person granted a Performance Share Aasardmed in the Award Grant Notice wh
affiliated with the Company or an Affiliate as amgloyee.

“ Section 409A " means Section 409A of the Code together withréggilations promulgated thereunder.
“ Target Shares” means the target number of Shares as set fottreil\ward Grant Notice.

“ Special Retirement ” means: (i) retirement by the Recipient after reaglage 59% with at least ten (10) y«
of service with the Company or an Affiliate; (iptrement by the Recipient after reaching age 58&-Recipients ag:
plus years of service with the Company or an Adtdi equals at least 70; or (iii) if the Recipienin Executive Offici
at the time of retirement, retirement after reaghaige 65 by the Recipient, regardless of yearsenfie with th
Company. For Special Retirement purposes, yeasgmwice shall mean the period of service determowettiusivel
by the Committee.

2. PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARD SUBJECT TO TERMINATION. Except in the event of death, Perma
Disability, Special Retirement or Involuntary Temation Without Cause as set forth below, the Peréorce Sha
Award shall be terminated automatically without gemsation and no Shares shall be issued to Retipigsuant t
this Agreement if, prior to the end of the Perfonte Period, Recipierst’ employment with the Company or
Affiliate terminates, or if Recipient is an empl@yef an Affiliate and such entity ceases to be #ili&e, whether by
Committee action or otherwise, on the date sucityergases to be an Affiliate.

3. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS.

a) Performance Goals . Following the end of the Performance Period, @wmnmittee shall determi
whether and the extent to which each of the Pediona Goals have been achieved for the ¢
Performance Period and shall determine the nunfber o
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Shares, if any, issuable to Recipient with respgecthe level of achievement of each indivic
Performance Goafrovided that with respect to any Performance Share Awaial ‘tmvered employee”
within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Cotie, Committee shall have certified the achievemé
the Performance Goals. The aggregate number oESipatentially issuable to Recipient with respe
all Performance Goals shall be between 0% and 1&0#te number of Target Shares. If applicable
Committees determinations with respect to the achievemeiesformance Goals shall be based ol
Company’s financial results reported in its anmeglort on Form 1@ as filed with the SEC, subject
any adjustments made by the Committee in accordaitbeSection 3 (c) below.

b) Committee Discretion to Reduce Performance Share Award . Notwithstanding satisfactic
achievement or completion of the Performance Gaalsforth in the Award Goal Notice (or ¢
adjustments thereto as provided below), the nurab&hares issuable hereunder may be reduced
Committee on the basis of such further considanatias the Committee in its sole discretion
determine.

C) Adjustment of Performance Goals . To the extent it is intended that this Perfornrea&hare Awar
comply with the performancleased exception to Section 162(m) of the CodeCitramittee shall mal
no adjustment to the Performance Goals set fortihenAward Goal Notice with respect to eoVere«
employee”within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Codhejuding the performance targets or
method of calculating the actual performance addekelative to the Performance Goals, exce
exclude the impact of (i) changes in accountingddads or adoption of any new accounting standa
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptest in the United States, (ii) changes in fec
statutory corporate tax rates, and (iii) extracadynor unusual gains or losses, events or circurost
over which the Company has no or limited contrmodjuding the occurrence of any disaster, act of G
any other force majeure event.

d) Section 162(m) . To the extent the Committee has determined that Rerformance Share Awarc
intended to comply with the performanibased exception to Section 162(m) of the Code &
Recipient is a “covered employewiithin the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Codkaetions take
hereunder (including without limitation any adjusimis of Performance Goals or determinatio
whether a Fundamental Transaction has occurredl) lshanade in a manner which would comply \
Section 162(m) of the Code.

4. |SSUANCE OF SHARES.

a) Shares. Shares shall be issued, if and to the extentedapased on the achievement of the Perforn
Goals as determined by the Committee, on (or aspilg as administratively practicable following)e
Determination Date, and in no event later than tgir{@0) days following the end of the Performe
Period.
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b) Accrued Dividends . If the Company pays any cash dividends on itsmomstock, Recipient will t
entitled to receive an amount in cash (less anyired withholding for taxes) equal in value to teest
dividends that would have been paid on Shares dand issued under this Agreement assuming
such Shares had been outstanding as of the reateda such dividends declared on or after thent
Date and prior to the issuance date of the Sha#esrued Dividends”).Such Accrued Dividends will |
retained by the Company (without interest) and praicash when, and if, and to the extent that Shar
earned and issued based on the achievement oktf@mRance Goals. To the extent that Recipien
elected to defer receipt of the Shares in accoaarih the terms of the applicable nqualified deferre
plan, payment of Accrued Dividends with respectstch Shares will be subject to the terms
conditions of such plan. The right to receive Dand will cease and be forfeited upon the forfeitame
cancellation of this Performance Share Award.

C) Taxes, Deferrals and Other Matters . As a condition to the issuance of Shares hereurREcipien
must have satisfied his or her tax withholding gétions as specified in this Agreement and muse
completed, signed and returned any documents &ed &ny additional action that the Company de
appropriate to enable it to accomplish the delivefythe Shares. In no event will the Compan
obligated to issue a fractional share. Notwithstagdhe foregoing, (i) the Company shall not
obligated to deliver any Shares during any peribenthe Company determines that the issuance
delivery of Shares hereunder would violate any faklestate or other applicable laws and/or maye
Shares subject to any restrictive legends thalegeymined by the Company, is necessary to comith
securities or other regulatory requirements, adh@ date on which Shares are issued may incé
delay (but not later than the next December'after the end of the Performance Period) in ord
provide the Company such time as it determines ggpjate to address tax withholding and o
administrative matters. If eligible, Recipient $ha@ given the opportunity to elect to defer reteipthe
Shares. Such deferral election shall be in accaelamth the terms of the applicable ngualifiec
deferral plan of the Company or an Affiliate an@ tiequirements of Section 409A and subject to
additional terms and conditions as are set by thar@ittee.

5. PARTIAL PAYMENT ON CERTAIN EVENTS.

a) Disability, Special Retirement, Involuntary Termination Without Cause or Transfer to an
Ineligible Position .

0] If Recipient ceases to be employed by the Camgpor an Affiliate as a result of Recipient’
Permanent Disability, Special Retirement or Invédmy Termination Withot
Cause and Recipient is not in an Ineligible Posited the time of such eve
Recipient shall remain eligible to receive, on &srpromptly as administrative
practicable following) the Determination Date,
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a prorated portion of the Shares that would otheswbe issuable to Recipient under
Performance Share Award in the absence of suchogmgeint termination based on the ac
achievement of the Performance Goals for the Pedoce Periodprovided that the prorate
amount shall be determined based on the ratio pfti@ number of days elapsed from
beginning of the Performance Period to the employntermination date over (y) the numbe
days in the entire Performance Period (and noectfig any shortening of the Performe
Period as a result of a Fundamental Transactiolessribed below).

(i) If Recipient is transferred to an Ineligible Pasitiand either (i) remains employed by
Company or an Affiliate through the end of the Berfance Period or,
applicable, through the time of consummation obadamental Transaction as
forth in Section 5(c) below, or (ii) ceases to epkoyed by the Company or
Affiliate at any time prior to the end of the Perfance Period as a result
Recipients Permanent Disability, Special Retirement or lowntdry Terminatio
Without Cause, Recipient shall remain eligible ¢geive, on (or as promptly
administratively practicable following) the Determation Date, a prorated port
of the Shares that would otherwise be issuableetdent under the Performai
Share Award in the absence of such transfer tmaliglble Position based on 1
actual achievement of the Performance Goals foptiéon of the Performan
Period in which Recipient remained employed by @@mpany and not in i
Ineligible Positionprovided that the prorated amount shall be determined bas
the ratio of (x) the number of days elapsed fromlikginning of the Performar
Period to the date of transfer to an Ineligibleittws over (y) the number of da
in the entire Performance Period (and not reflgctamy shortening of tl
Performance Period as a result of a Fundamentak&ction as described below).

(i)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Recipient shall no¢ entitled to any Shares under
Performance Share Award if Recipient: (i) failsewecute and deliver, no la
than ninety (90) days following the end of the Berfance Period, a gene
release of claims if requested by, and in a fortisfeatory to, the Company or
Affiliate, (ii) violates the terms of his or her Jentions, copyright ar
confidentiality agreement with the Company or afiliate, or (iii) breaches his
her other contractual or legal obligations to tlwempany or an Affiliate, includir
the non-solicitation obligations set forth in Sentil3 of this Agreement.

Death . If Recipients employment with the Company and its Affiliatearimates due to the death
Recipient, then Recipiest’estate shall receive, promptly after the datéeatth, a prorated portion of -
Shares that Recipient would have been issued pmursoghe Performance Share Award based o
formula set forth in




Exhibit 10.33

subsection (c) below as if a Fundamental Transa¢tam occurred on such date of death.

Change in Control of Company . If a Fundamental Transaction (as defined in tla@)Poccurs prior 1
the end of the Performance Period while Recipisnemployed by the Company or an Affiliate
remains entitled to receive Shares pursuant toi@eé&(a) above, the Performance Period sha
terminated and Recipient shall be entitled to reseimmediately prior to the consummation of ¢
Fundamental Transaction, the following number cdr8h (the ‘CIC Earned Shares”):

0] If the Fundamental Transaction occurs on or prob@% of the Performance Period elapsir
prorated number of Target Shares based on theopodi the Performance Period that
elapsed; plus

(i) If the Fundamental Transaction occurs followindeast 50% of the Performance Period elap
a number of Shares based on the achievement ofPémormance Goals at the time
consummation of the Fundamental Transaction asrdeted by the Committee and prorate:
reflect the portion of the Performance Period tegt elapsed through the date of consumm
of the Fundamental Transaction (or, if Recipienti@atransfers to an Ineligible Position, throl
the date of such transfer).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company det@es that this Performance Share Award deférrec
compensationfor purposes of Section 409A and is not eligibleday exemption from or exception to Section 4(
and that the Fundamental Transaction is not alebange in ownership”, “change in effective contrat a “change i
the ownership of a substantial portion of the assgftthe Company under Section 409A, then the ClGh&dShare
(or a comparable amount of cash or acquiring comock, depending on the consideration receivecCompan
stockholders on such Fundamental Transaction) siné}l be issued to Recipient on the date such Shaceld hav
been issued pursuant to Section 4 if a Fundam&raalsaction had not occurred), unless this Perfoce&hare Awal
is terminated in a manner compliant with Sectio8AL0

6. TAXMATTERS

a)

Tax Withholding. If the Company or an Affiliate is required to withid any federal, state, local or ot
taxes upon the vesting or any acceleration of ngsif the RSUs, or any issuance of Common Sto
otherwise under this Agreement, Recipient autheribe Company to withhold a sufficient numbe
shares of Common Stock issuable upon settlemethiedRSUs at the then current Fair Market Valu
defined in the Plan) to meet the withholding obiga based on the minimum rates as required a
permitted by law. Recipient further authorizes @@mpany, in the Comparg/’sole discretion, to sel
sufficient number of shares of Common Stock on ledfaRecipient to satisfy such obligations, act
payment to satisfy such obligations in the fornta$h or delivery to the Company of shares of Coly
stock already owned by Recipient, withhold amodirdsn Recipients compensation, or any combina
of the foregoing or other actions as may be
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necessary or appropriate to satisfy any such téhtwaiding obligations as permitted by law.
b) Section 409A .

(i) This Performance Share Award is intendedualify for the shorterm deferral exception to Sect
409A of the Code (“Section 409A ") described in the regulations promulgated underi@ect09A to th
maximum extent possible, and for the Determinabaite (and issuance of Shares hereunder) to benwdthain:
% months following the end of the Performance Rerio

(i)  To the extent Section 409A is applicaldehis Performance Share Award, this Performanaee
Award is intended to comply with Section 409A aade interpreted and construed consistent with steht.

(i)  With respect to any Recipient who is eblg for Special Retirement, this Performance <
Award is intended to be paid on fixed payment dateder Sections 4(a) and 5 of this Agreement arth
payments may not be accelerated except as setifo8hction 5(b) hereof or otherwise to the exgrimittec
under Section 409A.

(iv)  Without limiting the generality of the fogeing, if Recipient is a “specified employewithin the
meaning of Section 409A, as determined under thengamys established methodology for determir
specified employees, on the date of Recipgetdérmination of service at a time when this Penfomce Sha
Award pursuant its terms would be settled, thethtoextent required in order to comply with Secti9A
shares of Common Stock that would be issued urderPerformance Share Award (or any other amoue
hereunder) at such termination of service shalloeoissued before the first business day followiegearlier c
(x) the date that is six months following Recipisriermination of employment and (y) the date otiRent’s
death.

(v) For purposes of this Agreement, the ternesrfiinate,” “terminated”, “termination” andcéases i
employed” and similar terms mean a terminationhef Recipient's employment that constitutessaparatio
from service” within the meaning of the defaultasilof Section 409A.

7. RIGHTS, RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS. Any Shares issued to Recipient pursuant to thisséaer
are subject to the rights, restrictions and linotag set forth in the ComparsyRestated Certificate of Incorporati
Recipient shall not have the rights of a stockholdsil Shares, if any, are issued following thadmination Date. Tt
Performance Share Award and rights under this Agez® may be not transferred by Recipient.

8. RESTRICTIONS UNDER SECURITIES LAW. The Performance Share Award and Shares potenisailyabli
pursuant this Agreement are subject to any resmistwhich may be imposed under applicable stat faders
securities laws and are subject to obtaining adlessary consents which may be required by, or angiton whicl
may be imposed in accordance with, applicable statkefederal securities laws or regulations.
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9. EMPLOYMENT AT WILL.

a) Recipient employment or affiliation with the Company or Affiliate is not for any specified term a
may be terminated by Recipient or by the CompangroAffiliate at any time, for any reason, witt
without cause and with or without notice. Nothimgthis Agreement, the Plan or any covenant of
faith and fair dealing that may be found impliait this Agreement or the Plan shall: (i) confer
Recipient any right to continue in the employ of,affiliation with, the Company or an Affiliate;i)
constitute any promise or commitment by the Compangn Affiliate regarding the fact or nature
future positions, future work assignments, futummpensation or any other term or conditior
employment or affiliation; (iii) confer any rightr doenefit under this Agreement or the Plan unless
right or benefit has specifically accrued under tirens of this Agreement or Plan; or (iv) deprihe
Company of the right to terminate Recipient at willd without regard to any future vesting oppotit
that Recipient may have.

b) Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the rigledeive Shares pursuant to this Agreement is d;
among other requirements, only by continuing agm@ployee at the will of the Company (not thro
the act of being hired, being granted the Perfonad&hare Award or any other award or benefit) aai
the Company has the right to reorganize, sell,-epinor otherwise restructure one or more o
businesses or Affiliates at any time or from tinoetitne, as it deems appropriate (a “reorganizajion
Recipient acknowledges and agrees that such a amaegion could result in the termination
Recipients relationship as an employee to the Company oiffilate, or the termination of Affiliat
status of Recipiers’ employer and the loss of benefits available toigtent under this Agreeme
including but not limited to, the termination ofetlright to receive Shares under this Agreer
Recipient further acknowledges that if the PerfarogaGoals are not met, it is possible that no S
will be issued hereunder.

10. INCORPORATION OF PLAN. The Performance Share Award is granted pursuahet®lan, all the terms a
conditions of which are hereby made a part hereaf are incorporated herein by reference. In thentewoé any
inconsistency between the terms and conditionsagoed herein and those set forth in the Plan,girag and conditiol
of the Plan shall prevail.

11. RECOUPMENT OF AWARDS. The Human Resources and Compensation Committdee dompanys Boar
of Directors adopted a recoupment policy on JuneZl®9 (the “Policy”),that may require members of sel
management to return incentive compensation ifetea material restatement of the financial resufion which th
compensation was originally based. The Policy ptewides for recovery of incentive compensatiomfrany employe
involved in fraud or intentional misconduct, whetloe not it results in a restatement of the Compsufipancial result:
Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Pofiplies to the Performance Share Award and thatpayynents c
issuances of Shares are subject to recoupmentgmirsuthe Policy, including any amendments toRbécy and an
recoupment obligations imposed by applicable lawregulation. This Agreement shall be deemed tountel the
restrictions imposed by the Policy.




Exhibit 10.33

12. COPIES OF PLAN AND OTHER MATERIALS. Recipient acknowledges that Recipient has recedopik:
of the Plan and the Plan prospectus from the Coynpad agrees to receive stockholder informatiodlusing copie
of any annual report, proxy statement and perioéport, electronically from the Company. Recipianknowledge
that copies of the Plan, Plan prospectus, Planmmdton and stockholder information are also awddaipon written ¢
telephonic request to the Company. Recipient ackedyes that a copy of the Policy referenced in iSectl is
available on the Company’s intranet, and is alsolable upon written or telephonic request to tloenany.

13. NON-SOLICITATION.

a)

b)

Solicitation of Employees . Recipient agrees that, both while employed byGbenpany or an Affiliat
and for one year afterward, Recipient will not siblor attempt to solicit any employee of the Comy
or an Affiliate to leave his or her employment oniolate the terms of any agreement or undersia
that employee may have with the Company or an iAtél The foregoing obligations apply to both
Recipients direct and indirect actions, and apply to actioiended to benefit Recipient or any o
person, business or entity.

Solicitation of Customers. Recipient agrees that, for one year after tertiinaf employment with tf
Company or an Affiliate, Recipient will not parfate in any solicitation of any customer or prosipe
customer of the Company or an Affiliate concerramy business that:

0] involves the same programs or projects for thatoroer in which Recipient was personally
substantially involved during the 12 months prmtérmination of employment; or

(i) has been, at any time during the 12 months pri¢ertmination of employment, the subject of
bid, offer or proposal activity by the Company or Affiliate in respect of that customer
prospective customer, or any negotiations or dsous about the possible performanc
services by the Company or an Affiliate to thattooser or potential customer, in which Recip
was personally and substantially involved.

In the case of a governmental, regulatory or adstriaiive agency, commission, departmer
other governmental authority, the customer or pgoSpe customer will be determined
reference to the specific program offices or at#si for which the Company or an Affilic
provides (or may reasonably provide) goods or sesvi

Remedies . Recipient acknowledges and agrees that a brehemyoof the promises or agreeme
contained in this Section 13 will result in immadiairreparable and continuing damage to the Coxy
for which there is no adequate remedy at law, ded Gompany or an Affiliate will be entitled
injunctive relief, a decree for specific performanand other relief as may be proper, including ey
damages.
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14. MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement (together with the Award Grant Neticontains the entire agreemer
the parties with respect to its subject matteryioed, however, that if Recipient and the Comparey [zarties to &
existing written agreement addressing the subjattanof Section 13, such agreement shall contitbl k@spect to suc
subject matter until the termination thereof, atichhtime Section 13 shall control. This Agreememilsbe bindin:
upon and shall inure to the benefit of the respeqgbarties, the successors and assigns of the Gymaad the heir
legatees and personal representatives of Recifikatparties hereby agree that should any portidhi® Agreement k
judicially held to be invalid, unenforceable, ondiosuch portion shall be construed by limiting aaducing it, so as
be enforceable to the maximum extent compatiblb thié applicable law as is then in effect.

15. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by, construedesufiorced in accordance with the ¢
of the State of Delaware without reference to stake’s principles of conflict of laws.

16. ACKNOWLEDGMENT. Recipient acknowledges that the Performance Shavard\ constitutes full ar
adequate consideration for Recipisntibligations under this Agreement, the acceptaricthe Performance Sh:
Award constitutes an unequivocal acceptance ofAgreement and any attempted modification or dehetvill have n
force or effect on the Company’s right to enforlwe terms and conditions stated herein.

By accepting the Performance Share Award, you agteall of the terms and conditions set forth heneanc
in the Plan.

10



Subsidiaries of Leidos Holdings, Inc.

LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC.

LEIDOS, INC.
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Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Leidos, Inc.

Subsidiaries of Leidos, Inc.

Delaware

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

ABI Architects, Inc.
Benham/Ellerbe Becket, LLC
Benham Military Communities, LLC
Calanais Pension Trustee Co. Ltd.
Cloudshield Technologies, Inc.
Cloudshield Technologies GmbH
Cloudshield UK Limited
InQuirion Pty Limited
JMD Development Corporation
Leidos Arabia Company Limited
Leidos Biomedical Research, Inc.
SAIC Calanais Limited
Leidos Canada, Inc.

Leidos — CDM Solutions, LLC (95% ownership)

Leidos Constructors, LLC
Leidos Consulting Engineers, Inc.
Leidos DB, Inc.
Leidos Engineering, LLC
Leidos Engineering of North Carolina, Inc.
Leidos Engineering of Ohio, Inc.
Leidos Europe, Limited
Leidos Germany GmbH
Leidos Global Technology Corporation
Leidos Health Holdings, LLC

Leidos Health, LLC
Leidos Limited
Leidos of Michigan, Inc.
Leidos Pty Limited
Leidos Realty, LLC
Leidos Supply, Limited
Leidos Renewable Energy, LLC
Leidos Services, Inc.
Plainfield Renewable Energy, LLC
Plainfield Renewable Energy Holdings, LLC
R.W. Beck Group, Inc.

Florida
Oklahoma
Oklahoma

United Kingdom
Delaware
Germany

United Kingdom
Australia
California

Saudi Arabia
Delaware

United Kingdom
Canada
Delaware
Oklahoma
California
Oklahoma
Delaware

North Carolina

Ohio

United Kingdom
Germany
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

United Kingdom
Michigan
Australia
California

United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Washington
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Reveal Imaging Technologies, Inc. Delaware
Science, Engineering, and Technology Associates Corporation Delaware
Spectrum San Diego California
The Benham Group, Inc. Oklahoma
The Benham Group of Nevada, Inc. Nevada
Varec Holdings, Inc. Delaware
Varec, Inc. Georgia
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 800

7900 Tysons One Place
McLean, VA 22102
USA

Tel: + 1 703 251 1000
Fax: +1 703 251 3400

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-138095, 333-153360883d169693 on Form
S-8 and Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to RegistaStatement No. 333-138095 on Form S-8 of ouontsplated March 25,
2015, relating to the consolidated financial staets of Leidos Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries tedeffectiveness of Leidos
Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal contreéofinancial reporting, appearing in this Annuagert on Form 10-K of Leidos
Holdings, Inc. for the year ended January 30, 2015.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

McLean, Virginia March 25, 2015




Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC. AND LEIDOS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Roger A. Krone, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Leidos Holdings, Inc. and Leidos, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrants as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrants’ other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrants and have:

a)

b)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrants, including each
registrants’ consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared,;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants’ disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants’ internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrants’ most recent fiscal quarter (the registrants’ fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrants’ internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrants’ other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrants’ auditors and the audit committee of the registrants’ board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants’ ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrants’ internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2015

/sl Roger A. Krone

Roger A. Krone
Chief Executive Officer
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC. AND LEIDOS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark W. Sopp, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Leidos Holdings, Inc. and Leidos, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrants as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrants’ other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrants and have:

a)

b)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrants, including each
registrants’ consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared,;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants’ disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants’ internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrants’ most recent fiscal quarter (the registrants’ fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrants’ internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrants’ other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrants’ auditors and the audit committee of the registrants’ board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants’ ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrants’ internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2015

/sl Mark W. Sopp

Mark W. Sopp
Chief Financial Officer
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC. AND LEIDOS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Leidos Holdings, Inc. (“Leidos”) and Leidos, Inc. (together with Leidos, the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended January 30, 2015, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Roger A. Krone, Chief Executive Officer of each of Leidos and Leidos, Inc. certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as
adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 25, 2015

/s/  Roger A. Krone

Roger A. Krone
Chief Executive Officer
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LEIDOS HOLDINGS, INC. AND LEIDOS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Leidos Holdings, Inc. (“Leidos”) and Leidos, Inc. (together with Leidos, the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended January 30, 2015, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Mark W. Sopp, Chief Financial Officer of each of Leidos and Leidos, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as
adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 25, 2015

/sl Mark W. Sopp

Mark W. Sopp
Chief Financial Officer



